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More information

print and online

Online Annual Report
www landsecurities com/
annualreport2012

Simple presentation of the year's key content
Video featuring important stories from the year
Executive team review of 2011/12

‘Create your own report’ tool and Annual Report
chart generator

Easy-to-navigate downloads page

Corporate Responsibility Report
www landsecurities.com/
responsibility

Why Corporate Responsibility 1s important
What CR means for mvestors, employees
and communities

Examples of CRin action

Prionties and progress in 2011/12

Targets for 2012/13

Corporate website
www landsecurities com

Latest news and updates for nvestors
Information on the Group and our two businesses
Profiles of our Board Directors

Press releases and Sight line blog

Easy access to content on careersand CR




The market has been tough.

In London, economic uncertainty
dampened demand for space.
Value creation was dependent

on active asset management and
well-judged development.

In Retail, consumer confidence

is down, but changing patterns of
demand are creating opportunities
as well as challenges.

In response, we have worked hard

to ensure:

—We have a clear plan for every asset.

—We have a well-timed development
pipeline that balances risk and
reward.

— We have a strong team that looks
for smart ways to create value.

Despite uncertainty in our market,

we-re M,a,km'7 7%m%
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2011

Having relocated Debenhams from Exeter’s Sidwell Street to nearby
Princesshay, we had an opportunity to reinvent their old stare

The John Lews Partnership was keen to move to the city and chose
the lower [evels of the building for its "at home' shop concept




2012

John Lewis Partnership, Exeter

The redevelopment has been taken
to a new level. John Lewis decided
to make this the first of its new
flexible format department stores
and has opted to take all 11 floors.
On opening in autumnn 2012, this
major scheme will enlarge Exeter’s
ofter, attract other retailers to the
aity and boost employmentin

the region.




2011

40 Strand, WC2, sits next to Charing Cross statron By actvely
arranging a lease surrender from one occupier, we enabled another
-Bain & Company —to double the space it occupies, ensuning this
assetremains fully let through uncertain market conditions




2012

40 Strand, WC2

We have refurbished the building,
creating contemporary space
appropriate for modern corporate
use This 12-month projectincluded
the comprehensive upgrading of
the offices and common parts,
including a remodelled reception,
new air conditioning and lifts. Bain
& Company has taken a 15-year lease.




2011

Focus DIY had a unit in the Ravenside Retail Park Given therisk that
this troubled retailer might go into administration, we negotiated
anew short-term lease and submitted plans to redevelop the asset
Focus DIY went into administration i May Planning pernmission
was granted in June And afew weeks later we secured a pre-letting
to Debenhams




2012

Debenhams, Chesterfield

Debenhams plans to provide a
full range department store of
5,900m? over two floors. Due to
open 1n September 2012, the
store will significantly increase
the choice available to the park’s
20,000 weekly visitors.




2011

Work started on site at Wellington House, SW1in 2010, tocreate
aspectacular residential building that lives up to its prestigious
address Featunnganatural sandstone extenior, the block was
designed to prowide 59 private residential units onnine floors




2012

Wellington House, SW1

Due to complete in July 2012, we
have pre-sold all of the residential
apartments for £90m. These early
sales demonstrate the quality of
the scheme, our capabilities as

a residential developer and the
growing attraction of Victoriaas a
place to live, work, shop and invest




2011

Having seen an opportunity to create the first store for Pnimarkn
Lothian, we moved ahead with anew development at The Centre,
Lvingston Four existing units and some adjacent land were
combined with an obsolete counail building to create the site
Opeming day mn December drew 10,000 wisitors, underlining the
strong demand for Primark s the region




2012

Primark, Livingston

The exterior of the new 6,500m?
store is bold and contemporary,
while the interior is white, light

and bright. Our leases with Primark
since 2010 total 47,700m?, which
shows that successful retailers are
continuing to expand despite tough
market conditions.




Having relocated the occupier at 110 Cannen Street, EC4, tonearby
One New Change—and seeing supply-constrained conditions ashead—

we moved swiftly on site to refurbish and reposition the asset. Our sound
plan for the building and refurbishment work quickly attracted a buyer




2012

110 Cannon Street, EC4

Our sale of the asset for £48.5m just
as construction started crystalhsed
a profit early and we have recycled
the proceeds into further value-
creating development activity.

The purchaser has completed the
refurbishment of this impressive,
contemporary building.



2011

When the previous government tenants moved out of 123 Victoria
Street, SW1, we moved quickly to secure planning permussion for a
refurbishment that would make the most of the building's character,
and its wonderful location next to Westminster Cathedrat




2012

123 Victoria Street, SW1

Our refurbishment has
transformed the building and
enhanced neighbouring public
spaces. Fashion retailer Jimmy Choo
is to locate 1ts headquarters in the
building, taking a 10-year lease.
Thas letting supports our view that
Victoria is an increasingly vibrant
central West End location.




2011

Our decision ta restart construction at Tnnity Leeds in the summer of
2010 reflected the quality of this site, which sits in a pnme position
in a top five ity We secured pre-lettings of 40% before committing
to benld, and have continued to attract new retaders




2012

Trinaty, Leeds

There is a new star on the Leeds
skyline. The new innovative roof
which now caps the scheme will
pour light into the centre while
providing spectacular views of
the city for shoppers and diners.
More than 70% of the scheme is
now pre-let or in solicitors’ hands.




Who we are
in brief

Our business

Land Securities is a FTSE 100 company
and the largest Real Estate Investment
Trust (REIT) in the UK on the basis of

market capitalisation.

SHAPING PROPERTIES FOR 68 YEARS

Today

We now owrl and manage
morethan2 4 mitlion m?
of commeraal property

2000s

We enter the Property
Cutsourcng marketwiththe
purchase of Trilbum in 2000
We convert to REIT statusin
2007, and sell Tnllumin 2009

1990s

The Company capitalises Cardinal Place 2012
on the downturn to buya
number of shopping centres

1980s

Downturmn turns to growth
Land Securities moves into
the reta: warehouse sector

1970s

The property crisis of 1974
requires the sale of assets
valued at £200m

1960s

Inone of Britain's biggest Esso House, 1962
property deals at the time

Land Securities took over

The City of London Real

Property Company

1950s

The Company buys key
London assets and acquires

development company
Ravenseft Properties

1944

Founded by Harold Samuel
when he acquired Land
Secunties Investment

Trust Livited Stag Place 1955
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Our market

We are focused on the two largest
segments of the UK commercial
property market — retail and
London offices.

COMBINED PORTFOLIO VALUE

These markets are cychcal and respond to macro-
economic trends They are also affected by speaific
national and local influences such as planming,
employment and general business activity

Retail

We own, manage and develop shopping
centres and retail parks across the UK
Our assets are in locations that have
either a proven record of trading success
or potential for future success For mere
information onthe retal market please
seepdd—5i

London

We own, manage and develop
aportiolio of office, retall and
residential space inthe capital Our
assets are concentrated :n central
Londan, from Victona inthe west
tothe Cityinthe east Formore
information on the London market
please see p52—59




Who we are in brlef
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Our strategy

Our strategy is to provide an attractive
total return for our shareholders by
being at the forefront of meeting the
space requirements of our customers.

Our focus on the UK commeraial property market’s two
largest sectors gives us a broad range of opportunities
and a high-quality tenant base

We make use of our strong relationships with occuprers and specialist expertise
We have a clear plan for every asset and allocate capital to exploit our skills and
opportunities throughthe cycle In property investment, we add value through
active management of assets and the iming of acquisitions and disposals
In development, we create value by delvering the right product at the right
paint in the cycle while keeping a tight focus on cost and timing

The Board directs strategy It also monitors the balance sheet and financial
performance to ensure capital ts allocated appropriately across the business
and between investment and development actwity Each Portfolio benefits
from the Group's highly rated debt structure and its access to attractively priced
debt finance

OUR VISION

OURVALUES

Land 5ecuritles Annual Report 2012

Our management

Information on how the Group is
managed, our policy on remuneration,
and the role corporate responsibility
plays in creating and protecting value.

Fromthe left Martin Greenslade {Chief Financial Officer}, Robert Noel (Chief Executive)
and Richard Akers {Executive Director)

Governance and risk

The Board is responsible for providing leadership for the Group Itensures that the

night strategy is set, acceptable risks are taken and appropriate financial and human

resources are in place in order to deliver value to shareholders and benefits to the

wider commumity The Board also sets standards for ethical behaviour and for !
monitoring environmental and health and safety performance Youcanread

more about governance on p70, and nsk on p41

Remuneration

The Board aligns the Company's remuneration policy with shareholders’ interests
Pay and rewards should attract the best people to the business and incentivise
them to produce superior returns for shareholders A substantial part of our
Executive Directors’ reward 1s performance-related pay, with mcentives to exceed
industry benchmarks and outperform our peer group in terms of Total Shareholder
Return You can read more about remuneration on p82

Corporate responsibility

Corporate responsibility plays a key role in how we create and protect value

By striking the nght balance between the economic, ervironmental and social
aspects of our activities we make Land Secunities a more successful and sustainable
business Our aim s to be the property company people choose to work for, work
with and investin You can read moreabout corporate respensibility on p62




Our performance

at a glance

How we delivered value
for shareholders

The key metrics shown here are the mamn
driversof our most important indicator
of progress=total return-which can be
seeninthe “Highlights” below

Revenue profit

Revenue profit is our measure of

the undertying pre-tax profit of the
Company ltincreased by 9 0% to
£299 4m compared to £274 7m last
year Thisincrease was reflectednour
adjusted diluted earnings per share
whichincreased from 35 Sp last year
te38 5p

Dividends

We aim to deliver aprogressive
dwvidend We are recommending a finat
dividend payment of 7 4p, taking the
total dividend for the yearto 29 Op,
up2 8%

How we performed

The two total return metrics to the
nght provide shareholders with the
clearest guide to the Company’s
progress in financial terms Qur Total
Shareholder Return for the year was
0 7% and our Total Business Return
was 7 9%

How we compare

Our Total Shareholder Return in the
year of 0 7% comparedto a return of

4 0% forthe FTSE100and -3 2% for
the FTSE 350 Real Estate Index At the
property level, our ungeared total
return of 7 7% equates to 1 3% relative
outperformance versus the IPD
Quarterly Universe in the year

20 Land $ecunities Annual Report 2012

Here we show how the Company has performed

and how this performance translates into value

for investors.

KEY METRICS

HIGHLIGHTS

£515.7m

PROFIT BEFORETAX
(INCLUDING VALUATION SURPLUS)

+0.7%

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN

TOTALSHAREHOLDER
RETURNS* TABLE1
Ovarone
yvarts
3 March
7012
4]
Land Securities 100 68
FTSET00 104 04
FTSE 350 Real Estate 9676

Histoncal TSR periormance for a hypothetcal nvestment
ol £100
Sourte Datastresm

+7.9%

TOTALBUSINESS RETURN

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO PERFORMANCE RELATIVE
TOIPDUNGEARED TOTALRETURN

(12 MONTHS ENDED 31 MARCH 2012) CHART 2




Key performance

indicators

OBJECTIVE

To delwver sustainable
long-term shareholder
returns

Maximise the returns
from the investment
portfolio

Manage our balal;ce
sheet effectively

METRIC

- Three year Total Shareholder Return (TSR}
performance compared ta the TSR
performance of a comparator group of
companies in the FTSE 350 Real Estate Index

PROGRESS

TSR outperformed the comparator group by 4 2% per annum for the
three year penod from April 2009

- IPDrelative outperformance ineach
core sector

Shopping centres - outperformed [PD benchmark by 1 6%
Retailwarehouses —outperformed IPD benchmark by 0 6%
Central London shops -underperfermed !IPD benchmark by 5 0%
London offices—underperformed IPD benchmark by 2 0%

- Manage balance sheet gearing through
achieving an approximate match between
receipts from disposals and outgoings on
development and acquisitions

Maximise development
lettings

Ensure high levels of
customer satisfaction

Attract, develop, retain
and motivate high
performance individuals

Contiually improve
sustairtability
performance

Land Securities Annual Report 2012

- £17 8mofdevelopment lettings

- Letremaining office space at
OneNew Change

- Progress further Trinity Leeds and
Buchanan Street lettings

- Maintain overall customer satisfaction
m Retad and London customner surveys
of 4 27 and 4 18 respectively out of 5

On a cash basis there were £540 5m of disposals :n the year and £107 6m
of acquisitons Inaddition capital expenditure of £346 3m was incurred
With growing uncertainty in the economy occurring during the year

we were happy to [et sales run ahead of outgeings as good prices were
achieved on asset sales

With values nsing 2%, our LTV ratio moved from 39%to 38%
whichwiilreduce to 33 4% on receipt of proceeds from disposals

already recognised

£12 8m lettings achieved inthe year plus £3 9m delivered through the
sale of Cannon Street which crystallised all of our expected development
profit This performance should be judged against an increasingly difficult
leasing backdrop as concerns over the economy grew

The office space at One New Change was 83% let at 31 March 2012 with
afurther 3% n solicitors’ hands

Trinity Leeds stood at 64% let at 31 March 2012 and 1snow 72% let or
insolicitors’hands Buchanan Street was 91 8% let at 31 March 2012

London maintained an overall satisfaction rateof 418

Retail maintained an overall satisfaction rate of 4 27 on alike-for-like basis
We were also voted Retail Landlord of the Year by the Property
Managers Association

- Employee engagement toexceed ETS
industry benchmark

Ouremployee engagement survey 1s anindependently run survey which
provides a benchmark to measure our performance against the highest
sSCOring companies surveyed

Qur scores in key categories such as engagement and development were
88% and 67% respectively These were 9% and 7% above the benchmark
for each category

- Reduce carbon emissions from like-for-like
managed portfolio by 15% by 2020 (against
2010 benchmark} This benchmark has
only recently been reset to target a15%
improvement from a 2010/11 baseline
toreflect greater accuracy in the data

- Increase reused/recycled waste intondon
and Retail Portfolios

- 10% reduction in water use across the like
for ike managed office and retail portfolio
by 2015/16, measured in terms of volume
{cubic metres/m?) used per metre squared
(m?) per year against a2070/11 baseline

This year 99,779 CO, tonnes were emitted from the like-for-like portfolio,
whichwas areduction of 1 8% against the benchmark It is our belief

that the improvement was driven by the warmer average 2011/12

winter temperatures

London diverted 100% of waste from Landfill, with 70% being recycled
In Retail we diverted 84% from landfill and will start measuring the
recycled element of waste going ferward

For offices the baseline data 15 0 425 m*/m?/year and for retail

the baseline 15 0 332 m¥/m?fyear Against the 2011/12 usage data,
London increased their use by 9% to 0 463 m?/m?/ year Retail saw
a12% reductioninusage to 0 294 m¥/m?/year

21
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Our performance
by business

Retail Portfolio

Sales and mnvestment
lettings were ahead

of valuation and vouds
down. Our developments
are attracting major
retailers and our strategy
1s well matchedtoa
fast-evolving market.

£4.75bn
-0.1%

YALUATION

59%

SHOPPING CENTRES
AND SHOPS

%% a2

RETAIL
WAREHOUSES

RETAILLIKE-FOR-LIKE-RENTAL AND CAPITAL VALUE

TRENDS % 12 MONTHS ENDED 31 MARCH 2012 CHART 3
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An analysis of how the Company’s two portfolios
performed 1n a year that saw an uncertain economic
outlook affect our market.

London Portfol
S:a.(lz:an(v::fz:ttu(l)grst o £5' 58bn
+3.9%

were above valuation
We have reduced risk

VALUATION
at major development
schemes, crystallised
value and created new
options through
planmng success

19%

CENTRAL

LONDON 327

SHOPS 0
WESTEND
OFFICES

16%

MID-TOCWN
OFFICES

15%

OTHER

18%

LONDON PORTFOLIO LIKE-FOR-LIKE-RENTAL AND CAPITAL

VALUE TRENDS % 12 MONTHS ENDED 31 MARCH 2012 CHART 4




Our valuation
analysts

The Company’s valuation performance during the
year across the investment and like-for-like portfolios.

The movernent in the values of our investment properties represents a key companent of our pre-tax profit At31March 2012,
our total cornbined investment portfolio was valued at £10 33bn and produced a valuation surplus for the year of 2 0%
The tables below provide a breakdown of this performance

COMBINED INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO —BY SUB-SECTOR TABLES —
Valuatlon
Propartion Marketvalue Valwation Vvalyation surplus
ofportfalia  31March2012 surplusH1 surplusH2 12maonths
% Em % * %
Shopping centresand shops ) 272 28107 13 (29 {15}
Retart warehouses and food stores B 1 §_ w_ 1,2251 o7 06 13
Central London shops 02 10564 24 01) 23
London offices i T 429 T 44267 10 10 Ta2
Other {incl restof UK) i “7a a7 17 7 36
Totalinvestment portfolio 100 0 10,3306 21 {02) 20 F—ﬁ
COMBINED INVESTMENT PORTFOLIC —BY ACTIVITY TABLEG —
valuatlon
Proportion Market valus surplus
ofportfolle 31March2012 12months
% Em %
lee-for:llke B o B ~ 786 81195 1 8
Acquisitions o B B - 37 3830 {48)
Completed dege[opn'\ems B o i B o 4% T 4274 33
Proposed developments - ) T 2126 {12 8) b—
Development progra.rn;ne B ) R 1,1881 82
Total Investment portfolio 1000 10,3306 20
LIKE-FOR-LIKE PCRTFOLIO-BY SUB-5ECTOR TABLE7 l_>
Mavementin
Market valua Valuation Rentalvalue Matinitial Equivalent equrvalent
31March 2012 surplus change' yield yeld yietd
£m % % % % bps
Shopping centres and shops 20180 (32) (18) 61 64 16
Retail warehouses and food stores {,1 171 i1 17 50 56 Y —
Central London sﬁops T 41 a7 40 55 {26)
London offices i 34839 43 22 52 56 “(13)
Othes (incl rest of UK} 7254 48 45 65 &7 2
Total bke-for-hike portfolio 8,119 5 18 12 54 59 {4}
1 Excludesumts matenally altered dunng the yearandalso Quesn Anne s Gate SW1
LIKE-FOR-LIKE PORTFOLIO =ANALYSIS OF VOIDS TABLES —
ofwhich
Veds' Vouds! Pra Temporary
I1March2011  31March2tnz devalopment Lettings Under offar
% n " % %
Shopptng centres and shops 55 47 - 18 07
Retail warehouses and food stores . 34 ) 24 01 04 0s
Central London shops | 50 14 o4 06 “o1
Londen offices ) 33 28 05 - 01
Totallke-for-like portfolio 41 31 ] 03 a7 03
1 Expressedasapercentage of ERY Temporary lettings of up teand including 13months are also treated a5 vouds

Land Securities Annual Report 2012

The 2 0% valuation surplus
onour Investment portfolie
resulted from valuation gains
inthe first half of the year
with values broadly flatin
the secand half of the year

Both our completed
developments and our
development pregramme
generated valuation
surpluses while proposed
developments fell invalue
as income allbut ceased in
advance of redevelopment

Falling rental values and
increasmg yields in the
second half of the yearled
toa3 2% fallinvaluation
for shopping centres

Central London offices and
shops delivered valuation
surpluses of 4 3% and

4 1% respectively driven

by the combined effect of
Increasing rental values due
1o robust occupier demand,
and a sight compression
inyelds

Headline vaids inthe

like for-Lke portfolio
reduced from4 1% ta 3 1%
dueto further letting
success thisyear

Within our void number
we have some units on
termporary leases and
some umts under offer

23
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Our top 20
properties
at a glance

1 - Cardinal Place, SWI

Stunning tno of buildings completed in
2006, encompassing office space and
retall accommodation This landmark
site1shome to blue-chip businesses and
retallers including a M&S anchor store

Principal occupiers
Microsoft, Wellington Asset
Management, M&35

2 — New Street Square, £EC4

Innovative offices with retailand
restaurants Recreatingtraditronal
ground-level routes, including a
delightful public square, the property
offers office space with attractive
retail and leisure facilites Developed
by Land Secunities and completed
nz2008

Principal occupiers
Delortte, Taylor Wessing,
Speechly Bircham

24 Land Securities Annual Report 2012

3 = One New Change, EC4

Aunique office and leisure destinatien
in aniconic building in the City of
London, witharoof terrace offering
stunming views of 5t Paul’s Cathedral
The retail and leisure space opened

on 28 October 2010

Principal occupiers
K&L Gates, CME, H&M, M&.S, Topshop

4 - Queen Anne’s Gate,
SW1

Built by Land Securitiesin 1977,
comprehensively refurbished in 2008,
1t 15 the headquarters of the Mirustry
of Justice

Princrpal occupier
Central Government

b5 —White Rose, Leeds

Award-winrung shopping centre with
more than 100 stores and a range of
cafés and foed outlets Located onthe
outskirts of Leeds, it serves a large and
loyal catchment ensuring a consistently
strong performance from retailers
Principal occupiers

Sainsbury’s, Debenhams, Pnimark, M&S

7 -Bankside 2 & 3, SEI

A contemporary office, retail and
leisure space The two buildings occupy
apnmesite on the South Bank,
opposite the City and close to the
West End, served by four major ratway
termin and severat Underground ines

Principal occupier
The Royal Bank of Scotland

8 = Cabot Circus, Bristol

Openedin September 2008,

this exceptional retad, leisureand
residential space ntegrates seamlessly
with the city centre It provides

Bristol with the quality and choice

of amenities it deserves Ownedtn
a50/50 joint venture

Principal accupiers
House of Fraser, Harvey Nichols, H&M

6 — Gunwharf Quays,
Portsmouth

Offeringa umique blend of outlet
shopping, leisure and eatertainment
on a stunning waterfront location, this
landmark scheme is a bustling centre
of mixed-use space

Principal occupiers
Vue Cinerna, M&S, Nike, Gap

9 - Piccadilly Circus, Wi

Offices, retail, leisure and aworld
famousadvertising landmark 2009
saw the introduction of enhanced
LED screens and a flagship branch
of Bardlays

Principal occupiers
Hyundai, TDK Europe, McDonald’s,
Barclays, Boots

10—~ St David’s Dew1 Sant,
Cardiff

This mixed-use scheme opened

1 2009 and has transformed Cardiff
city centre It showcases the best of
the UK high street in its two-level
grand arcade Ownedna50/50
Jontventure

Principal occupiers

John Lewis, New Look, H&M

11 — Tranty, Leeds

Located ina prime position ina thriving
aty, this76,000m? retall development
15 due to open in February next year
and s already 72% pre-letorin
solicitors’ hands

Principal oceupiers
Pnmark, M&5S, HEM, Next

12 = Times Square, EC4

This office building, based inan
improving City area, was built in
2003 and gradually acquired by
Land Secunities since 2005
Principal occupiers

Bank of New York Mellon, Dechert,
Wall Street System Services



Our top 20 properties at a glance

13 — Retail World Team
Valley, Gateshead

Sttuated three miles south of
Newcastle upon Tyne this regional
retad park comprises 27 units
Principal occupiers

TK Maxx, Next, Boots,
Mothercare, Arcadia

14 — Portland House, SW1
This 29-starey 1960s development 1s
alynchpin in our regeneration of the
area Each of the 26 office floors offers
around 900m? of open space
Principal occupiers

Tradedoubler, Regus

Land Securities Annual Report 2012

15 —-The Centre, Lunngston
At the heart of Livingston town centre,
this recently extended centre, divided
into five distingt zones, 1s home to over
155 shops and five new restaurants
Principal occupiers

Debenhams, M&S, H&M, Mext, Boots

18 - Lakeside Retail Park,
West Thurrock
This retail park s adjacent to Lakeside

Shopping Centre and compnses
21units

av3d T¥ILNISS]

Principal occupiers
Currys, Next, Toys R Us, Argos,
Mothercare

19-0Onana, WI

Situated on the north west corner of
Oxford St and Tottenham Court Road,
this assets provides mix-used spacein -
an area undergoing rejuvenation

Principal occupiers
Prirark, Boots, Sainsbury’s

20— The Bridges,
Sunderland

Qne of the North of England's largest
shopping centres representing the
preme shopping destination for
Sunderland The centre 15 anchored by
Debenhams and has aver 100 shops

Principal occupiers
Debenhams, Tesco, Next, H&M,
New Look

16 — Harbour Exchange,
ElM

A collection of nine office buildings
near Canary Wharfandhome toa
diverse mix of occupiers

Prnnaipal Occupiers

Telecity UK Ltd , HSBC, Nomura
International, British Amencan Tobacco

17 - 123 Victoria Street, SWI

Located in a prominent position on
Victoria Street, this fully refurbished
building will be completed in August
this year and the office element s
already 21% pre-let

Principal occupiers
Boots, mmy Choo, Royal Bank
of Scotland
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Our year

of progress

Ql

Aprid —June 2011

Top brands move into Buchanan Street

Our new development at 185-221 Buchanan Street,
Glasgow, 1s creating 10,800m? of new retail and restaurant
space on one of the UK’s busiest shopping streets. In April
2011 we welcomed our first occupiers, with pre-lettings

to Paperchase and Gap, and fashion retailer Forever21
agreeing to take an anchor store During the year we
signed further deals with Fat Face, Skechers, Watches of
Switzerland and Office Now 91 8% pre-let by income,

the scheme 1s on schedule for completion 1n spring 2013

New Ludgate scheme

In June 2011 we secured planning
permussion for our 35,050m? office
development at 3¢ Old Baley and

60 Ludgate Hill in the City of London
The mixed-use scheme—now renamed
New Ludgate - 1s replacing outdated
1960s properties with high quality
offices, restaurantand retail space,
improved links for pedestrians and
new public areas Dernclition has been
completed and wewill time the start
and completion of construction in line
with market conditions
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Q2

July — September 2011
Just the job

In the summer we announced a new mitiative to help
Londoners get back into employment This has brought
together partners i the public and private sectors to
ring-fence jobs and offer traimng opportunities in
constructton at new developments Our partners on

'the programme include the Greater London Authority,
Job Centre Plus, The London Probation Trust, the City of
London Corporation and major UK contractors To start,
we announced we would set asrde 100 job opportunities,
60 National Vocational Qualifications and five full-ime
apprenticeships at our 20 Fenchurch Street, EC3,

Joant venture scheme with Canary Wharf Group Pic

A good time for Bath

August sawus complete the
acquisttion of the Kingsmead leisure
and restaurant complex in the
popular tourist city of Bath This £20m
transaction has gained us a 8,400m?
property that s home to brands such
as Nando's, TG Friday’s and Fitness
First, along with the only multiplex
ctnema in the aity The acquisition
underlines the increasing importance
of leisure inour retarl offer



Our year of progress

Q3

October — December 2011

Retail expert joins the Board

November saw the announcement that a new Non-executive
was to jon our Board Stacey Rauch 1s a Director Emeritus
of McKinsey & Company, where she worked for 24 years
She was a founding partner of McKinsey’s New Jersey office
and she served as the head of the firm’s North American
Retail and Apparel Practice. During her career Stacey has
worked with a wide range of retailers, apparel wholesalers
and consumer goods manufacturers. She joined Land
Securities in January 2012

Awards 1in 2011 included

- Property Week Property Awards
2011 - Developer of the Year

- Property Managers Association
Awards— Landlord of the Year

- Estates Gazette Awards 2011
—National Property Company
of the Year

- BCSCGold Awards 2011 - In-Town
Retail Scheme (300,000sq ftor
less) for One New Change, EC4

- RoyalInstitute of British Architects
{RIBA} Awards 20111 - One New
Change, EC4

Goodbye to Corby

In Octeber we sold Corby town centre,
together with shopping and lewsure
desunation Willow Place, for £70m
We acquired these assets six years

ago Since then, we have expanded
the retail offering considerably and
strengthened the town's position

The time was right for us to hand the

assets on to someone else and reinvest -

the funds in new opportunities

Land Securities Annual Report 2012

Q4

January — March 2012

London ventures go from

strength to strength

February brought news that Land Securities and Canada
Pension Plan Investment Board had formed the Victoria
Circle Limited Partnership —a 50 50 joint venture to own
and develep Victona Circle, SW1 The partnership will
take to completion the development of five new buildings
occupying the island site opposite Victoria Station. Across
town, our joint venture scheme with Canary Wharf Group
Plc at 20 Fenchurch Street, EC3, has made good progress

A change at the top

At the end of the year, Francis Salway
handed over the Chief Executive role
to Robert Noel Francis joined Land
Securities in 2600 and became

Chief Executive ;n 2004 Under his
leadership, the Company delivered
more than 7 4 million m? of
development projects and continued
tolead the UK commercial property
market Robert commented “l have
enjoyed my twoyearsrunning the
London Partfolio and | am now looking
forward to leading the Group | would
particularty hike to thank Francis for
tus support On behalf of everyone at
Land Securities, I wish himwell for
the future "
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2012
and beyond

The recovery in UK commercial property will continue to
involve npples, not straight-line growth We are well placed
to create value through a range of conditions. Our strong
balance sheet means we can make acquisittions and press
ahead with developments at the appropriate ume In Retail,
we will continue to mnvest 1n and refine our portfolio to
ensure it meets the changing needs of successful retailers
In London, we are positioned to respond to the supply-
constrained conditions we see ahead.

Our key objectives for 2012/13

Group

- Outperform the FTSE 350 Real Estate Index on Total Shareholder Return

— OQutperform IPD Sector benchmark

- Progress development lettings across the portfolio

- Complete on time and to budget Trinity Leeds, Buchanan Street, Glasgow,
123 Victona Street, SW1, and Wellington House, SW1

- Maximuse the returns from the investment portfolio

London Portfolio

~ Outperform IPD sector benchmark

- Progress development lettings at One New Change, EC4, 123 Victona Street, SW1,
62 Buckingharn Gate, SW1and 20 Fenchurch Street, EC3

- Practical completion on time and to budget at Wellington House, SW1, and
123 Victona Street, SW1

- Progress on time and to budget at 62 Buckingham Gate, S$W1,and
20 Fenchurch Street, EC3

- Demolition of Kingsgate House, SW1, and commencement of demalition
atVictorra Circle, SWH

- Subrission of planrung applications at Portland House, SW1, and Oxford House, W1

Retail Portfolio

= QutperformIPD sector benchmark

- Progress development lettings at Tnmity Leeds, Buchanan Street, Glasgow and
out-of-town schemes

- Complete Trinity Leeds and Buchanan Street, Glasgow on time and to budget

- Commence out-of-town developmentsat Taplow, Peterborough, Crawley and
Chadwell Heath

- Enterinto adevelopment agreement with Oxford City Council for Westgate
Centre, Oxford

- Progress discussions on potential developments in Glasgow and Exeter

QUTLOCK 2012

London outlook

We continue to see an imbalance between supply and demand for high quality space
Much existing stock 15 unsuitable for occupiers and a high level of lease expiries are
due from 2013 Central London's residential and retail markets remain strong
Uncertainty elsewhere underlines Lendon's enduning strength asa dynamic and
successful eity

Retail outlock

The outlook remains challenging and property owners must manage assets actively
tocreate value Consumer behaviour is changing, with the growth of leisure, online
shopping, social networking and mobile technology This will create even greater
distance between the winners and losers in our market, from retallers to locations
and property assets

28 Land $ecunties Annual Report 2012

2012

123 Victona
Street, SW1
21,110m? of refurbished
aoffice and retail space in
aWest End location
Fashion retailer fmmy
Choo has pre-let 3,440m?

2013

Trimty, Leeds
Trinity Leeds 15 the only
large scale UK reta:l
shopping centre
schemeduetobe
delvered n 2013

2013

185-221
Buchanan
Street, Glasgow
Work s on schedule
and the retail
companent s dueto
open in March 2013

2013
62 Buckingham

Gate, SW1
Constructionts well
underway on the office
accommodation and

retal this development, .

willbring to the heart
of Victoria

2014
20 Fenchurch
Street, EC3

Work with joint venture
partner Canary Wharf
Group isonschedule to
deliver the building in
spring 2014
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Chairman’s
message

“Land Securities continues to build shareholder
value despite economic uncertainty. Through
a combination of astute asset management,

a well-judged development programme and
an advantageous refinancing, good progress
has been achieved.”

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURNS* TABLEQ
Overons

Pl ]

31 March2012

Land Secunties 100 68
FTSE 100 104 04
FTSE 350 Real Estate 9676

*Hatoncal TSE performance for & hypotheucalutvestment of £100
Sourre Datastream
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Having moved in the nght direction in the first half of the year, growth in praperty
values stalled inthe second half Against this backdrop, we believe we were nght to
keep treading the fine Line between caution and enthusiasm Rather than relying on
external conditions for asset growth, progress was made by active asset management
and by making good sales into a relatively iquid investment market As aresult of
these actions our financral strength is enhanced and our financial flexability was
impraved through the secunng of anew £11bn revolving credit facility

The Board believes our two total return metrics provide the clearest guide
to the Company's progress in financial terms  This year, Total Sharehelder Return
{dwidend and growthn share price} was © 7% This represents a solid performance
naless than ideal market and compares to areturn of 4 0% for the FTSE 100 and
-3 2% for the FTSE 350 Real Estate (ndex Total Business Return (dividend and growth
Innet assetvalue)was7 9% We remain confident in our plan and our position

London rema:ns attractive to investors and occuprers and, in particular,
nternational buyers regard London as a safe haven outside the eurczone The
partnershup agreed with Canada Pension Plan Investment Board for the development
of Victoria Circle, SW1, speaks volumes for our reputation and capability asa
developer Ouractivity in this part of the West End ts helping to transform Victona
intoone of Lendon’s most vibrant centres

In Retail, we achieved arestlient performance in a sector undergoing structural
change Attractive, well-located shopping centres and retad parks continue to trade
well while lessure and mults-channel retarling are Increasingly important The negative
tmpact of economic conditions on consumer spending means that certain high
streets and tertiary locations may never recover Qur high quality portfolio has
adapted toretall trends and the evolving needs of occupiers We provide detailed
commentary on our businesses over the following pages

During the year, there were significant changes to the Board and our
committees Most notably, n March 2012, after eight years as Chief Executive,
Francis Salway retired Francis was an excellent Chief Executive whe led Land
Securities through a remarkable penod, including a serious crisis in our market
11 2008/09 He remained unflappable throughout, setting a clear dwection that
enabled the Company to weather the storm and re-emerge in good shape
He leaves behind a robust business and a strong team The Board thankshim
for his outstanding contribution




Charman’s message

In appointing a successor to Francis, we retained a leading firm of executive search
consultants They approached their mandate with considerable rigour and drew up
a shorthist of nternal and external candidates The Board determined that Robert
Noel, who had joined Land Securities in January 2010 as Managing Director of the
Londen Portfolio, was the nght person for the job He has the appropriate level of
experience, 1s well respected by investors and those in the property market, and
has boundless energy and enthusiasm, as well as good judgement The Board looks
forward to working with lim n his new role

At our AGM last year we said goodbye to Bo Lerenius and Sir Chnstopher
Bland in January 2012, Stacey Rauch joined the Board as a Non-executive Director
AnAmerican, Stacey worked at McKinsey & Company for 24 years, leading their
North American Retail and Apparel practice Her broad business experience and
deep knowledge of retail from an international perspective will complement the
existing skills and outlook of the Board She will join the Audit Commuttee m June

In Apnl 2012, Kevin OByrre took on the role of Senior Independent Director
In Qctober, Simon Palley will take over as Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee My thanks go to David Rough for hus contribution as Semor
Independent Director and for leading the Remuneration Committee so effectively
over thelast three years Notwithstanding their long tenure, both David Rough
and Sir Stuart Rose have agreed toremain as directors, providing important and
relevant experience and support for ourincaming Chief Executive

2011/12 was the final year in our three-year Board evaluation cycle This
year, | conducted interviews with the Executive and Non-executive Directors
These prowided me with important insights and enabled me to assess individual
contnbut:ons and areas forimprovernent The evaluation focused on Board skills
and contributions, the form and content of Board papers, nsk appetite and coverage,
and the outlook for 2012 Youwill find more details on this evaluation in the
Corporate Governance section We have appointed a leading specialist
independent firm to conduct our next evaluation

The Board believes that an active approach te-corporate responsibility
makes Land Securities a stronger and more successful business Ourinvestments
in key areas such as the environment and employment generate commercial and
financial benefits to us over the long term We continue to lead by example In
Leeds we are monitoning the impact of our Trinity Leeds scheme on the regional
economy to demonstrate the value our nvestment in the city creates InLondon
we are working with the Mayer and others to provide apprenticeships, tratning
and jobs in construction We believe these inthatives nat only bring benefitsto
the communities in which we work, but buld trust, add value to our assets and
make us the preferred partner on future development opportunities

Land Securiuies Annual Report 2012
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Looking ahead, conditions remaim uncertain, and the sensible approach s toremain
focused but flexible Ultimately, thereturn of sustawned growth in the commercial
property market will be driven by the return of confidence in the wider economy
However, supply constraints inour markets are already generating opportunities

Land Secunties enters into a new financial year clear as toits prionities
Under the leadership of Robert Noel, the Company will respond swiftly to change
We wll press ahead with development — in the best locations, at the nght time,
whilst carefully managing our speculative risk

I would bke to thank ouremployees for their commitment and hard work
duningthe year We havea very strong team, whichis the envy of our competitors,
and the Board enjays regular interaction with many members of staff Our Employee
Survey confirms that morale and engagement within the Company are high
Shareholders can be reassured that we are working to a consistent plan which s
well matched ta current condiions lam confident our tearn will continue to create
sustainable value for you as we move forward

Alison Carnwath
Chairman

Ell
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Chief Executive’s
statement

“Land Securities has continued to build on a clear plan,
playing to its strengths in the [.ondon and Retail markets.
We have actively managed the risk on our developments,

improved the resilience of our portfolio and our balance
sheetis in rude health. We are well placed to protectand
create value through a range of market conditions.”

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO PERFORMANCE RELATIVE
TOIPD UNGEARED TOTALRETURN

(12 MONTHS ENDED 31 MARCH 2012) CHARTNM
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This s myfirst statement toyou as Chief Executrve Building on last year's strong results,
your company made good progress as tougher market conditions emerged dunng the
year We continued to execute our clear plan firstarticulated in 2009 We pressed ahead
withdevelopment, continuing to reduce risk while creating value through pre-lettings,
sales and joint ventures We repositioned assets through refurbishments and we
restructured leases Weremained disciplined on debt, using the proceeds of sales
1o fund development and other capital expenditure Our balance sheet isstrongand
our position has been enhanced by our £11bn five-year revolving credit facility arranged
i December 2011 This should prove tobe avaluable source of competitive advantage
toexploit opportunities within and outside our portfohio

Revenue profit s up 9 0% with adjusted diluted earnings per share up 8 5%
on the back of tugher net rental income and lower interest casts Adjusted diluted
NAV pershare isup 4 5% to 863p Our Total Business Return was 7 9% and Total
Shareholder Returnwas 0 7% Our Total Shareholder Return compares to a return
of 4 0% for the FTSE 100 and -3 2% for the FTSE 350 Real Estate Index

We delivered an ungeared total property return of 77%, compared to 6 3%
for the IPD Quarterly Universe This compnises an ncorne yield of 5 0%, surplus of
net proceeds from sales of 4 3% and avaluation surplus on the combired portfolio
of 20% The total property return of our London Portfolio was 9 2%, which
underperformed its IPD sector benchmark by 2 5% Our Retall Portfolio total
property returnwas 5 8%, which outperformed its IPD sector benchmark by 2 4%

We took advantage of the liquid investment market to sell income producing
assets, on average at 4 3% above the March 2011 valuations While we areactively
seeking to acquire new assets, we remain of the view that patience will be required
to find the nght opportunities at the nght price In addition the development
pipeline will dilute earnings in the near term, although it 1s set to deliver earnings
growthn the medium term With these impacts in mind and our aim to deliver
a progressive dividend, we are recommending a fourth quarter payment of 7 4p,
taking the total dividend for the year to 29 0p, up 2 B%

Uncertain market

The retail sectoris undergoing a penod of unprecedented change Certain retailers,
locations and assets have the potential to thrive Others continue to lose ground
Changing consumer needs, tastes and behaviours are determining the winners and
losers Dormunant centres in the right locations remain popular and a good mix of
retall and leisure continues to attractwisitors In contrast, many locations have empty
space which may never be re-occupied by retailers Internet sales are winning market
share While thisishitting some retailers hard, we saw opportunities in the year to
help others integrate the enline world into physical stores We also developed smart
iitiatives withonline businesses such as Amazon and Qcado

The effects of the structural shuft in retail have been heightened by uncertainty n
the econony The year sawweaker demand from consumers and downward pressure
onrents Rentreviews, hustonically oneof ourengines of grawth, are currently stuck in
neutral Low confidence brited development actrvity and property awners have had
tolook to active asset management to generate value This plays to our strengths
Our portfolos structured to meet the changing requirements of those retaillers best
able to compete inthese conditions Forexample, since 2010 we have created
47,700m? of new space for Primark, the John Lews Partnership and Sainsbury's




Chief Executive's statement

In London, uncertainty in the eurazone weighed heavily on business confidence,
teading to tower demand than expected for office space However, particularly low
levels of development, coupled with the ligh number of lease expines due from
2013 and evolving occupier needs mean the market will see supply-constrained
conditions Due to subdued business confidence, these conditions are taking
longer to appear than first thought, but ence here they should continue for longer
We expect value creation to come from active asset management and well-timed,
well-located mixed use development, particularty in the West End where the
majonity of our development pipeline is focused

A plan for every asset

Our primary purpose 1s to grow value for shareholders, not sumply collect rent
Asset management must balance income and capital growth We plan the future
of each asset carefully and lock for ways to add value throughthe cyce Forexample,
this year werefurbished assets and restructured leases at a number of properties
- suchas 40 Strand, WC2 and Southwark Bridge Read, SE1-to ensure they did not
fall empty inaslow market

Noasset s sacred If we believe money invested n an asset s bkely towork harder
elsewhere, we will sell the property and re-allocate the capital We demonstrated
thiswith our disposals of Park House, W1, last year and 110 Cannon Street, EC4,
Arundel Great Court, WC2, Eland House, SW1, 5t john's Centre, Liverpool and
Corbytown centre this year

Well-timed development pipeline

Qurdevelopment schemes are creating the ight spaces in theright locations to
meet the needs of successful businesses Tninity Leeds s set to transform the aity
centre At185-221Buchanan Streetin Glasgow we are creating contemporary
retal space on one of Britain's busiest shopping streets 20 Fenchurch Street, EC3,
right in the heart of the insurance district, will be the first of the new tower
developments in the City to complete Wellington House, SW1, willcomplete
this summer wath all 53 apartments already pre-sold These schemes underling
our view that as well as nsk there 1s opportunity in the current environment

We will continue tomanage our pipeline carefully In Retail we secure
significant levels of pre-lettings before we start construction In London we have
goodoptionality For example, at 1 & 2 New Ludgate, EC4 (formerly 30 Old Basley
and 60 Ludgate Hill}, demolition work has completed and we can time delivery to
swit market conditions or pre-let demand

We are managing our risk at two major projects in the capital through jont
venture partnerships Last year it was 20 Fenchurch Street, EC3 This year we
formeda 50 50 joint venture with Canada Pension Plan Investrnent Board to
own and develop Victoria Gircle, SW1 This 84,670m? scheme s a key part of
our plans to transform Victona into the thriving central London area it should be

A strong, quick-thinking team

Just as every asset has a plan, so every team and individual within the Company
has aclear set of priorities Building on the work of my predecessor Francis Salway,
we will continually look for ways to create shareholder value by being better at
making and managing space for customers We will encourage a culture where
outperformance is expected and where we are judged on the value we creata

We should not be afraid to make mistakes, but learn from them when they occur
Take Brand Empire, this was an innovative way to address a difficult leasing markat
at thetime [tddn’t work as we hoped, so we acted quickly to close it down and
we will apply the lessons tearnt

Corporate responsibility

Corporate responsibility plays a vital role in how we create and protect value

We can only gain alicence to operate from Local Authonities if people trust us to
make a positive difference Thisis common sense We want local communities to
be pleased that Land Secunities i1s operating in thei area We want to be recognised
by Local Authorities as the best property partner to work within terms of ecanomic
contribution, soctal benefits and the environment
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Commercial property accounts for around 18% of the UK's carbon diexide
emissions We are well aware of the need for action and were the firstin our sector
to have an in-house energy team, and the first to have a dedicated environment
team Wehave targets to reduce our own carbon emissions and are keen to help our
occupiers do the same We are not interested in competitive corporate responsibility
Measurement and targets are helpful, but we are looking te find pragmatic solutions
torealissues, not simply totick boxes inareport We are engaged with Government
to look for consistency in policy so that real progress can be made

Looking ahead

Francis stated that recoveryn UK commercral property would imvotve nipples,
not straight-line growth We continue to hold thisview Our plan for value creation
was never dependent on employment growth, so we are not overly exposed to the
present environment Conditions may deteriorate over the next 12 months They
may pick up Either way, we are well placed torespond Wehave astrong balance
sheetwith plenty of firepower, giving us the ability to make acquisitions and press
ahead with oven-ready developments at the appropriate time

We bebieve the structural shift in retail wall continue, with the strongest
retailers find.ng more opportunities for expansion and weaker traders falling
further behind The same s true forlocations and property assets Inaddition,
growth in leisure and intesnet sales - together with the rapid emergence of mobile
technology being employed by consumers - wilk further separate the winners and
losers in this sector We will continue to refine our portfolio to ensure it meets the
changing needs of successful retailers

Cespite the current lull in financial services, London remains the stand-out
vibrant global centre that constantly reinvents itself Sectors such as high-end
fashion, business services, insurance and technology are particularty active
New businesses from overseas continue ta arrive Corporates require efficient,
contemporary buildings that reflect their values and handle the demands brought
by higher occupational densities than ever before Much of the existing stock will
not meet their requirements or their expectations We are well placed to respond

Robert Noel
Chief Executive
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Financial review

“Our balance sheet is in very good shape; we have

low gearing, good dividend cover and plenty of
financial flexibility on how and when we explott
market opportunities.”

Overview and headline results

During the first half of the year, we saw continued investor demand for we ll-let
investrnent properties and values in our portfolio rose Inthe second half of the
year, overall valuation movements of our properties were flat as demand for
prime assets remained strong but renewed concerns over the UK and eurozone
economies weighed on the retail sector Over the full year, valuation increases of
£190 9m (including joint ventures) helped us deliver a profit befare tax for the year
ended 31 March 2012 of £515 7m, compared to £1,227 3m far the previous year
Basic earnings per share were 67 Spcompared to 162 3p for the yearended
31 March20M

Revenue profit increased by 9 0% from £274 7m in the prior year to £299 4m
Adjusted diluted earnings per share were 38 5p {2011 35 5p), up 8 5% on the
comparable period We have made a miner change to our calculation of adjusted
earnings and adjusted earnings per share Further details are givenin the earnings
per share section

We finish the year with a stronger balance sheet than at the start We have
sold wetl, ncluding some secondary retail assets and a non-income producing

REVENUE PROFIT

development site In London s mid-town And we have refinanced our revolving
credit facilities, gnang us the financial flexibiity to invest in our portfolio through
acquisitions and developments as suitable opportunities anse

As aresult of our disposals, the combined portfolio decreased in value from
£10 56bn to £10 33bn, despite a valuation surplus of £190 9m Net assets per share
increased by 36pfrom 885pat 31 March 2011 to 921p at 31 March 2012 Adjusted
diluted net assets per share were up by 4 5% over the year, increasing from 826p
at 31March 2011 to 863p The 37p Increase in adjusted diluted net assets per share
together with the 28 6pdividend paid in the year representsa 7 9% total return
fromthe business

Revenue profit

Revenue profitss our measure of the underlying pre-tax profit of the Group, which we
use internally toassess ourincome performance It includes the pre-tax results of our
Jontventures but excludes capital and other one-off tems A reconciliation of revenue
profit to our IFRS profit before tax s givan in note 4 to the financial statements

Table 13 shows the composition of our revenue profit including the contributions
from London and Retal

Revenue prefitincreased by £24 7m from £274 7m last year to £299 4m
The 9 0% increase was mainly due to areduction innet interest costs, which were
£18 7mlower than the prior year, together with an ncrease in net rentalincome
of £16 Om, partly offset by anse in ndirect costs Lower net interest costs are
primarily due to the buyback of medium-term notes in June and December 2010,
using cheaper revalving credit faalities In common with last year, revenue profit
benefited fromnon-recurring items totalling some £10m, of which the largest
iterns were surrender premium receipts of £6 O0m and the release of £5 8m of
dilapidation provisions, partly ofiset by costs of £2 7m associated with the closure
of Brand Empire Further informationon the net rentalincome performance of the
London and Retal portfolios s given in the respective business reviews

The mdirect costs of London and Retail and net unallocated expenses need to
be considered together as, intotal, they represent the net indirect expenses of the
Group including joint ventures The £10 Om increase in these costs s largely due
to some £5m of non-recurnng provision releases last year and the Brand Empire
closure costs this year

Looking ahead to next year, we do not expect revenue prefit to be as high
asthis year The level of non-recurning income s Likely to reduce, we have sold
nvestment properties ahead of finding attractive buying opportunities and income
on certain pre-development sites will cease This year, we received £37 0m of net

TABLE13
Retall London 31 March Rotal Londan 31March
Portfolio Portfolio 2012 Portfolio Portiolio zom1 Change
£m £m £m £m £m im
Grossrentalincome™ R 3129 2932 6061 3080 3026 6106 (45)
Net service charge expense T ?_ (2.8) - ‘72 Sj {s3) (23 i an j i {69) . 07
Direct property expenditure {net) {26 4} {17 (28.1) (302) 079 (47 9) 198
Netrental mcome 2837 2890 5727 2755 2812 5567 160
indirect costs T (281} h7n | (4s8) {274) (176) (450} {08)
._Sig‘mtnt profit before interest 2556 2713 5269 2481 2636 5117 152
Unallocated expenses {nef) ] . (401) ] 309) {92)
Netinterest ~Group ) - {1555) (1737) 182
Netinterest-jaint ventures } - (319) ’ (324) Q5
Revenue profit 2994 2747 247

“Includes finance lease interest, netof ground rents payable
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Financial review
,

rentalincome on properties we have now sold and, at Kingsgate House, SW1,

a pre-development site where the building is currently being demolished, we
receved £8 5mof income during the year with ne income expected 1n 2012/13
The reduction in tncome from disposals will only be partly offset by lower interest
costs as our marginal cost of debt at below 2% 1s very low

Valuation surplus

A key compenent of our pre-tax profit is the movement in the values of our
nvestment properties and any profits or losses on disposals Over the course of
the year, the valuation increase on our investment portfolio was £190 9m, up 2 0%
and our profit on disposals was £46 4m, down from £79 3m [ast year A breakdown
of the valuation surplus by category 1s shown in Table 14 below

The like-for-like portfolio saw a 1 8% increase in value over the 12 months to
March 2012 driven by a1 2% increase inrental values, with yields little changed
overall Ingeneral, properties with exposure to London performed best with rental
valuesnsing Centrat London offices and shops delivered avaluation surplus of
4 3% and 4 1% respectively, driven by the combined effect of increasing rental
values, due to robust oceupier demand, and a slight compression in yields as
investors continued to be attracted to well-let properties in the capital Our hotel
portfolio was the main contnibuter to the valuation surplus of 4 6% within ‘Other’,
with the London hotels shewing the greatest uplift

In Retail, shopping centre valuations were flat in the first half of the financial
year, but falling rental values and increasing yietds in the second hatfled toa 3 2%
valuation deficit over the year In contrast, retail warehouse and foed store values
were up 11% as rental values grew by 1 7%, partly offset by a smatl outwards
mevement (nyelds

Quiside the like-for-like portfolio, both our completed developments and
our development programime generated valuation surpluses while proposed
developrnents felt invalue as ncome all but ceased in advance of redevelopment

Earnmings per share

Basic earnings per share were 67 5p, compared to 162 3p last year, the reduction
being prederminantly due to the lower valuation surplus on the investment property
portfolio and lower profits on investment property disposals {together 30 6p per
share compared to 129 2p per share last year)

In a similar way that we adjust profit before tax to remave capital and one-off
items to give revenue profit, we also report an adjusted earnings per share figure As
outlined at the half year, our calculation of adjusted earnings and adjusted earnings
per share has been changed in the year to exclude the profit on disposal of trading
properties and profit on long-term development contracts Thenewapproach
brings the treatment of profits from the sale of trading properties into line with
our treatment of investment property disposals The impact of the change in
caleulation is 1o reduce adjusted diluted earnings per share from 39 3p to38 5p
inthe current year (2017 reduction from 36 3pto 35 5p) We have amended prior
year numbersso that all years are presented on a consistent basis

Adjusted diluted earmings per share increased by 8 5% from 35 Sp last yearto
38 5p per share this year Thiswas mainly due to the increase in revenue profit, slightly
offset by the impact of additional shares 1ssued under the serip dvidend scheme

Total dividend

We are recommending a final dnidend payment of 7 4p per share Taken together
with the three quarterly dvidends of 7 2p, our full year dividend will be 29 Op per
share (2011 28 2p) or £225 8m (2011 £216 7m)

Shareholders continue to have the opportunity to participate i our scnp dvidend
schene and recerve their dvidend in the form of Land Secunties shares {2 scnp dvidend
altemative) asopposed tocash The take-up for the dividends paid on 26 Apnl 2011,

28 July 2017, 24 October 2071 and 9 January 2012 was 36 4%, 40 6%, 23 9%and
18 7% respectively Thisresutted in the 1ssue of 5 2m new shares at between 854p
and 833p pershare and £66 6m of cash baing retained in the business

Alt of the cash dnidends paid and payable n respect of the financial year ended
31March 2012 comprise Property Income Distributions (PID) from REIT qualifying
activities In contrast to the cash dividends, nene of the scrip dividends paid to date
have been PIDs and therefore they have not been subject to the 20% withholding
tax requirement which applies to PIDs for certain classes of sharehotders The
latest date for election for the non-PID scripdividend alternative inrespect of the
final dvidend will be 25 June 2012 and the calculation price will be announced on
3 July 2012

The purpose of the scnp dividend alternative 1sto enable shareholders to
select the distribution they prefer While the scrip dividend alternative results in
cash being retained in the business, it also results in new shares being issued If the
new shares are issued at a time when the share price 1s below our adjusted net asset
value per share, there will be a small dilution to existing shareholders from this
discount Rather than suspend the scrip dividend alternative when the discount is
material, n such circumstances the Company intends to buy back an equivatent
number of shares to those 1ssued in connection with the scrip dividend, thereby
retaiming choice for shareholders but minimusing any dilution associated with
1ssuing shares

Net assets

At 31 March 2012, our net assets per share were 921p, an increase of 36p or 4 1%
from 31March 2011 The:ncrease inour net assets was primarily driven by the
increase in value of cur investment properties, profits on disposal of iInvestment
properties and our adjusted earnings, partly offset by the dividends we paid

In common with other property companies, we calculate an adjusted
measure of net assets which we believe better reflects the underlying net assets
attributable to shareholders Our adjusted net assets are lower than our reported
net assets primarily due to an adjustment to include our debt at its nominal value
At371 March 2012, adjusted diluted net assets per share were 863p per share,
anncrease of 37p or 4 5% from 31 March 2011

VALUATION ANALYSIS TABLE 14

Markat valus Movementin

31March Valuat:en Rentalvaluy Netinitial Equivalent equivalent

202 surplus change® yeeld yweld yisld

£m % % % % bps

Shopping centresand shops . _ 2,0180 (32) (18) 61 64 16
Central London shops T _ 7751 ) _-_ 41 7 40 “§y T (26)

Retallwarehouses and food stores _ o7 B 1,1171 11 17 50 56 !
tondon offices i ) - 3,4é3‘9‘ 43 T o2z 52 T e T _(13}

Other (incl rest ofUK) } ’ T } T 7254 16 45 65 67 2
Total itke-for-like portfolio B B,1195 18 12 _ 54 59 (4)

Proposed developments } 2126 (1zs) n/a 08 nfa n/a
Completed developments ) . 4274 33 (31) 41 55 : ]
Acquisitions . 3830 (48) 02 T 49 56 (15)
Development programme i ) ) 71,1881 82 nfa 16 54 (3)
Totalinvestment portfolio 10,3306 zZ0 10 48 58 (8)

*Rental value change excludesunits matenally altered during the yearand Queen Anne s Cate SW1
Land Securities Annual Report 2012 35
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Financial review

Table 15 summanises the main differences between net assets and our adjusted
measure of net assets together with the key movements over the year

Net pension deficit

The Group operates a defined benefit pension scheme whichis closed to new
members At31March 2012, the scheme was in anet deficit position of £2 4m
compared to a surplus of £8 7m at 31 March 2011 The change s primanly due
toa £22 9mincrease in the value of the scherne’s Labilities, due to areduction
in corporate bond yields lowering the discount rate from S 7% to 4 8% Further
information regarding the defined benefit pension scheme, including the
assumpttons adopted and the related sensitivities can be found in note 31

to the financial statements

NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT TABLE 15
Year ended Yeas ended

IMarch2012 31 March 201

£m £&m

Net assets at the beginning of the year 68115 56859
Adjus_tgi_ea_rnlr;gs _ 2983 2714
Valuation surplus onnvestment p?opértles . 1909 9088
Profitond |spos;l of iInvestment properties 45.4 793
Profit on d|—§pos§l of trading prope_mes— ) _ 52 12
Debt restructuning - - {220
Other T ) (179 29
Profit after tax attributable to owners of the Parent 522.9 1,2416
Dividends T ) _._(154 8) [142.8)
Purchase of own shares T ___ (185} _(0 2)
Other reserve movements B o7 (57 730
Netassets at the end of the year 71554 68115
Fair value of interest-rate swaps - 208 27
Debt adjusted to nominal value T {450 9} (4“6? 5)
Adjusted net assets at the end of the year 6,7253 6,366 7

Tothe extent tax s payable allitems are shown post tax

Cash flow

Asummary of the Group’s cash flow for the year 1s set out in Table 16 below

CASHFLOW AND NET DEBT TABLE 16

Vieay envded Yearended

IMarch2012  INMarch20m

fm im

Operating cash inflowaftar interest and tax 2541 1535
Drvidends paid T B (1531) {1430)

Nun—aereth assets o7 N i

_Acquisitions -7 (107 3) {3713)
Dsposals ) 5137 5350
Ca pltalgxpend:t[are o ) (307 0} (2261)
- T 994 (62 4)

Loans repaid by third parties o 228 162

Jomt ventures - - ) {455} 48
Fair value movement of interest-rate s;vaps {45) [19)
Purchase of own shares ’ [185) 02)
Other movements ~ _ [(243) (172}
Decrease/{increase) innet debt o 1304 (502}
Net debtat the beginning o‘f'tie-year B T(33136) | (3,263 4)
Netdebt at the end of the year (3,183 2) [33136)
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The main cash flow iterns are typically operating cash flaws, the dvidends we pay
and the capital transactions we undertake Operating cash inflows after insterest
and tax were £254 1m for the year ended 31 March 2012, compared with £153 Sm
in the prior year, the increase being driven by lower net interest paid in the year and
the absence of the tax payments made in the prior year

Like last year, our initial airm thes year was for the cash receved from property
disposals in the Group andjoint ventures broadly to match the amount we invested
on acquisitions and capital expenditure But this was not astnet target, wehavea
strong balance sheet and financial flexibibity which enables us to take advantage of
opportunities asthey arise During the year, we identified very few attractvely priced
investment opportunities as nvestor demand for better quality assets remained
good Instead, we were able to sell some secondary assets into that demand as well
asa non-income producing development site At a Group level, these capital
transactions resulted in a net cash inflow of £95 4m, or £86 6rm f we include jomnt
ventures Inaddition, we are due torecerve cash of £481 7mun the next financial year
in respect of disposals which have already been recogmsed in these results

Disposals completed inthe year included the sale of Cosby town centre, Eland
House, SW1and 110 Cannon Street, EC4, generating receipts of £513 7m We spent
£383 Bmonassets mvestment property acquisitions cost £76 8m and capital
expendituse totalled £307 Om, principatly on our developments at Trinity, Leeds,
123 Victona Street, SW1 and 62 Buckingham Gate, SW1 Our largest investment
property acquisition was the Kingsmead Centre, Bath which cost £20 Om Wealso
spent £30 Smonacquinnga 12% interestin the X-Leisure Fund from a number of
nsuitutional investors

The net payment of £45 5m to our joint ventures is largely a result of
development funding for Victoria Circle, 5W1and 20 Fenchurch Street, EC3

Net debt and gearing

Asaresult of the cash flows described above, our IFRS net debt decreased by
£130 4mto £3,183 2m, while the reduction in borrowings in our joint ventures
led to our IFRS net debt (including jont ventures) falling by £189 8mto £3,551 3m
(£3,741 Tmat 31 March 2077) Adjusted net debt, whichincludes our joint ventures
and the nomenal value of our debt but excludes the mark-to-market on our swaps,
was down £204 Smat £3,981 4m (31 March 2011 £4,185 9m)

Table 17 below sets out various measures of cur gearing

GEARING TABLE7
NMarch2012  31Marmh20m)
% %
Adjusted geanng” - including notional share
of goint venture debt ¢ ) 592 657
GrouplLTV 40 4 435
Group ATY - induding share of jomt ventures BO 390
Security Group LTV 376 201

*

Bookvalue of balance theet debt increased to recognse nominal vatue of debt an refinancimg in 200 4 drvided by
adprsted nei asset valie

All of our gearing measures have declined compared with last year as aresult of the
pasitive cash flows described abave together with the increase in the value of aur
assets Thisisin line with our strategy at this stage in the property cycle of allowing
geaning todecline as property values nse The measure most widely used inour
industry is loan-to-value (LTV) We focus most on Group LTV including our notional
share of joint venture debt, despite the fact that lenders to our jomt ventures have
no recourse to the Group for repayment
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Group LTV (including joint ventures) declined from 39 0% at March 2011t0 38 0%
atMarch 2012 In the LTV catculation, the value of our assets already reflects the
sale of certawn properties for which we have yet to receive proceeds Had those
proteeds been receved at 31 March 2012, the Group LTV rate {including jomt
ventures) would have been 33 4%

Qurinterest cover, excluding our share of joint ventures, has increased from
22tmesin2071to2 5 times in 2012 Under the rules of the REIT regime, we need
to maintain an interest cover in the exempt business of at least 1 25 times to aveid
paying tax As calculated under the REIT regulations, our interest cover of the
exempt business for the year to 31 March 2012 was 2 2 imes There 1s further
information on our approach to gearing in the section on “Our principal nsks
and how we manage them"” on p41

Financing structure and strategy

The tota! capital of the Group consists of shareholders’ equity, non-controlling
interests and net debt Since IFRS requiresus tostate alarge part our net debt at
below its nominal value, we view our capital structure on a basis which adjusts for
this Table 18 below outl:nes our main sources of capital Further details are given
innotes 28 and 29 to the financial statements

In general, we follow a secured debt strategy as we believe that this gives
the Group and joint ventures better access to borrowings and at lower cost
Other than our finance leases, all our borrowings at 31 March 2012 were secured

Akey element of the Group's capital structure is that the majorty of our
borrowings are secured against a large pool of our assets (the Secunity Group)
This enables us toraise long-term debt in the bond market as well as shorter-term
flexible bank facilities, both at competitiverates In addition, the Croup holdsa
number of assets outside the Secunty Group structure (in the Non-Restricted
Group) These assets are typically our joint venture interests or other properties on
whichwe have raised separate, asset-specific finance Byhaving both the Security
Group and the Non-Restricted Group, and cansiderable freedom to move assets
between the two, we are able to raise the most appropniate finance for each specific
assetorjoint venture

mportantly, we can use borrowings raised aganst the Security Group to fund
expenditure on both acquisitions and developments Ata time when finance to
fund capital expenditure on speculative developments s largely unavailable or

£1,500m revolving credit facibity and £400m of bilaterat arrangements Inadditron
to thenew £1,085mfacility, Land Securities has retained £300m of existing bilateral
arrangementswhich are due to expire ;n November 2014 Under the previous
revolving credit facility, no drawings were possibte where the Secunty GroupLTV
exceeded 65% orwould exceed 65% as a result of the drawing The new faclity
provides a mechanism whereby it 1s possible to utilise facil tres up te a Security
Group LTV of 80% subject to certa:n conditions, most notably the advanced
notification of such Intention while the Secunty Group LTV 1s below 65%

The weighted average duration of the Group's debt {including joint ventures)
1510 9 years with a weighted average cost of debt of 5 (0%

Hedging

We use denivative products to manage our interest-rate exposure, and have a
hedging policy which generally requires at teast 0% of our exist:ng debt plus
increases (n debt associated with net commutted capital expenditure to be at

fixed interest rates for the comung five years Specificinterest-rate hedges are

also used within our joint ventures to fix the interest exposure on limited-recourse
debt At 31March 2012, Group debt (iInctuding joint ventures) was 94 8% fixed
(2011 92 1%) Asallof our bond debt is1ssued at fixed rates, we only have asmall
amount of outstanding interest-rate swaps at 31March 2012 (£618 9m national
amount including our share of jont ventures}

Taxation

Asa consequence of the Group's conversion to RE(T status, ncorne and capital
gains from our qualfying property rental business are now exempt from UK
corporation tax Notax charge arose in respect of the current year but we released
provisions of £8 0m (2011 £16 8m) which were created in prior periods and are

no longer required as the relevant uncertainties have now been cleared The Group
holds further provisions of £21 6m for interest on averdue tax inrelation toa
matter in dispute with HMRC, which will become payable if it 1s not settled ngur
favour The provision will be released, and the tax paid to date of £60 7m recovered,
ifthe Group's clarm s successful

Martin Greenslade
prohibitively expensive, this gives the Group a considerable advantage n being
able to develop earlyin the cycle Chuef Financial Officer
During the year, we signed a new £1,085m five year revolving credit facility
at aheadline margin of 120 basis points over LIBOR Thisreplaced the existing
FINANCING STRUCTURE TABLE 18
2012 zom
Group Jointyentures Combined Cooup Jomt ventures Combrmed
£m £m Em £m Em £m
Bond debt 33635 - 33635 33954 - 3,395 4
Bank borrowings i 3000 3934 6934 4280 4380 8660
Amounts payable under finance leases 233 45 278 84 46 330
Less cash and restricted deposits B (592) {44 1) {103 3) (727) {358} {108 5)
Adjusted net debt 3,6276 3538 39814 377191 406 8 41859
MNon-controlling interests } 0z - 02 08 - o8
Adjusted equity attributable to ownersofthe Parent 67110 143 6,7253 6,3460 207 63667
Total adjusted equity 67112 143 67255 65,3468 207 5,367 5
Total capital 10,3388 3581 10,706 9 10,1259 4275 10,553 4
Land Secunities Annual Report 2012 a7
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Our business model

We are the largest Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT) in the UK by market
capitalisation We own, develop and manage commercial property through two
business divisions - the Retail Portfolio and the London Portfolioc We manage our
two divisions through the property market ‘s cycles, adjusting key nvestment and
development actwities ahead of changing canditions to maximise return and
minimuse nisk AHof our property activities take place in the UK

Qur customers

The Group's largest customer 1s Central Government, who account for 6% of the
rental ncome onour combined portfolio The Retail Portfolio’s largest customer,
aside from Accor hotels, 1s Arcadta, who account for 2 5% of the rentalincome
onthe portfolio The London Portfalio's largest customer, aside from Central
Government, i1s Royal Bank of Scotland who account for 2 9% of the rental income
onthe portfolio Table 22 shows our top 12 occupiers

In Retall, the leve! of retailer voids has decreased, but we continue to see tough
commercial conditions for many occupiers During the yearwe worked closely with
occupiers to help them develop new and better ways to minimise costs and trade
successfully We try to maximise value for money for service charge payers, and
we now enable zll of our occupiers to discuss proposed charges with us duning the
budgeting process —an improvement we introduced in 2010 We share our plans
before budgets are finalised, so retailers can query and influence final costs and
related matters We also provide a breakdown of service charges at all of our
shopping centres and retail parks, so cccupiers can see how their charge compares
to those elsewhere

We have further strengthened relationships with retaiters by introducing a
new retailer liaison role at our major shopping centres Reporting directly to the
centre director, the iaison manager helps ensure we understand and address
retaders’ changing needs

Ontheleasing side, our Cleartet leases are helping to simplify leasing activity
Introduced n 2009, these are shorter and simpler than previous standard leases
They help to reduce the time and costs mvolved in a deal, for both sides

The mnteractions that take place between our employees and shoppers help
determine the success of a centre or park, and the retailers trading there Our
Customer Service DNA programme enables employees to develop the way they
welcome people to our propertiesand assist them in thetrvisit Last year we rolled
out the programme to seven shopping centres This yearit was put in place atall of
our centres We also brought in consultants On Brand Partrers to further improve
our training and make 1t as consistent as possible across the portfolio

In London, we have continued to hone the way we support occupiers
Previcusly organised into three uruts, we now have two dedicated occupier teams
covening all of our activities The West End team is located in Portland House, SW1
The City and Mid-town team s located in New Street Square, EC4 This has
simplified our speratians and made us better aligned with agents and others in our
indusiry Both teams include indivtduals from financial management and property
management, which ensures occupiers recesve a seamless service rather than
having to work with different Land Securities teams to address different
requirements Quropen door policy means occupiers ¢an come inat any time
1o discuss issues or make suggestions This underlines the conttnuing value of
face-to-face meetings and good relationships
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TOPSUKREITS TABLE19
Mktcap
Rank Company name: £m
1 Land Secunties Group PLC 5630
2 British Land PLC 4,266
3 Hammerson ple o 2,957
4 Capital §huppung Centres Group PLC 2851
5 DerwentLondonplc ’ 1,774

Source Datastrear asat31March2012

Customer satisfaction

Once again, we carned out a Real Service survey of retailers at shopping centres to
measure therr perception of our service levels The accompanying commentary
from Real Service stated that impressive levels of overall satisfaction’ were
maintained n a very difficult trading ervironment, along with ‘strong operational
performance — retailers say Land Secunities know how to run shopping centres’
Results—on ascale of 1 {very poor) to 5 {excellent) - included !
- Responsiveness4 20 (4 21last year)
~ Understanding needs 4 05 (4 03 last year)
- Willingness to recommend 98% (98% last year)
- Communication 4 08 {4 07* last year)
- Overall satisfaction 4 03 (4 O7 last year)

Adpsted from 4 05 reportedan last year's Annual Report

We also bl on last year’s very strong improvements in customer satisfaction
scoresinlondon Keyfigures included
- Responsiveness 83 8% (80 3% last year)
- Understanding needs 93 4% (89 6% last year)
- Willingness torecommend 83 6% (80% last year)
- Communication 83 2% (B4 7% last year)
- Overall satisfaction based on the four key satisfaction measures 86%
(83 6% last year)

Our people
Our objective 15 to attract, retain and develop the brightest and best peeple n
property We want them to make the most of their talents and abilities, and aspire
to be the best at what they do We want our employees to be ambitious and
accountable Weare continuing to build a performance culture that encourages
and rewards the indmduals who create value for the Company

We are committed to equal opportunitres and a dwerse and inclusive
workplace in which everyone s treated with respect Quradherence to the UN
Declaration of Human Rights underpins all our policies, systems and actions

We are working to develop leadership skills at all levels of the Company,
and are dentifying future leaders earlier in their career We encourage people to
speak up and listen to others We encourage opendialogue And we support any
employee who volunteers to provide additional support to local communities
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We believe our position as the UK's largest REIT provides us with advantages
when attracting new talent and providing career development opportunities for
ouremployees There s ncreasing emphasis ont internal promotion, with greater
oppertunity for employees to move up and across the business as they develop
their capabiliies and experience We increasingly look to compare our employee
development and culture with high-performance companies in general, rather
than others nour industry

During the year we refreshed our annual employee engagement survey,
adding astronger emphasis onengagement and performance The overall response
rate of 83% was good, and up 1% on the previous year Key findings included
- 92% said 'Overall, | am satisfied working for Land Secunities’
- 94% of respondents said 'l am proud to work for Land Securities
- 94% said | believe strongly in the goals and objectives of Land Securities’

Our suppliers

Along with our own employees, we also have an effect on the performance and
opportunities of individuals employed by our major suppliers and contractors
Throughdevelopment, we are creating jobs and career opportunities duning a
difficult urme n the economy Successful development is leading to further
employment opportunities when new schemes open We are continuing to
waork closely with major suppliers to ensure thewr people are well trained, and
we expect all of our partners to uphold our high standards for health and safety

Acrass the Group, we have a robust tendenng process to ensure we get the
best value from our supplier relationships We monitor the performance of each
supplier very carefully We always strive to form an effective partnership witha
supplier, so we can work together to achieve mutual advantage

Inretail asset management, the most significant activities carried out by
suppliers are cleaning, secunity and mechanical/electrical services We have access
to a good number of potential suppliers in all key areas, which helps to mitigate
supply-related nisk

Inretail development, the most significant actvities carred out by supplers
are construction, construction-related trades and architectural services In
construction, we work with all of the major firms active In the UK We look for
partners who have scale, proven capabilities, a sound ownership structure, astrong
track record and a commitment to meeting and setting high standards Either
directly or through our service partners, we ermploy a wide range of trades

FLOORSPACE CHART 20
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LEASE MATURITIES (EXPIRIES AND BREAK CLAUSES)

% OF PORTFOLIO RENTAL INCOME CHART 21

companies We place increasing umportance on enabling compantes tocal
toascheme to benefit from our investment in the area, where possible

In London, our asset management teams monitor the performance of
contractors very closely The most significant actwties carried out by suppliers
include cleaning, secunity, engmneenng, waste management and concierge services
‘We are currently carrying out a retendering programme acrass a number of assets
and expectthis to generate signeficant cost savings while ensuring we continue to
provide hugh levels of service for ouroccupiers We particularly look for suppliers
with alow turnover of employees, as employee satisfaction and performance are
strong ndicators of motivation, good management and a commitment to quality
We believe the best performance 1s achieved when our service partners are able to
discuss issues and suggestions openly with us and other suppliers To support this,
we have established a service partner board Chaired by one of our serwice partners,
the board provides a valuable forum for apen discussion and new ideas

In London development, the most significant actiities carried aut by suppliers
are construction, construction-related trades and architectural services We
generally work with service partners who have a very strong trackrecord on
previous Land Securities’ schernes — companies we know and trust Most contracts
are on adesign and build basis, with the balance of risk fatling to the service
partners Atourjomt venture schemes at 20 Fenchurch Street, EC3, and Victoria
Circle, SW1, the contracts are on a contractor management basis, with the balance
of sk falling to Land Securities and our joint venture partner This year saw the
fourth year of decline in the UK construction secter, so there 15 plenty of supply in
the construction market and we are gaining very competitive estimates during the
tendering process Ourstrategy 1s to benefit from lower construction costs now,
while timing the completion of our schemes so we deliver space into amarket with
nsing rents and investment values

EL:]
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Our communities

We work hard to understand and meet the needs of local people We want our
buildings to be part of - not apart from—the area and community inwhich they
arelocated

With each major development or asset management initiative, we consult
with all interested parties well before the first brick is laid We work closely with
Local Authorities, community agencies and veluntary groups to create
employment, education and enterprise opportunities And we link up wath national
and local chanties, so our buildings can help to connect people with causes they
care about o -

Our employees involve themselves in chantable work by donating or raising
maney or volunteering their ime The Land Secunities Foundation supports the
efforts of our volunteers 1t also awards bursaries and runs our Give As You Earn
scheme to encourage charitable donations from employees

Ourinvestments in new development schemes mean we play a particularly
important role in providing employment and tramning opportusities in some
communities We are constantly evolving our apprenticeship schemes, and we have
speaific imtiatives to help groups who are furthest from the job market, including
ex-offenders, young people with no expenience and the long-termunemployed

TOP 12 OCCUPIERS TABLE 22
- %of

Crouprant’

Central Government {including Queen Anne's Gate, SW1)? 60

Accor T T T AT

R_oyal Bank of Scotland - i 29
Delaitte ’ T o . gﬁ—
Arcadia Group B o i _ 25
Sainsbury's 19
Bank of New York Mellon T T 15
Dixons Retail - i h T ) 15
Next T i 14
Boots B C A ) 14
Pnmark - 14
TaylorWessm_g B ] 14
292

1 Includesshaseof jount ventures.
2 Rentfrom Central Government excludng Queen Anne s Gate SW11511%
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Our environment

Land Securities continues tolead the way on sustainability No other property
developer sets suchtough targets Mo other developer has pioneered so many
environmental initiatives We were the first company in our sector to have an
Energy Manager and first to have an Environment Manager We were the first to
publish a standard environment report, and the only property company to take
part in the Voluntary Ermussions Trading Scheme We were the first to obtain the
Carbon Trust Standard, and first to qualify for Environmental Management
Standard 14007 We are a Planet Pasitive business and were one of the first
companies to 5ign up to the 10 10 campaign for carbon emission reductions

We want tobe regarded as a key partner to local and national government on
matters related to the sustainabnlity of commercial property We have increased
our engagement with policy makers at all levels, providing insights on 1ssues from

the commercial property industry's perspective Forexample, in June 20 w'e;arl- ey
iy &

aconference for policy makers, businesses and property compames lookgn =<

deta at the relationship between financial value and environmental performancg < =

Finding better ways to incentivise investment i sustainable approaches will
prove vital, as the UK works towards meeting itsambitious carbon ermission
reduction targets Retrofitting commercal property in the UK will be a particularly
difficult and important challenge For Land Securities, Investments made to
improve environmental performance teday should help to protect us from changes
toregulation tomorrow, but we also hope to see a growing premmum for buildings
that offer high levels of environmental performance

For more on our work with our communities, people, suppliers and the
environment, please see the Corporate Responsibility section on p62— 69




Our principal risks and how we manage them

Our Board recogruses the importance of identifying and actively monitoring the
fullrange of financial and non-financral risks facing the business, at both an asset
and Group level By regularly reviewing the nisk appetite of the business, the Board
ensures that the sk exposure remains appropriate at any point in the cycle
Importantly the Board perceves sk not only as having a potential negative
influence onthe business but also as an opportunity that can bea source of
financizl outperformance For effective nisk managementit s necessarythat the
identification, assessment and management of known and emerging nsks form
part of adynamsc process As property is a capital intensive business, we naturally
place astrong emphasis on the management of financtal risks and the relationship
that exists withreturn Set out below 15 an overview of howwe manage our key
financial nsks in the context of our investment return objectves and our approach
tocapital allocation
The Group's pnmary financial metricis total retumn On a portfolio of properties,
total return consists of movernents in asset valuations together with the income yield
from receipt of rents Although our focus is on total return, we recognise that, with
preperty, nceme 1s an umportant component of total return —and that, for our
shareholders, the dividend 1s likewise an important part of Total Shareholder Return
Aswe manage geanng levels centrally at the Group balance sheet level, we
make decisions on whether to allocate capital to buy, sell or develop a property
on the basis of ungeared total returns, adjusted for risk, relative to our weighted
average cost of capital (WACC) and also relative to alternative investment
opportunities Asasset selection decisions are more important than sector
allocation In generating outperformance we would expect to focus cur capital
allocation decisions more around the choice between development and
investment than around sector allocation if there s amatenal difference in the
prospective returns between sectors, this will be reflected in our capital allocation
We believe that our key areas of financial risk remain our balance sheet gearing
and the level of property development These tend to be the primary source of
volatility of returns

Balance sheetgearing

Gearing magrufies the effect of movements in income on corporate earnings and
inproperty values on shareholders’ net assets (NAY) We assess balance sheet
geanng levels in terms of both Interest Cover Ratios (ICR) and Loan To Value (LTV}
ratios The UK property sector tends to focus on LTV ratios and we manage the
business within an inner gearing range of 35% to 45% LTV, which we would expect
to apply innormal market conditions At certain stages of the cycle, we would be
prepared to allow our LTV ratios to move to an outer range of 25% 10 55% LTV

Property development
Property development has the potential to deliver new buildings at attractive
rental income yields and also to generate valuation surpluses materially ahead
of general market movements However, it can alse lead to higher volatility of
valuation movements and income shortfalls if projects do not let up to plan
We manage cur nisk through both income and capital risk control measures The
income-related nsk measure 1s that, using conservative assumpticns on vacancy
at completion, the impact of rental income from the un-let element of our
development programme should not exceed the Group’s annual retained earnings
This prowdes safeguards against un-let developments leading to the Grouphaving
anuncovered dividend We also control the proportion of our capital deployed in
development the propertion of our capital in development will generally not
exceed 20% of our total capital upon completion of those schemes - save that,
where a matenal part of the development programme 1s pre-let, this propertion
cannseto 25% In addition, we monitor the level of committed future capatal
expenditure on our development programme relative to the level of our undrawn
debt facilities

Thetables below show the principal risks and uncertainties facing the business,
the Board's view on how they have changed over the year and the processes by which
we aim to manage them

KEY
increased No change Reduced
FINANCIAL
Change from

Risk desenption Impact Mitigation 2010m
Liabilrty structure p34—37
- Banklending capaatyand - Reducedlending capacity = Successfulrefinancing of a £1 1bn revolving credit faclity, which matures

funding margins negatively - Increased cost of borrowing n 2016, thereby imiting our need to go to the market in uncertain times, Increasing

impacted by regulator - Limitsability to meet existiny - Accesstodifferent sources of finance with most of our funding on a long-term
Ef Y g E g
basis and with a spread of maturnity dates The weighted average life of our debt

requirements and/ar market debt matunitresand fund

uncertainty n the
financial sector

and eurpzone,
concerns over the exposure forward cash requirements at 31March2012 1510 9 years, offset by new
of certain banks to heavily - Lowgeanng (Secunty Group LTV at 31 March 2012 of 37 6%}, revolving credit
indebted eurozone countries - Commitments funded through sales, faclity maturing
withthe possibility of - Ourprincipal debt funding siructure benefits from financial default ontybeing ~ "™2016

contagion in the wider market

tnggered at 1 times Secunty Group ICR {currently 4 & imes) or 100% Security

Group LTV [currently 37 6%),

- Atlessthan 45 times |CR or greater than 65% LTV, apersuasive covenant
regime applies which 1s designed to preserve cash for the potential protection
of tenders and encourage the business to reduce debt
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Curprnaipal nsks and how we manage thern

reduced rental growth
Difficult trading cond itions
for tenantsin the retail sector,
Increasing the nsk that some
may be unable to meet rental
commitments

contnbution to rent roll,

~ Highquality property portfolio, of which 61 2% 1s located in London,

- Target formaximum percentage of leases subject to expiry iIn any one year,

- Expenenced leasing team,

— Acuve development programme to maintain a modern portfolio well surted
0 OCCUpIEr requirements,

- Strongrelationships with occupiers,

- Vanetyof asset types and, for the Retail Portfolio, geographic spread

KEY
Increased Nochange Reduced
FINANCIAL
Changefrom
Risk descrption impact Mitigation 2010/
Liabiity structure p34—37
= Liability structure s unable - Reduced financial and - The Group 5 Asset and Liability Committee meets three times a year to monitor
toadapt to changing asset operational flexibility, missed both sides of the balance sheet and recommend strategy 1o the Board,
strategy or property values businessoppertunities and - Wernanage the business within an inner gearing range of 35% to 45% LTV in
higher cost of financing normal market conditions,
- Liquidity and gearning kept under regular review,
- Assess balance sheet geanng levels in terms of both ICR and LTV ratios,
~ Secunty Croup structure allows assets to be sold and ability to raise new debt,
- Greater fleability in the new revelving credit facility which allows debt to be
drawn in certain arcumstances everiwhen the Security Group LTV exceeds 65%
- Maovements ininterest rates ~ Adverselyaffects - We haveahedging policy which generally requires at least 80% of our existing
Group profits debt plusincreases in assoaated net committed capital expenditure to be at
fixed interest rates n order to manage our interest rate exposure (34 8% asat
31March 2012)
PROPERTY INVESTMENT
Changefrom
Riskdescription Impact Mitrgation 2010/M
Customersp38—59
- Increased pressure on - Shiftin customer demand - largeand dversified tenant base (ourlargest retail tenant, Arcadia Group,
consumer spending withimpact an new letungs, represents only 2 5% of reats), On-going
renewal of existing leasesand -  Ofourincome 63 6% 1s derived from tenants who make less thana 10% e“’“:’l":'cty
uncertamn

Composibon of our property
portfolio p38—59

- Incorrect asset concentration,

mixand lot size

42

Reduces iquidity and relative
property performance
Excessive volatility in iacome
and valuation mavernents
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- Large multi-asset portiolio,

- Momitor asset concentration (our largest asset s only 6 3% of the total portfolio),

—~ Averagenvestment property lot size of £68 9m,

- Bi-annual portfolio iquidity review,

- Generally favour full control and ownerstup of assets (14 4% of assets currently
njoint ventures}),

—~ Monitor the spread of lease expiry dates {we have an average unexpired lease
termof 3 2 years with a maximum of 8 3% of gross rental income expiring or
subject to break clauses in any single year),

- Monitor the proportion of our partfolo represented by pre-development
prupertles




Our prinaipal risks and howwe manage them

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

Changa from
Riskdescription Impact Mitigatinn 2010411
Acquisiions p38—59 -
- Inability to acquire new assets  — Reductionin revenue profits - Enlarged investment team providing more experienced resources taidentify
to replace properties that have and close new acquisiuions, Lack of suitably
been sold or are inthe process —  Closer integration between the portfolioand investment management teamns,  Pricedassets
of being redevetoped - Ability to control level of property sales,
- Risk analysis of speculative development pipeline on capstal and income basis,
~ Strategy of flexing size of development programme according 1o the outlook
forthemarketcycle
DEVELOPMENT
Change from
Risk description tmpact Mitigation 2010111
Development p38—59
- Occupersreluctanttoenter -  Negative valuation - Thetargeted rentalincome from the un-let elernent of our development
into commitments to take new movements programme should not exceed the Group's retained earnings, On-going
econoImic

space In our developments

- Reductioninincome

Proportion of capital employed in development pragramme (based on total
costs to completion) will generally not exceed 20% of our total capital
employed, save that where amatenial part of the development programme

is pre-let, this preportion can nse to 25%,

Monitor the level of committed future capital expenditure on our development
programme relative to the level of our un-drawn debt faalities,

Menitor market cycle and likely tenant demand before commutting to

new developments,

Risk analysis of speculateve development pipeline on capital and income basis,
Strategy of flexing size of development programme according to the outlook
for the market cycle,

In-house property market research capability,

Skilled tn-house development teams

uncertainty

REGULATORY
Changafrom
Risk description Impact Mitigation 2010/M
Health and safety p62—69
~- Thenskofacadents - Cnmemal/cvil proceedings - Board responsibility for health and safety,
causing injury to employees, and resultant reputational - Quarterly Boardreporting,
centractors, tenants and damage - Dedicated specialist personnel,
visitors to cur properties - Annualcycle of health and safety audits,
- Established policy and proceduresincluding IS0 18001 certification
Emvironment p62—69
- Properties de not comply - Increased cost base - Boardresponsibility forenvirenment,
withlegislation or meet - Inabiitytoattractor = Dedicated specialist personnel, Increasing
retaintenants - legislation

customer expectations

Land Securities Annual Report 2012

Established policy and procedures including [SO 14001 certified enviconmental
managemeng system,

Active mvalvement n legistative working parties,

Active environmental programme addressing key areas of impact

(energyand waste)
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Retail Portfolio
review of the year

“Despite the impact of weak consumer confidence
and the failure of some retailers, we have made
good progress. Our developments are letting up

well to major retailers and our strategy is well
matched to a fast evolving market ”

Highlights
- Valuation deficit of 0 1%
— £281.9m of sales — 5 6% ahead of March 2011 valuation

— £14 6m of investment lettings — 2 19% above ERV,
excluding turnover lettings

— Like-for-like vouds down from 4.3% to 3 6% but umts
1 admmstration up from 0 6% to 2 2%

— Trnity Leeds on plan, pre-lettings at 65 4%, with 6 6%
1n solicitors” hands i

— 185-22]1 Buchanan Street, Glasgow, ahead of plan;
pre-lettings at 91 8%

- 43,800m* of out-of-town /fedge-of-town planning
consents and resolutions to grant achieved

Progress against our objectives for 2011/12

How we create value

We aim to deliver growing rental income streams, higher
investment values and future development opportunities by

- Forming close relationships with retailers and Local
Authorities, so we can respond to people’s changing
needs and ensure our portfolio fits the market

— Developing major new shopping and leisure assets
that can transform undervalued areas into thriving
destinations

-~ Recycling capital to find and improve under-used
assets so we can unlock value

- Owning assets able to thrive 1n a fast-changing
retail environment

- Using asset management expertise to make locations
more attractive to shoppers and retailers

OBJECTIVE PROGRESS
Outperform IPD - Theportfolo outperformed its[PD sector benchrnark by 2 4%
Grow our income - Netrentalincome up by £8 2m

Expand our out-of-town development programme

~ Newsitessecured include Salisbury, Selly Oak and Maidstone

Achieve planning permuassions for specilic
out-of-town developments

- Positive planning decistons gained at Peterborough, Taplow, Crawley
and ChadwellHeath

Progress development lettings 1n St David’s 2, Cardaff,
Trinity Leeds and 185-221 Buchanan Street, Glasgow

- Lettings now at 88 3%, 65 4% and 91 8% respectively

Reduce non-recoverable costs 1n the portfolio

- Non-recoverable costs reduced by 6 0%

Progress discussions with local authorities and anchor
stores for our development opportumties at Westgate,
Oxford and Buchanan Galleries, Glasgow

- Development agreement terms agreed with Oxford City Counal, terms
agreed with John Lews for the anchor store and the principle of tax increment
financing approved by the Scottish Government for Buchanan Galleries

Achieve rental growth through investment lettings
above current ERV
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- Investment lettings 2 1% above ERV, excluding turnover lettings, 1% below
including turnover lettings




Retail Portfolia review of the year

RETAIL LIKE-FOR-LIKE-RENTAL AND CAPITAL VALUE
TRENDS % 12 MONTHS ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

RETAIL PORTFOLIO BY CAPITAL VALUE

RETAIL-TENANT DIVERSIFICATION
GROUP INCOME

Y
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CHART23

CHART 25

CHART 27

43,800m?

of out of town/edge of
town planning consents
andresolutions to grant
achieved

2.4%

outperformance of
sector benchmark in the
IPD Quarterly Universe

VOIDS AND UNITS INADMINISTRATION %~

£14.6m

of investment lettings

LIKE-FOR-LIKE RETAILFORTFOLIO CHART 24
o
T
RETAILPORTFOLIO FLOGRSPACE
162 MILLION m? CHART 26
TOP 10 RETAILTENANTS TABLE 28
%of
Grouprent
Arcadia Group 25
Sainsbury s 19
Dixons Retail 15
Next 14
Boots T 14
Primark 14
H&M 11
Home Retail Group 10
New Look Graup 10
Debenhams B 09
141
Retan other {excluding Accor) 408
Total {all retail tepants) )
45
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Retail Portfolio review of the year

Our market

Thiswas a demanding year for everyone in the retail sector with non-food retail
sales down 1 3% according to the BRC/KPMG sales monitor In addition wesawa
further shift inretailer demand away from smaller towns.and high streets towards
larger shopping centres and out-of-town locations This combined with the rapidly
developing multichannel approach of shoppers to <reate major challenges for
retaders Some have not survived but the stronger retailers are actively addressing
therr floorspace requirements leading to opportunities for us in our developments
and existing assets

Theinvestment market reflected this trend with prime and secondary values
diverging further In the second half of the year we saw shopping centre values
falling with a more marked decline in weaker assets, albeit on a very low volume
of transactions The retail warehouse market was more resilient

2011 further challenged the notion that the internet will lead to the end of
physical shopp:ing environments While online sales remained a threat to some
bricks and rmortar retailers and certain locations, others are finding ways to
integrate the online world into their offer Many retailers are now transacting online
and fulfilling orders through physical stores and we have made efforts to ensure our
centres support this actrvity

Durning the year we found opportunities to work with enline retadlers In
London, for example, we created seif-service delivery lockers for Amazon at seven
sites And at One New Change, EC4 we helped Ocado create a QR code wall that
enabled customers to add items to their next Ocado order by pointing their phone
ataproduct photograph We also used social media to reach specific consumer
groups while reducing our marketing budget

People now carry the online werld with them in their phone or tablet,
and more shoppers are using a mobile device as part of their retail and leisure
experience IMRG and eDigital research frorn November 2011 shows that 24% of
consumers have used their smart phone to access websites while out shopping,
and 50% of those have accessed retait websites Inthe autumn of 2011, 8 2% of
visits to retail sites were through mobile devices, by the winter thishad risen to
1 6% Toaccommodate this trend, we have entered into an agreement to offer
free wireless connectivity at our centres and their websites are being mobile
enabled We are also carrying out a tr:al with Google and Debenhams that will
enable shoppers to conduct product searches using our shopping centre websites

We have continued to see the value of a strong retal and lewsure mux The
combination of shaps with attractions suchas cinemas, fitness centres, health spas, cafés
and restaurants ensures that people are drawn to physical environments We expect new
patterns of consurmer behaviour to generate additional requirernents from occupiers,
leading to new asset management initiatives and development opportunities

Our strategy

Qurstrategy has remained clear and in Line with the evolving nature of the retail
market Based onour knowledge of the retail sector and our relationships with key
retailers, we aim to provide our customers with new or more efficient space that
helps them drive their own profits Through that we will create value across both
our asset management and development activities

Ouraims to own assets that are affordable for retailers and have active plans
for growth We willlook toimprove cur assets, raising them up the retail huerarchy
and improving therr appeal relative to any competition We see opportunities to
apply our skills across the retail market and work in partnership with retailers on
speacific locations to drive returns Where we do not see these oppertunities within
our assets, as has been the case with a number of our secondary properties, we
will sell them and reinvest the capital elsewhere We havestarted to grow our
representation in leisure because of the increasing role of this areain anchoring
retail centres and in creating attractive stand alone destinations
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Our performance

The portfolio, valued at £4,751m at 31 March 2012, produced a valuation defiait
forthe year of 0 1% overall Shopping centres and shops were down 15% Retail
warghouses and food storeswereup 13%

Included within the figures for our shopping centres and shops are current
development projects These performed well, with a valuation surplus of 9 5%

Our pertfolio of Accor hotels showed a valuation surplus of 6 9%, reflecting
positive income growth Rental values on our like-for-like portfolio (excluding units
materially altered during the year) were down by 1 B% for our shopping centres
and shops, and increased by 1 7% for our retasl warehouses and food stores

The portfolio produced an ungeared total property return of 5 8%,
outperforming the sector benchemark in the IPD Quarterly Universe by 2 4%

Our shopping centres outperformed the tPD sector benchmark by 16% Retall
warehouses outperformed the sector benchmark by 0 6%

We reduced vords across our Like-for-like portfolio from 4 3% at March 2011
to 3 6% at March 2012, of which 1 3% are subject to temporary lettings Unitsin
admunistration across the portfoliowere 2 2%, up from 0 6% inMarch 2011
Hawever, 0 8% of these units in admirustration were still trading and, ncluding
these, our overall level of occupancy was 96 3%

Footfall in ourshopping centre portfolio was down 0 5% inthe year ended
31March 2011, wath the national benchmark down 1 8% over the same period Qur
rmeasured same store VAT exclusive like-for-like sales were down 1 5%, while the
BRC benchmark was down 1 3% on a VAT inclusive basis, implying outperformance
by our centres on aVAT equivalent basis The VAT change from 17 5% te 20 0%
impacted three quarters of the comparative year Our same centre sales, taking
into account new lettings and tenant changes, were up 3 9% on a VAT exclusive
basis Qurmeasured retailers’ rent/salesratic for the year ended 31 March 2012
was 10 5% Total occupancy costs (including rent, rates, service charges and
insurance) represented 17 9% of sales

NET RENTALINCOME TABLE 29
3March2012  3March20m Change
Em Em £m
Like-for-Lke investment propertses ) 2295 2238 57
Proposed developments 15 26 (11)
Development pro-gramme ] 37 Y %)
Completed developments 7 s0 89 2_1:
Acquisitions since 1 Apnl 2010 214 : nz 97
Sales since 1Apnl 2010 T 146 230 {84)
Mon-propertyelated iIncome 40 33 07
Netrentalincome 2837 2755 82

Net rental income has increased by £8 2m from £275 Smto £283 7m Therewas

a £5 7m favourable movement inour like-for-like properties which was driven by
improved performance at a imited number of centres including Gunwharf Quays
and our Accor hotel portfolio Income from properties acquired within the last two
years increased by £9 7m aswe benefited from a full year of ownership of last year's
acquisihions, notably Overgate, Dundee, and The O2 Centre, Finchley Road, as well
as the purchase this year of Kingsmead, Bath In contrast, there was a reduction in
netrental income of £8 4m from assets we sold aver the past two years including
Corby town centre this year and The Mall, Stratford last year




Retail Portfolio
top 5 properties

1 -White Rose, Leeds

Award-winning shopping
centre with more than

100 stores and arange

of cafés and food outlets
Located on the outskirts of
Leeds, it serves alargeand
loyal catchment ensuring

a consistently strong
performance from retailers

Principal occupiers
Sansbury’s, Debenhams,
MES, Pnmark, H&M
Acquisition date
1995

Completion

March 1997

Formof ownership
Leasehold
Ownershipinterest
100%

Area

65,000m?
Annualised netrent
E22m

Let by income?

95%

2 — Gunwharf Quays,
Portsmouth

This well known scheme
comprises a Designer Qutlet
Centre with over 80 shops
and awide range of leisure
including a anema, Bowlplex,
hotel, restaurantsand bars
Its tustoric location on
Portsmouth Harbour makes
it a popular destination

Prinaipal occupiers
Vue Cinema, M&S, Nike, Gap
Acquisition date
2001

Completion
February 2001
Formof ownership
Freehold
Ownership interest
100%

Area

58,300m?
Annualisednetrent
£20m

Letby income?

95%

1 ReferstcLandSecurties shareof annualised net rent
2 Maynctudeunetsin admimstration where lease has not been surrendeced
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3 —Cabot Carcus,
Brstol

Qpenedin 2008, this
exceptional newretail,

leisure and residential space
ntegrates seamlessly with the
ity centre |t provides Bnistal
with the quality and choice of
amenities it deserves

Prinapal occupiers
House of Fraser,
Harvey Nichols, H&M
Acquisition date
19505 t0 2005
Completion
September 2008
Form of ownership
Leasehold
Ownership interest
50%

Area

123,000m?
Annualisednet rent’
E£20m

Let by income?

96%

4 = 5t David’s Dew1
Sant, Cardiff

This mixed-use scheme
opened in 2009 and has
transfarmed Cardiff city
centre With 160 stores

and 36 million wisitors,
this1s the busiest shopping
centre in Wales andone of
the top five centresin the UK

Principal occupiers
John Lewis, New Look, H&M
Acquisition date
1993

Completion
October 2009

Form of ownership
Leasehold
QOwnership interest
50%

Area

130,100m?
Annualisednet rent'
£16m

Let by income?®

88%

5—The Centre,
Launngston

Recently extended through

a £130m development,

The Centre 1s home to more
than 155 shops and five new
restaurants It isdwided into
distinct zones, eachwithits

own character and style

Principal occupiers
Debenhams, M&S,
HE&M, Next, Primark
Acquisition date
1973

Completion

Phase 1 September 1976
Phase 2 August 1996
Phase 3 October 2008
Form of ownership
Freehold

Ownership interest
100%

Area

93,400m?
Annualised net rent
£16m —~
Let by income?

93%

47

1HOd3Y 54040341d



Retail Portfolio review of the year

Sales and acquisitions

We continued to recycle capital during the year Sales generated a total of £281 9m,
shightly ahead of our developrment and capital expenditure of £220 2m Saleswere
onaverage 5 6% above the March 2011 valuation and at a yield of 7 0% Our
acquisitions totalled £44 9m, yielding 5 1%

Key salesincluded

- Corby
We sold Corby town centre for £67 8m We felt that Corby was the least
well equipped of our shopping centres to deal with the shift we are seeing
n consumer behaviour

- Garratt Lane, Wandsworth
QurHarvest joint venture with Sainsbury’s completed the £25 7m {our share)
sale of the existing 7,300m? Sainsbury's store in Wandswaorth, together with
the forward sale of an extension of the store, hotel and a further retail unit

- Gnimsbyand Swindon
We sold two further food stores in the penod - at Grimsby and Swindon —
for £25 8mand £30 2mrespectively

- Lord Street, Liverpool
We sold this small parade of high street shops in August 2011 for £19 1m

— St Johns Centre, Liverpool
We sold St Johns, Liverpool for £76 6m, aswe felt the oppertunity for significant
improvernent had receded due to competitton from Liverpool One

We also made acquisitions to increase our footprint in leisure-based schemes,

asfollows

= Kingsmead Centre, Bath
We acquired this 8,400m? leisure and restaurant complex in the heart of
Bathfor £20 ¢m The centre houses the only multiplex cinema in the city
Subsequently we entered into a forward purchase agreement on an adjacent
site for the development of a hotel

- X-leisure
In February and March we spent £30 5mon acquiring a 12% interest in the
X-Leisure Unit Trust from a number of institutional investors X-Leisure owns
schesmes across the UK, including X-scape in Milton Keynes and Brighton
Marina The assets are of interest to us and we will now have aseat at the
table as the fund approaches avote on its extension

Since the year end we acquired The Cornerhouse, Nottingham, aleisure scheme
in the heart of this vibrant aity
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Asset management
Qurasset management activities were formed in three key areas

Bringing in new major occupiers

Primark

Dureng the year, Pnmark agreed to take an extended 8,400m? store at Trinuty
Leeds We also made good progress on delivering the three Primark stores we
agreed inthe last financial year Anew 6,500m? store at The Centre, Livingston,
opened in December Works are underway on a 6,500m? store at Westwood
Cross, Thanet, and a 5,550m? store at our Bndges shopping centre in Sunderland

John Lewis Partnership

We worked with John Lews to create the first of its new small format, full-line
department stores, which 15 due to open in autumn 2012 in Exeter The store
will sceupy all 1 floors of the Sidwell Street site, with selling space of 10,000m?
In July 2011 we completed the ‘at home’ shop at the Greyhound Retail Park in
Chester, and it opened in September 2011

Debenhams

We concludeda letting for a 3,000m? store on the Ravenside Retal Park,

in Chesterfield The new store willreplace the recently demolished Foeus DIY
unit and i1s expected to open in autumn 2012

Marks & Spencer

We have agreed aletting to Marks & Spencer for a 4,855m? store in Bexhill

Retail Park The agreement s subject to planning and we are expecting a '
decision in June 2012

Improving leisure and food and beverage provision

Aberdeen

As well as refurbishing the Bon Accord Centre we have expanded and refurbished
the food court which was pre-let to Yot Sushi, Café Rouge, Pret A Manger and
Di Maggia's, most of which are new occupiers for Aberdeen Trading has been
strong smce opening in January 2012

oz

We have completed new lettings to Rossopemodoro and Wagamama Yo! Sushi
will relocate toanew unit Paperchase and Oliver Bonas will be opening new
stores {ater this year

Adding space

Lakeside Retail Park
We started a 2,300m? extension, with two retaders— CSLand Mamas & Papas
—committed to taking 1,800m? of the scheme

Southside

We have started construction of 3,250m? of space of which 50% 1s pre-let
to Wagamama, Rossopomodore and Cattle Grid We now have planning for
afurther 11,700m? compnising an ancher store, 10 urits and a gym

Chasterfield
We have achieved lettings for two additional units totalling 2,460m?,
toHobbycraft and ASDA Living, subject toplanning




Retail Portfolio
properties over £50m

SCOTLAND

Aberdeen
1 Bon Accord Centre and 5t Nicholas Centre**
GClasgow
2 185-2218uchanan Street™
3 Buchanan Galleries?”
Livingston
4 The Centre*
. Dundee
5 Kngsway West Retail Park®
6 Overgate Shopping Centre*

NORTH, NORTH-WEST, YORKSHIRE
ANDHUMBERSIDE

Gateshead

7 Retail World Team Valley Reta:| Park*
Sunderland

-] The Bridges*

Leeds

9 white Rose Centre®

10 Tnnityleeds*®

Chester

n Greyhound Retait Park*

WALES AND SOUTH-WEST

Cardiff

12 StDavid s Shopping Centre?*
Bristsl

13 Cabot Circus**

Exeter

14 Princesshay”

Portsmouth

15 Gunwharf Quays*

Poale

16 Poole Retail Park*

SOUTHAND SOUTH-EAST

Hatfield

17 The Gallerta*

Woest Thurrock

18 Lakesede Ratail Park*
Thanet

19 Westwood Cross®
Bexhill-on-Sea

20 Bexhill Retail Park®
Bracknell

21 The PeelCentre*

GREATER LONDON

22 TheO2Centre Finchley*
23 Scuthside Centre Wandsworth’*
24 lewisham Shopping Centre*
25 Wast 12 Shoppi o
KEY NOTES t opping Centre
Part of Scotush Retall Property Limited Partnershy
Shopping centre Part of Buchanan Parmer:hlpy P
Part of St Dawid s Dewi Sant Partnership
Part of the Bristol Alliance
Part of Metro Shopping Fund LP
E100m or above
£50-£100m
In development pipeline/programme

Retail warehouse

B chWwN =
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Retail Portfolio review of the year

Dering the year we ended our Brand Empire agreement with Grupo Cortefiel, ane
of Spain’s largest fashion retailers Eight stores were closed resulting in closure costs
of £27m Established 1o help counter a flat leasing market in late 2009, Brand Emprre
wasan innovative way to help overseas retailers access the UK market Unfortunately,
the Grupo Cortefiel brands were unable to establish themselves here Wa structured
our agreermnents onthe basis that this may happen and acted quickly and decisively
to close the operation The Brand Empire initiative had been welcomed by the
sector, and a number of valuable retailer relationships were formed as a result of
interest in the scheme We will apply the lessonslearnt and continue to look for
new ways to help retailers and increase lettings

Development and plannimg

50

Trinity Leeds

Having secured pre-lettings of 40% before commutting to build, we now have
65 4% pre-let and 6 6% in solicitors’ hands, by income Trinity Leeds 1s the only
major new shopping centre under construction in the UK and is due to complete
1n March 2013 Confirmed occupants include Marks & Spencer, Primark, BHS,
Next, Boots, Topshop/Topman, H&M, River Island, Cult and Hollister

185-221Buchanan Street, Glasgow

Work s on schedule and discussions with major retailers have proved successful
At March 2012 we had 91 8% pre-lettings in place, by mcome The retall
component of the scheme ts due to openin March 2013 Only one unit remains
available on Buchanan Street and twao units are avaitable on West Nile Street
Confirmed accupants include Forever21, Paperchase, Gap, Fat Face, Office,
Skechers and Watches of Switzerland

Meteor Centre, Derby

In April 2011 we recerved permission from Derby City Council for the creation
of anew 9,300m? food store and the reconfliguration of existng uruts This
redevelopment scheme will help regenerate the existing reta:l park and improve
shopping and services

Bishop Centre, Taplow

In March 2012 we achieved aresolution to grant planning consent for
redevelopment of the existing shopping centre The new 12,260m? development
could commence in early 2013 Tesco has already agreed to take 5,100m? of
the space The remaining space will be dwvided into 10-12 smaller retail and
leisure units

Whalebone Lane, Chadwell Heath

We have secured planning permssion for a food store at the vacant BRQ
building on Whalebone Lane Since the year end this space has been pre-let
to ASDA

Crawley

Planning permission has been gained for a 7,000m? supermarket and a 110-bed
hotel, together with 600m? of restaurant space The main units have been
pre-let to Mornsons and Travelodge Subject to achieving vacant possession,
development canstart inlate 2012

Land Securities Annual Report 2012

Retail Portfolio looking ahead

Overall, the retail outlook remains challenging and property owners are having
totake an even more active approach to asset management to create value
Continued uncertainty in capital markets would add to downward pressure on the
sector, but it may also generate attractive buying opportunities Whether market
conditions worsen or we see areturn to growth, the quality of our portfolic and our
relationships will be increasingly tmportant

Every retail asset will be affected in someway Many have the potentral to
thrive as new dynamics emerge Retailers continue to be drawn to less expensive
space that consistently trades well and asset managers will be required to
continually review their assets’ attraction to the shopper and the retarler Larger
destinations are likely to do better than the overall market because of the scale of
their retail and leisure offer We will continue to ensure every one of our assets has
aclear planwith flexbility to adapt to market scenarios

Consumer behaviour 1s changing, not Just with the growth of leisure and online

shopping, but also through social networking and maobile technology, which can
provide information to consurners while they are shopping This wall create even
greater distance between the winners and losers in our market, from retailers to
locations and property assets Our strategy 1s well matched to this evelution

KEY OBJECTIVES FOR 2012/13 CHART 30

- Gutperform IPD sector benchmark

~ Protectoccupancy by dealing effectively with retarder administrations

- Progress development lettings at Trinity Leeds, 185-221 Buchanan Street,
Clasgow, Taplow, Peterborough, Derby, and Selly Oak

- Achieve practical completion on time and to budget at Trinuty Leeds and
185-221Buchanan Street, Glasgow

- Commence out-of-town developments at Crawley, Taplow, Derby and
Chadwell Heath

- Enterintoadevelopment agreement with Oxfard City Council for Westgate
Centre, Oxford

- Submutplanning applications at Exeter and three new sites secured in our
out-of-town ptpeline




Retail Portfolio
development pipeline

2013 2013

Trinity, Leeds

The only large scale UK retail shopping centre
development scheme due to be delivered in 2013

185-221 Buchanan Street, Glasgow

The scheme provides 60 metres onto Buchanan
Street in the heart of the Glasgow shopping distrect

2014

Meteor Centre, Derby

This 9,300m? food store and reconfiguration
of existing units recerved planning permission

Trinity Leeds 1s located na prime position ina Currently 92% pre-let and introducing Forever2i to inApnl 2011
thriving city The scheme1s now 72% to letorin Scotland, the scheme 15 due to openin March 2013
solicitors' hands The projectis due to completein
February 2013
RETAIL DEVELOPMENT PIPELINE AT 31 MARCH 2012 TABLE 31
Estimated/ Total Forecast total
Qwnarship Lexting Market Natincome/ actusl development dveloprvent
Dascription interest Sz Planning status valus ERY complatian tostatodate st
Property ofuse % " status % £m £m date £m Em
Developments approved orinprogress
Tnnity Leeds Retall 100 75,900 64 250 291 Feb 2013 202 363
185-2218uchananSireet, Glasgow  Retad 100 10800 a2 S2 47 Mar 2013 32 &3
Residential 3,700 ) i
Proposed developments
Meteor Centre, Derby Foodstore 100 14,400 PR - nfa nfa 2014 nfa nfa
Developments let and transferred or sold
Carratt Lane, Wandsworth Foodstare Sold 16,510 nfa nfa nfa n/a n/a n/a
Leisure 5,670
St David's 2, Cardiff* Retail 50 89,900 88 222 148 Oct 2009 354 360
1 S1David 52 Cardtf exch costs and value followirg the translerof s slement 1o trading prop Tatal devel cent
Totel development cost refers to the book value of the band at the of the progect, th I

‘Where the progerty s not 100% owned Moo sreas shown above regresent the full scheme whereas all sther figures
reprevent our propoctionite thare Letting % is measured by ERV and shows fetling status at 11 March 2012 Trading
property development schemes are excluded from the development ppeline

FR=- llhn-mngr!:tmrd .
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experditure reqmredtodmlag!he scheme fram the start of the financial year nwhich the pmpqrqlnddnd lu uu
2! tagethu heap g the Group 1
nthe property underdevel !nuresnsalsocap-ulmdnn:he pur:nmnmnf Land o4 property where
|tlucqu1red speaheally Iorredmlopmmz Of the properbes inthe development pipeline at 31 March 2042 Interestwas
capitalsedanthe and cost st Tomity Leedt and 185 221 Buchanan Stree L Glasgaw The figures for total development costs
Include expenditure on the residenual elements of 185 221Buchanan Street Glasgow (£117m)

Natincome/ERV
Net FERV

net headline. Lrentonl plus ERV at 31 March 2012 on unletunits
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London Portfolio
review of the year

“We have maintained momentum in a demanding
environment. Sales and lettings were above valuation,
voids are down and our weighted average unexpired

lease term has increased. We continued to reduce risk
at major development schemes, crystallised value and
created new opportunities through planning success.”

Highlights

- Valuauion surplus of 3 9%

~ £623 8m of sales — 3 8% ahead of March 2011 valuation
= £24.5m of investment lettings — 12 2% ahead of ERV

— Like-for-like voids down from 3 8% to 2.5%

— Longer weighted average unexpired lease term on the
hike-for-like portfolio, completed developments and
acquisttions of 9 9 years (31 March 2011: 8.9 years)

- 20 Fenchurch Street, EC3 development committed
{(in partnership with Canary Wharf Group)

— Planmng permussion received at 1 & 2 New Ludgate, EC4,
Kingsgate House, SW1 and 1 New Street Square, EC4

— Jomnt venture partnership formed at Victoria Circle,
SW1 with Canada Pension Plan Investment Board

Progress against our objectives for 2011,/12

QBJECTIVE
Outperform IPD

How we create value

We aim to deliver growing rental income streams and
higher asset values over the long term by

- Developing assets early in the cycle to maximise returns
- Acting decisively to crystallise value and recycle capatal

— Creating hugh quality products that meet customers’
changing needs

— Being inventive and energetic in the way we manage
our assets

- Establishing partnerships to deliver and de-risk
major developments

PROGRESS

- The London portfolio underperformed itsiPD sector benchmark by 2 5%

Obtain planning consent and start on site at 30 Old Bailey
and 60 Ludgate Hill, EC4 (now called 182 New Ludgate)

~ Consent obtained and demolition completed, constructionwill start to ime |
completion to suit market conditions

Complete office lettmgs at One New Change, EC4

- The office element of the scheme was 83 0% letat 31 March 2012

Progress on trme and to budget at 62 Buckingham Gate,
SW1, 123 Victoria Street, SW1, Wellington House, SWI,
20 Fenchurch Street, EC3, 40 Strand, WC2; and

110 Cannon Street, EC4

- Allof these schemes have progressed on ar ahead of time and within budget
110 Cannon Street, EC4 was sold in the year, crystallising value early

Secure ajoint venture partner for Victoria Circle, SW1

- 5050 partnership with Canada Pension Plan Investment Board formed in
February 2012

Complete detailed design at Arundel Great Court, WC2
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- Design and negotiations wath occupiers both completed Site prepared for
demolition and subsequently sold




London Portfolio review of the year

10.2 years £24.Bm

3.9%

Like-for-lke London of investment lettings valuation surplus
offices weighted in the year for the year
average unexpired lease
term, up from B 7 years
at March 201
LONDON PORTFOLIO LIKE-FOR-LIKE—~ RENTALAND CAPITAL VOIDS AND UNITS IN ADMINISTRATION % —
VALUE TRENDS % 12 MONTHS ENDED 31 MARCH 2012 CHART 32 LIKE-FOR-LIKE PORTFOLIO CHART 33
LONDON PORTFOLIO BY CAPITAL VALUE £m CHART 34 LONDON PORTFOLIO FLOORSPACE
0 81MILLION m? CHART 35
LONDON PORTFOLIO - TENANT DIVERSIFICATION
GROUP INCOME CHART 36 TOP 10 OFFICE TENANTS (% OF RENT) TABLE 37
%of
- Grouprent
Central Government 59
Royal Bank of Scotland 26
Deloitte T
BankofNewYorkMellon I |
Taylor Wessing i ) 14
K&L Gates T
Metropalitan Police - o . N
Redbus Interhouse 10
EDF Energy” - " 1o
Microsoft B 09
92
Office other . _ T - 211
Total {all office tenants) 403
Land Securities Annual Report 2012
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London Portfolio review of the year

Our market

We started 2011/12 expecting to see a hrmited supply of new office space coming
onto the market, with demand around average levels We ended theyear withboth
supply and demand at lower levels than those forecast

On the demand side, wider economic uncertainty impacted confidence and, in
turn, requirements for space Some occupiers requiring new accommodation chose
to detay thew moves On the supply side, many developers found it difficult to raise
the capital needed to advance developments Others remained wary of making
investments Local Authonity spending cuts and localism have also added
complexity to the planming process in Landon

Meanwhile, London’s qualities as a leading financial and commercial centre
continued to attract investors from around the world As a result, the property
investment market remained liquid throughout the year

We remain consistent in our view that supply-constramned conditrons will lead
torental growth, although these conditions are taking longer to emerge The supply
of pnme office space will be significantly bmited by the hiatus in the development
market and we expect demand for the nght space in the nght location to increase as
pentup demand is released Our portfolio is positioned to take advantage of this

Our strategy

Our prionities are to develop first class space in central London and strengthen
income streams through nigorous asset management We are working to maximise
returns as we move through the cycle Asearly-cycle developers, we gain the
berefits of competitive construction costs and nising rental values We are
progressing a well imed and well managed development programme We have a
clear plan for every asset And we donat hesitate to realise and recycle the vatue
inan asset If a more attractive opportunity appears

Our performance

The London Portfolio, valued at £5,57%m at 31 March 2072, produced a valuation
surplus for the year of 3 5% West End offices were up 4 9%, City offices were up
4 3%, and central London retall up 2 3% Included within these figures are
properties within the development programme, with a surplus of 7 7%, while
proposed developments fell in value by 15 9%

The Portfolio produced an ungeared total property return of 5 2%, although
this underperformed the sector benchmark (central London) in the IPD Quarterly
Universe by 2 5% The underperformance reflected our exposure tothe Victeria
market and the actions we are taking to transform this part of the West End We are
canfident our actions will prove fruitful Offices underperformed the benchmark
by 2 0%, while our central London retail properties underperformed the
benchmark by 5 0% after strong outperformance of 10 3% lastyear

Rental values in our ike-for-like portfolio (excluding units matenally altered
during the year and Queen Anne's Gate, SW1) increased by 2 5%, made up of 0 8%
for West End offices, 2 4% for Gity offices, 2 3% for Mid-town offices and 3 7% for
central Londonretail Like-for-like voids were 2 5%, compared to 3 8% at March
2011 Void levels on the like-for-like London retail assets were 1 4% (2011 5 0%)
and Londen offices were 2 8% (2011 3 3%)
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NETRENTALINCOME TABLE 38
FMarch2012 31March201 Change
Em im im
Like-for-like investment properties 2283 _ .3 =
Proposed develop_ments B 94 54 -
Dev;lopment programme 178 Co23 155
Completed develupmenfs T 6_4_ ___ 47 : ) ;]_l
Acquisitions since 1Apnl 2010 . - = -
Salessince 1 April 2010 i 224 335 (111
Non-property related income ) 47 T30 17
Netrental income 2890 2812 78

Net rental income increased by £7 8mto £28% Om Qverall, ike-for-lke
investment properties showed no growth m net rental Income as a targe surrender
receipt of £4 8mwas offset by lower income fram properties being refurbished
The development programme saw net rental income increase £15 Sm overlast
year, drnven by £14 Tm of net rental Income at One New Change, EC4 following
completion in October 2010 Income from properties sold in the last two years
declined by £11 Im Properties sold this year, whichincluded Eland House, SW1and
110 Carnon Street, EC4, contnibuted net rental income of £22 4m of which £3 2m
related to the release of dilapidation provisions The loss of rentalincome from
properties sold this year 1s likely to lead to lower net rental income next year in

the London Portfolio

Sales and acquisitions

Duning the year we made £623 8m of sales, at 3 8% above the March 2011
valuation The majarity of these saleswere made in the final quarter of the year
The net yield on disposals was 3 7% We spent £211 Smon capital expenditure and
acquisitions We maintained a disciplined approach to buying, preferning to focus
on investment in developments as we believe this remains the best way to capture
rental growth in current conditions Transactions included

- ElandHouse, SW1
This was an ageing 23,500m? building occupied by a single government tenant
at nisk of exeraising thewr option to break the lease n 2016 We have a growing
portfolio of new assets in the area, so we opted to sell the building during the
year, generating £1711m

- 110 Cannon Street and Martin House, EC4
These buldings were at the preliminary stages of amajor 6,810m? refurbishment
The sale raised £48 5m, crystallising early virtually all of our anticipated
development surplus

~ City Forum, EC1
We sold this proposed residential development for £40 8m early in the year,
in keeping with our focus on development within our core geographical market




London Portfolio
top 5 properties

1 -Cardinal Place,
Swi

Stunning trio of buildings
encompassing office space
and retail accornmodation
Thislandmarksite 1s home to
blue-chip businesses and
retailers, includinga M&S
anchorstore

Principal occupiers
Microsaft, Wellington
Management, M&5S
Acquisibon date
1969

Completion

January 2006

Form of ownership
Freehold

Ownership interest
100%

Area

60,300m?
Annualised netrent
£37m

Letbyincome

97%

Land Securities Annual Report 2012

2 - New Street
Square, EC4

Innovative offices with retail
andrestaurants Recreating
tradtional ground-tevel
routes, including a delightfut
public square, the property
affers office space with
attractive retail and beisure
facilities Developed by Land
Secunties and completed
nz2008

Principal occupiers
Deloitte, Taylor Wessing,
Speechly Barcham
Acquisition date
1958

Completion

May 2008

Formof ownership
Leasehold
Ownership interest
100%

Area

64,700m?
Annualisednet rent
£31m

Let by ncome

96%

3—0One New
Change, EC4

Aunique office and leisure
destination in an iconic
bullding in the ity of London,
with a roof terrace offering
stunning views of 5t Paul’s
Cathedral Theretalland
lersure space opened on

28 October 2010

Principal occupiers
K84 Gates, CME, H&M,
M&S, TopShop
Acquisition date
2000

Completion
Cctober 2010

Form of ownership
Leasehold
Ownershipinterest
100%

Area

52,300m?
Annualised netrent
£17m

Let by income

88%

4 — Queen Anne's
Gate, SW1

Built by Land Secunties in
1977, comprehensively
refurbished in 2008, 1t 1s the
headquarters of the Ministry
of Justice

Principal occupter
Central Government
Acquisition date
1958

Completion

May 2008

Form of ownership
Freehold
Ownership interest
100%

Area

32,800m?
Annuabised netrent
£28m

Let by income
100%

5-Bankside2 &3,
SEl

A conternporary office, retail
and leisure space The two
buildings occupy a prime site
on the South Bank, opposite
the City and close to the West
End, served by four major
railway terrmir and several
undergroundlines

Principal occupier
The Royal Bank of Scottand
Acquisstion date
1969

Completion

August 2007
Formof ownership
Leasehold
Ownershipinterest
100%

Area

38,700m?
Annualisednetrent
£16m

Letby income

100%
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London Portfolio review of theyear

i5Bonhill Street, EC2
Having completed our business plan for the asset, we sold this 10,220m? office
buitding for £33 1rmin January 2012

Victona Circle, SW1

As part of our site assembly of Victoria Circle, we acquired two buldings for
atotalof £15 2m-oneat 166-172 Victoria Street, SW, the other at 81-85
Buckingham Palace Road, SW1 Having completed the assembly we then
transferred the entire Victona Circle holding to a new 50 50 joint venture
with Canada Pension Plan Investment Board

Arundel Great Court, WC2

We have signatled that we will not carry out all our development prospects
ourselves and choices have to be made Having prepared this site for a proposed
61,700m? development we elected to sell it for a total consideration of £245 5m
From this price we believe other schemes within our pipeline will make more
attractive returns

Asset management

We continue to look for smart ways to lengthen and strengthen our income streams
Duning the year we let or restructured more than 87,800m? of space New lettings
were completed on average at 12 2% above ERV We restructured anumber of
leases due for renewal this year, and our weighted average unexpired lease term
ncreased on the like-for-like partfolio, completed developments and acquisitions
to 9 9years (31March 2011 8 9 years)

Key activity during the year included

56

Moorgate Hall, EC2

Mace Group has taken all of the office space for its new headquarters under
a15-year lease Mace will complete a phased move into the 6,220m? building
by 2013, as other occupiers leave

Harbour Exchange, E14

Teleeity has more than doubled its space to 24,280m? in a 30-year deal Brtish
American Tobacco plc has agreed a ten-year lease on 5,440m?, having exited
2,410m? at Arundel Great Court, WC2, ahead of our proposed redevelopment
there

Oxford Street, W1
QOur Oriana joint venture completed the development and letting of a new
13,650m? store to Pnimark, which s expected to open this autumn

40 Strand, WC2
Refurbishment of the 8,850m? office space was completed in March 2012
and the new 15-year lease to Bam & Ca s now in place

14/22 Southwark Bridge Road, SE1

Inreturn for some minor refurbishment expenditure, we enteredinto a new
15-year lease for 5,190m? with Motability, who previcusly occupied under
alease expiring in December 2012

Land Secunties Annual Report 2012

16 Palace Street, SW1

Inreturn for asurrender of 1,910m? of space, we have restructured leases over
3,740m? with 3t to expire n 2025 rather than in 2020 We recerved a premium
from 31whichmare than covers the cost ef refurbishment of the surrendered
space Once refurbished we will re-let this space

Development

We have made excellent progress on our development pipeline and increased our
focus on the West End Our work in Victoria, SW1, 1s set to transform the areainto
one of central London's most desirable places to work, bive, shop and invest

Key activity in the year included

One New Change, EC4

On openinginQctober 2010, the retail element of this development was 100%
letand the offices are now 86% let During the year, CBRE Global Investors Ltd
and SMBC Nikko Caprtal Markets Ltd took space in the building

123 Victona Street, SW1

Therefurbishment of 23,110m? of office and retatl space 1s progressing well and
onschedule to complete in August 2012, asightly revised timetable following
a transaction with Natwest Bank which willenable us to improve the office
reception area Fash:won retailer immy Choo has pre-let 3,440m? on a 10-year
lease, whichit intends to use for its office headquarters

Wellington House, SW1

We have now pre-sold all 59 of the residentsal apartmments for a total of £90 4m
atan average selling price of £1,426 per sq ft The scheme is on schedute to
complete in July 2012

62 Buckingham Gate, SW1

Constructionis wellunderway on the 24,160m? of of fice accommodation
and 1,450m? of retail this development will bring to the heart of Victoria
The scheme 1son time and to budget for delvery n spring 2013

20 FenchurchStreet, EC3

We are working with our joint venture partner, Canary Wharf Group, to delver
thisworld class 64,460m? office building in spring 2014 We expect thisto be
the first of the next generation of tall City developments to complete Early
interest s very encouragng and 8 0% 1s in solicitors’ hands

Withanumber of schemes, we have secured planning and can be flexible on timing
tomatch market conditions wiute working to maximise income These include

18 2 New Ludgate, EC4

This mixed-use 35,050m? development of high quality office, restaurantand
retail accommodation will replace two 19605 properties Demolition work has
been completed Construction will take approximately 22 months to complete
fromnstruction We will ime our start point to ensure we deliver the scheme
at the nght pointin the cycle




London Portfolio
properties over £100m
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SWb6

1 Empress State Building®

5W1

2 Queen Anne sCate
3 Portland House

4 Cardinal Place
5
7]

123 victona Street®
62 Buckingham Gate™

w1

7 Precadilly Circus
8 OnanaPartnerstip Oxford Street!

w(2
9 32.50 Strand

EC2
10 Dashwood House

EC3

1 20Fenchurch Street™

EC4
12 New Street Square

13 OneNew Change®
14 Times Square

SE1
15 Bankside 2&3

E14
16 Harbous Exchange
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London Portfolio review of the year

Kingsgate House, SW1

Westrmnster City Councit has granted plannung consent for our plans to
redevelop this butlding into Grade A office space, retailurits and 100 prime
residential apartments, totalling 31,980m? Two new bulldings will replace the
existing office block The public realm wll be extended to include an attractive
courtyard bordered by new shops and restaurants Demolition has started since
the year end and at this stage we have committed to complete the substructure
and build to ground floor level to grve us maximum flexibility The earliest date
for completion of the scheme s April 2015

1New Street Square, EC4

Planning consent has been granted by the City Corporation for a 23,670m?
office and retail development The new development will replace three existing
buildings with one dramatic building The existing buildings are leased, in the
marn, until December 2012

Victoria Circle, SW1

In February 2012 we formed the Victona Circle Limited Partnership, a 50 50
Joint venture with Canada Pension Plan Investment Board, to own and develop
Victona Circle The proposed development will comprise five new buildings
occupying an istand site opposite Victona station When complete, the full
scheme will provide a spectacular 84,670 mux of residential, office, retail
and public amenity space

Other development projectsin the course of design include
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20 Eastbourne Terrace, W2

We continue to work on plans for the 7,700m? final phase of this regeneration
project Proposed Crossrail station works in the Paddington area are Likely to
impact the timing of this scheme

Portland House, SW1

We are making good progress with our plans for the remodelling and corversion
of this 29,490m? offica tower inta residential apartments and aim to submit a
planming application to Westrminster City Couneitin the corming financial year

Oxford House, W1

We aim to submit a planning application for the redevelopment of this 1960s
building, located opposite the proposed western entrance to Tottenham Court
Road Crossrail station, into new retail and residential space
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Looking ahead

We continue to see amimbalance between supply and demand for high quality
space in the medm term Supply-constrained conditions are emerging slower
thanwe expected this ime last year, but we expect them to remain for longer as
forecasts for the supply of new office developments were cut substantialty during
theyear Asignificant proportion of existing stock 15 unsuitable for the
contemporary needs of occupiers and there is ahigher than normal level of lease
expines due from 2012 This combination of factors will mean companes with
coffice requirernents will find they have less choice

To put this in context, long-term average take-up of Grade A space in central
London s 585,000m? per annum The take-up in 2011 was 510,950m? The
combination of current Grade A vacancy and forecast development completions
which are not pre-let will only provide in the region of 370,000n? peryear in 2012,
2013 and 2014 Tall building developments inthe Gity continue to attract media
attention, but the current development commitments will make onty a modest
contribution to tetal floorspace

Central London's residential and retail markets remain strong London s the
only aity in Europe that can claim to meet the prerequisites for a truly global city —
highquality of lfe, exceptional business infrastructure, a strong talent pool,
excellent access to markets, good communication links, and a ctear and reliable
legislative framework Uncertainty elsewhere servesto underline London's
enduring strength asone of the world’s most dynamic and successful cities

Agasnst thisbackground, we will build on the advantages gained through
re-starting developments in Londan first We have an attractive mix of high quality
assets with strong revenue streams We have a clear ptan for every asset and a
pipeling of projects that will add significant floor space through development
We are well positioned

KEY CBJECTIVES FOR 2012/13 CHART 39

- Qutperform IPD sector bernchmark

- Progress development lettings at One New Change, EC4, 123 Victoria Street,
SW1, 62 Buckingham Gate, SW1and 20 Fenchurch Street, EC3

- Practical completson on time and to budget at Wellington House, SW1and
123 Victona Street, SW1

- Progress ontime and to budget at 62 Buckingham Gate, SW1and 20
Fenchurch Street, EC3

- Demolition of Kingsgate House, SW1and commencement of demolition
at Victoria Circle, SW1

- Submussion of planning applications at Portland House, SW1and Oxford
House, W1




London Portfolio
development pipeline

2012

123 Victoria Street,
SwWi

Providing 21,110m’ of office
andretall space, this major
refurbishment s progressing
welland to budget and due to
complete n August 2012

2013

2014

62 Buckingham Gate, 20 Fenchurch Street,
Swi EC3

Constructionis wellunderway  Dueto be delivered in Apnl
onthe 24,160m? of office 2014, this 64,460m? office

accommaodation and 1,450m?
of retail space this development
will bring to the heart of

building will create a new
landmark for London and
already has 8% of the office

2014

1&2 New Ludgate,
EC4

Formerly 30 OldBalleyand 60
Ludgate Hill, this 35,0650m?
office space will replace two
1960s properties Demoliion is
cornplete and canstruction will

2015

Kingsgate House,
sSwi

Planning consent has been
recerved for 31,980m? of office
space, retail units and 100
prime residential apartments
Demolition isunderway and

Fashion retarler Jimmy Victonia Due to complete in space insolicitors’ hands The be umedtodeliverthescheme  the earliest date for completion
Choo has pre-let 3,440m? May 2013 scheme 1s being deliveredina atthe right point in the cycle is April2015
of the spaceforuse as Jjoint venture with Canary
its headguarters Wharf Group
LONDON DEVELOPMENT PIPELINE AT 31 MARCH 2012 TABLE 40
Extimated/ Total Forwcast total
Qwnarship Letting Market MNatincoms/ actual devatopment dwvelopmant
Descripuon Interest Size Planning status value ERV complation coststodate cost
Proparty of use % status. L £m Em date £m £m
Developments after practical completion
One New Change, EC4 Office 100 31740 :£] 480 28.4 Oct 2010 531 531
Retarl 20630 97 ]
Developments approved or inprogress
123 Victoria Street, SW1* Office 100 18,490 21 160 131 Ayg 2012 132 155
) Retail B 2,620 %
62 Buckingham Gate, SW1 Office 100 24,160 - 144 172 Mayz2013 104 178
o Retal o 1,450 j -
20 Fenchurch Street, EC3 Office 50 63,240 - 102 213 Apr2014 a8 242
B Retail ] 1,220 i -
Proposed developments
182 New Ludgate, EC4 Office 100 32400 PR - nia nfa 014 nfa ~nia
Retail ] 2,650 -
Kingsgate House, SW1 Office 100 17,540 PR - nfa nfa 2015 nfa n/a
Retail 4230 - i i
i Residential i 10,210 ) ' i
*Otfice refurbich ly Figt for the property as s whale including the retail element.
Developmentslat and transferréd or sold
0 Cannan Street, EC4 Office sold 6,660 nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa n/a
Retail 150 i
Where the prope iy s not 100% ownied Soor antas thoawn above rgptggm the full scheme whereas all ather figures Total devetopment cost

represent our proporuonaie share Lettng % s

forprop lop

PR= Phnmngre:!lv!d

Net, hcoml!i AV

by ERY. L g states 9t 31 March 2012 Trading
progerty development schemes e g Wellngton House SWi}ane excluded fromthe development pipelne

Net P et
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Total developenent cost refers Lo the bock value of the land at the ¢
gxgmdntuu required to develop the scheme from the start of the finangial yzaran(h the propcﬂyls add:d to our

upendnure cnthe prnperty undeu

mgelhermlh p

Interest s

ofth

hed

d onthe purch:

where it

Ofth

1e3 in the

the only property on which lmr!slwnnmdaadonmelmdmﬂ wis One New Ch-nz- e

onletun s plos ERV at 31 March 2012 on unlet wuts.

being the Group s barrowing costs assaciated with direct.
tof land or property
prpeline at 31 March 2012,
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Board of Directors

1 - Alison Carnwath (59),
Chawrman of the Board

Member of the Remuneration
Committee and Chairman of the
Nominations Committes

Alison was appointed to the

Board in September 2004 and becamea
Chairmanin November 2008 She

15 Chairman of the Norminations
Committee and 15 also a member of
the Remuneration Commuttee Alison
worked ininvestment banking and
corporate finance for 20 years, before
pursuing a portfolio career During her
career, Alison became the first female
Director of | Henry Schroder Wagg &
Co, where she worked for 10 years
Alison also held the positions of a
Semor Partner of Phoenix Securities
and Managing Director, New York at
Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette She has
served as a Non-executive Director

of Fniends Provident plc, Gallaher
Group plcand Glas Cymru Cyfyngedig
[Welsh Water)

She has some 30 years'
experience ininternational finance
and investment banking and has wide
Board level experience Alisonis
currently a Non-executive Director
atMan Group ple, Barclays ple, Zurich
Insurance Group Ltd and Paccar Inc,

& Fortune 500 company

2 — Robert Noel (48),
Chaef Executive

Robert was appointed to the Board
n January 2010 as Managing Director,
London Portfolio and became Chief
Executiveon1Apnl 2012 Achartered
surveyor and graduate of the University
of Reading, Robert was previously
Property Director at Great Portland
Estates plc between August 2002 and
September 2009 Priorto that, he was
adirector at property services group
Nelson Bakewell

Robert s a trustee of the property
mndustry charity, Landaid and former
positions include being a director of
the New West End Company, the
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Central London Business Improvement
District and Chairman of the
Westrninster Property Association
Robert brings over 20 years' experience
in anumber of sectors within the
property market to his new role and
has an outstanding track record m the
London property market

3 —Martin Greenslade (47),
Chief Financial Officer

Marunjoined the Group as Chref
Financial Officer in September 2005

A chartered accountant, having tratned
with Coopers & Lybrand, Martin was
previously Group Finance Chrector

of Alvis plc He hasalsoworkedmn
corporate finance having served as a
member of the executive committee
of Nordea's investment banking
dvision and Managing Director of its
UK business Martin is a director of
International Justice Mission UK
Martin brings financial and accounting
expertise from the property, engineening
and financial sectors in the UK

and overseas

4 — Richard Akers (50),
Executrve Director

Richard joined the Board in May 2005,
following his appeintment as Managing
Director, Retail Portfolion July 2004
A chartered surveyor, Richard joined
the Group in 1995 and previously held
the position of Head of Retail Portfolio
Management Prior tojoning the
Group, Richard worked inretail
devetopment for AMEC Developments
and prior to that, ARC Praperties

Richard brings more than 25 years’
experience of the retad property industry
tohis role and s a regular author and
panellist on industry matters Heisa
former President of the British Counail
of Shopping Centres (BCSC), the main
industry body for retall property
awners, and has recently becomea
Non-executive Director of Barratt
Developments PLC

5 —Kevin O'Byrne (47),
Sentor Independent Director

Chairman of the Audit Committee and
member of the Nominations Cormmittee

Kevinwas appointed to the Board as a
Non-executive Director in April 2008
Kevinisa chartered accountant who
trained with Arthur Andersen and has
been the Group Finance Chrector
of Kingfisher ple since 2008 He has
recently been appointed Kingfisher
Dwisional CEO, B&Q, responsible for
Group businessesin the UK, China,
Turkey and Gerrany

His previous roles included Group
Finance Director of Dixons Retadl Plc,
and European Finance Director for The
Quaker Oats Company Kevinbrings
experience of ntemational retail and
finance matters to Board discussiens

6 - Sir Stuart Rose (63),
Non-executive Drector

Member of the Remuneration
Commuttee

Sir Stuart joined the Board as a
Non-executive Director in May 2003
and 1s amember of the Remuneration
Committee Hisextensive retail
experience includes the positions of
Chief Executive and then Chairman of
Marks & Spencer Group plc from 2004
until 2010, Chief Executive of Arcadia
Group from 2000 until December 2002
and Chief Executive of Booker PLC from
1998 until 2000 Hesa Non-executive
Director of Woolworths Holdings South
Afica, 1s on the adwvisory board of
Bndgepoint Capital and was Chawrman
of Business n the Community from
2008-2010 Sir Stuart commenced

his career (n the retail industry in 1972
and has a wealth of international
management experence in the sector,
being knughted in 2007 for services

to the retail industry and corporate
social responsibility




Board of Directors

7 —Simon Palley (54),
Non-executroe Director

Member of the Remuneration
Committee

Simon was appointed to the Board
asa Non-executive Director

in August 2070 and will become
Chawrnan of the Remuneration
Committee on 1October 2012
Asenior figure within the private
equity industry, Simeon 15 Chairman
of the private equity firm Centerbnidge
Partners Europe and a trustee of
the University of Pennsytvania and
The Tate Foundation

8 - David Rough (61),
Non-executive Derector
Chairman of the Remuneration

Cormittee and member of the
Audit Committee

Davidjeined the Board as a Non-
executive Directorin Aprit 2002 and
was Senior Independent Director from
November 2003 to March 2072 David
was Group Director (Investments) of
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Legal & General Group Plc until
December 2001, and during that time
also served as the Chairman of the
Association of Bntish Insurers'
Investment Committee

David s the Senior Independent
Director and Deputy Chairman of
Xstrata Group PLC and a Non-executive
Director of the London Metal Exchange
Hetsa Non-executive Director of
Brown, Shipley 8 Co Ltd, the private
bank He has many years' experience
asa Non-executive Director inthe
investment, property, finance and
muning ndustries

9 ~ Chnis Bartram {63),
Non-executive Director

Member of the Audit and
Nominations Committee

Chnswasappointed to the Board asa
Non-executive Director in August
2009 Chnsis Chairman of Orchard
Street Investment Management LLP,
aspecialist UK commercial property
investrnent manager Heis a chartered
surveyor and a Non-executive Director

of the Crown Estateand a Wilkins
Fellow of Downing College, Cambridge

He has previously served as
Managing Director of Haslemere NV,
Chairman of Jones Lang Wootton
Fund management, President of the
British Property Federation and
Chairman of the Bank of England
Property Forum Chns has many years'
experience In commercial property in
the UK and abroad, and in particular
in the praperty investment
management ngustry

0

10 —Stacey Rauch (54),
Non-execttve Drrector
Member of the Audit Commuttee

Stacey I1s a Director Emeritus of
McKinsey & Company where she
served clients en the US and
internationally for 24 years Whilst
there she co-founded the New Jersey
office and was the first woman to be
appointed as an industry practice
leader She was aleaderinthe firm's
Retatl and Corsumer Goods Practices,
served as the head of the North

Amencan Retaill and Apparel Practice
and actedas the Global Retail Practice
convener Sheretired from McKinsey &
Company inSeptember 2010

Her career with McKinsey saw her
consult to awide range of retailers,
apparel wholesalers and consumer
goodsmanufacturers She iscurrently
aNon-gxecutive Director of Annlnc,
{alisted American women's speciality
apparel retailer) and the Tops Holding
Corperation, (the parent company
of Tops Markets LLC, a US grocery
retailer) andwas recently appointed as
a Non-executive Director of the Fiesta
Restaurant Group which s listedon
NASDAQ She brings extensive
international expenence of retailing
and wider business experience to
the Board
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Corporate Responsibility oo plsemei

Corporate Responsibility
S Report 2012 online at
tTa tegy www landsecurities co uk/

responsibility

[
On a day-to-day basis you may engage with us as a

PLC PROPERTY DEVELOPER ASSET MANAGER
AsaPLCweengagewith As a Property Developer we engage with Asan Asset Manager we engage with
- Employees - Supplers — Customers

- Investors - Communities — Consumers

- Central Government - Local Authorities —~ Communities

Qur strategy 1s simple - to be at the forefront of delivering quality space for our customers and
providing an attractive total return for shareholders We do this in a number of ways, and corporate
responsibility plays a key role in helping us to create and protect value

THEVALUE OUR STRATEGY PROVIDES

By acting responsibly and having a forward-locking perspective, we are able to deliver

SLSTAINABLE BUSINESS STRONGER COMMUNITIES BETTER ENVIRONMENTS

Cur objectives Our objectives Our objectives

~ Developer of choice - Creating jobs - Protecting natural resources
~ Supplier of choice - Improving skills and - Keeping workspace safe

- Employerof choice training apportunities - Reducing waste

— Investingin places

Find out more Find out more find out more
Performance pS4 Targetsp66 Performance p64 Targetsp66& Perforrnance pB4 Targets p66
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Report Here, we discuss our evolving approach to CRin
three key areas —sustainable business, stronger
communities and better environments

“At Land Securities CR 1s first and foremast about making

the company strong and successful We do this by working

n the smartest way possible to meet the needs and
expectations of everyone affected by what we do. We are
not interested 1n box-ticking exercises or competitive CR
This 15 about making a real difference 1n the real world ”

Robert Noel, Chuef Executive

tn simple terms, good CR can add value to bricks and mortar By giving proper
thought te how we do things, we can generate benefits for everyone This getsto

the heart of what good CR s all about for us - rnutual advantage Wewant tobe the

employer of choice n property, so we attract and retatn the best people Wewant
to be the developer of choice for Local Authonties and communities, so they

choose us to develop and manage property in their area We want to be the supplier
of choce for eccupiers, with retail, office and residential tenants preferring to spend

time in our properties These points of difference combine to help make us the
investment of choice for shareholders

In this section we describe i more detail our approach We also outline the
targets we have set n each area, and report on how we performed during the year
Forus, CR targets are a practical tool that we can use 1o influence long-term
behaviour We want targets to help us change the way we operate for the better,
not simply provide 'easy wins’ that look good on paper

Qur stakeholders

We work withmany different groups of people Wedeseribe them herealongwith
seme notes an how we discaver and meet the specific needs of each group

- Employees
We encourage our people to reach their maximum potential Qur annual
Employee Engagernent Survey gives everyone a chance to let management
know our ernployees’ thoughts We also have an‘Exchange Forum’ inwhich
elected representatives discuss key issues with members of the Senior
Management Beard

- Customers {retailers and office space tenants)
Every one of our customers has their own Land Securities contact To helpus
become better landlords, each year we conduct customer satisfaction surveys
among our shopping centre and office customers Four times a year we hold
occupier review meetings in our shopping centres and across our Lendon offices

- Suppliersand service partners
We have regular meetings with the contractors and other partners who help
us construct and run our buildings Our current focus 15 on thew tramning and
employment policies We want 1o make sure they do what they can to support
our aim of providing specialist skills-traiming and job opportunities to local
unemployed people

- Investors
Naturally, our nvestors seek competitive returns But they also want assurance
that they are investing in a sustainable, well-governed business To ensure their
voice 15 heard, we cornmussion an independent investor survey every two years

Land Securities Annual Report 2012

- Communities
Our properties play an important role in many communities We plan for their
tocal needs by consulting with residents, community groups and businesses
We also encourage our staff to get involved through charitable donations and
payrolt-giving Putting our scale to good use, each year we suppart one national
chanity across our UK shopping centre portfolic We also encourage each
shopping centre to support one or twe local charities that are close to and active
inthe local population

- Local Autherities
Na twe communities are the same So we build partnerships with decision-
makers, economic development teams and planning departments to identify
local priorities

- Central government, regulators, trade bodiesand NGOs
We Liaise with legistators and the trade organisations that influence them
We regularly brief members of both Houses of Parliament We also participate in
anumber of industry-wide bodies, includ:ng the Bntish Property Federation (BPF),
the British Council for Offices (BCO}, the British Council for Shapping Centres
(BCSC), Better Buildings Partnership, London First and the UK Green Building
Council By demonstrating astute judgement and innovative thinking, we
continue to set industry benchmarks and remain trusted adwisors to government

~ Consumers
There are nearly 300 millton customer wisits to our shopping centres each year
We tryto speak to as many members of the public as possible wia customer
service desks in our shopping centres and through the feedback facilitieson
our websites

Qur Stakeholder Panel

We established the Stakeholder Panelin 2010 to give us a greater understanding
of our stakeholders’ views and priorities It was onginally compnsed of service

and construction partners, responsible business experts, local authonty
representatives and Land Secunities employees 1n 2012, we expanded it to include
voices from customers, academia and the iInvestment community Together, they
provide a range of valuable opirions on our targets, performance and reporting

Governance and management
Our Corporate Responsibility Committee 1s made up of senior managers from
across the business Its job s toensure that we are always doing everything we
can to improve our aperations as aresponsible business. Its rermit s to define our
corporate responsibilsty strategy, make sure our activities remainrelevant to
our business objectives and moniter our performance

Until 2071, the Commuttee met quarterly Now, to ensure the company s
making consistent progress against its targets, meetings have been increased to
sixayear Chawred by the Group Tax and Treasury Director, Martin Wood, the
Committee reports to our Chief Executive

“The CR Commuttee s diverse It incorporates senior
people from every area of the business This meansit
can do more than just drive an agenda —it can make
it happen ”

Martin Wood, CR Commuttee Chairman
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Corporate Responsibility

Performance 2012

SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS

Our objectives

— Developer of choice
— Supplier of choice
— Employer of choice

Highlights
3.1% 98% 2012

of empty shops in.our According to our This year we were named

portfolio, compared toa customer satisfacion  Property Manager of the
national rate of 14 6% survey, 98% of our Year by the Property
(Local Data Company) retail clients would Manager's Association

recommend us

Sustainable business 1s good business

Build ashopping centre that meets local needs and the community will support it,
making it a more valuable asset Ensure your buildings are environmentally efficient
through cost-effective measures and yout increase their appeal and future-proof
themagainst newregulations Provide a motivating, wibrant work:ng environment
and you are better placed to attract and retain talent This s about creating and
protecting value by becoming the developer, emplayer and supplier of choice

Looking forward, Local Authornties are set to be given more power in the delivery
of localplans So theirinfluence on property devetopment will continue to grow
Employees already judge potential employers on how responsibly they run their
companies, as well as how successful they are Thistrend looks set to continue, aswill
the demand for increased transparency over ssues such as remuneration Qccupiers
will have more demanding envirenmental and social goals as their customers raise
ther expectations around CR, particularty environmental performance

We need torespond to these evolving 1ssues, staying ahead sowe continue
to satisfy changing needs and expectations

Londaon Living Wage

Land Securities supports the Mayor of London's Living Wage initiative It sets the hourly
rate at which someone can afford to ive in the capital without requiring asecond job to
supplement their income Everyone employed by us, or our contractors in our London
HQ, earnsat least the recommendedrate of £8 30anhour

“Because volunteering teaches you so much — both about
yourself and others — I encourage my team to volunteer.
They've done their own fund raising and charity projects
And we’ve have also volunteered as a team. Land
Securities has always encouraged us and helped make
1t possible.”

Suzt Clay, Portfolio Director
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STRONGER COMMUNITIES

Our objectives

— Creating jobs

— Improving skills and
training opportunities

— Investing in places

Highlights

£3.5m 1,546 8,536

thevalue of the space, Instances of community  hours of time givento
time, promotion and activity across our community activities
cash contrbutions.our Portfolic

nvestment in

community activitees s

equivalent to

Supporting communities

Wa support the communities where our properties are located Whether it's
chantable gwving, addressing local employment needs or providing educattonal
opportunities, our aim 15 to earn the trust of the local population That trust s hard
earned, but once you have it, the community 15 far more likely to support existing
assets and engage constructively on any proposals for new developments

Looking forward, the growth of internet shopping and the challenging
econormic climate are having a sigificantimpact onmanyretail locations
Inevitably, there will be winners and losers Some locations and retailers will thrive
Others will find it ncreasingly tough to compete Qur strategy is simple Wherever
we have a significant asset, we will tnvest in and work with the community that
surrounds it By supporting and securing their tong-term prospects, we support and
secure our own business It's 'winwin’

Community investment

Qur community investrment activities include the space we give away at cur assets
to help promote chanties and local community events, together with the
management time and expertisewe put in across the portfolio to support good
causes, education and training We also encourage our people to give time to help
with volunteering and mentoning, as well as invest at alocal level in the promotion
of local events Inall, 1,546 separate mstances of community investrent took
place in 2011/12, with 8,536 hours of time given over to ensuring we played

a full part in local community bfe If we add all the value of all this space, time,
promotion and cash contributions, our Investment in community activities 1s
equivalent to £3 483m The value placed on these actiwities 1s in line with London
Benchmarking Group defimitions on measuning community involvement
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Creating job opportunitiesin London

In September 2011, we launched our Employment Strategy for the London
Portfolio This was the result of partnering with JobCentre Plus and the London
Probation Trust to see how we could help those furthest from the jobs market
Ammed at young pecple and ex-offenders the pilot programme at 62 Buckingham
Gate, SW1, saw 23 people gawn accredited traimng and go into employment —with
19 of those progressing on 1o further NVQ level 2 qualifications Kit Malthouse,
Deputy Mayor of Londen for Policing, commented “This ss an outstanding example
of using traming and employment to draw people away from crime and back
intosociety ”

Support for education

OurLendon Portfolio mvites schools to use a learming pack we've produced It offers
lesson plans that tre in with the national curncutum white introducing young people
to construction We also try to make our building sites accessible for schoolwisits so
pupils, and teachers, can get to see what a major construction project 1s like for
themselves As for higher education, we offerwork experience to University
College London (UCL) planning students There s currentty ashortage of planners,
so we want to provide relevant, quality expenence where we can

Charitable collaborations

Last year our Retail Portfolio - as well as encouraging all our centres to pick and
workwith alocal chanty - partnered with British Heart Foundation as their natienal
charity of the year Our centres were able to help BHF coltect bags of donated
goods These equated to an incredible £118,410 worth of stock In addition, through
various fundraising activities, the centres helped raise £23,329 n cash Inthree
years of working together with us, BHF has collected 29,728 bags of stock worth
£450,000, white raising awareness of the chanty and heart disease

“Lewisham Shopping Centre 1s one of the biggest
employers in this area. Over 1,800 people work here, but
1t’s far more than just an employer —the things we’re doing
to support the local area make a big difference to the
community”

Paul Redden, Lewisham Shopping Centre Manager
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BETTER ENVIRONMENTS

Qur objectives

— Protecting natural resources
~ Keeping workspace safe

- Reducing waste

Highlights

This year we received a
National Sustainabte
Cities Award for our

Inthe burldings where we
provide electrncity, our
tenants can now benefit

Thus year we stayed below
the industry average
accident frequency rate at

energy reduction fromrenewableenergy  allour shopping centres
initiatives at cur head sourcedelectnaty at and development projects
office=5 Strand, WC2 competitive and

efficient prices
Beyond comphance

We were the first commercial property company in the UK to measure energy
consumption We were the first to produce energy efficiency reparts for buildings
Asan industry leader, we go beyond compliance But we also have a responsibility
to our shareholders only to invest inwhat has been proven to be cost-effective

Commercial property causes arcund 18% of carbon emissions in the UK
Currently, though, occuprerswill not pay a prermiumn fora greener building At some
point, thiswillchange Ourtenants’ own sustainability targets are starting to make
emvironmental considerations more important Soa 'green building’ premium may
bewith us sometime in the future Butit's not here yet

However, regulation does make specific demands on environmental
perfarmance, and even higher requirements are likely in the future Forthis reason,
we have continued to invest in new environmental approaches, systems and
technologies We have tobuild a quality portfolio that's Likely to be ahead of
legisiation for many years to come That will future-proof the portfolio, protecting
shareholder investment it will also mean our properties are more likety to stay in
tune with customer needs

Testlab

Wealways look for the next big thing in bunlding design and technology However,
notall innovations are cost effective or efficient Sowae test technologies at
differentlocations—including cur head office at 5 Strand, WC2 - before we
implerment them on a large project The energy efficient iftswe putin have
reduced energy consumption by 75% And new lighting controls and voltage
opumisation have increased efficiency Thiswark enabled us to move in our people
from an adjacent building while still reducing the energy used at 5 Strand

“Sustamnability 1s the art of the possible. You have to
develap targets that people believe they have a realistic
chance of achieving.”

Neil Pennell, Head of Sustanability and Engineering
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Corperate Responsibility

Targets 2012

Clear targets define our aspirations and inspire
our actions. Below, you can see a snapshot of how
we performed this year.

Sustainable business
We had eight targets under sustainable business We achieved five, had one ongoing and missed two
Achieved Ongoing

All full and part-time head office based employees
and supply chain employees at head office torecemve
a1 least London Laving Wage (LLW), currently £8 30
per hour by March 2013

50% of business critical roles {identified as
successton plan vacancies in band A roles and
leadership band B+) to have an sdentified internal
successor ‘ready’ within 12 months by March 2014
Maintain overall satisfaction rates in both Londen
and Retail customersurveysof 4 18and 4 27
respectively .

= Maintain or increase 60% employee volunteering

rate (for half day or more per year) but increase

the proportion of those who provide skilled or
professional advice or mentonng to 25% (of the
60%) by March 2014

This target hasbeen harder to achieve than expected
due tohigh levels of volunteening and msufficrent
recording It has been particularlydifficult to
differentiate between personal and professional
volunteeringactivitres Weare puttingin place new
procedures toaddress these issues

Missed

- FourtosixLongon based 16-18 year-olds per year,

whodo not normally have access to a corporate
enwironment, to have gained work expenence at Land
Securities by March 2014 Establish a summer work
experience programme (in 2011}

We missed our Summer 2011 deadline for delivery
of atnal work expenence scheme However
byyearend, the operationataspect of thistarget
hadbeenacheved

Fill 50% of vacancies at muddle manager level

(band B) with internal candidatesrecruited as
‘graduate’ or 'early career’ professionals by 2016
The missreflects the changes we made to the longer
termaspect of this target dunng theyearto alignat
mare closely with the business

Stronger communities
We had eight targets under stronger communities We achieved seven and had one ongoing at year end

Achieved

Embed charitable partnershipsinto both London and
Retail business units by 2014 by embedding chanity
letsnto the asset management programme

Deliver the London Portfolio Employment and

Skills programme across three development sites
(20 Fenchurch Street, Park House, 123 Victona Street)
by 2014

Write training clauses into all relevant tender

Ongoing

- Reportannually against sacial, economic and

environmental metncs to all regional Local
Authonties and London Boroughs where we have
significant shopping centre or development presence
by March 2014

Byyearend, goodrelationships had been established
with Local Authorities and London Boroughs, and
reportswereinthe processof being prepared, but

documents for key service partners and main theyhadnot beendistnbuted

construction contractors by 2014 1
Better environment
We had mine targets under better environment We achieved five and had four ongoing at year end
Achieved Ongomng Ongoing

- Inanticipation of the 25% reduction inregulated
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ermssions due in 2013, new development design
to be ahead of 2010 Bullding Regulauons
requirements in terms of CO, emissions

Increase to 30% the amount of waste diverted
fromlandfill for the shopping centre portfolio

by March2015

Remnain below industry benchmarks for reportable
nadents for healthand safety purposes on
development sites and within our managed
property portfolic
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Reduce average CO; emussions from the managed
portfolro by 30% by 2020 compared to 2000/01
leading to Intenm reduction targets by March 2013
of offices 8 53%, shopping centras S 80%, retail
parks 8 41%

This target wasreset during the year - see re-based
targetsonpb6y

Toachieve FSC project-speaific certification for every
completed development

Most schemes are collecting the evidence tomeet
thistarget However, itis difficult toassess as no
qualifying schemes completedinthe year

Reduce the average water consumption acrass the
London managed office estate by 10% (compared
with 2010/11), measuted in terms of ltres per person
by March 2016

Thatarget s not due to bemet until 2016 but, as we
gatned better data during the year, we choseto
changethescopecfthe target. Seere-basedtargets
onpé67

Achieve zerg environmental inaidents

During theyear there were noincidents that would
resudtinaprosecution However wedidfindan
exampleof acontractor notfollowing the correct
procedure whendisposing of flucrescent tamps,
sowedidnot feel we had achreved this target
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Bgyond 2012 We believe responsible business is better business,
so we take a proactive approach to updating targets
and making CR ‘business as usual’.

BUSINESS AS USUAL

Ttus year two targets moved into being business as usual

Matntain high levels of participation and scoring in - Ouremployeeengagement SUrvey occurs everyyear Rather than set targets for constantlmprovement wewant
employee engagement survey 1t to record what we are doing well and not so well in terms of addressing employees’ concerns So we will continue
torun the survey but we will ot mclude improvement ttargets ,

Ernbed chantable, partnershnps inretail - Thistarget has beenmet at centres where itissuitableto have an embedded char:ty partnershxp Weare movIng it
to business as usual, where it witl continue to be monitored

RE-BASED TARGETS

Two key targets under better environment were rebased following the year end

Reduce average CO; emussions - Thegovernment targets use data from 1990 as the baseline against which we should measure progresson
sustamability improvernents However, as we have come to understand the setting of targets better and made
them mare speaific, we have realised that some of gur past datais not reliable enough toserve as a baseline When
we onginally set our sustainability targets we took our baseline as 2000/01, as we had data for this period, but not
1990 Reviewwg subsequent years, we began to worry that our 2000/01 data might not be robust engugh to help
us make a meaningful difference Therefore, we have changed ourbenchmark to the much more reliable data of
2010/1 The new target now reads Reduce average CO; emussions from the like-for-like managed portfolto by
15% by 2020/21 compared to 2010/t benchmark

Reduce average water consumption - Wehave focused more attention on the measurement of water usage as we recognised the growing importance
of thisissue Thes year we have expanded the target to cover average water consumption in the London managed
office estate and Retail hke-for-like portfolio The new target now reads. To reduce water consumption acrass the
like-for-like managed office and retail portfalio by 10% by 2015/16, measured in terms of volume used per unit
floor area

NEW TARGETS

This year we also introduced some new targets to the busmess as we seek to improve the delivery of our responsible business approach

Demonstrate we are a Considerate Development ~ Thisnewtarget reflects our desire to achieve even higher standards of delivery when we are on site at new
Client across both Londonand Retail Development developments

Projects

Tenant behaviour -utilise our two buildings signed - Thistargetreflects cur belief that behavtour change offers the biggest opportunity to deliver a fast and sizeable
upto Memorandums of Understanding to pilot reductionin CO; emissions in commercial property

environmental behavioural change programmes to
rol.l outacrossthe portfouo

Toensureall bulldmgs available for leasewnhm the ~ Thistarget reflects our view that we prepare in advance for proposed legislation on the sale and lease of buildngs
portfolio have an EPCrating of E or better by March with poorly rated energy performance to protect value in our bustness

2077 The government hasintimated thatin 2018

if youdo nothave arating of E or better thenyou

cannotsellor lease aproperty

Toapply Planet Positive Butldlng Certificationasa - Thistarget reflects our desire to look at new ways 1o manage our construction process tordentify better
pitot studyto the proposed Crawley development environmental performance

commencing on site in Autumn 2012 to ascertain

the benefits when used in support of BREEAM

Certification
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Corporate Responsibility

Environmental
Data

EPRA-based reporting dashboard.

Environmental reporting s still initsinfancy but as a responsible
business, and one of the largest property companies in the UK, clear
reporting of emissions and other impacts s increasingly requested
by our shareholders, occuprers and customers To ensure we meet
the highest standards, we now report using EPRA - Eurcpean Public

LIKE-FOR-LIKE TOTAL WATER m?/YEAR CHART 41

LIKE-FOR-LIKE TOTAL tCOe - tCOe/YEAR CHART 43

Boundary explained

Itcan be difficult for a property company to provide a clear,
consistent picture of carbon emissions and other environmental
performance due to the dynamic nature of the industry, with
buildings being acquired, sold and developedon a regular basis
However, itis possible to identify ike-for-like properties within the
portfclio that can be assessed consistently over time By creating
aboundary to separate measurable like-for-like properties from
transient properties, we ¢an provide a more meaningful picture

of ourenvironmental performance
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Real Estate Association Best Practice Recommendations for
Sustairability Reporting This Europe-wide reporting standard
for commercial real estate companies enables investors and
other stakeholders to compare perfermance in resource use
across the sector

LIKE-FOR-UKE TOTALENERGY KWH/YEAR CHART 42

CHART 44

ABSOLUTE CO.e SPLIT IN LAND SECURITIES

tn terms of environmental reperting, our defimition of a like-for-like

property (s one where we manage the utilities and have at least two

years’worth of valid utility data The property must also meet our
financial like-for-like rules Development schemes are excluded
Properties in our portfolio that meet these critena are considered
to bewithin our EPRA reporting boundary Once the boundary of
anorgarusation has been established, utility data s collected and
checked forrobustness For thisreport there are 88 like-for-like
properties

To enhance our disclosures in line with EPRA best
practice recommendations, we set out below our first

Explanation

Absolute properties
covers 130 assetsand
the Lke-for-like
properties covers 88
assets SeeBoundary
explained below for the
explanation of why
these definitions he!p
inunderstanding our
performance
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KEY

Increased
Nachange

Reduced

ABSOLUTE FIGURES TABLE 45 Explanation
Absolute Total Usage Absolute Etectinaty Absolute Gas Absolute Oil Absolute Water
TotalkWh WO Electnatykwh 100 Caskwh WOz oriwh WO Water Onour propertiesall
2010/11{130sites) 287 131915 134252 193,319,012 114768 87473505 17,630 6,339,398 1854 945,942 measures have shown
2011/12(130sites) 275 572853 130938 191,160,712 113486 79550446 16041 4,821,695 1410 872,747 a positive improvement
Difference {11553062) (3314} (2,158,300} (1281} (7883,059) (1,589 {1,517 703) (444) (77,195) n performance
EPRA NORMALISATION BREAKDOWN PERFORMANCE {LIKE-FOR-LIKE) TABLE 46
Changeto
2010/2011 20172012 20104201 %
Floor Area-m? {gross) 2,287,574 2,287,574
Energy -kwh 214 635 490 206,246,344 (8 389 146} {391)
Carbon=-tCO.e 101,682 99,779 (1909) o (1.88) —> Onalike-for-like basis our
Water -m? 830,976 801,699 (2a277) (352) performance on energy
Oceuplers —Workstations/Footfall (see normalisation explained) 248,561 248811 .c:‘rpb:;‘::: dusterhas
Like for-Like —Number of properties B9of 89 890f89
LONDON (LIKE-FOR-LIKE} TABLE 47 RETAIL (LIKE-FOR-LIKE) TABLE48 Atabasiclevel the
reductionintCO,els
201611 201112 Change[%) 2016 20112 Change%) probably explalned by the
Energy Energy warmerwinter Aswe
Burlding energy intensity Building energy intensity gather mare data we
KWhimtiyear 18968 18212 (3383 kWhime/year A5 ;s (375)  eeewel etk
kWh/person/year 264313 253784 {3983) kWh/person/year 355 365 341558 (387) understanding at atocal
level astosome of the
GHG GHG changes inperformance
GHG intensity GHG imensity
1CO,e/m?/year 000 0089 {1305) tCO.e/mifyear 0021 0021 (311
1COe/person/year 1257 1241 {1305) 1C0,e/person/year 0167 0162 (323}
- [ T
Water Water
Building water intensity Building water intensity
m/md/ year 0425 0453 8788 m/m’/year 0332 0294 | (1152)
m*/person fyear 5926 6.447 8.788 mi/person/year 2 606 2302 {1163)
L I > Our normalised water

Normalisation explained

Intensity measures help companies to compare the real and relative

efficiency of portfolios over time A number of iIntensity measures

are key to our EPRA reporting These are

- Building energy intensity kWh/m?/year & kWh/person/year

- Greenhouse gas intensity from buitding energy kg CO,e/m?/year
& kg COze/person/year

- Building water intensity rm?/m?/year 8. m/person/year

Itisymportant to normalise the results from different types of

to provide an overall result

one of our retail properties 1s used may differ greatly from day-
to-day activity in one of our London offices So we have specific
measures for each type of property, and we then combine these

For properties in the London Portfolio, we base measurements
aganst an average density of exght people per 99y For properties
in the Retail Portfolio, we use footfall The annual footfall 1s divided
by 1,000 to ensure the range of the normalised datas easity
readable This methodology has been discussed and accepted

butlding so relative performance can be assessed Clearly, the way by our assurers
WASTE-LONDON TABLE 49 WASTE-RETAIL TABLE 50
2010M 201112 Change (%) 2010411 2011z Change{%}
Total Waste (1) 5,757 6,701 1640 Total Waste {t) 17,425 16,114 (752)
Wastediverted {t} 5,757 6,701 1640 Waste diverted (1) 13586 13,562 {017)
Diverted (%) 100 100 Diverted (%) 780 842 (795)

usage shows that inLondon
offices we saw anincrease
which we beligve isthe
result of usinstalling better
metering whilstinretailst
fell Overallretalisabigger
user of water explamning
the averallreduction
nusage

A
Explanation

Diverting waste from
landfillis 3 key target
for us, but we are now
locking to increase the
amount of recycling in

Land Securities Annual Report 2012

our portfohio going
forward
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Corparate governance

Introductory letter to the Corporate Governance Report
from the Chairman of the Board

70

Land Securities Group PLC
5 Strand
London WC2N hAF

Dear Shareholder,

lam pleased to report that your Company has again complied i full with the UK Corporate
Governance Code

As a Board, we pnide ourselves on high standards of corporate governance It sat the heart of
everything we do We monitor developments and trends in corporate governance both in the UK and
internationally, adopting any emerging practice we feel would improve our govemance whether or
not it becomes mandatory We engage regularly with our shareholders and welcome their feedback
onour approach to governance and their statements of policy Interms of what they expect This
feeds into our reviews of governance and has led to us adopting many changes well ahead of them
becoming requirements

Akey aspect for ensunng your Board's effectiveness 1s ourannual Board and Committee
evaluation process We have just completed the third year of our three year Board evaluation cycle
and took the opportunity to focus on Board skills and contnbutions, papers provided to the Board,
fisk appetite and the outlook for 2012 Our next evaluation will be conducted with the assistance
of aleading Independent firm to ensure that our evaluation remains comprehensive and ngorous

The Board Committees have had an active year The Nominations Commuttee led the
appointment process for our new Chief Executve, Robert Noel, and our new Nan-executive Directar,
Stacey Rauch The Remuneration Commuttee oversaw the design of a new remuneration structure
for Executrve Directors’ pay toreflect thenew managernent sieucture implemented following the
appointment of our new Chief Executive The Audit Committee has had to deal wath a risk environment
that changed dramatically with the eurozone crisis midway through our year Youwall find more details
of the work of the Committees and an overview from each of the Chairmen in this report

Onthe following pageswe describe our corporate governance framework in more detall We have
re-organised our repart so that s structure reflects the sectons of the UK Corporate Governance
Code to make it easier for shareholders to assess our performance against the mam principles

Alison Carnwath
Chairman

Land Secunities Annual Report 2012




Corporate goverpance

Leadership

THE ROLE OF THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

CHART 51

1 The Brard

l l
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Comphance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

Land Securities 1s committed te delivering high standards of corporate governance
and 1s pleased to report that it has complied fully with the UK Carporate
Governarnce Code for the whole of the year under review

In our Corporate Governance report, we explain how we integrate the main
principles of the five sections of the UK Corporate Governance Code into our
business, these being Leadership, Effectiveness, Accountability, Remuneration, and
Relations with Shareholders (Investors) Ourprinciples and policy inrelation to
rermuneration are covered separately in our Remuneration Report on p82-~99

T The Board

The Board provides leadership to the Group It sets the Group's strategy, oversees
its implementat:on, ensunng that only acceptable nisks are taken and the right
people and resources are in place in order to deliver long term value to shareholders
and benefits to the wider commuruty

To helpretain control of key decisions, the Board has put in place a formal
schedute of reserved matters which require its approval The principal matters
reserved to the Board are
- strategy,
~ authorisation of significant transactions and all those in excess of £150m,
~ internal controls and nsk management,
- remuneration policy {through the Remuneration Commuittee),
- shareholder arculars and listing particulars,
- mattersrelating to share capital, such as share buybacks,
- treasury pshcy and significant fundraising,
- dmdend policy, and
- appontment/rernoval of Directors and the Company Secretary

Matters delegated to certain Board Committees and management are supported
by clearly defined writtenLimits The Board retains responsibility for all such
matters delegated

Acopy of reserved matters s available to view on the Corporate Governance
section of the Company's website, www landsecunities com/about-us/corporate-
governance/role-of-the-board

Land Secunities Annual Report 2012

2 Audit Committee

The Audit Committee’s prirary function s 1o assist the Board in fulfilling its

oversight responsibilities During the year the Commuttee met four times and

reviewed the following

- intenm results and the annual financial statements,

- the effectiveness of the Group's system of internal centrols and risk
management, -

- leasing and market cyclicality risks and mitigation,

- fulland half year valuations and the external valuation process, and

- the performance of the external auditors, theirterms of engagement, the scope
of the audit and audit findings including findings on key judgements and
estimates inthe financial statements

Further information on the work of the Committee during the year can be found
laterinthis section

=X Nominations Committee

The Nominations Committee met three times during the year andits

activities included

- recommending the appointments of Robert Noel as Chief Executive and Stacey
Rauchas Non-executive Director to the Board,

~ monitoring the Board's structure, size, composition and diversity to achieve a
balanced and effective Board in terms of skills, knowledge and experience,

- reviewing the leadership needs and succession plannung of the Group including
Wdentifying and developing talent,

- undertaking anigorous review of the independence of Sir Stuart Rose and David
Rough who complete 9 and 10 years of service on the Board, respectively, in the
coming year,

- recommending the appointment of Kevin O'Byrne to the role of Semior
Independent Director and changes in the membership of the Board
Commuttees, and

~ approving the appomtment of fichard Akers asa Non-executive Director at
Barratt Developments PLC and re-assessing potential conflicts of interest of
alt Directors

Further information on the work of the Committee during the year can be found
{aterinthus section

4l
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4 Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee met four times during the year and its activities

included

= determtrung the individual remuneration packages for Executive Directors and
Senior Managers inctuding the new Chief Executive and determining the
appropniate remuneration for the outgeng Chief Executive,

- designing proposals to change the structure of Executive Director remuneration
nresponse to the new executive structure and presenting them to the full Board
for consideration,

~ approving the targets and performance assessments for performance-related
incentive schemes, and

- overseeingthe operation of all incentive schemes and awards and determining
whether the performarice eritena had been met

Further inforrmation on the work of the Commuttee during the year can be found in
the Remuneration Report

5 Corporate Responsibility Commattee

The Corporate Responsibibity (CR) Commuttee reports to the Chief Executive and 1
chaired by the Group's Tax and Treasury Director The Committee meets everytwo
months and is responsible for

- defiming strategic prioritiesin CR,

= monitoring CR performance, and

— ensunng that CR actvities remain directly related to our business objectives

Our Corporate Responsib:lity Report 2012 1s available at
www landsecunties com/responsibility

¢ Finance Committee

The Finance Commuttee 1s comprised of the Chtef Executive, the Chief Financial
Officer and David Rough, 3 Non-executive Director, and rmet three times duning the
year The Committee is responsible for considering the Group's funding and
reviewing certain funding activities including the approval of alt new debt facilities

7 Asset and Liability Committee

The Asset & Liability Cornmittee mernbers include all of the Executive Directors

and the Group's Tax and Treasury Director and met three times during the year

The Committee is responsible for reviewing

- the external ervirenment - the economy, financial markets and the
property market,

- funding inthe context of the Group's requirements,

- the forecast impact of transactions on the Group’s balance sheet,

- balance sheet gearing ratios and balance sheet resilience, and

- hquidity analysss, development and pre-development exposure

In addition to these Committees our Investment Commuittee and

Senior Management Board met to consider operational matters and
significant transactions
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¢ Investment Committee

The Investment Comrittee meets weekly and 1s comprnised of the Group’s
Executive Directors and s responsible for approving acquisitions, disposals,
developments and other transactions wath a value between £20 mullion and
£150 mdlion

9 Senior Management Board

The Senior Management Board 1s made up of the Group's Executive Directors andis
attended by the Group's General Counsel and Company Secretary It meets weekly
with other senior executives to discuss operational matters

BOARD AND COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS TABLE 52

The number of principal Board and Committee meetings attended by each Director during the
financual year was as follows’

Nominations Remunerstion Audit
Board < & Commi
Alison Carnwath /9 313 4/4
F_ral_\asSalw_ay _ : R -: 98 j o )
Martn Greenslade 99
Rabert Nozl o ws T T
Richard Akers ;) - - B
SwstuartRose 9" 33 am -
KeanO'Byme _ 9fo ' }
ChnsBartram o 9 33 . . 243
Dawid Rough 9/9 3/3 4/4 33
Simon Palley an! B 4/4
Stacey Rauch T 2z ) B T
1 Actual dance/s wm number of gs # Director could attend as a Board/Committee member
2 Chris Bartram wasunable Lo attend one meeting of the Audit Commuittee s he was requredioattend another
iz nged praoe Lo hum pving the Bord
1 s ey ble ¢ d one Board ngcue Lo liness.

Board composttion and roles

Qur Board compnses the Chairman, three Executive Directors and six independent

Non-executive Directors The Chairman and Chief Executive's key responsibilities

are summarised befow

- AsChairman, Alison Carnwath is responsible for leading the Board, its
effectiveness and its integnty She sets the tone for the Company, and ensures
thelinks between the Board and management and the Board with shareholders
are strong

- Duning the year to 31 March 2012, as Chief Executive, Francis Salway was
responsible for the day to day management of the Group's operations,
reporting to the Board Robert Noel assumed the role from 1 April 2012

Asat1Apnt 2012, the composition of the Board was

SPLIT OF DIRECTORS CHART 53
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BOARD GENDER SPLIT

LENGTH OF TENURE OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Kevin O’ Byrne replaced David Rough as Semior independent Director (SID)on
1April 2012 For the year under review, David Rough was available to discuss any
concerns with shareholders that could not be resolved through the normal
channels of communication with the Chairman or Chief Executive Nosuch
concernswere raised

Board Agenda
During the year, nine principal Board meetings were held with the Board also
meeting regularly at dinners, company events and onan ad hocbasis Indwdual
Non-executive Directors also met with Executive Directors and senior
management ont a number of occasions

At every meeting, each Executive Director gave areport on his particular
area of responsibility within the business, which were pnmarily

Francs Salway (Chief Executive) Martin Greenslade (Chief Financial

- Overviewofthe Group’sbusiness  Officer)
performance - Overviewofthe Group's financal
- Progresswith the Group'skey performance
business targets — The Group’sFinancial Statements
- Human resources - The Group's five year forecast and
- Investor relations ~  budget
- Funding

Robert Noel (Executive Director)
- Operational performance of the

Richard Akers (Executive Durector)
- Operational performance of the

London Portfolio Retail Portfolio

- Trends in the London property - Trends in retail markets
market - Health & Safety

- Emaronment - Valuation

- Corporate Responsibility

Land Securities Annual Report 2012

CHART 54

CHART 55

Group Strategy

Strategy s the focus for discussion at Board meetings

Qur strategy s to focus on our two core UK commercial property markets,
Londonand Retail, and provide an attractive total return for aur sharebolders by
being at the forefront of meeting the space requirements of our customers We
have a clear plan for every asset and allocate cap:tal to exploit our skills and
opportunities through the cycle

- Reviewing Strategy

During the year the Board analysed the prospects for the economy, central
Loanden office, retail and res:dential markets, and retail property within the UK
toensure the Group's strategy was appropriate for the current chmate and
longer term

- Objectives supporting our Strategy

The Board monitored progress against the objectives supporting the Group’s
strategy by reviewing

- the Group's five year forecast and budget

- theannual businessplan

- balanced scorecards which covered anumber of non-financial measures

- Monitonng the execution of Strategy
The Board receved detailed Board reports in advance of each meeting
whichincluded
- updates on business performance
- progress aganst the Group'skey business targets
~ the half-yearly and annual results
- review of market sectors
- progress onthe Group's pnincipal developments

- asx-menthly compansonof investment property performance to IPD indices

- reviewof gearing and the Group's balance sheet

- Embedding Strategy
The Board monitored and reviewed the following areas to ensure the strategy
was embedded through the orgamisation
- remuneration
- mvestorrelations activities
- humanresecurces
- corporate governance
- riskmanagement and internal controls
- healthandsafety
- environmental performance
- Board performance evaluation
- Corporate Responsibility matters

The Chairman regularly held meetings with the Non-executive Directors
without the Executive Directors present These meetings usually occurred after
Board meetings
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Letter from the Nominations Committee

Land Securities Group PLC
5 Strand
London WG2N 5AF

Dear Shareholder,

This has been one of the most significant years for the Committee for some time

Duning the year, the Nominations Committee compnised myself, David Rough, Sir Stuart Rose
and Chris Bartram We met three times, with all of the members attending all of the meetings

Earty in the year, Franais Salway approached me and indicated that he wishedto step down as
Chref Executive during the course of 2012 1 informed mernbers of the Commmittee mmedsately and we
agreed a strategy forappointing ws replacement This included appointing a leading executive search
firm who preduced a shortlist of internal and external candidates based on a descriptian of the role
prepared by the Committee The leading candidate was the Managing Director of our London Portfolio,
Robert Noel Robertmet, separately, with all members of the Commuttee and with our retained
search consultant forin depth interviews The search firm also prepared a comprehensive report
benchmarking Robert agamst other candidates and recommending his appontment The Committee
agreed with the recommendation unanimously

Robert has demonstrated exemplary leadership in the London business which he has headed
since jorming Land Secunties in 2010, and prior to that had a solid track record in the property mdustry
as Property Director at Great Portland Estates He brings awealth of knowledge tohisnewrole and
the Committee s satisfied that he has therequisite skilts and experience to lead Land Securities as
Chief Executive

The Committee engaged another leading international search firm to assist with the search for
an additional Non-executive Director with a strong international retail background Anumber of
candidates were interviewed Once we identified Stacey Rauch as our preferred choice, we arranged
for her to have separate meetings with each member of the Board The Board was unammous in thesr
decision to offer her the position and we are delighted that she chose to accept

Stacey 1sa former partner of McKinsey & Co in the US, has a broad business expenence and adeep
krowledge of retailmatters from an international perspective which complements the existing skills
and outlook of the Board Further biographical details of Stacey and each of the Directors canbe
found on p60

Dunng the course of the next year, Sir Stuart Rose and Dawvid Rough, our Non-executive Directors
will have completed nine and ten years of service respectively In accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code and guidance published by the NAPF, we conducted a nigorous review of therr
independence, together with an analysis of their contributions to Board and Committees, theirexternal
interests and roles The Commuttee concluded that both David and Sir Stuart wereindependentin
character and judgement, noting, in particular, their objectmity and the constructive challenge that they
provided to management and the additional support and guidance they provided Executive Directors
and senior managers outside Board meetings Althoughwe have refreshed our Board regularly witha
new ndependent Non-executive Director being appointed during each of the past four years, Hwas
delighted that David and Sir Stuart accepted my invitation to continue serving on the Board 1know that
therr vast expenence and support will be invaluable for our ncormung Chief Executive
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Aslmentioned inmy earlier letter, Kevin O'Byrmne took over from David Rough as our Seniar
Independent Director on 1April 2012 and Simon Palley wilt become Chairman of cur Remuneratton
Committee, in place of David, tater inthe year Inaddition, Sir Stuart will step down fromthe
Nominations and Remuneration Comnwttees David and Sir Stuart have served wath distinction
inthose positions and i would like to express my appreciation for thewr excetlent work

Having reviewed the effectiveness and commitment of the Non-executive Directors, we
concluded that we were satisfied with the time commitment of each Non-executrve Director duning
the year and were confident that each of them would be in a position to discharge their duties to the
Company inthe coming year We therefore recommend theur reappointment to the Board at the
forthcorming AGM

During the year we also reviewed the leadership needs and succession planning of the Group,
undertaking a Group wide talent review The review sought to establish the strength of the talent pool
within the Group and to identfy individuals with the potential to move upwards and laterally within
thebusiness

Finally, the Committee appraved the appointment of Richard Akers as a Non-executive Director
at Barratt Developments FLC More information on his appointment and the potential canflicts of
interests of other Board members can be found on p77

Alison Carnwath
Chairman, Nominations Commuittee

The Commuttee swntten tesma of reference ane avaable on the Company s website at http ifwrarw landsecunties com/about us/corporate
govemance/board committees
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Corpaorate gavernance
Board Effectiveness

Professional development, support, traming
and mduction for Directors

To develop and refresh the Board's knowledge and skills, the Chairman organised
two development sessions These consisted of brefings from external and internal
speakers on development appraisals and environmental issues affecting the
business Furthermore, the Board's 'ofi-site’ Board meeting held over two daysin
Leeds included a detalled assessment of the future of retail, the impact of the
internet on retail and likely trends in London office space requirements It was also
attended by a number of external experts and concluded with visits to the Group's
development at Tnnity Leeds and its shopping centre at White Rose

As part of their continuing development, the Group supports Executive
Dhrectors and Senior Managers taking up Non-executive Directorshup positions at
listed companies and charities as 1t feels this witl benefit the Company in terms of
giving them more rounded expenence and assisting their development On 1 Apnl
2012 Richard Akers accepted a Non-executive Directorship at Barratt
Developments PLC and during the year Franas Salway continued asa Non-
executive Director at Next plc Prior to approving these appontments, the
Nominations Commuttee considered the likely time commutment intheir roles
and the benefit for the Group 1n terms of the broadening of their experience

Stacey Rauchwas appotnted asa Non-executive Director on 1January 2012
Ms Rauch received acomprehensive induction arranged by the Chairman She met
with semior management from the London and Retail teams, visiting a number of
properties and development sites across the portfolios Ms Rauch also had separate
meetings with senior management from the Company Secretarial/Legal, Taxand
Treasury, Corporate Affairs and Investor Relations, Human Resources, Finance, and
Health and Safety teams Inaddition she received bespoke training on Corporate
Covernance, was taken through the Group's finanaial statements and key financial
metrics and met with the Group’s auditors and valuers

Board access to appropriate information

Advice on governance matters was provided by the Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary duning the year Information was provided to the Board in
the appropriate form including detailed reports and presentations to enable it
to discharge its duties Although none was sought during the year, all Directors
had access to external advice, at the expense of the Company

Durning the year the Non-executive Directors met with the Executive Directors
and senior employees below Board level The meetings took place’ at Board dinrers,
and Committee meetings as well as on a number of less formal occasions These
meetings provided senior managers with exposure to and advice from the Board
and enabled Non-executive Directors to learn more about the day-to-day running
of the business

Evaluation of the performance of the Board

Aformal and ngorous evaluation of the perfermance of the Board, its Committees,
the Directors and the Chairman is conducted each year as we recognise that our
effectiveness 1s critical to the Company's continued success

This year marked the third in our three year Board evaluatson cycle n the first
year of the cycle, a detailed evaluation was conducted by Independent Audit
umited, who followed up the 1ssues raised in a questionnaire in the second year
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BOARD EVALUATION CYCLE CHART 56
Yeor |

External evaluation by

independent, external

consultants

Yeor 3
Interviews with the
Chairman and Group
General Counsel &
Company Secretary

Questionnarres onthe ssues

raised in Year 1by the same
independent consultants

This year’s Board evaluation was based on a series of separate interviews with
Directors, conducted by the Chairman and the Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary The tems discussed in these interviews included the mix
of skills and contributions amongst the Board, the quality and content of Beard
papers, the risk appetite of the Group inrelation to development and ivestment
transactions as well as matters raised in Years 1and 2

The evaluation established that Directors felt the board had a good mix of
personalities and skills, with no notable gaps They were pleased with the
Chairman's conduct of the processes to appoint a new Chief Executive and new
Non-executive Director, feeling them to be rigorous and inclusive Some offered
suggestions for the skills to consider as the longer serving Non-executives retired
The consensus was that, with the number of Executive Directors reducing to three,
the Board was of a good size and did not require additional members although this
would be kept under review and considered again once the new Chief Executive had
settled nhisrole

Anumber of Directors encouraged forward looking Board papers, focusing on
strategy, trends and new opportunities as these were areas in which Non-executive
Directors felt more able to contnbute to and add value

For papers seeking approval for transactions and new developments,
Non-executive Directors emphasised the importance of context for management'’s
recommendation including how the proposals fitwith the Group's strategy and
forecasts, and anassessment of the alternatives Furthermore, it was requested
that eperational reviews should include regular updates on progress with the
Group’s key developments and ongoing transactions, with items lkely to be
brought to the Board for approval {lagged as far ahead as possible

Directors were supportive of how management incorporated risk and the
evaluat:on of nsk within proposals for transactions, funding and new development
They felt that the Group benefited from a strong balance sheet at a difficult time
asaresult

Overall, the outcome of the evaluation was very positive, with good progress
noted on the areas of focus raised m previous evaluations Issues raised during the
evaluation would be taken forward by the Chairman

The Chairman's performance and leadership was reviewed by the Non-
executive Directors, led by the Senior Independent Director
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Independence

The Neminations Committee reviewed and confirmed the independence of Sir
Stuart Rose and Dawvid Rough Details of this review can be found in the letter from
Alisan Carnwath, Chairman of the Norminations Commuttee The review included

a thorough assessrment against the criteria for ndependence set out in the UX
Corporate Governance Code and guidance published by NAPF The Committee also
concluded that the remaining Non-executive Directors were futly independent in
character and judgement and, as previously concluded, Alison Carnwath was
independent at the time of her appaintment as Charman

Approach to gender diversity

The Group has formal policies to promote equalrty of epportunity, including by
gender, across the organisation, and the Board is confident that it will meet its
target to increase the representation of women onthe Board to at least 25% by
2015 The Board has made good progress against this during the year under review
with the appointment of Stacey Rauch as a Non-executive Director, increasing the
proportion to 20% It does however believe that an appointment to the Board
shoutd be based on merit and overall suitability for the role and a high priority 1s
attached to retaining our current senior team

Re-election to the Board

Since March 2010, all Directors have stood for re-election annually As detalled in
the notice of the Annual General Meeting all Directors, except Francis Salway who
stepped down as Chief Executive on 31 March 2012, will again this year stand for
re-election
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Conflicts of interest

The Board operates 2 policy to 1dentfy and, where appropriate, manage conflicts
or potential conflicts of interest
The Nominations Commuttee monitors this and considered that there was
a potential for a conflict of interest to arise in relation to the positions of
- Chnis Bartram as Charrman of Orchard Street Investment Management and
aNan-executive Director of the Crown Estate, which are in some areas of
operation, competitors of the Group
- Francis Salway as Non-executive Director of Next plc, a customer of the Group
- Kewin O Byrne as an Executive Director of Kingfisher ple, a customer of the Group
- Richard Akers as a Non-executive Director of Barratt Developments PLC, which
151 some areas of operation, a competitor of the Group

The Comrmittee addressed Chris Bartram's conflict of interest by ensuring that,
where appropriate, he did not take part in discussions or see relevant information
onpotential acquisitions of property Since operationat matters, such asretail
leasing, were unlikely to be considered at Board level, the Commuttee concluded
thatin practice conflicts of interest were unlikely to occur in relatien to the
appointments of Francis Salway and Kevin O'Byrne

The Committee considered potential conflicts of interest in relation to a
proposal dunng the year to appaint Richard Akers as a Non-executive Director of
Barratt Developments PLC Therisk was considered low given the Group operated
in different sectors of the property market to Barratt Developmentswhich s
predorminantly aresidential house and flat developer Nevertheless, the
appointment was approved on the basis that Barratt Development s agreed not
tocirculate any papers to Mr Akers or involve bim in discussions regarding an
acquisrtion or disposal of land they believe might be in competition or conflict wath
the Company

7
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Letter from the Chairman of the Audit Committee

Land Securities Group PLC
5 Strand
London WC2N 5AF

Dear Sharehaolder,

I would like to give you an overview of the operation and scope of the Audit Commuttee and report onour
waork over the past year
The Committee compnised of David Rough, Chris Bartram and myself, all of whom are independent
Mon-executive Directors
The Committee's primary function s to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities by
reviewing financial informaticn provided to shareholders, reviewing the Company's system of internal
controls and risk management, assessing the performance of the internal and external auditors and
reviewing the external valuation process
Durning the year the Committee met four times and its activities included reviewing
~ theprelimmaryand interim financial statements and matters raised bymanagementand the external and
internal auditors
- theeffectiveness of the Group's system of internal controls and nsk management
- theresults of nternal audit reviews, and management action plans to resolve any issues arising and tracking
therr resolution
- theexternal audttors, their effectiveness, abjectivity, independence, terms of engagement and the scope
of the audit
- audit plans for external and internal audsts
- itspolicy on the provision of non-audit services by the external auditor
— the full and half year valuations and the externalvaluation process, and
- the Group’s policies for preventing fraud and bribery, its employee code of conduct and its business ethics
and anti-corruption palicy

As Audit Commuttee Chairman, | invited the Chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive and Chief Financial
Officer to each meeting and other Directorsto attend fram time to uime Inaddition, the Director of Risk
Management and Internal Audit and representatives from the Group's auditors, PricewaterhouseCocpers LLP
{PwC), were present at each meeting The Group's external valuers Kmight Frank LLP alsc attended the
meetings after the half year and full year valuations to present their reports

Given the uncertainty in the markets and the wider economy this year, the Comumittee had a strong focus
onrisk It reviewed the Group's key risks in the hight of the eurozone crisis highlrghting those rnisks it felt had
increased in the Group's interim resutts Inaddition, invited the Executive Directors and sentor management
from the Londan and Retail portfolios to present to the Commuttee on the key nsks facng the Group and the
associated mitigation strategies Thesencluded presentations on development risks, strategies for dealing
with the nsk of lease expiries and the nisks associated with market cyclicality, grving us wisibility on how these
nsksare managed ona day-to-day basis

We also reviewed the performance of PwC and thew non-audit work and the performance of the external
valuers Marenformation on our work on these matters appearsan the following pages together with an
averview of our internal control and nisk management process

Finally, in conjunction with the Board evaluation outlined onp76, the Committee reviewed its own
effectiveness and concluded that it continued to operate as an effective Audit Committee -

Kevin O'Byrne
Chairman, Audit Commuttee

Although all of the Committes members are considered tobe sppropnately expanenced to fulfil theirrole Kevin O Byrn dered tohave sgnifi
recent and relevant financial expenience in fing wath the LIK Corparate Gavernance Code Further biographical details of each of the members of the
Commuttes areset outin the Dikctors sechon of the Annual Report

The Comrruttee s written terms of reference are available on the Company swebsite at hitp fwww landsecunties com/about is/corporate governance/
board commutiees
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Accountability

External Audits and Valuations

External Auditors and Non-audit work
The Audit Comnuttee had policies and procedures in place to monitor and
maintain the objectivity and independence of the external auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) The policy requires prier approval by the
Chairman of the Audit Commuittee for nan-audit work above a threshold level of
£25,000 per engagement
During the year the auditors undertook the following non-audit work, none of
which exceeded the non-audit work threshold
- Prowniding acomfort letter on the annual update of the Group's debt prospectus
- Reviewing agreed upon pracedures inrelation to non-statutory financial
statements of Thomas More Square Estate
- Reviewing agreed upan procedures in relation to the ground rent schedules
provided to the Crown Estate for the Exeter properties
~ Non-statutory reporting on the consolidated financial statements of
LS Intermediate Limited
- Extraction procedures on the ground rent and service charge certificates

Due to familianty with the subject matter and alignment with work carned out
under the audit these services were provided by PwC In order tomaintain PwC's
indepertdence and objectively, PwC undertook their standard independence
procedures in relation to those engagements Further details on the amounts
of non-audit work paid to Pw{ are set out in note 7 to the financial statements

The Commuttee also appraised the effectiveness of Pw(C, considered their
reappointment, and also assessed their independence The Committee concluded
that PwC remained independent Furthermore, PwC confirmed to the Committee
that they maintained appropnate internal safeguards to ensure their independence
and cbjectivity

During the year, the Audit Commuttee held a private meeting with Pw(C,
without management besng present in order to recerve feedback from themon
matters such asthe quality of interaction with management The Chairman of the
Committee also met with them separately, on several occasions

Significant jJudgements, key assumptions and estimates

The Audit Committee morutored the followang areas as these were considered
key because of ther impact on the Group's results and remuneration of senior
management or the level of complexity, judgement or estimation involved in therr
application on the consahdated financal statements

- Property valuations

- Financelease calculations

- Theaccounting treatment for trading properties and trade recewvables

- Prowisions

- Revenuerecogmtion

- Capitalisation of expenses

- Caleulation of revenue profit and adjusted earnings per share

= Valuation of interest-rate swaps

- Compliance with the Real Estate Investment Trust {REIT) regume

Further details on each of these can be found in notes 2 and 3 to the financial
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Valuers
The Audit Committee also has 1n place policies and procedures to monitor the
objectraity of the external valuers, Kmight Frank LLP The work of Knight Frankis
particularly important since the valuations of the Group's portfolio are a
significant determinant of the Group's reported perfarmance and senior
fmanagement remuneration

The external valuers and external auditors have full access to ane another and
operate with an open dialogue and exchange of information that is independent of
the Group

Duning the year the Audit Committee Chairman, Kevin O'Byme, attended
key valuation meetings (along with the external auditors) to be assured of the
independence and ngour of the process In addition, Knight Frank presented its
valuation findings to the Audit Committee at the intenm and full year review of results

We have a fixed fee arrangement with our valuers Given the impertance of
the work undertaken by Knight Frank, we have disclosed the fees we pay themin
note 8 to the financial statements

The total fees paig by the Company to Knight Frark in the year represented
less than 5% of therr total fee ncome for the year The Audit Commuittee regularly
reviews the total fees that the Company pays to Knught Frank as a proportion of the
total fees paid to all of our property adwisers The Committee remains satisfied that
itrepresents onlty a small proportion of the total

Internal Controls and Risk Management

The Board 1s responsible for the Group's systern of internal control, which has been
designed to manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to meet business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss The Board’s approach to risk management is
supported by an oversight structure whichincludes the Audit Committee

The Board has an on-going process to identify, evaluate and manage the
significant risks faced by the Group, which has been in place throughout the year
and up to the date of the approval of the annual report and accounts This process 15
regularly reviewed by the Board, and accords with the 2005 Turnbult guidance in
addition, the Board reviews annually the effectweness of the risk management and
internal contrel systems

The key features of our system of risk management and mternal control include

Strategicand business planning

- Afveyear forecast and business plan s prepared annually, against which the
performance of the bustness is regularly monitored, together with funding
requirements and cashflows

Investment appraisal 4

- Significant capital projects, major contracts and business and property
acquisitions are reviewed in detail and approved in accordance with a formal
schedule of reserved matters

- Postinvestment appraisals prepared by management are also received
and reviewed

Financial monitoring

- Profitability, cash flow and capital expenditure are closely monitored and key
historic and forecast financialinfermation s reported to the Board on a monthly
basis, including explanations of vanances between actual and budgeted
performance

Systerns of control, procedures and delegated authorities

= Clearly defined guidelines and appraval limits exist for capital and operating
expenditure and other key business transactions and decisions

- Financial reporting contrals identify and address key financial reporting risks
including nisks ansing from changesin accounting standards, as well as any areas
of accounting judgement
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Riskmanagement
The Group hasa risk management process that 1s embedded throughout the
orgamsation The risk management process 1s summarised as follows

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS CHARTS7
7
’—) Identify risks —l
5 i
Report risks We contextualise Assess and
and mitigation risk in terms quantity risks
toBoard of our goals and
objectives
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4 3

Re-assessnisks ¢ Develop action

post mitigation plansto
mitigate risks
Identify
Risks are identified for each area of the business and the Craup asa whaole
Assess and quantify

Each risk s rated in terms of probability of eccurrence and potential impact on
financial performance and the reputation of the Group

Develop action plans to mitigate

The Risk Management and Internal Audit team assists the business in developing
action plans to mitigate nsk and review and test key business processes and
controls, including following up with the implementation of managernent
actions to the Audit Commuttee

Re-assess nsk post mitigation
Risks are conttnually re-assessed to ensure that mitigation strategies have
beeneffective

Report nisks and mitigation to the Board

Risks are reviewed with the Executive Directors and the Audit Commuttee and
then reported to the Board
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Assurance

The Board reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s system of nisk management

and internak control ncluding financial, operational and compliance controls

This was primanly achieved by

- reviewing key controls on aquarterly basis to ensure they were embedded and
operating effectively within the business

- reviewing the reports from the Risk Management and Internal Audit team on
any issues identified in the course of their work The Director of Risk
Management and Internal Audit met regularly with senior management and
attended all meetings of the Audit Committee

- reviewing annualty the Group’s system of internal control which includes a
summary of key controls, a report from the internal audit team on their work
and the results of compliance questionnaires which provided assurances from
semor management that business actvities had been conducted appropriately

- reviewing the effectrveness of the internal audit function

- ronitaring the risks and associated controls over the financial reporting
processes, including the process by which the Graup's financial statements are
prepared for publication

« reviewing reports from the external auditors on any issues identified in the
course of their work, including an internal control report on control weaknesses

From the review of the risk management and internal contro! system, the Board
confirms that no significant failings or weaknesses have been identified

The Audit Commuttee also maintains awhistleblowing facility to enable
employees to raise issues on a confidentral basis The Audit Committee ensures
that propertionate and independent investigation 1s undertaken on any
whistleblowing nadents No incidents were recorded duning the year
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Relations with investors

Approach to Investor Relations

The Board has a comprehensive Investor Relations programme which aims to
provide exssting and potential nvestors with a means of developing their
understanding of the Group

The Investor Relations programme is split between institutional shareholders
{which make up the majority of shareholders), private shareholders and debt
nvestors Feedback from the programme of events s provided to the Beard to
ensure that they develop an understanding of the Group's major investors During
the year under review, the programme included

Institutional Sharcholders programme

~ Meetings with pnincipal shareholders
- Meetings with Directors and the Chairman were offered on aregularbasis
throughout the year
— The Chauman, particularly withregard to the Chief Executive succession,
maintained contact with principal shareholders and kept the Board informed
of thewr views

- Roadshows
- Institutional shareholders were invited to annual and half-yearly results
meetings Aswell as the Executive Directors, the Charman and the Senior
Independent Director were available to meet with shareholders

- lovestor conference

- Thelnvestor conference 15 held annually and focuses on the Retail and London
portfolios in alternate years This year the conference was held in Leeds and
focused on the Retail portfolio As well as updates on market conditions and
our business, there were property tours of Tnnity Leeds and White Rose,
andancpportunity for attendeeste meet management below Executive
Director level

- The presentations and an audio-cast or web-cast of the conference were
made available on the corporate website to enable those investors who
could not attend to access all the information disclosed at the conference

- Industry conferences
- Industry conferences provide Executsve Dtrectors with a chance to meet
afarge number of shareholders on a formal and more s;nformal basis
Conferences that were attended by Executive Directors included the UBS
Global Property conference in London, Citi CEO conference in Florida, Merrll
Lynch conference in New York, the Nomura conference in Tokyo, and the
Kempen conference in Amsterdam, armongst others
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Private Shareholders programme and the Annual
General Meeting (AGM)

Private shareho!ders are actively encouraged to give feedback and communicate
with the Directors, through the Company Secretary They were also able ta meet
Directors at the United Kingdom Shareholders’ Association (UKSA} meeting, held
annually at our head office and at the Annual General Meeting (AGM)

The AGM pravided alt shareholders with an opportunity to question the Board
and the Chairmen of the Board Committees on matters put to the meeting
including the Annual Report Shareholders who attended the AGM were given
adetailed presentation by the Chief Executive on the activities and performance
of the Group over the preceding year

The results of voting at general meetings are published on the Company's
website, www landsecunties com/investors/shareholder-investor-information/
agm-annual-general-meeting, as required by the UK Corporate Governance Code

Debt Investors programme

= Credit side institutional nvestors
- Meetings were held with our Chref Financial Officer and the Treasury team
after the annual and half-year results

- Banks
— There was regular dialogue with our keyrelationship banks mcluding
quarterly meetings with the Treasury team and in-house dinners with
Executive Directors and the Senior Independent Director

further information on our debt investors can be found hitp //www landsecunties
com/finvestors/debt-investors

Independent feedback on Investor Relations

As a Board we receive independent feedback on Investor Relations through a

biennial presentation by Makinson Cowell, an ndependent adviser Makinson

Cowell undertook a comprehensive Investor Relations audit this year,

benchmarking all aspects of the Investar Relations programme and interviewing

principalinvestors face-to-face to obtain their views on management and business

performance The resulis were then presented to the Board, with suggestions and

improvements being taken forward by management Recommendationsand

actions ncluded

- ¢continuing the Chairman's periodic contact with larger investors

- extendingcoverage through investor relations only meetings

- developing practices to broaden contacts with remuneration, corporate
responsibility and governance specialists

Our Investor Relations department also recelved feedback from analystsand
investors semi-annualty through the Group's corporate advisers These were fed
back to the Board to help develop their understanding of our shareholders

Otherdisclosures

Other disclosures required by paragraph 7 2 6 of the Disclosure and Transparency
Rules and the Companies Act 2006 are set out in the Report of the Directors on p100
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Letter from the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

82

Land Secunties Group PLC
A Strand
London WC2N HAF

Dear Shareholder,

This has been a busy year for the Remuneration Committee

The year starzed well for your Company Our 2010/11 results were well recerved Confidence
n the economic recovery was returrung, which was reflected both in terms of property values and
letttngs The performance targets set by the Cemmuttee for bonus payments reflected that confidence
We set ambitious targets for development lettings in both the London and Retail portfolios We seta
target for a small net investment during the year [nadditron, we set targets for outperformance of IPD
and revenue profit The targets reflected our significant development programme and our desire to
maintain income

The eurozone crisis brought more caution into the economy and into the property markets in
whichwe operate It became clear that the targets we set at the beginning of the year would become
much harder to achieve The caution meant tenants were more reluctant to take space and we became
alesswitling investor Hence, the net investment target became more difficult to attain as value, from
our perspective, became more difficult to find IPD benchmark outperfarmance also became harder to
achieve, with the Group's focus turning to asset management and achieving higher sales pricesin order
to drive outperformance and improve balance sheet flexability for the future Despite the change in
outlook, the targets set at the beginning of the year were not adjusted and our people have had to
waork much harder te achieve them Despite the tremendous efforts of our employees in this difficult
environment our business outturn has not been as good as we had hoped or had achieved in the
previous year The Group bonus poolis down as aresult

The appointment of Robert Noel as the Group’s Chief Executive has led to areduction of Executive
Directors from four to three The corresponding changes to management responsibiltties meant that
changes to the mcentive structure for Executive Directors were necessary Rather than make gradual
changes over the course of a number of years, the Committee commussioned a wholesale review This
gave us the ppportunity to address elerents of cur incentive package, such as the Additional Bonus
and Discretionary Bonuses, which some shareholders disliked 1t has also enabledus to propose the
introduction of a clawback mecharnism into our incentive schemes %

The outcome of the review 15 a proposed shift in the balance of the incentive structure away from
discretionary payments and outperformance of our IPD weighted benchmarks, towards relative
shareholder returnand a package that s longer term m nature We believe our proposals will improve
the abgnment of executives with the interests of long term shareholders and are seeking shareholder
approval for them at this year's AGM

We have been particularly conscious of the current environment for pay in listed companies,
closely monitoring the Governenent consultations on executive pay and governance policy statements
from our shareholders Before settling on these proposals, we entered into extensive engagement with
our tap 20 shareholders, who together hold nearly 50% of our shares We are very grateful for their
time and therr mput, which has informed our thinking and led to a number of changes Full details of the
review appear in Section & of this report
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Intheir feedback, investors also asked for more information Thisincluded a companison between
the salary of our Chief Executive and the average for our employees, more detail on the calculation
of performance conditians for incentives and detasls of our on target and maximum pay We have
included all of this, and more, within our report and hope you find it helpful

The Commuttee also considered the remuneration of our outgoing Chief Executive, Francis Salway
attwo specially convened meetings The Committee allowed one tranche of Long Term Incentives to
veston his leaving the Group on 31 March 2012 These would ordinarily have vested in June and Juty
2012 Franas remamned our Chief Executive for the whole of the year under review and was awarded a
bonus, in line with our policy The Committee allowed the early vesting of two tranches of deferred
bonus shares which had been purchased using cash withheld from bonuses in previous years Noother
payments were made to himupon departure More details of these appear in the ‘At A Glance’ Section
andin Section 3, where we explain the rationale for the payments and the calculation of the
performance conditions

More details of the work of the Committee follows and we hope you find it helpfulin
understanding our remuneration policy and practice

David Rough
Chairman, Remuneration Commuttee
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Ataglance

Salary Paid and Bonus Payments for Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALARY AND

ANNUALBONUSES FOR THE YEAR TABLESS
Annual bonus,
including any
discrationary Armvual boos
Annual bonus paid deferredmto
(£'000) salary wicash shares
FW Salway _665 481 -
RlAkers o B 400 405 249
MF Greenslade B . 435 331 .
R M Noel 425 308 81

1 Annual bonuses comprise both a cashelement and an element which will be deferred into the Compary s shares
2 Theannual cash and deferred bonuscolumns for R | Akers eachinclude £171 800 that relatestothe cut
performance of the Retail Portfolio sgainst its IPDbenchmark for the financial year 2010411 but psdin 2011712
3 RjAkerses potentially entitiedioan additicnal bonus of 50% of salary for the 201 /12 financlal year as the
perlomaance of the Retail Portfobo exceeded the relevant IPD benchmark n absolute terms by 2.5% If the
perforrmance criterla for the financlalyear 2012/13 15 atto met, half of the payment would become due in cash
n June 2013 and haf deferred wtothe Company’s thares for a penod of two yeacs

In Section 3, we provide a detailed explanation as 1o how each bonus was earmed,
together with additional information showing how pay during the year compared
with on target and maximum amounts

For the coming year, only two Executive Directors, Martin Greenslade and
Richard Akers, will receive annual salary mcreases Francis Salway retired on 31
March 2012, with his successor, Robert Noel, not being eligible for a salary increase
until 1 Juty 2013

The average increase awarded to those two directors was 4 15% as aganst an
averageof 3 77% for the rest of the Group The average increase over Syears (induding
these increases}, has been 2 7% for Mr Greenslade and 2 4% for Mr Akers An
explanation of the rationale for these pay increases appears in Section 3of this report
Salary increases take effect from 1 July 2012

Section 3 also contains detail on the process undertaken by the Commitiee in
setting the salary for our new Chief Executive

Noincreases were awarded to our Non-executive Directors, whose fees have
not increased since Octaber 2009 Our Chairman has not recerved an increase since
her appointment in November 2008

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALARIES TABLES9
Average %

Increase over

Synars

{including

From1July 01N2-

(£ voo) Current 2012 % incraase 201213)
FW Salway* ) _ B85 - - -
R M Noel** _ 680 680 nfa -
MFGreenslade 435 450 58% 27%
R ] Akers 400 410 2 5% 2 4%

* Fwialway retwred as Chief Executive on 31 March 2012
™ RHNoel was appointed Chuef Executive on 1 April 2012 and hus salazy wi next be reviewed n 2013
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New Proposals to Alter the Structure of Executive
Remuneration and Introduce a ‘Clawback’ Mechanism

There have not been any changes to the Comrmuttee's remuneration policy for the
201112 yearunderreview
Section 6 of this report contains the Committee's proposals to alter the

structure of Executive Director remuneration with effect from the financial year

2012713 The section includes the Commuttee’srationale for the changes and the

steps it has taken to ensure that the proposals are appropnate, that the

performance conditians are stretching and that the outcomes are aligned to the

interests of Investors Insummary

- The proposals sumplify the existing remuneration structure and better align
the pay of Executive Directors to the performance of the Group as awhole

- There s areduction in the overall maximurm value of annual and long term
incentives from 500% to 450% of basic satary

- Discretionary bonuses, of up to 50% of basic salary, are removed

- Additional Bonuses of up to 2009 of basic salary are also removed

- Annual bonuses, currently up to 100% of basic salary, are increased to 150%
with amounts above 50% and 100% automatically deferred into shares for one
and two years, respectively

- LongTerm Incentive Plan Awards and Matching Performance Share Awards are
increased from100% of salary, foreach, te 150% of salary for each

- The balance of the incentive structure shifts away from discretionary payments
and cutperformance of cur IPD weighted benchmarks towards relative total
shareholder return, which will improve executive algnment with shareholders

- Theshift in emphasis from annual bonuses to awards under the Long Term
Incentive Schemes and the increase in bonus deferral means that the incentive
package becomes more long term

- Clawback provistons are to be introduced, which give the Committee authonty
to'clawback’, from future awards, overpayments of bonus or an excess vesting
of ashare award caused by a misstatement of the Company's results or a
performance condition

- Implementation of these proposals 1s subject to shareholders approving certam
changes to the Company’s Long Term Incentive Plan proposed at the Company’s
forthcoming AGM

Pay Around the Group

The average pay increase for employees other than Directors was 3 77%, as agamst
415% for the two Executive Directors who received annual increases The ratio of
the salary of our Chief Executive to the average salary across the Group (excluding
Directors)is121

More details of pay and benefits around the Croup are set cut in Section 5

Payments to our Qutgoing Cheef Executive

Following Frances Salway's decision toresign his position as Chief Executsve, the
Commuttee agreed to allow his Long TermIncentive Plan awards that had been due
tovest in June and July 2012 to vest on 31 March 2012, which was his leaving date
In line with the Company's policy that applies to all employees, since Mr Salway
hadworked for the whole of the 2011/12 financral year, the Committee exeraised its
discretion to award him a bonus for the 2011/12 financial year The Committee also
allowed the vesting of Deferred Bonus Shares awarded in 2010 and 2011, which had
been purchased using part of his bonus award that was deferred inthose years

All other share and incentive awards lapsed and he did not receive any pay in
Lieuof notice or other payment Full details of the payments and the Comrmittee’s
rationale for these payments are set out in Section 3
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1 The Remuneration Committee,
its Role and Governance

Compliance

This report has been prepared by the Remuneration Commuttee (the Comnuttee)
n accordance with the Companies Act 2006, the Listing Rules of the Financial
Services Authonity and The Large and Medium Companies and Groups (Accounts
and Reports) Regulations 2008 In accordance with those Regulations, this report
has been approved by the Board and will be subrmutted to shareholders for
consideration at the Annual General Meeting, to be held on 19 July 2012
The Commuttee complies with the prowisions set out in the UK Corperate
Governance Code

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP hasaudited Tables 72—76 and associated
footnotes

Responsibilities and Terms of Reference

The Commuttee is responsible for

- Deterrmining the overall strategy for the remuneration of Executive Directors
and Senior Managers and for ensuning that this 1s aligned with the Company’s
strategy and the wider business environment so that the outturn of
performance conditions reflects the perfarmance of the business

~ Designing a polity to execute its strategy

- Deterrmining the indvidual remuneration packages for executive directors and
senior managers -

- Overseengany significant changes to employee benefits across the Group,
including pensions

~ Approving the design of and targets for performance-related incentive schemes

- Overseeing the operation of all incentive schemes and awards and determining
whether performance criteria have been met

- The Commuttee’s terms of reference are available at www landsecunities com

Advisers

Both the Group Human Resources Director and the Group General Counsel
and Company Secretary provided information and adwice to the Committee
throughout the year The Comrmuttee has appointed and recerved advice, on
remuneration and ancillary legal matters, from New Bridge Street (NBS), an
AON Hewitt company, and also made use of vanious published surveys to help
determine appropriate remuneration levels NBS has voluntarily signedup tothe
Remuneration Consultants Code of Conduct and has no other connection with
the Land Secunities Group

The Commuttee intends to conduct a benchmarking review of its
remuneration and benefit consultants work dunng the course of the coming year

Membership and Mcctings

The Commuttee s chared by David Rough
The other members of the Committee during the year were Sir Stuart Rose,

Alison Carnwath, Simon Palley, who joined the Commuttee on 10 May 2011 and
Bo Lerenius, who stepped down from the Board and the Committee on 21 Juty 2011
Alison Carnwath s not classified as an independent Non-executive Director for the
purposes of the UK Corporate Governance Code, solely by virtue of her being the
Chairman of the Board, however she was an independent Non-executive Director
at the time of her appointment as Chairman All of the other members were and
remain independent Non-executive Directors

The Committee met four times during the course of the year Ali of the members
attended all of the meetngs
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The Chief Executive and Human Resources Director were invited to attend
meetings of the Commuttee No Director was involved inany decision relating to his
or herown remuneration As set out inthe Corporate Governance Sectionof this
report, a review of the Committee’s performance was undertaken by the Chairman
of the Board, with the assistance of the Group General Counsel and Cornpany
Secretary The Committee’s performance had been reviewed externally by
Independent Audit Limited in 2010, who followed thisup in 2011 with a review of
matters raised during thew initial evaluation The Committee’s performance will be
reviewed externally again during the coning year

Activities and Highhghts

Duning the course of the year, the Remuneration Commuttee considered anumber

of matters, including

= Acomplete review of every aspect of remuneration for Executive Directors
and senior managers, resulting in the proposals summarised in section 6

~ Theimplernentation of elawback arrangements

- The proportion of remuneration generated from the Group's performance
against 1PD as opposed to other measures

- Researchcompited by the Comm:ttee’s Independent consultants benchmarking
Executeve Director and Serior Manager salanes

- Salaryincreases for Executive Directors and Senior Managers, together with
overall levels of salary increases across the Group

- Achievernent against business unit and personal targets under the annual bonus
scheme for Executive Directors and Senior Managers

- Achievernent against the performance conditions for the Long Term Incentive
and Matching Performance Share Plans

- The determination of certain share awards to Francis Salway under the ‘goed
leaver' prowisions in the scheme rules reviewing his performance against targets
and the calculation of payments made to im

- Proposed shareincentive awards to Executive Directors and sentor managers

- Directors’ compliance with the Company's Share Ownership Guidelines

140434.,54012341d

2. Remuneration Policy and
Components

In this Section, we outline our strategy and policy and then examine the
compenents of our remuneration package, explaiming why each of them has been
chosen and why we believe our performance conditions are stretching and aligned
with the interests of shareholders

There have not been any changes in remuneration policy or awards made
during the course of the year under review, although changes are proposed for the
following year These are set outinsection

Remuneranon Strategy

Land Securities’ primary aim s to produce returns for our shareholders that are
supenor to those of our competitors, bath in the short and long term That iswhy
a sigrificant proportion of our incentives only pay out If we outperform our
competitars In order to do this, we need to do a number of things well Weneed to
buy well, sell well, develop well, manage our assets through the property cycte well,
and ensure we have the night financrai flexibility and appropriate gearing
Qur people are key to achieving this We need to ensure that we attract and retan
the best people throughout the organisation and the remuneration package we
offer s one of the ways in which we do that Qur package 1s designed to
- Attract, retain and motivate high quality management, recognising that the
Group operates in a competitive market for talent
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- Align the interests of Executve Directors and Senior Managers with those
of shareholders

- Befa, transparent and easily understood by the Company's stakeholders,
whichinclude 1ts Directors, employees and investors alike

- Benaformthat can be applied consistently across the Group to support ahigh
performance culture aligned to achieving the Group’s strategic cbjectives

Remuneration Policy

In order to achieveits strategy, the Committee's policy 1s to

- Setbase salary at around median of the relevant market competitive level

— Ensure that superior rewards are only paid for exceptional performance
Accordingly, a substantial proportion of Executive Directors’ remuneration is
delivered through performance related pay, with incentives to outperform
industry performance benchmarks and the total shareholder return of our peers

- Agree and set challenging business targets for the Executive Directors and their
direct reports, both on an annual and longer term basis

— Ensure an appropriate balance between short and long term and fixed and
varable rewards

- Ensure further abgnment with longer term investor goals by ensuring deferral
of part of the annual bonus and requiring Executive Directors to make and
rmaintain significant investments in the Company's shares in order to maximise
their Matching Performance Share Awards

- Engagewith investors and ensure their views and those of other stakeholders
arereflected in the remuneration package offered

Benchmarking

Rernuneration packages for Executive Directors are benchmarked by the Commuttee
using research prepared by NBS The researchis carned out by creating two
comparater groups The first 1sa group of isted Real Estate and Utilities companies
{which have a high fixed asset value relative to their market capitalisation and are
considered good comparators for the Company) and the second group consists of
comparnies with a similar market capitalisation to the Company

The benchmarking shows that the current Executive Directors’ salary levels
are below the median benchmarks for first group of comparator companies and
well below those of companies within the second group

The Commuttee also has responsibility for pay awards and policy across the
Group, with particular focus on the remuneration of senior managers, whose pay
15 also the subject of benchmarking research prepared by NBS The Commuttee
ensures, where appropnate, that the types of tncentives offered 1o senior managers
are similar to those offered to Executive Directors, with similar performance and
vesting critena

Ahgnment with Shareholders

The Remuneration Commuttee’s objectivess to align ndividual reward with the

Group's performance bothin the short and long term The remuneration package

we offer our Executive Directors seeks to do this in the following way

- Basic salaries are set to reflect an indwidual’s ongoing pesformance and
contribution to the business

- Annual boruses tallored to reward high performance against key short and long
term objectives and supenior relative performance of the Group compared with
property industry benchmarks
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- Long Term Incentive Plan rewards for Executive Directors are aligned with our
long term business objectives and value created for shareholders in excess of
that created by general increases in the value of property or shares

- 25% of any annual bonus will be deferred into the Company’s shares for three
years 50% of any award made snrelation to exceptional outperformance
against property industry benchmarks s deferred into the Company’s shares for
twe years Deferral operates as a strong retention tool

- Within five years of joining the Board, all Executrve Directars must awn shares
witha value of at least one and a half times their basic salary and, inthe case of
the Chief Executive, twice his basic salary [n practical terms, at current taxrates,
our Chief Executive 15 required to hold shares with a value in excess of fourtimes
fus net annual basic salary

Fixed and Vanable Pay

Inthe year under review, each of the Executive Directors' remuneration comprised
the following elements of fixed and vanable pay, shown as a praportion of basic pay

FIXED AND VARIABLE PAY CHART &0

Components of Variable Remuneration and Performance
Criterian 2011/2012

Executive Directar remuneration comprises fixed pay, which includes basic salary,
pension allowance and benefits in kind and variable pay comprising bonus and
participation in the Company’s Long Term Incentive Plans

(1) Bonus Arrangements
The bonus arrangements for Executive Directors compnise three elements

The first 15 the ‘Annual Bonus' and 1s based an the achievement of business
targetsthat vary between Executive Directors, witha maximum award of 100% of
basic salary The second isa*Discretionary Bonus' paying up to 50% of basic salary
and designed to reward an exceptional achievement or the establishment or
successful execution of a key nitiative neither of whichwould be futly reflected by
the Annual Bonus mecharism The third element rewards an cutstanding total
return performance relative 1o key IPD benchmarks with the award of up to 200%
of basicsalary

The first two elements are subject to an overall aggregate cap of 130% of basic
salary, with the overall amount capped at 300% of basic salary
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Annual Bonus

Executive Directors may receive a bonus of up to 100% of salary, with 80% of that
based on the performance aga:nst key targets for the areas of the business for which
they areresponsible The Committea calibrates the targets for each Executive
Director so that the achievernent of amaximum payout under this part of the bonus
arrangements would represent performance in excess of the Group budget and
indivedual targets These targets are considered at and approved by the full Board
The remaining 20% 15 based upon the achievernent of objectively measurable,
personal key performance Largets, incommeon with every employee within

the Group

All targets are set at the beginning of the year At present, 25% of any bonus
awarded under this heading 1s automatically deferred into the Company's shares
andreceives a Matching Performance Share Award under the terms of the
Company’s Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

The bonus criteria for the year under review 15 set out in section 3, together
withindividual Directors’ perfermance against those targets For the coming year,
the critena for annual bonuses for alt Executive Directors are based on the
Company's relative performance against IPD, its performance against targets
for revenue profit and on the achievement of key business targets These are
explaned in detailon p21 In additson, each Executive Director has a number
of abjectively measureable personal targets

Discretionary Bonus for Exceptional Performance
If shareholders approve the changes to remuneration set out in the circular
attached to this annual report, the Discretionary Bonus will be withdrawn for
Executive Directors with effect fremn the beginning of the 2012/13 financial year

Executive Directors have also been eligible to participate ina discretionary
bonus poel available for all employees if they are selected to participate by the
Commuittee, the award will usually be in the range of 5-30% of salary, though
inexceptional circumstances can be up to 50% of basic salary

Following feedback from sharehalders, the Commuttee set critersa for the
award of discretionary bonuses, which will only be awarded by the Committee
where there has been exceptional achievementin a specific area or the
establishment or successful execution of a strategicinitiative The maximum
award from this element of the bonus poolis £500,000, in aggregate, for all
Executive Directors

The Company operates a separate discretionary bonus pool open to all
employees other than Executive Cirectors, details of which are set out in section S
The aggregate amount of the pool is £1m, with awards normally made to no more
than 10% of the Group's employees The awards are not capped, but are usually
not more than 30% of basic salary and are made on the basis of an exceptional
single achievement or outstanding all round performance

Additional Bonus Opportunity
If shareholders approve the changes to remuneration set out inthe arcular
attachedto this Annual Report, the Additional Bonus Opportunity will be
withdrawnwith effect from the beginning of the 2012/13 financial year

This part of Executive Directors’ annual bonus opportunity is intended to
reward exceptional outperformance and creation of value for shareholders
Any award will be made as a result of material outperformance of the industry
performance benchmark, not as a result of a general increase in the value of
property assets

Total Property Return {TPR) was chosen as a key performance measure for the
nvestment portfolio element of the business because it 1s used both internally and
externally within the property sectorasa measurernent of relative performance
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The purpose of the additienal bonus is to encourage Executive Directors to strive
for matenal outperformance every year The Committee designed the bonus
targets that applied to this element of the Executive Directors’ bonus opportunity
sathat the performance targets are sigrificantly above that required for other
bonus opportunities, with outperformance of the IPD benchmark by more than 2%
being required before any paydut 1s made, with the maxirmum payout requinng
outperformance of 4% Any payout s conditional upon the relative performance in
the following year exceeding the IPD benchmark or delivering outperformance over
the two years of at least 1% per annum Accordingly, the Commuttee's assessment
for any award under this category includes a forward looking measure so that
ne bonus payments will be made until the subsequent year's outturn for TPR
performance becomesavallable

For the year under review, the relevant benchmark for Richard Akers s the
Retail business total property returnand for Robert Noel, the relevant London
business total property return The relevant benchmark for Francis Salway and
Martin Greenslade (s the aggregate of the London and Retail business

50% of any award will be deferred into the Company’s shares for twa years,
which means that vesting takes place three years from the year to which the
bonusrelates

(i) Long Term Incentive Share Plans

Long Term Incentive Plan Awards

In the year under review, each Executive Director received a conditronal award
of shares of 100% of salary, which was inLine with the Committee’s current

grant policy

Matching Performance Share Plan Awards
In addition, Matching Performance Share Awards are available to Executive
Directors on the basis of their investment in the Company's shares These awards
are subject to the same performance criteria as for LTIP awards

25% of any cash bonus awarded to an Executive Director in relation to his
performance against business urut and personal targets is automatically deferred
into the Company’s shares (on a pre-tax basis) and attracts a Matching
Performance Share Award This consists of an award of two shares for every one
share commutted in thisway

Executive Directors may increase the number of shares committed toa
maximurn of 50% of their salary {calculated on a pre-tax basis} by purchasing
shares inthe market out of taxed income or using existing unpledged shares
Any pledged shares will attract a Matching Performance Share Award on atwo for
one basis so that the maximum Matching Performance Share Award is equivalent
to 100% of salary The calculation of Matching Performance Share Awards is made
ona pre-tax basis so, assurming a personal tax rate of 50%, a purchase of 25 shares
out of net income will be “grossed up” to 50 shares and attract a Matching
Performance Share Award of 100 shares, subject to the achievement of the relevant
vesting conditions

Perfarmance Criter:a for Long Term Incentive Plan and Matching Performance
Share Awards

Awards of LTIP Performance Shares and Matching Performance Shares are subject
tothe same performance canditions, for all reaipients, and are measured over

3 years by the Committee and are designed to reward outperformance Thereisno
re-testing of these awards, so that if the targets are not met on first testing, the
awards lapse
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&elatrve Ungeared Total Property Return (TPR)
Half of any award will vest based on the Group's Ungeared TPR equalling or
exceeding the IPD weighted indices that reflect the sectormix of Land Securities’
investment portfolio
The target range for this measure s
- Performance equal to the sector weighted IPD index—12 5% of the award vests
- Performance equal to the sector weighted IPD index + 1% per annum - 50% of
the initial award vests
- Straight line vesting occurs between these points
- Performance below the sector weighted IPD index — the 50% proportion of the
LTIP grant will lapse in full

Ungeared TPR was chosen as a key performance measure for the investment
portfolio elerment of the business because it 1s used both internally and externally
within the property sector as a measurement of relative performance The measure
does not reward general movements in the value of commercial property, only
outperformance Outperformance of this measure can create considerable value
for Shareholders On the basis of a portfolio valued at

£10 5 billion, an average 1% pa relative outperforrnance across the portfolio over
three years would generate approximately £315 mullion of value beyond that
created by the equivalent value of property in the sector weighted index

UNGEARED TPR PERFORMANCE CONDITION

(% OF OVERALL LTIP GRANT VESTING) (UNAUDITED) TABLE 61
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Retative Total Shareholder Return (TSR)
The remawrung 50% of the vesting criteria s based on Land Secunties’ three year
TSR performance (share price increase plus reinvested dividends) cormnpared against
anindex formed by weighting the TSR performance of the property companies
within the FTSE 350 Real Estate Index by ther market capitalisations at the
beginning of the performance period (excluding Land Secursties)
The TSR measure has been adopted by the Commuttee as it aligns tha interests
of Executive Durectors with those of shareholders by targeting outperformance of
the Company’s comparator group of isted property companies
The target range for this measure s
- Performance equat to the comparator group —15% of the award vests
- Performance equal to the comparator group + 4% per annum - 50% of the
initial award vests

- Straight Line vesting eceurs between these points

- Performance below the comparater group — the 50% propartion of the LTIP
grant will [apse n full

Based on amarket capitalisation of £5 5 billion, an average 4% relative
outperfarmance of TSR over three years would generate approximately £700
mullion of value far Shareholders beyond that achieved by our comparator group

TSR VESTING CURVE

(% OF OVERALL CRANT VESTING) (UNAUDITED) TABLE 62
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The Group’s comparator groups for the beginning of each 3 year period from 1 April
2009 are set out below

COMPARATOR GROUPS (UNAUDITED) TABLE 63
Comparator Growups 1April 2009 1April 2010 1 Apeil 2011 1Apeil 2012
TheBnitshiand

Company PLC v v v v
Big Yeltow Group PLC v v v %
Capital and Counties - -

Properties PLC v v v
Capital Shopping Centres

Group PLC s v v
Daejan Holdings PLC v R4 v v
Derwent London PLC v v v v
F&C Commercial )

Property Trust Lirmited A 4 v Y
Grainger PLC v v _ v
Great Portland Estates

PLC v v v v
Hammersan PLC v T v t v
Hansteen Holdings PLC ) v v v
Hebieal Bar PLC v v T
Liberty lnterEatlonal PLC v - ) _- )
London and Stamford

Group PLC v v v 4
Segro PLC v v v v
Shaftesbury PLC v R v o
5t Modwen Properties

PLC v v v
UK Commercial P;ope;ty S

Trust Limuted A R v b4 g
UNITE Group PLC v v -

The following tables llustrate the performance of awards made under the Group's
long term incentive plans over the last five years The first shows the actual
performance of awards vesting between Jure 2008 and March 2012 The vesting
cniteria for these awards was based equally on the Group’s performance against
Ungeared TPR and Normalised Adjusted Diluted Earrungs Per Share, an adjusted
garnings per share measure which was replaced by the TSR measure following the
disposal of our Tnllum business

Forawards made in 2009 and vesting after Apnl 2012, the Group adopted
a new performance measure, based on the Group’s performance against TPR
and TSR

Table 65 shows the approximate performance of LTIP and Matching
Performance Share Awards that would have vested between the years 2008 and
2011 had the current TPR and TSR performance conditions been in place for that
period The figures are for illustrative purposes only and assumae that the
comparator group for 2011/12 1s the same for the whole of that peniod Spot prices
at the beginning and end of each period are used for these purposes, as cpposed
tothe 30 day averages used to calculate the performance of actual awards

Forawards granted in June and July 2009, the Group outperformed s sector
weighted IPD index by an average of ¢ 62% per annum, causing 35 9% of
the award to vest Based on a portfolio value of £9,406 million on 1 Apr 2009,
the value of this outperformance equates to approximately £180 million of value
created for shareholders in excess of our IPD sector benchmarks over the period

Forthe same peniod, the Group's TSR was 58 81%, outperforming its
comparator group n terms of TSR by 4 22% and causing the maximum, 50%, of
the award to vest Based on our market capitalisation of £3 2 billiorion 1Aprl
2009, the outperformance created approximately £422 mullion of value over and
above that of our comparator group over the peniod The TSR calculation 15 carmned
out by the Commuittee’s ndependent benefits adviser, New Bridge Street

Intotal, 85 9% of the award will vest in June {LTIP}and July (LTIP Matching
Performance Shares) 2012

For awards granted i 2010, the Group's performance over the two years to
31 March 2012 would, if sustained over the three year penod, result n 74 2% of the
share awards vesting Forawards granted in 2011, performance over the one year
peniod to 31 March 2012 would, if sustained over the second and third years of the
penod, resultin 50% of share awards vesting

PERCENTAGE OF LTIP AND MATCHING PERFORMANCE SHARE AWARDS ACTUALLY VESTING DURING THE LAST 5 YEARS (UNAUDITED) TABLE 64
Vasting of LTI awards Parcantape of award vasting
Yaarof grant Performance Period TPR NADEPS TSR Total
2005 Apnl 2005 to March 2008 50% 50% - 1000%
2006 Apnl 2006 to March 2009 42 50% 0% - 925%
2007 - Apnl 2007 to March 2010 50% 0% - S00%
2008 o Apnl200BtoMarch2011 2750% 0% - 275%
2009 Apnl 2009 6 March 2012 35 90% - 50% 85 9%

ILLUSTRATIVE PERCENTAGE OF LTIP AND MATCHING PERFORMANCE SHARE AWARDS VESTING BETWEEN 2008 AND 2011

{ASSUMING THE CURRENT TPR/TSR PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS HAD BEEN IN PLACE)

(UNAUDITED) TABLE 65

Vasting of LTIP awards Percentage of award vsung
Yaarof grant Performance Period TPR TSR Total
2005 April 2005 to March 2008 ) 50% 0% 500%
2006 ) Aprl2006toMarch2009 T S - 23% 655%
2007 Apnl 2007 to March 2010 50% 0% 500%
2008 i Apnl 2008 to March 2011 27 50% o% 275%
Land Securities Annual Report 2012 B9
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The maximum number of shares which could potentially vest as a result of histonc
long-term incentive awards and the number of shares whrch vest in the financial
year are shown in Table 72

The vesting criteria for LTIP and Matching Share awards to senior managers
are the same as sat out above

(w) Deferred Bonus Share Plan
Where part of a bonus s deferred into the Company's shares, those shares are held
withinthe Company's employee benefit trust and are auternatically transferred to
Executive Directors on the second or third anniversary of the grant date, depending
on the nature of the award, provided that they remain employed by the Company
onthat date, or otherwise meet other critena setout in the rules of schemne

The proceeds of any dividends aceruing on the deferred shares are used to
purchase shares, with those additional shares transferred to the Executive Director
onvesting

(1) Clawback Arrangements

Subject to the approval of Shareholders and with effect from the 2012/13 year,

the Remuneration Commuttee will have discretton to recover the value of any
overpaid awards of Annual Bonus and/or LTIP/Matching Performance Share Awards
where the overpayment was made as a result of the misstatement of the
Company's results or a performance condition which caused the overpayment

The recovery will be made against future bonuses and unvested share awards and,
to the extent permitted, from Deferred Bonus Shares This ‘clawback’ wall apply

to awards made to Executsve Directors and to Senior Managers

(v) Pension Arrangements
The Group operates a money purchase pension scheme which was introduced for
all sxaff jorming the Group from 1 January 1999 Pnor to the introduction of the
money purchase arrangement, the Group provided pension benefits ona defined
benefit basis

Follewing areview of pension provision inlight of a series of legislative
changes, it was decided that Executive Directors would continue to be entitled
toreceve a pension allowance, or cash, equivalent to 25% of their base salary

Richard Akers participates in the Group’s defined benefit pension schermne
which was open to property management and adeministration staff until
31Decernber 1998 This scheme was designed to provide a pension of 1/60th of
Pensionable Salary for each year of pensionable service at normal retirement age
The benefits provided to Mr Akers are based on a Pensionable Salary which is
subject toa cap, based on the former statutory earmings cap Witheffect from
1April 2006, the defined benefit pension scherne has moved to future accrual on
a'CARE’ (Career Average Revalued Earnings) basis, on either a 1/80th accrualora
1/60th accrual subject to employee contributions To date, Mr Akers has elected
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to accrue benefits on a 1/60th basis with emnployee contributions of 5% of basic
salary Where the amount of the Group'’s deemed contribution is tess than

25% of Mr Akers' base salary, the balance ts paid to hirmin the form of a pension
allowance orin cash Table 75 iltustrates the accrued value of Mr Akers® defined
benefit pension He wll cease to be an actrive member of this scheme in 2012/13
and will recerve a pension allowance instead of contnbutions to the schemne

{vnfshare Options
The Company had historically operated share option arrangements for Executive
Oirectors, with vesting subject to performance testing New awards ceased to be
made to Executive Directors followang the adoption of the LTIP 1n 2005

The Committee determined that the performance cnteria had been met for
grants made over the period 2002 to 2004 and as aresult the executive share
aptions granted during that period have not lapsed and are exercisable in full for
10 years fromthe grant date Directors’ options over ordinary shares are shown
inTable76

(wn) Savings-Related Share Option Scheme

All employees, including Executsve Directors, are invited to participate in the

Company's Savings-Related Share Option Scheme The scheme s designed to

align the interests of employees with the longer term nterests of shareholders and

provide certain tax benefits for our employees Onjoining, participants make an

election for the scheme to mature on either the 3rd, Sthor 7th anniversary of them

Joming and may contnibute up to £250 per month On maturity, participants are

eligible to purchase newly allotted shares from the Company at a discount

of approximately 20% to the market price of the shares at the commencerment of

the participant joiming the scheme or recerve the cash with any accrued interest
Shareholders will be asked to renew authority for this scheme at the

corming AGM

Shareholding Guidelines for Directors

The Committee believes that it 1simpartant for a significant investment to be
made by each Executive Director in the Group's shares so that each Executive
Director'sinterest in the growth and performance of the Group 15 closely aligned
with the interests of our shareholders The Commuttee has, therefore, established
share ownership guidelines for the Group’s Executive and Non-executive Directors

These guidelines require the Chief Executive to own shares with a value equal
to twice s base salary and for other Executive Directors to own shares with a value
equal to one and ahalf imes their base salary An Executive Director must normally
satisfy the guidelines within five years of his date of appointment in order to qualify
for future awards of long-term incentives |In determining their compliance with
these requirements, Executive Directors are entitled to include unvested share
awards made to therwithout performance conditions
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In May 2007, the Committee determined that Francis Salway had met the revised
share ownership guidelines and in May 2010 the Committee agreed that Martin
Greenslade and Richard Akers had met the revised guidelines In May 2011 the
Committee agreed that Robert Noel had also met the guidetines Following his
appointment as the Group's Chief Executive on 1Apnl 2012, Mr Noel will have
five years to meet the ownership guidelines for his new position

In addition, Non-executive Directors are required to own shares with avalue
equal to their annual fees within three years of the date of their appointment In
May 2012, the Comrmittee determined that all Non-executive Directors in placeat
the time had complied with this requirement, with the exception of Stacey Rauch
who hasuntil 1 January 2015 to comply

The Committee monitors the Directors’ progress against the guidelmes as
at 31March of every year, using the share price at the close of business that day

Dilution effect of the Group's share mncentive schemes

Awards granted under the 2005 Long-term Incentive Plan, which covers LTIP and
Matching Performance Share awards and Deferred Bonus Share awards and the
2005 Executive Share Option Plan, which covers employees below Board and
senior managernent level, are met through the funding of an Employee Benefit
Trust admimistered by an external trustee which acquires shares in the market
The Employee Benefit Trust held 2,355,235 shares at 31 March 2012

The exercise of share options under the Group’s Savings-Related Share
Option Scheme, which 1s open to all employees who have completed six months’
service with the Group, 1s satisfied by the allotment of newly 1ssued shares At
31March 2012, the total number of shares which could be allotted under this
scheme was 619,309 shares, which represented less than 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company

3. Payments to Executive Directors, their
Service Contracts and Shareholdings

Directors’ Emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2012

Table 72 sets out Directors' emeluments for the financial year ended 31 March
2012 Thebasis of disclosure 1s on an*accruals’ basis, that 1s, the annual bonus and
Deferred Bonus Shares columns include the amount that will be paid and awarded
respectively for performance achieved in the financial year under review

There follows a detailed breakdown of the indnidual payments accruing
to Directors during the year under review
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Francis Salway, Chief Executive

During the year, Francis Salway retired from his position as Chief Executive and left
the Group on 31March 2012 [n January, the Commuttee met to discuss whether it
would treat Mr Salway as a ‘good leaver’ n accordance with the Company’s share
scheme rules thereby allowing some or all of his outstanding share awards to vest
early, but still subject to performance conditians

Inrecogntion of hisachievements during nearly eight years as Chief Executive
and eleven years with the Group and his assistance during the process to appomt
and hand over to hissuccessor, the Comm ttee considered Mr Salway a good leaver
Inevery sense

The Committee permitted the early vesting of LTIP and Matching Performance
Share Awards granted to Mr Salway in 2009, which would ordisarily have vested
shortly after his leaving, in june and July 2012, had he remained employed by the
Group Vesting remained subject to performance testing The Committee also
approved the early vesting of Mr Salway's 2010 and 2011 Deferred Bonus Shares,
which were purchased using cash from bonuses previously awarded to him for past
performance and did not have any performance conditions attaching to them
MrSalway's 2040 and 2011 LTIP and Matching Performance Share Awards and
all outstanding Share Option awards have now lapsed

The TPR proportion of the vesting criteria was calculated as at 30 September
2017, on the basis of a valuation prepared by our valuers, Krught Frank, the outcome
of whichwas published by the Group inits interim results That date was chosen
as it was the most recent date upon which the Group's portfolio had been
independently valued

The TSR element of the award was calculated as at 29 February, being the
latest practicable date for calculation, by the Committee’s independent advisers,
New Bridge Street The outcomne of the performance testing resulted in 154,952
LTIP and Matching Performance Shares and 42,554 Deferred Bonus Shares to vest,
withvalues of £1 42m and £310,000respect vely

In line with the policy of the Group applicable to all employees, the
Commuittee agreed to allow Mr Salway to be considered for an annual borwus as he
had been employed by the Group for thewhole of the financial year Mr Salway's
annual bonus was calculated aganst anumber of Group and personal targets
A maximum bonus of 80% of salary was dependent on the Group’s performance
against revenue profit, totat property return, development lettings and planning
applicationtargets The Committee scored his achiavement at 55 2% against the
maximum 80% of salary

The remaining 20% was calculated on the basis of a number of specificand
measurable personal targets which included the development of his direct reports,
with Mr Satway awarded a score of 18 2% of amaximum 20% of salary

The overall outcome was abonus of 73 4% of salary, which led to acash
bonus of £481,000 (2011 £757,000) He was not awarded a Discretionary or
Additional Bonus
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The figures were agreed by a specially convened meeting of the Committee held in
March 2012 and required some estimation of the likely position at year end Had
the performance conditions been calculated once the final nformation had
become available, the overall payments to Mr Salway would have been higher

Mr Salway did not recerve any pay in lieu of notice or any other payment
beyond those set out above

Inaddition, Mr Salway received 22,645 shares in respect of LTIP and Matching
Performance Share Awardswhich vested in the usual way duning 2011/12, witha
value of £161,000 and 52,005 Deferred Bonus Shares with a value of £337,000

Mr Salway was a Non-executive Director of Next PLC for the whole of the year
under review, for which he received fees of £50,000 The Nominations Committee
perritted hum to retain these fees His role at Next PLC 1s considered inthe
Corporate Governance Report

Martin Greenslade, Chief Financial Officer

The Committee awarded Martin Greenslade a salary increase of 5 75% to
£460,000, which willbecome effective ori 1 July 2012 The nse reflects both his
perfarmance in his role and the increased responsibility brought about by Franais
Salway leaving the Group and a restructuring within the Group's finance function
that will bring about orgamisational changes Over the last 5 years, the average
annwal increase awarded to Mr Greenslade was 2 7% (inctuding this increase}

His salary had fallen behind the median for the comparator group of property and
utility comparues and some way below the median for companies with a similar
rarket capitabisation

Mr Greenslade's annual bonus was calculated on the basis of achievernent
against a number of Group and personal targets The targets relating to the Group
performance were the same as those set for Francis Salway and the outcome,

55 2% of salary as against a maximum 80%, was also the same

Mr Greenslade’s personat targets included overseeing new funding
arrangernents for the Group and jeint ventures, restructuring the finance and
company secretarial departments, ensuring a new forecasting systemwas
implemented across the business and helping deliver a best in class investor
relations programme He was scored at 15 7% out of amaximum of 20%

In accordance with the terms of the discretionary bonus arrangement, the
Commuttee awarded Mr Greenslade a discretionary bonus of £100,000, equating
to 23% of salary Thisreflects his exceptional achievernent in leading the
refinancing of the Group's £11 billion revolving credit facilities on favourable terms
in averydifficult market The terms negotiated strengthen the Group's balance
sheet and will provide the Group withreal competitive advantage for anumber of
yearsto carme Thisachievernent was not fully reflected in the Annval Bonusplan

Mr Greenstade’s overall bonus was 93 9% of salary, which equates to
£408,000 (2011 £316,000) Ofthus, £331,000 witl be paid in cashand the balance,
£77,000, will be deferred into shares for three years

LTIF and Matching Performance Share Awards over 14,428 shares vested
during the year with a value of £103,000 and 31,076 Deferred Bonus Shares also
vested, witha value of £214,000

Robert Noel, Managing Director, London Portfolio

Robert Noel became the Group's Chief Executive on 1Apni 2012, with the
Committee award:ng him a salary of £680,000 The Committee set the salary
having taken advice from New Bridge Street This salary equals the basic salary of
the outgoing Chief Executive, plus a cost of iving increase of 2 2% as his salary wall
not be reviewed until 1 July 2013 Thislevel of salary 1s considered appropriate given
Mr Noel’s calibre and expenence and after taking due account of salary levels for
chief executivesin compames of a similar size and complexity To provide adegree
of context, the proposed salary s at around 95% of the median benchmark
considered for similar sized property and utility companses and at around 80%

of the median benchmark considered for similar sized FTSE 100 companies
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Mr Noel's annual borus was calculated on the basis of achievement against targets
set for the performance of the London Portfolio and a number of personal targets
Amaximum bonus of 80% of salary was dependent on the London Portfolio’s
performance targets for total property return, revenue profit, progress with the
London Portfolio’s extensive development programme, development lettings,
planning applications and stakeholder measures Mr Noel scored 57 8% out of a
maximum of 80%

Mr Noel's personal targets included the development of direct reports,
key operational targets mcluding specific milestones within the development
programme and community iniiatives, and were scored at 18 5% out of a
maximum of 20%

In accordance with the terms of the discretionary bonus arrangement, the
Committee awarded Mr Noel a discretionary bonus of £65,000, equating to 15 3%
of salary This reflected his exceptional performance in achieving a number of
milestones within the London Portfolic Theseincluded the successful creation of
the Victoria Circle joint venture and the disposals of Arundel Great Court and Eland
House which have reduced rnisk in the London Portfolio leaving it well placed for
success in the coming years This achievernent was not fully reflected in the Annual
Bonus plan

Mr Noel's overall bonus was 91 6% of salary, which equates to £389,000
(2011 £427,000) Of this £308,000 will be paidin cash and the balance, £81,000,
will be deferred into shares for three years

As part of the package to recruit Mr Noel to the Board as Managing Director of
the London Portfolio from 1 January 2010, Mr Noel was granted an award of shares
which broadly matched the long-termincentrve awards he left behind at his
previous employer This award was descnbed inthe last year's report and was
structured to reflect the iming and likelihood of vesting of thase share awards
Inrelation to quantum it was agreed that these awards would not be subject to
performance condiions but the vatue would be scaled back to reflect assumptions
inrelation to the likelihood of vesting

34,000 shares of Mr Noel's award vested in 2010, with a further award
of 46,000 shares vesting during the year under review at avalue of £387,000
The final award of B0,000 shares s due tovest in June 2012 Had Mr Noel left the
employment of the Company prior to vesting, he would have forfeited the balance
of the award

Mr Noel did not have any other share awards vesting inthe year

Richard Akers, Managing Director, Retail Portfolio

The Committee awarded Richard Akers a salary increase of 2 5% to £410,000
which will become effective on 1 july 2012 Over the last 5 years, the average
annualincrease awarded to Mr Akers has been 2 4% (including this increase)

Mr Akers’ annual bonus was calculated on the basis of achievement against
targets set for the performance of the Retail Portfolio and a number of personal
targets Amaximum bonusof 80% of salary was dependent onthe Retail
Portfobio's performance against targets for total propertyreturn, revenue profit,
development lettings, planning applications and land acquisition targets, asset
management initiatives and stakeholder measures Mr Akers scored 61 8% out
of amaxirmum of 80%

Mr Akers’ personal targets included objectives to burld talent within the Retail
business, the growth of the Croup’s out of town development programme, specific
property sales, progression of the Group's new development programmeand a
variety of other profit generating inttiatives Mr Akers scored 16 0% out of a
maximum of 20%

Mr Akers' overall bonus was 77 8% of salary, which equates to £311,000 (2011
£330,000) Of this £233,000 will be paidin cash and the balance, £78,000, willbe
deferred into shares for three years
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Inaddition, as the performance of the Retail Pertfolio in the 2610/11 financial year
exceeded the relevant IPD sector benchmark by 2 9%, Mr Akers became entitled to
an Additional Bonus of £342,000, 90% of his then salary {half payable in cash and
half in deferred shares), subject to the performance cnitena for the subsequent
year's performance also being met That performance criteria has now been met
so that payment of the Additional Bonus, in respect of 2010/11, will become due in
June 2012

In the year under review the Retail Portfolio again outperformed the relevant
iPD benchmark, this time by 2 5% If the performance criteria for the coming year
15 met, Mr Akers will be entitled to receve an addittonal bonus of £200,000, being
50% of his current salary Half of thiswill be paid in cashin June 2013 and the other
half deferred into shares for a further two years

LTIP and Matching Performance Share Awards over 10,409 shares vested
during the year, with avalue of £74,000 and 33,036 Deferred Bonus Shares with
avalue of £268,000 Mr Akers also exercised an historic share option award with
avalue of £6,000

Mr Akers became a Non-executivee Director of Barratt Developments PLC
on2 April 2012 The Norminations Committee has permitted hmta retain his
director’s fees which are expected to ben the region of £40,000 per annum

DATES OF APPOINTMENT

FOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS TABLE 66
Name Date of appointmaent Date of contract
FW Salway 2April01 _ 3May01
MF Greenslade 15eptember 05 15eptember 05
R) Akers . 17 May 05 17 May 05
R MNael ) ) o 1]3;1uary10 23January1_2

*Data of appointment ta the Board of Land Securities Group PLC or 1ts predecessar company Land Securities PLC

Key features of Directors’ Service Agreements

The Commuttee’s policy on service agreements for Executive Directors s that they
should prowide for 12 months' rolling notice of termination by either party Asa
result, the unexpired term and the notice periods (both from the Company and
fromeach Executive Director) are 12 months The dates of appointment and the
dates of the service agreements of the Executive Directors are set out above

The service agreements for Martin Greenslade and Richard Akers, which have
been in place since 2005, contain a provision whereby if either of them s given
notice to terminate his employment by the Company, he will be considered for
a bonus in the usual way and at the usual time following the relevant bonus year

HISTORICAL TSR PERFORMANCE A HYPOTHETICAL £100 HOLDING OVER FIVE YEARS (UNAUDITED)
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subject to a munimum bonus ameunt of 10% of basic salary pro-rated toreflect the
number of months of the bonus year prior to the service of notice of termnation

Therr service agreements also include provisions entitkng them to be
contractually treated as 'good leavers’ for the purposes of the Company’s share
schemes inthe event of them being dismissed In those aircumstances, they would
be entitled to receive the time pro-rated vesting of all outstanding share awards,
subject to performance testing Mr Akers and Mr Greenslade have been in talks
with the Company to amend the provisions dealing with compensation on
termination to bring them into ine with nstitutional guidelines, however these
discussions were put on hold pending the outcome of the recent Government
consultation on executive remuneration

Any proposals for the early termination of the service agreements of Executive
Chrectors or seruor executives are considered by the Committee

The service agreements of the Executive Directors provide for phased
payments of amounts payable on termination, inorder to mitigate amounts
potentially payable by the Company The Company does not make any
arrangements that guarantee pensions with imited or no abatement on severance
or early retirement

The Chairman and the Non-executive Directors do not have service
agreements with the Company

14043Y4,S40L2341a

Directors’ Shareholdings

The interests of the Directors in the shares of the Company as at 31March 2012
are shown in Table 74
There have been no changes in the shareholdings of the Directors between
the end of the financial year and 17 May 2012, save that Alison Carnwath, Martin
Greenslade and Stacey Rauch acquired 1,302,968 and 59 shares respectively under
the Company’s Scnp Dividend Scheme or the reinvestment of their cash dividends
No Director had any other interests in contracts or securities of the Company
or any of its subsidiary undertakings duning the year

Performance Graphs

Asrequired by legislation covering the Directors’ remuneration report, Table 67
below illustrates the performance of the Company measured by total shareholder
return (share price growth plus dividends paid) against a 'broad equity market
index’ over a period of five years As the Company is a constituent of the FTSE

All Share Real Estate sector this index s considered to be the most appropriate
benchmark for the purposes of the graph An additional Line toillustrate the
Company’s performance compared with the FTSE 100 index over the previous
five years, 1s also included

CHART 67

53
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4. Fees Paid to Non-executive Directors

NED PAY IN 2011112 (£°000) (UNAUDITED) TABLE 68

received Fess 11132 Fees 12113
A]Carnwath 300 300 300
DRough T Tma = Taa e
SRose T 60 o0 &0
KO'Byrme 77 78 88
CBartra_m CooTTTrme T -_60 U &0 . “50
Spalley 7 7 e 80 73
SRauch* T T T T 7T s T e 6B
Blerenws*™ T 0T 2T T D
CBland*™* T < T
Total 591 701 701

* Appointed 1January 2012
**Retired 21 July 20M

The annual fees of the Chairman of the Board and Non-executive Directors are
determined by the Board, having regard to independent advice The Board also
takes into account the time commitments of the Nen-executive Directors, which
arereviewed annually as part of the Board appraisal process During the year,
no increases to the Chairman's fee of £300,000 or to the base Non-executive
Drectors’ fee of £60,000 were proposed These have remained unchanged
since Novemnber 2008 and October 2009, respectwvely

No additional fees are payable for attendance at Board or Committes
meetings or for membership of Board Commuttees, but additional fees outlined
below are payable in respect of specificresponsibilities

ADDITIONAL NED FEES (UNAUDITED) TABLE 69
Chair of Audit Committee L §17,§00_
Charrof RemunerationCommuttee ~— £12500
Senior Independent Director £10,000

Nerther the Charman nor the other Non-executive Directors receive any pension
benefits from the Company, nor do they participate in any bonus or incentive
schemes Non-executive Directors are appointed under letters of appointment
which provide for aninitial term of service of three years The dates of the current
letters of appointment of the Non-executive Directors are shown below

DATES OF NED APPOINTMENT

TOTHE BOARD {UNAUDITED) TABLE 70
Name Date of appointrment Date of contract
DRough ZApnl02 29 April 04
St T T aiwam T zsapios
AjCarwath " " 1september04  13Navember08
KO Byrne 1Apnl08 9Apnl 08
CBartram_ laugust0® 21[uly09
SPalley 0T T T Tavgestio T T2epulyt0
SRauch 777 1j;nuary12- 26 November 11

Date of appountment tothe Baard of Land Securrties Group PLC or fts predecessor company Land Secunties PLC
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The appointment of a Non-executive Director can be terminated, by either party,
upon one month's notice and the appointment of the Chairman on three months’
notice Theterms and conditions of appointment of the Non-executive Directors
are available for inspaction at tha Company’s registered office

Pay of Senior Managers
and Other Employees

Semior Managers

The Group currently employs 14 senior managers in positions below Board level
None of these semor managers receives a salary or total remuneration package
which:s higher than those paid to the Executive Directors The structure of therr
remuneration packages, including bonuses, 15 broadly consistent with that of
Executive Directors

The seruor managers generally have a bonus potential of up to 80% of annual
salary determined by a range of performance indicators Inaddition, they are
eligible to participate in the discretionary bonus pool described below

Six of the senior managers, who are responsible for the areas which impact the
most significantly on the results of the Group, are also eligible to participate in the
additional bonus opportunity for the delivery of exceptional financial returns, as
described above inthisreport, but at up to a maximum of 80% of annual salary
Thus bonus oppartunity will be replaced with an increased annual bonus potential
and an additional LTIP award should Shareholders approve the changes to
remuneration set out n the arcular accompanying thisannual report

Duning the year under review, bonuses for this group of employees ranged
from 49% to 84% of salary, with an average bonus of 61% (2011 76%)
of salary

Two of these employees receved additional bonuses in the year that related
to the performance of thair business units in the prior year Including these
payments would increase the upper end of the range from 84% to 142% and the
average to 69%

All Other Employees

All employees are entitled to participate in the Company’s bonus scheme which
awards between 20% and 80% of salary, depending on seniority, and to be
considered for anaward from the discretionary bonus pool of £1m, with awards
normally made to no more than 10% of the Group's employees The awards are
usually not more than 30% of basic salary and are made on the basis of an
exceptional single achievement or outstanding all round performance

tnaddition, allemployees are entitled to receive private health insurance,
permanent health insurance and a season t:cket loan all on exactly the same basis
as the Executive Directors

The ratio of the salary of our Chief Executive to the average salary across the
Group {excluding Directors)1s 12 1 (£665,000 £53,400}
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5. Changes Proposed to the
Remuneration Structure for 2012/1%

Background and Objectives for the Review

Following the appointment of Robert Noel as the Group's Chief Executive with

effect from 1 Apnl 2012, the number of Executive Directors reduced from four to

three Board responsibilities have beenre-shaped so that the roles of Executive

Directors align more closely with one another and focus on the Group as a whole,

as opposed to ndividual business units

In conunction with aur independent adwisers, New Bridge Street, the

Commuittee undertook a full review of its executive remuneration policy to take

into account these management changes, to address anumber of other issues

that had arnisen with our existing arrangements and to address developments

in institutional investors’ best practice expectations

The objectives of the review were to

- Align Executive Directors’ remuneration to the performance of the Group
asawhole

- Address feedback from shareholders who disliked the Company's use of
‘Discretionary’ ang ‘Additional’ bonuses

- Reducethe weight of utperformance of IPD and increase the weight of total
shareholder return within the package which will improve executive alignment
with shareholders

- Mantain outperformance of the industry benchmarks and our peers as the key
performance conditions, whilst ensuning that executives were not incentivised
totake undue risks

- Make the remuneration package more long term

- Implement changes to the Committee’s policy in one go, rather than make the
changes over a number of years

- Refresh shareholder authonuies for the existing SAYE and LTIP and Matching
Performance Share schemes which would otherwise expire in the coming years

Land Securities Annual Report 2012

Asummary of the Committee's proposals, whichwill apply to all Executive

Directors, appears below

OUR NEW EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION

PROPOSALS (UNAUDITED) TABLE 71
Incentiva Current policy Propesed policy
Annual Bonus 100% of basic salary 150% of basic salary
and Deferral (with 25% deferredinto (with the whole of any |
shares for 36 months)' amounts above 50%
and 100% automatically
deferred into shares
for one and two years,
respectwely} °
Discretionary Bonus Upta50%of basicsalary  Withdrawn E
(payable in cash)' §
Additional Bonus Upta 200% of Withdrawn ;
basic salary, for 3
outperformance of the 2
relevant London/Retail/
Group Benchmark of
between 2-4%'
LTIP Awards 100% of satary 150% of salary
Matching Performance  Upto 100% of basic Up to150% of basic
Share Award salary, subject to salary, subject to
purchasing or pledging purchasing or pledging

sufficient shares {which
may include Deferred
Bonus Shares)

sufficient shares (which
may ne longer include i
Deferred Bonus Shares)

Maximum Overall
Quantumn of Incentives

500% of basicsatary

450% of basic salary

1 Underthe current policy the amounts payablenrespect of Annual, Discretionary and Additienal bonuses are
capped at 300% of basi salary

Assessment of Performance Conditions

The Annual Bonus targets will be set and tested in the same way as described in
the Policy section of this report
The Committee considered, in great detai, whether the performance

conditions attaching to the shares awards should be changed, particularly inthe

light of the proposal to iIncrease awards Some of the dataused by the Committee !

inits assessment of the stretch within the existing targets is shown at tables 64 |

and 65 !
|
I

The degree of stretch in each metric was reviewed during the formulation of
our propasals and, in summary, the current targets were considered to remain
approprately stretching Interms of the IPD condition, given Land Securities’ size
relative to the sector weighted IPD benchmark, the Commuttee remains satisfred
that the current condition remains appropriately challenging Over the three-year
measurement period, maximum vesting requires the creation of more than £300m
of value over and above general movernents in the value of commercial property
within our sectors, based on the valuation of our portfolio at 31 March 2012

a5
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Similarly, requiring a 4% pa outperformance premium above the selected
companies in the FTSE 350 Real Estate Index for full vesting 1s amore demanding
test than atraditional TSR median to upper quartile test for most companies Land
Secunities would only have achieved full vesting of the TSR proportion of an award
oncewthin the last five years, had it been in operation for that peried, and would
have achieved 0% vesting for three of those five years

Akey consideration when determining the targets for 2012/13 was to ensure
that target and maximum total remuneration levels were around medsan market
practice when compared against appropriate benchmarks The Remuneration
Cornmuttee 1s comfortable that retaining the above targets achreves this objective
at the same time as requinng a greater investment in Land Secunities shares if the
full value of a Matching Performance Share Award s to be receved

Accordingly, noting the reduction in annual benus opportunity, retaming the
above targets for long term ncentive purposes 1s considered to remain appropriate

Although the Committee deaded not to alter the performance conditions for
the awards, 1t has decided to widen the total property return benchmark to include
Inner London along with Central London as this better reflects the spread of our
investment property portfolio inLondon Over the last five years, our data shows
that our returns would have been slightly weaker using the new benchmark Our
Retail portfolio benchmarks will remain the same
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Consultation

We shared our proposals withour largest 25 sharehiolders, whotogether hold
approximately half of the Company’s shares, and the two largest shareholder
representatrve bodies We discussed the proposals at length and met with
shareholders and investor bodies as required Therewas broad support for the
changes, with shareholders recognising that the proposed changes met the
Committee's objectives

The majority of shareholders recognised that the effect of the removal of the
discretionary and additional bonus elements and the reduction in overall quantum
leads to a better structure overall Although some shareholders questioned the
quantum of increase in LTIP shares with no increase in performance condition,
the Commuttee feels that the targets are sufficiently challenging

Some shareholders queried the Company's existing practice of permitting
annual bonus deferrals to attract Matching Performance Share Awards The
Comimittee agreed to withdraw this aspect from the initial proposals

Following feedback on the grant of Matching Performance Share Awards, the
Committee also agreed to implement changes which will encourage Executive
Directors to buld and maintain very significant shareholdings These grantswill
no lenger be made to match cash bonuses deferred to shares but will require
additional shares to be acquired or pledged mstead Currently, Executve Directors
are required to hold between one and a half and two times thewr salary in shares
within five years of their appointment Coing forward, once the five year period has
elapsed, the Committee will require Executive Directors to pledge shares over and
above the shareholding requirement in order to receive a Matching Performance
Share Award {By way of example, in order to recerve a full Matching Performance
Share Award once our Chief Executive has been m post for seven years, he will be
required to hold shares with avalue of at least 6 25 times his net salary )

Finally, in reaction to feedback from one of the shareholder bodres the
Committee has agreed to increase deferral so that any bonus payment in excess
of 50% of salary 1s deferred into shares

Shareholder Approval

The proposals described above are subject to Shareholders approving amendments
to the rules of the Company's Long Term Incentive Plan at the Company's AGM on
tailed description of the changes to this plan is included within the
t accompanies this report

Adrian de Spuya
Group Generat ®ounsel and Company Secretary
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Tables

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (£'000) (AUDITED)

TABLE72

Total emolwments
{excluding contnbution

Basicsalaryand faes Benefits' Pansions allewance Bonuses paidi h*  Bonusesdeferred hares tapensionscheme)
20mhz 2000/1% 201112 2010/ 20mhz2 200011 20012 2010/ 20m12 2010f11 20mi2 2010/11
Executrve R o - .
FWSalway® 663 653 41 7 165 4 481 617 - 40 1350 1474
RjAkers 395 338 21 23 63 15 405 3\O 249 85 1133 a3
MFGreenslade 433 422 19 18 63 - 3131 237 77 79 %23 756
R M Noel 421 406 15N - o5 102 308 348 a1 82 930 " 945
1912 1859 % 75 396 158 1,525 1,529 407 386 4,335 4007
Non- Exec_utlve i B - . ; .
AlCarmwath 300 200 I - - 7. - - - 300 300
DRough 83 83 - - - - - - - - 83 83
SRose 50 &0 - - - - - - - - &0 60
Blerenius® T 18 60 - - - - To. - - 2 8 " 60
CBlang® 18 0 - - - - - - e : -
KOByrne 77 17 = 77T 7D T - - - -~ 777
CBartram &0 50 - - T Co- 60 6o
S Palley T 60 40 - - - -0 - - - - 80 T a0
SRauch (appoﬁtéa T o T - - ) ) o
1january 2012p 15 - 5 - - - - - - - 20 =
2,603 2,590 101 75 356 158 1525 1,529 407 386 5,032 4,747
Contributions made Deferred bonus LTIP andmatching
toapansion scheme sharesvested sharesvested Conditional shares vasted* Shareoptions axercisad
20mH2 2010/11 2011412 2610/M 20142 2010/ zomf2 2010/11 2011712 2000/
Executive - . .
FW Salway B T 1 122 647 61 1579 220 - - - -
R | Akers ) . 33 83 268 EY 74 130 - - s -
MF Greenslade - T 45 106 214 35 03 144 - - -
R M Noel ) - - B - "7 191 LTl
85 31 1,129 127 1756 494 387 191 I3 -
Notes
1 Benefitsconsist of the proviman of acempany caror car 2llowance privats medical e k s and heliday pay

2 R]Akerswes entiiled to 2n addiional banus of $0% of salary for the 2070/11 ﬁnan:lilyearnthe perfnrmam:e ofthe Retail Portfolio exceadad tha relevant IPDbenchmark by 2 9% for 2010711 and by 2 5% for 201112 Inaccordance with
hisentitiement halfof the payment s payable in cashin june 2012 with the balance deferred nto the Company sshares fora periodoftwoyears Hewall alsobe entitledto an addimonal banus for 26012713 if the Retail Portiolioexceedsthe
IPDbenchmarkin 2012/13 Underthis award ifthe performance cntena is met he would recesve £100 000 payable halfin cash and the balance beng deferred into shares for a further twoyears

RMNoel ded 160 000 Cond

|shares on b

wiaw

B Lerenius and C Bland retired from the Boardon 21 July 2011 Stacey Rauchwas appointed tathe Boarden 1 January 2012
tment tothe Board 34 000sharesvested at il considerationin June 2010 and 46 00O vested at il consideration in june 2071 BO 000 are due tovestin lune 2012
francis Salway retired from the Board on 31 March 2012 On retirement his awards over LTIP and Matching Shares made n 2009 which were due to vest on 29 June 2012 and 31 July 2012 respact ively were allowed to vest on 31 March 2012

He also received acash bonus in respect of the 2011112 year His Deferred Bonus Shares from 2010 and 2011 were released All other LTIP and Matching Share awards from 2010 and 2011 lapsed

Abenefitof £4 B44 accruedtoS Rauchinrelationto travel costs.

~-~m
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Pengions of EEB 072 {2010/11 £66 724) rexulting fram unfunded histonc benefit cbligatignswere paid to former Directors or their dependants

ar

140d3d,S20LD341a
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LTIP AND MATCHING PERFORMANCE SHARES AWARDED AND THOSE THAT VESTED THIS YEAR* (AUDITED) TABLE73
tarket prica Market price
Cycla Award at award Shares atdateof
ending date date[p)* swarded vested vesting {p} Vesting date
FW Salway o - N
-LTl-Pshares ) T - ; o ) ) ) ’ T o
’ T 2012 30/03/2009 095" 58914 16201 7115 30/03/2012
: 2012 29/06/2009 468 137,527 104,658 72729 31/03/2012
2013 29/068/2010 572 110,445 - - 2%/06/2013
. 2014 29/06/2011 B275 79,154 .- B - 29/06/2014*
—Matchmg shares
i T 2012 30/03/2009 1055 23434 6,444 7115 30/03/2012
2012 31/07/2009 s32 11882 0294 72729 310372012
T ) T T T T T T3 30/07/2010 613 107,854 - T o013
- T 2014 29/07/2011 861 33,836 - - zofotiz0n4
R ] Akers L o . ]
~LTIP shares o ) o
) . Tt 2012 30/03/2009 1095 25525 7019 7115 30/03/2012
2012 25/06/2009 468 79,446 25/06/2012
T - 7T T T013 20/08/2010 572 63801 o " 2or06/2013
o T 7T T4 29s0ei20m 8275 45921 T T T T zeimenon4)
-Matching shares T T L o _ . o ; B
i o 2012 30/03/2009 1095 12,330° 3390 7115 30/03/2012
) ) 012 31/07/2009 532 68,542 o _ 31/07/2012
o ° o7 oo 2013 30/07/2010 613 652620 30/07/2013
o o 7T TTa01a 2sf07/20m3 B51 47,254 TTTTTT Taar0ti2014
M F Greenslade o o } . o o
-LTIP shares T ’ o o
) S %012 30/03/2009 1095' 37318 10389 715 30/03/2012
] oo T 012 29/06/2009 468 88273 o 29/06/2012
) T o 2013 29/06/2010 572 70,890 ) 29/05/2013
0T 2014 29/06/201% 8275 51,359 29/05/2014
-M;tchmgshare; - . _—:— —::- ) ) : : ) -
T a1z 30/03/2009 1095 146541 4023 7115 310372012
o 2012 310772009 532 76,160 31/07/2012
i T 7 T013 30072010 613 70,046 i T T 3om72003
T ) ) T T 014 29f07/20M3 861 51580 T 7T T 7T Taojorions
R M Noel o o o _ _
‘LT"PSI:IBTES oo o ST o _ j o o - o )
2013 29/06/2010 572 68,493 29/06/2013
T T T w4 29/06720M 8275 49,305 29/06/2014
—Matching shares - o - o T
o _ T 3 3ojorz0w0 613 65,564 o _ " 30/p7/2013
” Tt 2014 29/07/2011 851 50,218 29/07/2014

*Subject to performance tests (see p87=54)
' Asadjusted for the Rights Issue i March 2009
! Lapsedon 31 March 2012
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Dwectors’ remuneration report

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES AT 31 MARCH 2012 (AUDITED) TABLE74
L¥IP matching

Ordinary shares Duferrad shares LTIP performance shares® perior chares® £ Lthareaward

2012 20m 2012 2 2012 2011 2012 201 2012 aon

A ] Carnwath 131,328 126,157 - - - - - - - -
FW Salway 472218 290676 - 74,776 - 306886 - 249950 - -
R Akers i 141,388 109,874 94,008 120456 189,168 168772 178,416 143492 - -
MF Greenslade 156,486 121,778 26626 48,291 210,522 196,978 197,786 160,860 - -
R MNoel 70740 43860 10127 - 117,798 88,493 115,782 65,564 80,000 126,000
D Raugh 18,524 18524 - - - - - - - -
S ARose i 16,250 16,250 - - T . - - - - -
S Palley i 16 408 16,250 - - - - - - - -
CBartram 9,253 9,253 - - - - - - - -
KO Byrne 11,516 11,350 - - - - - - - -
S Rauch** 6,000 - - - - - - - - -

* Subject toperformance conditions (see pB?—90)
™* $ Rauch held no shareson appointment

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEME {AUDITED) TABLE7S
Transfer value
Incressein Increaassin of ncrease
sccrued sccrusd i accrusd Tranafervaloe Transfer value Increasein
Accrued benefits benefits benefits of sccrued ofaccrued  trensfervalue
benefit at cludi Auding Auding benafl barwfitset net of
31 March 2012 Inflation* Inflation mflaton TApril20M IMMarch2012 Directors
£ £ £ £ £ [ contribatsons!
R ) Akers 36,749 2135 3,853 44,489 540,417 765626 218,729

Inflation as measuredbythe change inthe Consumer Price Index{ CFI ) between September 2010 and September 2011was § 2% overthis perod
! Directors contributions were E6 4B0
The Ir\cr:au In transferval.ue natof Directors cantributions differsfromthe Transfervalue of increase in accrued benefit inthatitreAects the changa nmarketconditions aver the year less the Dlrectors own contnbutlons to the gension scheme
The transfer valuesh, he baus of the actuanal advice inaccordance with the 2008 transfer value regulanons
The transfer values of the accrued | n respect of qualifying service rep thevalue of assets that the p e needtotransier her pension prowider on transferning the habdity in respect of the Directors pension
benefits that they eamed i respect ol qualifying rernvice. The'yd-o rotrepresent sums paryable Lo ndmdual Diurectors and, theretore unrm bt sdded meaningfully tssnaval remunention

DIRECTORS' OPTIONS OVER ORDINARY SHARES (AUDITED) TABLE 76
Granted duringysar Exarcised/(lapsad) during year*
Number of Grant Exwrcise Marketprica Number of Exercise
ophensat price price onwxercise ophions at price Exsrasable
Note 3103 Number (pamce) Nurmbar {pance) [panca) 3/03M2" [pence) dates
FW Salway @ 47,793 - - (47,793) - - - 1044 07/2007-07/2014
R Akers {1 11,652 - — 1,652 783 836 - - 07/2004-07/2011
) @ 8,500 - - - - - 8600 710 07/2006-07/2013
(2) 12,762 - - - - - 12,762 1044 07/2007-07/2014
3 (3) 4033 - - - - - 4033 388 06/2014-12/2014
MF Greenstade (3) 1,193 - - - - - 1,193 1372 12/2011-06/2012
Motes.
1 2000 Executive Share Option Scheme Vesung of Awards s dependent oa the Company s growth mnormll.:sed adpssted EPS exceeding the growthm RPI Dy 2 5% per year
2 2002 Executive Share Option Scheme Vesungol»\war\‘lslsdepemn:Dﬂ!he(ampanys h d adpsted EPS g the growth:RPI by at least 2 5% per year
3 2003 Savings Related Share Option Scheme Not subject to peris it s avaitable toallstaff and HM Revenye & Customs rules donot permut performance conditions for this type of scheme
4 Asadjuted for the Rightsissue InMarch 2099
5 Totalnumber of options held by Directors at 11 March 2012 was 26 588{2011 86 033)
6

The range of the closing muddle market prices for Land Secunities Group PLC ordinary shares dunng the year was 612 pence to B85S pence The closingshare pace on 30 March 2002 was 722 5pence
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Directors’ report

Report of the Directors additional disclosures

Share capital

Al the Company’s last Annual General Meeting (AGM), held on 21 July 2011,
shareholders authorised the Company to make market purchases of ordinary
shares representing up to 10% of itsssued share capital at that time and to allot
shares within certain limits permitted by shareholders and the Companues Act
These authenuies expire at the 2012 AGM No shares were repurchased in the year
to 31March 2012 However, following repurchases in earlier periods, the Company
currently holds 5,896,000 ordinary shares in treasury New shares were allotted
duning the year only inrelation to certain employee share awards and the
Company'sscripdividend facility Resolutions to renew these authonities will be
praposed at the 2012 AGM

Substantial shareholders

At 15 May 2012 the interests inissued share capital which had been notified to the
Company under the Disclosure and Transparency Rules (DTR 5) of the Financial
Services Authonty are shown below

SHAREHOLDERS OWNING OVER 3%

OF THE COMPANY'S SHARES TABLE77

Numbar

of shares %%
BlackRock Inc 50,151,233 637
NorgesBank TTT srmsie T sig
APG AlgemenePensicenGroep 3244293 412
Peel Holdings Plc ] | 30181060 384
Legal & General Investment | ﬁanage-ment 29827505 379

Directors’ indemnities and 1nsurance

On 5 May 2006, the Company agreed to indemmnify each Director against any
hizbility incurred inrelation to acts or omissions arising in the course of their office
The indemnity applies only to the extent permutted by law A copy of the deed of
indemmnity 1s available for inspection at the Company's registered office and at the
AGM The Company has ensured that appropnate snsurance cover is available in
respect of potential legal actron agarnst its Directors

Auditors and disclosure of information to auditors

So far as the Directors are aware, there 15 norelevant audit information that has not
beenbrought to the attention of the Company’s auditors Each Director has taken
all reasonable steps to make himself or herself aware of any relevant audit
infarmation and to establish that such information was provided tothe auditors
Aresolutsion to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors to the Company
willbe proposed at the 2012 AGM
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Provisions on change of control

There are a number of agreements which take effect, alter or terminate upon a
change of contrel of the Company None of these are considered sigrficant The
Company's share schemes contain provisions which take effect in the event of a
change of control, but do not entitle parucipants to a greater interest in the shares of
the Company than created by the initial grant or award under the relevant scheme

Payment policy

The Group’s policy 1s to pay invoices in accordance with their terms The Company
has no trade creditors as at 31 March 2012 The Group's creditor payment days at
31March 2012 represented 27 days' purchases (2011 25 days}

Financial reporting and the ‘going concern’

basis for accounting

The Board seeks to present a batanced and understandable assessment of the
Group's positionand prospects Inorder to satisfy themselves that the Company
has adequate resourcesto continue In operational existence for the foreseeable
future, the Directors have reviewed assumptions about future trading performance,
valuation projections and debt requirements contained within the Group's current
five year plan andreported against them, internally, on a monthly basis This,
together with available market information and the Directors' knowledge and
experience of the Group's property portfolio and markets, has given them
sufficient canfidence to continue to adopt the going concern basis inpreparing the
accounts After making enquinies, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that
the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
fareseeable future For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis
npreparing the accounts

Voting rights

Eachordinary share of the Company carries one vote Further mformation onthe
voung and other nghts of shareholders are set out in the Company's Articles of
Assoctation and in the explanatory notes that accomparry the Notice of the AGM
which are avallable on the Company’s website at www landsecurities com

Annual General Meeting (AGM)
Accompanying this report is the Notice of the AGM whuch sets out the resolutions
for cansideration at the meeting, together with an explanation of them

Group General Counsel and Company Secretary
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Financial statements

Income statement
Frarn Group revenue and costs to earnings per share
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Financial statements

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

inrespect of the annual report and the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report, the Directors’
Remuneration Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each
financial year The Directors have prepared the Group and parent company financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs}
as adopted by the European Union Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit and loss of the Group and

Company for that period

In preparing those financial statemnents the Directors are required to

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

- state whether applicable IFRS as adopted by the European Union have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial staternents, and

- prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the Group will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial pasition of the Company and the Group
and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements and the Directors’
Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, asregards the
Group financial staterments, Arucle 4 of the 1AS regulation They are also responsible
forsafeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other rregularities

Directors’ responsibility statement

Each of the Directors, whose names are listed below, confirm to the best of their

knowledge that

= the Group finanaal statements, which have been prepared n accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets, habilities,
financtal positwon and profit of the Group, and

- themanagement reports {(which are incorporated nto the Report of the Directors})
contained in the Annual Report include a fair revtew of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Group together witha
descnipuonof the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces
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A copy of the financal statements of the Group 15 placed on the Company's website
The Directors are responsible for the mantenance and integnty of statutory and
audited information on the Company's website at www landsecunties com
Infermation published on the internet is accessible in many countries with different
legal requirements Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
disserrunation of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
Junisdictions

The Drrectors of Land Securities Group PLC as at the date of this announcement
are as set out below
- Alison Camwath, Charman
— RobertNoel, Chief Executive
=~ Martin Greenslade, Chief Financial Officer
- Richard Akers, Executive Director
- DavidRough
— SirStuart Rose
- KevinQO'8yrne
- ChnsBartram
- Simon Palley
~ StaceyRauch (appointed January 2012)

By order of the Board

Adnan de Souza

Group General Counsel and Company Secretary
15May 2012



Financial statements

Independent auditors’ report

to the members of Land Securties Group PLC

We have audited the Group and Parent Company financial statements {the ‘financial
statements’) of Land Securities Group PLC for the year ended 31 March 2012 which
comprise the Group Income Statement, the Group and Company Balance Sheets, -
the Group and Company Statements of Cash Flows, the Group Statement of
Comprehensive Income, the Group and Company Staternent of Changes in Equity -
and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
therr preparation 1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, asregards the Parent Company
financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companes
Act 2006

Opinien on other matters prescribed by the Comparies Act 2006
In cur cpinion

the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, and

the information given in the Report of the Directors for the financial year forwhich
the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we arerequired toreport by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2005 we are required to report to you If, m our opinion

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors -
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' responsibilities set out on p102,
the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true and faur view Our responsibility 1stoaudit and -
express anopinion on the financial statements n accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing {UK and [reland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors -
Thisreport, including the optnions, has been prepared for and only for the -
Company's members as 2 body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving these opimions,
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to -
whem thisreport 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly -
agreed by our prior consent inwriting

Scope of the audit of the financial statements -
An audit involves obtaming evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from material misstaterment, whether caused by fraud or error
Thisincludes an assessment of whetherthe accounting policies are appropriate to
the Group’s and the Parent Company's arqumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sigrificant accounting
estimates made by the Directors, and the overall presentation of the financial
statements Inaddition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the
Annual Report 2012 to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opimon on financral statements

Inouropinion

- thefinanaal statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and
of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2012 and of the Group's profit and
Group's and Parent Company’s cash flows for the year then ended,

— the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,

= the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared n
accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the European Umion and as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 20086, and

- thefinancial staterents have been prepared in accordance with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements,
Article 4 of the lAS Regulation

Land Securities Annual Report 2012

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or
returns adequate for our audit have not been receved from branches not visited
byus,or

the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’
remuneration report to be auditedare not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns, or

certain disclosures of Directors” remuneration specified by law are not made, or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

the Directors’ statement, set out onp100, in relation to going concern,

the parts of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company’s
compliance with the nine provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified for our review, and

certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on

Waters {Senior Statutory Auditor)
and on behall of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

0.
fo

artered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London
15 May 2012
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Financial statements

Income statement

foc the year ended 31 March 2012
Gronp Group
2012 zom
Notes £m £m
Group revenue' 5 675 7019
Costs T e } i T {2386)  (2708)
o ] 4319 4311
Prefit on dispasal of investment properties ) + 454 757
Net surplus on revaluation of Investment properties - ) ) o4 1698 7941
lmpa:m{ent;:harge on trading properties e ) + (20 (14)
Operating profit R ) 6451 12995
Interest expense T B R ] {z01) h (2402)
Interest ncome _ . . . 9 262 W60
Fair value movement on Interest-rate swaps L (45) {(15)
_ - R 4657 10834
Share of post tax profit from joint ventures ) ) . 1 522 1439
Impairment of investment in jong ventures i T o {22) -
Profit before tax 5187 12273
Incometax - s T o n a0 168
Profit for the financial year 5237 12441
Attribytable to B . ~ _
Owners_of_tﬂe Parent 3 T T Tt 5229 _1,241 5]
Noﬂ-contrt_sllmgmterests - ) - T ) T 08 25
Profit for the financial year 5237 1,2441
Earnings per share attributable to the owners of the Parent (pence)
Basic earmings per share - B . e 675 1623
Diluted éammgs per share ST ) s B ) 12 67 4 622
1 Crouprevenue excludesthe share of joint ventures revenoe of £121 4m (2011 £107 Sm)
Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2012
Group Group
2012 2m
Notes [ £m
Profit for the financial year 5237 1,244 1
Other comprehensive income cons:;tlngof - i . : ) . . 7 -
Actuaral {lossas)/gains on defined benefit pension scheme i i ) k3] {16.1) 110
Share of joint ventures' fair value movement on interest-rate ;wap—streitedwas cash flow hedges 1 49 124
Other comprehensive (expense)fincome for the financial year {112) 234
Total comprehensive income for the financlal year 5125 12675
Attnbutable to __ oL .
Owners of the Parent T 0 o - 5117 12650
Non-controlling interests B} 7 0.8 25
Total comprehensive Income for the financial year 5125 1,267 5
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Financial statements

Balance sheets

at31March 2012

Group Company
2092 2011 2002 20m
Notes £m £m £m im
Non-current assets .
Investment properties . 14 84532 8,8890 - -
Cther property, plant and equipment w88 113 - -
Met investment in finance leases - 1% 1850 1168 - -
Loaninvestments ) 7 58 722 - -
Investments in joint ventures ) 18 11376 9396 = -
Investments in subsidiary undertakings 19 - - 6,1778 6TR0
Otherinvestments B ) 0 323 18 - -
Trade and other recervables 22 - 770 - -
Pension surplus E)l - 87 - -
Total non-current assets 98677 10,1164 86,1778 61730
Currentassets R R R
Trading properties and long-term development contracts. 21 1331 1293 - -
Trade and otherreceivables _ . 2 7596 3525 158 100
Morues held in restricted accounts and deposis 3 295 351 - -
Cashand cash equivalents 24 297 376 02 02
Total current assets 9519 5545 160 102
Total assets 10,8196 10,6709 6,193 8 6,183 2
Current Lisbilities . }
Borrowings _ ~ . = (108) (330) - -
Trade and other payables ~ ~ = {2613) (4232) (6915) {403 1)
Provisions 7 B i i EO (8.6) {74) - -
Current tax iabilities i (216) (355) - -
Total current liabilities {402 3) [499 1) {691 5) {403 1)
Non-current Liabilities ) . B !
Borrowings 2 (32251 (33513) - -
Dernatrve financial snstruments z (55) (20} - -
Pension deficit - _ n (2.4) - - -
Trade and other payables = (277) 62) = -
Total non-current iabilities (3,2617)  (33595) - -
Total babilities (3.6640) (38586} (6915) (4031}
Net assets 7,1556 68123 5,502.3 57801
Equity ~
Capitalandreservesattributable tothe owners of the Parent
Ordinary shares _ - ) n 785 76 785 776
Share premium ) 7862 7855 7862 7855
Capital redemption reserve 305 305 365 305
Merger reserve B _ R - - 3736 3736
Share-based payments -] T2 68 72
Retamed earnings ’ 6212 59143 4,226.7 45057
Ownshares B ) 34 {17 8) (36) - -
Equity attributable to the owners of the Parent 7,1554 68115 55023 57801
Non:controllmg interests B B T oz 08 - -
Total equity 7,556 68123 55023 57801
The financial statements on p104 =150 were approved by the Board of Directors on 15 May 2012 and were signed on its bebalf by
R M Noet MF Greenslade
Digaciors
a i ]
’-)/v()’ wl Lartena Ll
———
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Einancial statements

Statement of changes in equity

Attribetable to gwners of tha Parent

Capital Share: Non
Share based Retained controlllng Tots
shares. premium reserve payments anmings' Dmuhans Totsl mntasest wquity
Group Em £m £m Em £m £m £m £m
At1Apnl 2010 765 7853 30s &0 47985 (6 9} 56839 {09l 56830
Profit for the year ended 31 March 2011 ] - - = - s - 1248 25 12441
Other comprehensive income - ) B ) B ’
Actuanal gainon pension scheme B - - - - 110 - 10 - 110
Fairvalue movement on interest-rate swaps treated as cash o
flaw hedges - - - - 124 - 124 124
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year ended 31 March 2011 — - - - 1,2650 - 12650 25 1,2675
Transactons with owners - - -
Exerase of options - - oz - - - - 02 - 02
New share capital subscribed ) 11 697 - - - - ‘708 - 708
Transfer ta retaned earnngsin respect of sharesissued n lieu of o )
cash dividends - 697y _ - - 637 - - - -
Falrvalue of shafe—based payments o - - = Y] - - E:] - Y
Release on exercnsefforreuture of share options T - - :- B - 2s) 26 - - - -
Settlement and transfer of sharestoemployeeson exercise of i ) o o
_share e options . - - - I ) 35 (44) - (44)
Dmidends ta ownersofthe Parent R - - - - (2136} - (2136} - (2136)
Distnbution paid to non-comrolhng nterests B - - - - - - - 7 (o8 {0.8)
Acquisition of own shares - - - - - (02) 02 - {02}
Total transactions with owners of the Parent 11 0z - 12 (1492} 33 (1434) (08) (1442)
At 31March 2011 776 7855 305 72 59143 (36) 68115 08 68123
Profit for the year ended 31 March 2012 .- - - - 5229 - 5229 68 5237
Qther comprehensive income : . B - ~ :_ ’
Actuanial loss on pension scherne - - - - (181} - (187} - (18.1)
Fair value movement on interest-rate swaps treated as cash N
flow hedges - - - - 49 - 49 - 49
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2012 - - - - 57z - 5117 0.8 512.5
Transactions with owners B
Exer—ase of options : i B : T - o7 - ___ - - - _ o7 o - __o7
New share capital subscribed ) i 0g 657 - L - - 66.6 - 666
Transfer toretaned earnings In respect of shares issued In liew of } ) -
cashdvidend N - {657) - - 657 - - - -
Fairvalue of share-based payments i o i _ T o- - : _— '_: “ 44 - -~ e 48 7 ;—_ a8
Release on exercise/forfeiture of share options - - - 52) 52 - - - -
Settlement and transfer of sharesto employeeson exercseaf -
share options - - - (4.3) 43 - - -
Dmdends to owners of the Parent i o - - -z - (221 4) - (2214} - (22_1 4)
Dlstrlbullons paid to non-controlling interests } - - : __: - - - - 7 (14} B [1-4)
Acquisition of own shares - - - - z (18.5) {18.5) - (185)
Total transactions with owners of the Parent 09 07 - 0.4} {154.8) (142) (167 8) {14) {169 2)
At 31 March2012 78.5 786.2 305 6.8 62712 (17 8) 7,1554 02 71556
1 Includ tmed earnings sre A L pectaf cash flow hedges {interest rate rwaps) of £3 Om {2011 €7 9m).
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Financial staterments

Statement of changes in equity

Ordinary Share redentplion Merger based Retained

shares premiunt reserve reserve payments earnings Total
Company £m £ £m £m Em Erm Em
At1Apnl 2010 765 7853 305 3736 60 44239 56958
Profit for the year ended 31 March 2011 - = - TS T Ty T
Exerase of options i . - o2 - - - - 02
New share capital subscribed i 11 697 - - - - mne
Transfer toretained earnings inrespect of shares issued tn leu of cash dividend i - 627) T - - - 697 -
Fair value of share-based payments - - - - a8 - 38
Release on exercise/forferture of share options - - - B (26) 26 -
Dridends - - - - - {2136) (2138)
At 31 March 2011 776 7855 305 3736 72 4,505 7 57801
Loss for the year ended 31 March 2012 - - - - - (291) (291)
Exercise of options ’ } - o7 - - - - 07
New share ;:apnal subscribed o9 657 - - - - 666
Transfer toretained earr;n:ngs nrespect of shares issued inlieu of cash dividend - 857 - - - 657 -
Fairvalue of share-based payments o ) - - - - 48 - 48
Transfer of treasury shares from group undertakings ) ) - - - - - (o9 4) (994)
Release on éxercnselforfeuture of share options o ) N - - - - {52) 52 -
Drvidends ) - - - - - @i @24
At31March2012 78.5 786.2 305 3736 68 4,226.7 5502.3

1 Themergerreserve arose on & Septembes 2002 whenthe Company acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Land Secunbies PLC The merger reserve represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the nominal value of the shares ssued by

the Company teacquire Land Securities PLC The merger resarve does not represent & reabsed or distributable profit

Land 5ecurities Annual Report 2012

107

SINIWIIVLS TVIDNYNI



Financlal statements

Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 March 2012

Group Company
2012 200 2612 201
Notes £Em Em Em £m
Net cash generated from operations ~ . . B _ _ B
Cashgenerated from operations L 36 4018 4200 - -
interest paid o ) oo 7 - ) T (1644)  (2187) - -
Interestrecened T ) ) . ’ T N 271 180 - -
Employer contnbutions to defined benefit pension scheme ) ) - o = (4 ) {51} - -
Corporation tax paid ) ) B ) {55) {607) - -
Net cashinflow fromoperations 2541 1535 - -
Cash flows from investing activities
Investmentbroperty development exI)endltu re o ) - : ) o - (158.8) (1397) - =
Acquisition of investment properties and other investments T -_ T o ) {107.3) (3713) - -
Other investment property related expenditure o ) o j {145 9) {819} - -
Capitat expenditure on properties o A = B . o {412.0) (5929) - -
Disposal of investment properties 5137 5350 - -
Net proceeds/(expenditure) on properties 107 (579} - -
Expenditure on non—propertyrelated non-current assets. o T ) B B {2.3) (45) - =
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from capital expenditure ) 994 624} - -
Rece:pts inrespect of finance lease recenvables : T - : ) - j_ " 10 - -
Loans:epald by thied partles o - - - . o : _: T _:_ _: ) ____ 228 162 - —: -
Cash contributed tojoint ventures R ~ ~ _ . {211) [E:)] 7) - -
Dwestment of joint ventures ’ _ ) N - 03 - -
Loan advancesto Jomt ventures i i - T B . (66 5) (173} - 7T
Loan repa);ments by joint ventures T T - o i - K 180 779 _ -
Dlst_rlbutmnsfrom]mnt ventures T ) o i - T T 241 256 - =
Net cashinflow/{out flow) From investing actrvities 778 {40 4} - -
Cashflows from financing activities
Cash recewved onissue of shares. ansing g frorm exercise of shareoptsons i ) T B - 07 - _ -
Purchase of own shares T T - “(185) - - -
Praceeds from new loans (net of finance fees) - T - ) ) 2881 4273 - : -
Rep_aymentof Ioans ) - - - ) ) : ™ (4561 0) {5560) - -
Premiumon repur&aseofbonds - - T - - : ' —: - {(225) - : -
Decrease inmonies held in restncted accountsand deposus ) - 23 56 605 - -
Decrease in finance leases payable - o — h {02) 04) - ~
Drvidends pardto owners s of the Parent oo B N T T {153 1) (143?)] - E
Distributions Pald o non-controlling interests o - i} ) T ) {14) {0.8) - =
Net cash outflow from financing activities {339 8) (2349) - -
Decrease in cash and cash equivatentsfor the year o {75) (1218) - -
Cashand cash equivalents at the beginnmg of the year - ) } T 376 1594 02 02
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 24 207 376 02 02

The Camparry cash flow szatement excludes transactiony, including the payment of dnndends that are settied oa the Company s behalf by other group undertakings
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Fmangcial statements

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2012

1 Basis of preparation
These financial staternents have been prepared on a going concern basis and in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Unian (IFRSs as adopted by the EU}, IFRIC Interpretations and the
Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS The financial
statements have been prepared in Sterling rounded to the nearest hundred
thousand}, which s the presentation currency of the Group {Land Secunties Group
PLCandall of its subsidiary undertakings), and under the histoncal cost convention
as modified by the revaluatton of land and bulldings, avadable-for-sale investments,
dervative financial instruments and financial assetsand babilities held for trading
A surnmary of the more important Group accounting policies, whichhave been
applied consistently across the Group, 1s set out in note 2 below

The preparation of financial statements inconformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires the use of est:mates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the finarcial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses duning the reporting period
Although these estimates, disclosed in note 3, are based on management's best
knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results ultimately may differ from
those estimates

Land Secunbes Group PLC has not presented its own statement of
comprehensive Income (and separate income statement), as permitted by Section
408 of Companies Act 2006 The loss for the year of the Company, dealt with i its
financial statements, was £29 1m (2011 aprofit of £223 im)

2 Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the year ended 31 March
2011, as amended toreflect the adoption of the new Standards, Amendments to
Standardsand Interpretations which are mandatory for the year ended 31 March 2012
The following accounting standards or mterpretations were effective for the

financial yearbeginning 1 April 2071 but have not had a materialimpact on the Group
- |AS 24 (amendment) ‘Related Party Dhsclosures’
- IFRS 1{amendment} 'First Tme Adoption of International Financial

Reporting Standards’
~ IFRIC 14 (amendment) I1AS 19 'Prepayments of a Mimmum Funding Requirement’
- IFRIC18 ‘Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments’
- Annual Improvements 2010

The following IFRS accounting standards and interpretations relevant to the Group

have been issued but are not yet effective, or have not yet been adopted by the EU

None of these standards or interpretations have been earty adopted by the Group

The Group 1s 1 the process of assessing the impact of these new standards and

interpretations onits financral reporting The two standards which may have a

material impact on the Group's financial reperting are (FRS 19, '|loint Arrangements'

and {FRS 12 ‘Disclosure of interests in other entities’

- 1A51 {amendment} ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’

- 1A312 (amendment) ‘Income Taxes'

- 1A519 {amendment) 'Employee Benefits’

~ 1AS 27 {revised) ‘Separate Financial Statements'

- 1A5 28 {revised) 'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures'

~ 1AS32and IFRS 7 (amendment) ‘Financial Instruments Amendment on Financial
Assetsand Liability Offsetting’

- IFRS8 ‘Financial Instruments’ on ‘Classification and Measurement ' of Financial
Assetsand Liabilities

- IFRS 10 'Consolidated Financial Statements’

- IFRS 11’ Joint Arrangements’

- IFRS 12 'Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’

- IFR513 'Fair Value Measurements’

iand Secunities Annuat Report 2012

(a) Basis of consalidation
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012 incorporate
the finanaal statements of Land Secunities Group PLC (the Company) and allits
subsidiary undertakings (the Group) Subsidiary undertakings are those entities
controlled by the Company Control exists when the Company has the power, directly
or indrectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of anentity so as to obtain
benefits from itsactivities The financial statements of subsidianies are included in the
consolidated financial staternents from the date that control commences and untl
the date control ceases

Jont ventures are those entities over whose activities the Group hasjoint
control, established by contractual agreement Interests in joint venturesare
accounted forusing the equity method of accounting as permitted by IAS 31
‘Interests in joint ventures’ The equity methed requires the Group's share of the joint
venture's post-tax profit er loss for the period to be presented separately in the
ncome statement and the Group's share of the joint venture's net assets to be
presented separately in the balance sheet Joint ventures withnet labilities are carned
at zero value in the balance sheet where there s no commitment te fund the deficit
and any distributions are included in the consolidated income statermnent for the year

The Group’s share of jointly controlled assets, related Labilities, income and
expenses are combined with the equivalent items in the consolidated financial
staternents on aline-by-line basis

Intra-group balances and any unrealised gains and losses ansing from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in prepanng the consolidated finaneral statements
Unrealised gains anising from transactions with joint ventures are elminated to
the extent of the Group's interestin the jont venture concerned Unrealised losses
are elmtnated in the same way, but only to the extent that there s no ewdence
of impairment

{b) Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in amanner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker The chief operating decision-maker,
who s responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Senior Management Board, which
consists of all the executive directors

Unallocated income and expense are items ncurred centrally which are nerther
directly attributable nor reasonablyallocatable to individual segments Unallocated
assets are cash and cash equivalents, monies held in restnicted accounts, loan
investments and the pension surplus Unallocated Liabilities include borrowings,
derrvative financial instruments, current tax babilities and trade and other payables

(¢) Investment properties
Investment properties are those properties, either owned by the Group or where the
Group 1s alessee under a finance lease, that are held etther to earnrental ncome or for
capital appreciation, or both Inaddiuon, propertres held under operating leases are
accounted for as investment properties when the rest of the definition of an
investment property 1smet In such cases, the operating leases concerned are
accounted for as if they were finance leases

Investment properties are measured imtially at cost, including related
transaction costs After initial recognition at cost, mvestment properties are carmed
at their fair values based on market value determined by professionalindependent
valuers at eachreportingdate Properties are treated as acquired at the point when
the Group assumes the significant nisks and returns of ownership and as disposed
when these are transferred to the buyer This generally occurs on unconditional
exchange, except where completion is expected to oceur significantly after exchange
Additions to investment properties consist of costs of a capital nature and, in the case
of investment properties under development, capitalised interest Certain internal
staff and associated costs directly attributable to the management of major schemes
during the construction phase are also capitalised
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2012 continued

2 Significant accounting policies continued
(<) Investment properties continued
The difference between the fair value of an investment property at the reporting date
and its carrying amount prior to re-measurement is included in the income statement
asavaluation surplus or deficit

When the Group begins to redevelop an existing investment property for
continued future use as an investment property, the property remains an investment
property andts accounted for as such When the Group begins to redevelopan
existing investment property with a view to sell, the property s transferred to trading
properties and held as a current asset The property s re-measured tofair value as at
the date of the transfer with any gain or loss being taken to the iIncome statement
The re-measured amount becomes the deemed cost at which the proparty s then
cammed in trading properties

Borrowing costs associated with direct expenditure on properties under
development or undergoing major refurbishment are capitalised Theinterest
capualised is calculated using the Group’s weighted average cost of borrowings after
adjusting for borrowings associated with speaific developments Where borrowings
are associated with specific developments, the amount capitalised is the gross
interest incurred on those borrowings less any investment income ansing on their
ternporary investment Interest 1s capitalised as from the commencement of the
development work until the date of practical completion The capitalisation of
finance costs 1s suspended if there are prolonged periods when development actvity
s interrupted Interest 15 also capitalised on the purchase cost of land or property
acquired specifically for redevelopment in the short-term but only where actvities
necessary to prepare the asset for redevelopment are in progress

(d) Property, plant and equipment
This category compnisas computers, motor vehicles, furniture, fixtures and fittings
and improvernents to Group offices These assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and are depreciated to ther residual value on a strasght-line basis over
their esimated useful Lives of between two and five years

The residuat values and useful Lives of all property, plant and equipment are
reviewed, and adjusted f appropnate, at least at each financial yearend

(e} Investments in subsidiary undertakings
Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost in the Company's balance
sheet, less any provision for impairment in value

{f} Trading propertres and long-term development contracts
Trading properties are those properties held for sale or those being developed with
awview to sell and are shown at the lower of cost and net realisable value Proceeds
recerved on the sale of trading propertres are recognised within Revenue

Revenue on long-term development contracts 1s recognised according to the
stage reached in thecontract by reference to the value of work completed using the
percentage of completson method Anappropriate estimate of the profit attributable
towork completed is recognised once the cutcome of the contract can be estimated
reliably The gross amount due from customers for contract workisshown as a
recervable The gross amount due comprises costs incurred plus recogrised profits
lessthe sum of recognised losses and progress billings Where the sum of recognised
losses and progress billings exceeds costs incurred plus recognised profits, the amount
isshownasalability

(g) Otherinvestments
Other investments are available-for-sale financial assets and are held at fair value
Changes to fairvalue arerecorded within other comprehensive income

(h) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other recervables are recogmised initially at fair value, subsequently at
amortised cost and, where relevant, adjusted for the time value of money A provision
for impairment s established where there 1s objectrve evidence that the Group will
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ot be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal terms of the
recewvables concerned If collection 1s expected in more than one year, they are
classified as non-current assets

(1) Cashand cashequivalents

Cashand cash equivalents comprises cash balances, deposits held at call with banks
and other short-term highly liquid investments with onginal matunities of three
mariths or fewer Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group's cash managernent are deducted from cash and cashequivalents
for the purpose of the statement of cash flows

{)) Loaninvestments

Loan investments are non-dervative financial assets which are initsally recognised at
far value plus acquisition costs They are subsequently carried at amortised costusing
the effective interest method

(k) Provisions

Aprovision 15 recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has aconstructve or
legal obligation as aresult of a past event and 1t 15 probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation Where relevant, provisions
are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the tume value of money and, where
appropniate, the nsks specefic to the bability

{) Borrowings
Borrowings, other than bank overdrafts, are recognised initiatty at fair value less
attributable transaction costs Subsequent toinitial recognition, borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially recogrused
and redemption value being recognised in the income statement over the penod of
the borrowings, using the effective interest rethod

Where existing borrowings are exchanged for new borrowings and the terms of
the existing and new borrowings are not substantially different (as defined by 1AS 39),
the new borrowings are recogmsed initially at the carrying amount of the existing
borrowings The difference between the amountinitially recogrised and the
redemption value of the new borrowings s recogrised in the iIncome staternent over
the penod of the new borrowings, using the effective interest method '

{m) Pension benefits
In respect of defined benefit pension schemes, pensionobligations are measured at
discounted present value, while pension schemne assets are measured at their fair
value, except annuities, which are valued to match the Liability or benefit value The
operating and financing costs of such schemes are recognised separately in the
ncome statement Service costs are spread using the projected unit credit method
Financing costs are recognised in the penods in which they arse and are included in
interestexpense Actuarial gains and losses ansing from esther experience differing
from previous actuanal assumptions, or changes to those assumptions, are
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income

Contnbutions ta-defined contnbution schemes are charged to the income
statement asncurred

(n) Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity External costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds

The consideration paid by any Group entity to acquire the Company’s equity
share capital including any directly attributable incremental costs, 1s deducted from
equityuntil the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed Where own shares are sold
or reissued, the net consideration recesved 1s included in equity Shares acquired by the
Employee Share Gwnership Trust (ESOT) are presented on the Group balance sheet as
‘own shares’ Purchases of treasuryshares are deducted from retained earnings




Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2012 continued

(o) Share-based payments

The cost of granting share options and other share-based remuneration to employees
and directors 1s recogmsed through the ncomne statement These are equity settled
and therefore the fair value 1s measured at the grant date Where the share awards
have non-market related performance criteria the Group has used the Black-Scholes
option valuation model to establish the relevant farr values ‘Where the share awards
have a TSR market related performance criteria the Group has used the Monte-Carlo
simutation valuation model to establish the relevant fair values The resulting values
areamortised through the tncome statement over the vesting penod of the options
and other grants For awards with non-market related criteria, the charge is reversed
if itappears probable that the performance cntena will not be met

{p) Revenue
The Group recogruses revenue on an accruals basis, when the amount of revenue can
be relrably measured and it 15 probable that future econormic benefits will flow tothe
Group Revenue comprises rentalincome, service charges and other recoveries from
tenants of the Group's investment and trading properties, proceeds of sales of its
trading properties and income anising on long-termcontracts Rental income includes
the incerne from managed operations such as car parks, food courts, serviced offices
andflats Service charges and other recoveries include income inrelation to service
charges and directly recoverable expenditure together with any chargeable
management fees

Rentalincome from investrment property leased out under an operating lease 1s
recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease
Lease incentives granted are anintegral part of the net consideration for the use of the
property and are therefore recognised on the same straight-ine basis Service charges
and other recoveries are recorded as income in the periods in which they are earned

When property is let under a finance lease, the Group recognises a receivable at
anamount equal to the net investment in the lease at nception of the lease Rentals
receved are accounted for as repayments of principal and finance income as
appropriate Finance incomne s allocated to each penod dunng the lease termsoasto
praduce a constant penodicrate of nterest on the remaming net investment in the
finance lease Contingent rents, being lease payments that are not fixed at the
inception of alease, for example turnover rents, are recorded as mcome in the penods
inwhich they are earned

(q) Expenses
Property and contract expenditure 1s expensed as incurred with the exception of
expenditure on long-term developrment contracts (see (f) above)

Rental payments made under an operating lease arerecogrused in the income
statementon a straight-line basis over the term of the lease Lease incentives received
are an integral part of the net consideration for the use of the property and alse
recognisedonastraight-line basis

Minimum lease payments payable on finance leases and operating leases
accounted for as finance leases under IAS 40 are apportioned between finance
expense and reduction of the outstanding liability Finance expense 15 allocated to
each period during the lease term 5o as to produce aconstant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining hability Contingent rents (as defined in (p} above} are charged as an
expense inthe periods in which they are ncurred

{r) Imparrment
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than investment
properties (see (¢} above), are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there s any indication of impairment If any suchindication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated (see below} Animpairment loss s recognised
in the income statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset 1s the greater of its fair value less costs tosell
and its value inuse The value tnusesdetermmed as the net present value of the
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future cash flows expected to be dernved from the asset, discounted using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the nisks specific to the asset

Animpairment [0ss 1s reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount Animpairment loss 1s reversed only to
theextent that the asset's carrying armount after the reversal does not exceed the
amount that would have been determined, net of applicable depreciation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised

{s) Denvative financialinstruments {derivatives) and hedge accounting
The Group uses interest-rate swaps to help manage its interest-rate nsk In
accordance with its treasury policy, the Group does not hold ar issue derivatives for
trading purposes

Where hedge accounting 1s applied the Group documents, at the inception of the
transaction, the relationship between the hedging instruments and the hedged rtems,
aswell as its nsk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various
hedging transactions The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the dervatives that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged items

All derivatives are initially recogrised at fair value at the date the denvative s
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value The far value of
Interest-rate swaps is based on broker or counterparty quotes Those quotes are
tested for reasonableness by discounting estimated future cash flows based on the
terms and maturity of each contract and using market interest rates for similar
nstruments at the measurement date The method of recognising the resulting gain
orloss depends on whether the derivative s designated as a hedging instrument

Cash flow hedges Where a denvative 1s designated as a hedge of the vanability
of ahighly probable forecast transaction {1 e an interest payment) the element of the
ganor loss on the denvative that 15 an effective hedge s recogrised directly in other
comprehensive Income The assoaated gains orlosses that were recognised inthe
statement of other comprehensive income are reclassified into the income statement
onterrmination or expiry of the hedge

Denvatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting The gaimorloss on
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting, and the non-qualifying element
of dervatives that do qualify for hedge accounting, are recogrised immediately in the
inceme statemnent

{t) Income tax
Income tax on the profit for the year comprises current and deferred tax Current tax
1s the tax payable en the taxable income for the year and any adjustment in respect of
previous years Deferred tax s provided in full using the balance sheet liability method
on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes Deferred
taxis determined using taxrates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
thereporung date and are expected toapply when the asset 1s realised or the liability
15 settled

No provision 1s made for temporary differences (i) ansing on the imitial
recogmition of assets or Liabilities, ather than on a business combination, that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit and (i relating to investments in subsidianies
to the extent that they willnot reverse in the foreseeable future

{u) Leases

AGroup company s the essee

(1) Operating lease - leases in which substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
areretained by another party, the lessor, are classified as operating leases Payments,
including prepayments, made under operating leases {net of any incentives recerved
from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the
peniod of the lease
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2012 continued

2 Significant accounting pobicies contmued

(u} Leases continued

(n) Finance lease - leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the nsksand
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases Finance leases are capitalised
within investment properties at the commencement of the lease at the lower of the
fairvalue of the property and the present value of the rumimum lease payments Each
lease payment 1s allocated between theliability and finance charges so asto achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in current and non-current
borrowings The finance charges are charged to the income statement over the lease
period 50 as to produce a constant penodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period The tnvestment properties acquired under finance
leases are subsequently carried at theur fair value

A Group company s the lessor

1) Operating lease— properties leased out to tenants under operating leases are
included in investment properties in the balance sheet

i) Finance lease—when assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present
value of the mimmum lease payments 1s recognised as areceivable The difference
between the gross receivable and the present value of the recervable s recognised as
unearned finance income

Lease income 1s recognised over the term of thelease using the netinvestment,
method before tax, which reflects a constant periodic rate of return Where only the
buildings element of a property lease 1s classified as afinance lease, the land element
15 shown within operating leases

(v) Dividends

Final dvidend distnbutions to the Company s shareholders are recognised as alability
in the Group's financial statements in the period in which the dividends are appraved
by the Company's shareholders Intenm dividends are recognised when paid

3 significant judgements, key assumptions and estimates

The Group's sgnificant accounting policies are stated in note 2 above Not all of these
significant accounting policies require management to make difficult, subjective or
complex judgements or estimates The following isintended to provide an
understanding of the policies that management consider cntical because of the tevel
of complexity, judgement or estimation involved i their application and their impact
onthe consolidated financial statements These judgements invelve assumptionsor
estimates Inrespect of future events Actual results may differ from these estimates

(a} Investment property valuation
The Group uses the valuation performed by its external valuers, Krught Frank LLP,
as the fair value of its investment properties

Thevaluation of the Group's property portfolio s inherently subjective due to,
ameong other factors, the individual nature of each property, its location and the
expected future rental revenues from that particular property Asaresult, the
valuations the Group places on its property portfolioare subject to a degree of
uncertainty and are made on the basis of assumptions which may not prove tobe
accurate, particularly in periods of volatitity or tow transaction flowin the commercial
property market

The investment property valuation contains a number of assumptions upon
winch Knight Frank LLP has based its valuation of the Group's properties as at
31March 2012 The assumptions on which the Property Valuatron Report has been
based include, but are not imited to, matters such as the tenure and tenancy details
for the properties, ground conditions at the properties, the structural condition of
the properties, prevailing market yields and comparable market transactrons These
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assumptions are market standard and accord with the RICS Valuation Standards
However, if any assumptions made by the property valuer prove to be false, this may
mean that the value of the Group’s properties differs from thesr vatuation, which
could have amatenal effect on the Group's financial condition

(b) Finance lease calculations

In apportioning rentals on finance lease properties, the Group s required to estimate
the spht of the fair values of the properties concerned between land and buddings
The inception of many of the Group's leases toak place many years ago and therefore
reliable estimates are very difficult to obtain Accordingly, the Group hashad to apply
its judgement in estimating the split at inception of certan finance lease properties

(c) Trading properties
Trading properties arecarried at the lower of cost and net realisablevalue Thelatter s
assessed by the Group having regard to surtable valuations performed by its external
valuer, Keght Frank LLP

The estimation.of the net realisable value of the Group's trading properties,
especially the development land and infrastructure programmes, is inherently
subjective due toanumber of factors, Including their complexity, unusually large size,
the substantial expenditure required and long timescales to completion Inaddition,
as aresult of these timescales to completion, the plans associated with these
programmes could be subject to significant vanation As aresult, and similarto the
valuation of investment properties, the net realisable values of the Group's trading
properties are subject to a degree of uncertainty and are made on the basis of
assumptiens which may not prove to be accurate

i the assumptions upon which the external valuer has based thesr valuation
prove to be false, this may have an impact on the net reabsable value of the Group's
properties, whichwould in turn have an effect on the Group's financial condition

(d) Trade receivables

The Group is required to judge when there s sufficient objective evidence to require
the imparment of ndvidual trade receivables 1t does this on the basis of the age of
the relevant recevables, external evidence of the credit status of the counterparty
and the status of any disputed amounts

(e) Compliance with the Real Estate Investrment Trust (REIT) taxation regime
On1january 2007 the Group converted to a group REIT Inorder to achieve and retain
group REIT status, several entrarice tests had to be met and certain ongoing caitena
mustbemaintained The matncritenaare as follows

atthe start of each accounting penod, the assets of the tax exempt business must
be at least 75% of the total value of the Group's assets,

atleast 75% of the Group’s total profits must arise from the tax exernpt business,
and

atleast 90% of the notional taxable profit of the property rental business must

be distributed

The Directors intend that the Group should continue as a group REIT for the
foreseeable future, with the result that deferred tax s no longer recogrised on
temporary differences relating to the propertyrental business
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4 Segmental information
Management has deterrnined the Group's operating segments based on the
information reviewed by the Senior Management Board (*SMB*} to make strategic
decisions The SMB consists of the three executive directors

All the Group’s operatons are in the UK and are organised into two business
segments against which the Group reports its segmental information, being Retait
Portfolio and Londen Portfolic The London Portfolia includes all our London offices
and Central London retail {excluding assets held in the Metro Shopping Fund Limited
Partnership joint venture) and the Retail Portfobie includes all our shopping centres,
shops, retail warehause properties, the Accor hotel portfolio and assets held in retail
jontventures, excluding Central London retail

The information and reports reviewed by the SMB are prepared on acombined
portfolio basis, which includes the Group's share of joint ventures on a
proportionately consolidated basis The following segmental information s therefore
presented on a propertionately consolidated basis

The Group’s primary measure of underslying profit before tax s Revenue profit
This measure seeks to show the profit ansing from ongoing operations and as such
removes alliterns of a capital nature {e g valuation movements and profit/{loss) on
disposal of investment properties) and one-off or exceptional items Segment profitis
the lowest level to which the profit ansing from the ongoing operations of the Group
s analysed betweenthe two segments The Group managesits finanicing structure,
with the exception of joint ventures, on a pooled basis and, as such, debt facilities and
interest charges are not specific to a particular segment
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for the year ended 31 March 2012 continued

4 Segmental information continued
‘The segmentalinformation provided to senior managerment for the reportable segments for the year ended 31 March 2012 1s as follews

Yearendad 31 March 2012
Group Ratall Poctfobo London Portfollo Total
- Joint Jokne Jounit
Group vertures Total Group ventures Tatal Croup ventures Total
Revenue prafit £m Em £m £m £m Em £m £m £m
Rental income 2559 661 3220 2795 17z 2912 5354 778 6132
Finance lease mterest 21 04 25 62 - 52 a3 04 ‘87
Gross rental ncome {before rents payable) 258.0 665 345 2857 nr 2574 5437 _ T2 6219
Rents payable' {95 (21 {(1186) {42) - (42) {137 (21 {158)
Gross rentalincome {after rents payable) 248.5 644 3129 2815 17 2532 5300 76.1 506.1
Service charge iIncome? B _ 339 84 423 428 03 431 76.7 87 B5 4
Service charge expense {34 5) (106) {451) {45.3) {0.3) {45 6) {798) {109) {907}
Netservicechargeexpense {08) (22) (28) @5 - (25) 31 22) (53)
Other propertyrelated ncome? i Tz 12 40 130 - 190 38 12 330
Drrect property expenditure (298) (106) {404) (198) {09 (207) {495) (115 {611)
Net rental Income 2309 528 2837 2782 08 2890 5091 636 5727
Indirect property expendlture ) o “(238) _{23) _ (259 {167) Y] (173) (403) (29) __(;3 2
Deprecation {2.2) - {22) {o4) - {04) (26) - (2.6)
_Segmgntpmﬁt before interest 2051 S05 2556 ‘_261 1 02 2713 456.2 607 5269
Joint venture net interest expense T - T T @212 T {107 (107) - 319 (319)
Segment profit 2051 293 2344 2611 B 260 6 466.2 288 4950
Group services - ncome . ~ 39 - 39
. —expense } o (440} - (44 o)
Interest expense _ _ o {2011) - (201 1
Interestincome L o _ . 262 - 262
Ehrmnnate effect of bond exchange de-recogmtion 166 _ = s
Ebtminate debt restructuning charges 28 - 28
Revenue profit 2706 28.8 2994

1 IncludedMthmrzﬂnplylhlelsﬁnanceIeasl |nurulpayahleof£1 Sen 2011 [2 m) and E0 6m (2013 £1 2m)forthe Retailand London portfolios respectively

2 Indwect praperty 1o together comprise the admis softhe business In relatsn tosomeof these \heerpr!mwes ftt mcnmefmmlomlvemuresandthird parties for work on asset,
propertyand dmbpmmMnaggmm,nweilu:nrporm services These fees are induded i service charge income other property related ing Broupserv (after deducting related income)
amounted to £69 Tm (31 March 201 £606m).

Yaarended 31 March2012

Group Rutail Portfolio London Partfolis Total

Joint Jodnt Jount
Group veritures Total Group vertures Total Group vertures Tota

Reconcibation to profit before tax £Em £m Em Em £m £m £m Em Em

Segment profit before interest 2051 305 2556 2611 102 2713 466 2 607 526 9

Trading properties saleproceeds 09 26.2 271 71 52 123 80 314 394

Carrying value of trading properties disposals {o6) (23 4) {240} {52) {50) {10.2) (58) {2a4) {34 2)

Profit on disposal of trading propertT_es i K] 28 31 19 02 2.1 2.2 30 52

Long-term development contract income _ 19 19 74 - 74 74 19 93

Long-term development contract expenditure - (19) {19) (38) - {38) (38) (19) (57

Profiton loné-termdevelopment contracts ] - - - 36 - 36 36 - 36

2054 533 258.7 266.6 104 2770 4720 637 5387

Investrnent property disposal procee-d_s B 2551 268 2819 6.3 - 7063 9614 268 988.2

Carrying value of nvestment property dispasals (including
lease incentrves) (2351} (25.8) {260.9) {680.9) - {680 8) {916 0} {25.8) {9418)

Profit on disposal of investment properties 200 1 210 254 - 254 454 10 454

Net surplus/(deficit} on revaluation of investment properties 61 (i16) __ (55) 1637 327 1964 169.8 211 1909

Impairment (cha;gve)lreTe_ase on trading properties } - {09) (0.5) " (2.0} 08 {12} {20) {0.7) T2

2315 418 2733 4537 439 497 6 6852 BS7 7709

Group services—mcome o 39 - s
~ ~expense - (440) L)

Operating profit 6451 857 7308

Interest expense_ T - - (261 1) (3_1 9) o _(553 6)

Interest mcome ) T 26.2 - 2

Faurvalue movement on mterest.-rate swaps - {45} -[0 5) i (54)

lmpaurment of investment injoint ventures - {z.2) - - izz)

Jomt venture tax adjustment - - (0.3) ) (03)

Joint venture net babilities ad Justment - {04) (0.4)

Profit before tax 463 5 52,2 5157
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2012 continued

4 Segmentalinformation continued

Year ended 21 March 2011

Group Retal Portfolia Londoa Portfolio Total
Jowmt Jont
Group ventures Total Group ventures Total Group ventures Totsl
Revenue profit im £m im £m £m £m £m £m im
Rentalincorne B 2512 683 3185 : 2827 04 3031 5439 787 6226
Finance lease interest } 24 05 29 37 - 37 61 05 66
Gross rental mcome (before rents payable) . 2536 688 3224 296.4 104 3068 5500 792 6292
Rents payable' (109) (35) (144) (42) - (42} (151) (35) (186}
Gross rental income (after rents payable) 2427 653 3080 2922 104 3026 5349 757 6106
Service charge income? i 3z5 92 417 443 02 447 770 94 854
Service charge expense _ (335) {105} {440 {482) [02) (48 4) (817} (107) (92 4)
Netservicechargeexpense (10} (13) 23) (37) - (37 (47) {13) (60}
Otherpraperty related ncome? ’ 103 10 13 80 o1 R 283 1 4
Direct praperty expendsture (293) {122} {415) (356) {02) (358) {649) (124) {773}
Netrentalincome 2227 528 2755 2709 103 2812 4936 631 5567
tndirect property expenditure? . B . (236) {36} {272y (w7 _ {02 (169) (403) (38) (4417)
Depreciation {02) - (02} {07 - {07) (09) - {09)
Segment profit before interest _ 1989 492 2481 _ 2535 101 2636 452 4 593 817
Joint venture net interest expense - (222} (222) - {102) (102) - (324) (32 4)
Segment profit 1989 270 2259 2535 1) 2534 4524 269 4793
Group services - Income . __ 43 - 43
-expense (329) - (329)
B -eliminate noN-reverue proft income 23) - (23)
Interest expense ) (2402) - {2402
Interest ncome o 260 - 260
Ebminate effect of bond exchange de-recognition 185 - 185
Eliminate debt restructuring charges B 220 - 220
Revenue profit 2478 269 2747

1 Indudedwithinrents payable s finance leass interest payable of £2 Omand £1 2m for the Retailand London portfoiros, respectvely
2 indirect proper(y upend:ture groupsenaces expense and depreciation together comprise the administration costs of thebusiness Inrelationte someof these the Group receives feeincome from joint ventures and third pactes forwork on asset

property andd vices These feesare includedinservice chargeincome other property related income and group services income Net administration costs {after deducting related income)
amounted to £60 6m
Year ended 31 March 201
Group Retail Fortiohe London Portiolie Total
Jont Jont Joint
Group ventures Total Group ventures Total Group venkures Total
Reconcliationto profit before tax fm £m £m m £m m £m im £m
Segment profit before interest B 1989 492 2481 2535 101 2636 452 4 593 5117
Trading propertses sale proceeds 14 135 149 15 43 58 29 178 207
Carrying value of trading properties disposals (14) (122) (136) 04 (63) (58} {10) (185) (195
Profit/{loss} on disposal of trading properties - 13 13 19 (20} {01} 19 {07} 12
Long-term development contract income - - - 394 - 394 394 - 394
Long-term development contract expendiiure - - - (349) - (340) (340) - (340)
Profit onlong-term development contracts - - - 54 - 54 54 - 54
) 1989 505 2494 2608 8.1 268.9 4597 586 5183
Investment propé‘rtydlsposalproceeds 1376 1265 2641 4687 - 4587 68053 1265 7328
Carrying value of investment prop;arty disposals (inctuding
{ease incentrves) {124 4) (1229) (2473) (406.2) ~ {406.2) {5306) {1229} (6535)
Prefit on dispesal of iInvestment properties 132 36 168 625 - 625 757 36 793
Net surplus on revaluation of nvestment properties 3075 _ 606 3681 4866 541 5407 7941 1147 o088
Impairment (charge)/release on trading properties - 17 17 (14} 04 (10) (14) 21 07
5196 1164 6360 B08.5 626 8711 1,3281 1750 1,507 1
Group services—incorne 43 - 43
—expense (329) - {3249)
Operating profit 1,293 5 1790 14785
Interest expense {2402) (324) (2726)
interestncome 260C - 260
Fair value movement oninterest-rate swaps (9) (03) (22)
Joint venture tax adjustment - (08) {08)
Jontventure net habilities adjustment - (16) {16}
Profit beforetax 1,083 4 1439 12273
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Financizl staternents

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2012 continued

4 Segmental nformation continued

Year ended 3T March 2012
Group Retal Portfolio Lonwdon Portfobio To
Joint Joint Joint
Grovp ventures Total Group ventures Total Group vantures Total
Balanceshaat £m £m £m £m £m im £m £m tm
Investment properties . 36724 1,004 1 48765 4,7@0.9 4433 5.230.1 84532 1,453 4 . 9,906.6
Other property, plant and equipment i 25 - z5 83 - 6.3 88 - 88
Net investrment in finance leases ] 320 83 413 1520 - 1520 1850 83 1933
Tradlr;g properties and Inng-termaevelopment contracts - T 77 1331 153 1484 1331 _ 230 156.1
Trade and other recervables _ 2220 968 3188 5376 36 5412 7596 100 4 B50 O
Share of jomnt venture cash - 213 213 - 228 228 - 441 441
Segmentassets 39299 1,1382 £,068.1 56058 4910 6,100.8 45397 16232 11,168.9
Una_llocate_d _ B -
Cash and cash equné_lents B : 297 - 297
Monies heldinrestricted accounts ) 25 - 295
Loan investments B - . 508 - T sog
Cther mves-tments ) ~ T ’ R 323 - 323
i ja;nt venture liabilities T T T ) - (491 6) (49; 1_5)
Total assets 96820 11376 10,8196
Trade and other payables . B (965) _ (s52)  (1627) (1381 _ (126) (1507) _(2346) (788}  (3134)
Povions T ©8 _ & (13 _ (9 - {89) ®8) _ (08) °2)
Share of joint venture borrowings - {263 4) (263 4) - {148 8) (14&5) - {412.2) {41 7__2)
Segment liabilities {97 1) {330 2) (427.3) (146.1) {161 4) (307 5) (2432)  (4916) (734 8)
Unaltocated - i i o
Borrowings T L - ) (3,235 9} _ - (3,23'5'—?)
Dervatrve financial instruments T ~ (65 - i @)
Pensiondefict _" B ) B (249 - (24)
_ Currenttax habilities R ) i (ne) - (i1_§)
Trade and other payables e B {154 4) - {1544)
Jont venture liabilities to assets B o7 - 4916 4916
Total GabHlittes (3,664 0) - {3,664 0}
Other segment items
Capital expenditure 1330 140 1470 1513 313 1826 2843 453 3286
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2012 continued

4 Segmental information continued

Year ended 31 March 2011
Group Retad Portfola London Portfobo Total
Jount Jomnt Josnt
Group ventures Total Croup ventures Total Croup ventures Total
Balance sheet im Em £m £m £m £m im £m £m
Investment properties - 36964 1,0248 47212 51826 032 54958 88890 1,3280 102170
Other property, plant and equipment 51 - 51 62 - 62 13 - 13
Net investment i finance leases 338 84 622 630 - _630 1168 84 1252
Trading properties and long-term development contracts 06 309 EXRY 1287 153 1440 1293 462 1755
Trade and other recenvables Mzz2 995 m7 3191 48 32349 4313 1043 53568
Share of jomt venture cash ’ ) - 276 276 - 82 BT - 358 358
Joint venture net habilities adjustment B - 04 04 - - - - 04 04
Segmentassets 3,858.1 1,1916 50597 57026 3315 65,0411 95777 1,5231 11,1008
Unallocated
Cashand cash equivalents 376 - 376
Monies held i restricted accounts 151 - 351
Derivatrve financial nstruments 72 - 72z
Loan investments 87 - 87
Jownt venture Liabilities - (583 5} {583 5)
Total assets 9,7313 9396 106709
Trade and other payables _ . (1082) {991) (207 3) fzooz) (203} {2205) (3084) {1194) (427 8}
Provisions - B [03) {08} (1% 7% - 71 74) (08) (82)
Share of jOI;ﬂ: venture bérrowmgs o - {304 4) {304 4) - {1589} {1539) - {4633) {463 3)
Segment liabilities {1085) (404 3) (512.8) (207 3) (1792) (386 5) (315.8) {5835) (8993)
Unallocated
Borrowings T (3.3843) - (33843)
Dervatve financial mnstruments (20} - (20)
Current tax rabilities o {355) - (355)
Trade and other payables {1210) - {1210)
Jontventure babilities to assets i o - 5835 5835
Total liabilities (3,8586) - (38586)
Other segment items
Capital expenditure 628 448 1076 1883 111 1994 2511 559 3070
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2012 continued

5 Grouprevenue

2012 zom
Croup Ern [
Rental income {excluding adjustmant for lease incentrves} B : B 5207 5253
Adjustment for lease ncentives ) 47 186
Rental income _ o o _ 5354 5439
Service charge income ) B R ) 767 710
Other property related income ) h B 31.8 283
Trading property sales proceeds B o 80 29
Long-term development contract income i - L T4 394
Financelease nterest R i ) a3 61
Other income 19 43
6715 7019
6 Employee costs
202 zon
Group Number Number
The average monthly number of employees durmg the year was L
Indirect proF;erty or contractand admml_-stiatlon . L o - - o 436 444
DlEeci prope;ty or contract services B o 7 - } B
Full-time: o - 178 R
_Part-tlme B T T T B B T 42 ) 66
656 692

The average number of employees for the year ended 31 March 2012 includes 45 employees (2011 40 employees) in respect of our Brand Empire operations Brand Empire

ceased trading in the year ended 31 March 2012

Group

2012
£m

201
£m

Employee costs
salaries B
Soaal secunty
Other pension (note 31)
Share-based payme'nt-s (note 3:2)

50.8
72
30
48

40
56
33

38

658

567

With the exception of the Directors and the Group General Counsel & Cornpany Secretary, who are employed by Land Secunties Group PLC, all employees are employed by

subsidiaries of the Group

During the year, one director (2011 one) had retirernent benefits accruing under the defined contribution pension scheme Retirement benefits accrue to one director (2011
one}under the Group's defined benefit pension scheme Information on directors’ emoluments, share options and interests in the Company's shares 1s given i the Directors’

remuneration report on p82—99

Details of the ermnployee costs associated with the Group's executive directors are included in note 37
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2012 conunued

7 Auditor remuneration

[ X
Croup £&m £m
Services provided by the Group's auditor
Audit fees .
Parent companyand consotidated financial statements _ 02 02
Other fees ) ) _-
Audit of subsidiary undertakings ) 03 03
Services supplied pursﬁar;t tolegislapon oz 02
o7 o7

It1s the Group’s policy to employ the Group’s auditars, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, on assignments additional to thew statutory duties where their expertise and experience
withthe Group are important Where appropriate, the Group seeks tenders for services and if fees are expected to be greater than £25,000 they are pre-approved by the Audit
Committee Inadditian, PicewaterhouseCoopers LLP also receives fees for statutory duties performed for some of our joint venture arrangements, of which our

proporticrate share of the feeswas £0 1m (2011 £01m)

8 External valuer remuneration

2012 2om

Croup £m £m
Services provided by the Group's external valuer - _ R

Valuation fees _ |

Year and half-year valuations 09 10

Security GI:C')UPVEIUBIIOH ) T o i ) - 01

i | . 09 1

Other consultancy and agency services ) B i 11 09

20 20

The fee payable to Knight Frank LLP (Kright Frank), the Group's external valuers, for the year and half year valuation 1s a frxed fee that 1s adjusted on an annual basis for

acquisitions and disposals of Investment propertres in the reporting period to which the fee relates Knight Frank also undertakes some other consultancy and agency work on
behalf of the Group Krught Frank has confirmedtous that the total fees paid by the Group represented less than 5 per cent of their total revenue in each year Inaddition,
Knight Frank also receives fees for their duties performed for some of our joint venture arrangements, of which our proportionate share of the feeswas £0 Tm (2071 £01m)

9 Netinterest expense

Group Companry
2012 200 2012 o1
Em Em £m Em
Interestexpense 3
Bond and debenture debt - h (1?53) (2180} - -
Bank borrowings {130) {105} - -
Other interest payable (os) (+8) (27 4) (39)
Amortisation.of bond exchange de-recogrition {16.6} {185} - -
Interest on pen-smn scheme Liabilities j i (ioi (&Zi - -
] {216 0) {2570} [27 4) (39)
Interest capitalised in relatton to properties under development 149 168 - -
Total interest expense {2011) (2402} (27 4) (39)
lntereAst income R o )
Short-term depasits i T os 05 - -
Interest received onloan investments 38 T - -
Other interest receivable 74 Y - -
Interest recevable from joint ventures 55 45 - -
Expected returnon pension scheme assets 91 B6& - -
Totalinterestincome 26.2 260 - -
Fairvalue movement oninterest-rate swaps B (435} {19) - -
Netinterest expense (1794) (2161} 274) (39)
Included within rents payable (note 4} 1s finance lease interest payable of £2 1m (2011 £3 2m)
Land Secunities Annual Report 2012 19
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2012 continued

10 Dradends
Group snd Company
Actual
pet share 2012 om
Ordinary dividends pad Payment date pence Em Em
For the year ended 31March 2010 o
Therd intenm _ ) ~ o 3 1 Apnl 2070 70 - 531
Final A 30 July 2010 70 - 533
Forthe year ended 31 March 2011 _ . : ) ) T T
First interim ’ i o _ 250ctober 2010 70 - 535
Second ntenm i R 10 January 2011 70 537
Thirdintenm o o o ) © 26Apniz0n1 70 539 -
Final i o T ) T zBJuly20i1 72 556 -
Fortf{eyearended 31March 2012 *_ . 3 i B o _
FIESt interiemn T _ __ o - L 240ctober 2071 72 558 -
Second mterim ) a - ) - T - -5 January 2012 72 56.1 -
Gross dividend 2214 2136

The Board has proposed a final quarterly dividend for the year ended 31 March 2012 of 7 4p per share (2011 7 2p), which will be 100% PID, to the extent 1t 1s paid in cash, and
result in a further distnibution of £57 8m (2011 £55 6m) It will be paid on 26 July 2012 to shareholders who are on the Register of Members on 22 june 2012 The final dvidend
15 in additton to the third quarterly internim dividend of 7 2p or £56 Im paid on 26 April 2012 {2011 7 Op or £53 9m) The total dvidend paid and proposed in respect of the year

ended 31March 2012 1529 Cp (2011 28 2p)

The Company operates a scrip dividend scheme which provides shareholders with the opportunity to receive their dividend in shares as opposed to cash Sharesissued in
kreu of dividends duning the year, all of whichwere non-PiD distributions, totalled £66 6m (2011 £70 8m) The difference between the gross dividend of £221 4m and the
amount reperted in the consolidated cash flow for the year of £153 Tm.s the shares issued in lieu of dividends (£66 6m) and the timing of the payment of the related

withholding tax {£1 7m)

Acashdvidend maybe pard as a PID, awon-PID, or amixture of the two  Followng the enactment of the Finance {No 3) Act 2010, the issue of ordinary shares under the strp
n hiew of a cash divadend can also qualify as a PID, a non-PID, or amixture of the twe Confirmation of whether PID or non-PID treatment to a particular dvidend will apply will

beannounced prior to the relevant ex-dividend date The sorip diwdend altemnative for the proposed final quarterly dividend will be a non-PID

11 Income tax

Group Company
2012 2o 2 20m
£m £m £m £m
Current tax ~
Corporation tax credit for the year - _ T ) _— T ~ ) . ’ - - (102) {45}
Adjustment in respect of prior years i i ’ {8.0) (16.8) - -
Total income tax credit in the income statement {80) (16 8) {10 2) (45)
The tax for the year s lower than the standard rate of corparationtaxinthe UK of 26% (2011 28%} The differences are explained below
Profit/{ioss) before tax T ST T T T sist T aers (393) 2188
Profit/{loss) before taxmuttiphied by the Tate of corporation tax in the UK of 26% {20M 28%) . 1341 3436 {0z 613
Effects of - - T | ) N i B
Interest rate fairvalue maovemnents and other timing d[!ferencés T o :‘ : - 09 os T - -
Prior year corporation tax adjustments ) ) - S B i (8.0 (168) - -
Non-allowabl;expenses and non-taxable items ) : - - _ 7 - BT 10 - (658
Losses carnied forward T o ) S 49 31 - -
Utihsed losses brought forward B ) b - (72 (73) - -
Exempt propertyrental profitsandrevaluationsintheyear ) T ) c T {1340) (3512) T - -
Exempt property (gains)ossesin the year o -7 ) ) ) {03) 03 -~ -
Total income tax credit in the income statement {as above) {a.0) (168} (10.2) 45)

The Group has unutilised trading and other tax losses carned forward as at 31 March 2012 of approximately £86 Om (2011 £100 Om)
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2012 continued

1 Income tax contmnued

During the year the Croup released provisionsof £8 Gm (2011 £16 8m) to the income statement which were created in prar years and na longer required as the retevant.
uncertainties had been cleared At 31March 2012, the Group held a provision of £21 3m (2011 £25 8m) for interest on overdue tax in relatton to a matter in dispute with
HM Revenue and Customs, which may become payable If nat settled inthe Group's favour The provision will be released, and the tax paid to date of £6¢ 7m recovered,
if the Group’s appeal s successful

Land Securities Group PLC elected for group Real Estate Investrment Trust (REIT) status with effect from 1 January 2007 As aresult the Group no longer pays UK corporation
tax onthe profits and gamns from qualifying rental business in the UK provided it meets certam conditions Non-qualifying profits and gains of the Group continue to be subject

to corporationtaxas normal

12 Earmungspershare

2012 oM

Group £m Em
Profit for the financial year attributable tothe owners of the Parent 5229 12416
Met surplus on revaluation of investment properties— Group . _ (169 8) (7941)
~Jointventures ) (211} {1147)
Profit on disposal of investment properties— Group _ . _ (45 4} (757}
. - Jontventures ) - . T ) . ) ) {10} (36}
Impairment charge ontrading pfoper:;es—Group ) - ) i 20 14
i -Jontventures ) i ) _ h 01 21}
Profiton dusposaloftr.';dmg propemes_-Graup i ) ) ~ ) (22) {+9)
- Joint ventures _“ - B T _ ) (30) o7

Fair value movementon mteresf—rate swaps—Group ) ) 45 19
L _ -Jointventures ) 09 03
Imparment of nvestment in ;our{t ventures ) ) ’ ’ 22 -
Joint venture net Liabilities adjustment’ - ) 04 16
EPRA adjusted earrungs attributable to the owners (_)fthe Parent . ) 260 S 2554
Tax adjustments related to prior periods ~ Group - ) ’ (80} __ (168}
Elirunate profit on long-term development contracts—.Gn-Jup‘ T (36) ’ (54)
Elmnate non-recurring revenue items - (23}
Ebminate debt restructuring charges and otherlnterestltems—Grou;; o ) 28 220
Elimmnate amortisation of bond exchange de-recagnition - Group ] ) T 156 8.5
Adjusted eamings attnibutable to the owners of the Parent 298.3 2714

1 Theadjustment tonet habilties on joint ventures 1s theresu't of valuation deficits in previous years reversed by surplusesin the currentyear
2 Theprofitonleng termdevel contracts has b di adjusted earnings dueto the long term capital nature of these programmes

Qur calculation of adjusted earnings and adjusted earmings per share has been changed in the year to exclude the profit on disposal of trading properties and profit on
long-term development contracts Inthe future we expect these items to become larger but occur less frequently, in particular where they relate to the sale of residential
units Thiswould result in fluctuations to adjusted earnings and adjusted earnmgs per sharef not excluded We have arended pnor year numbers sothat all years are
presented on a consistent basis

2012 201
mitlion mitlion
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 815 771
Weighted average number oltreésury shares ) T ) {59) {59)
Weighted average number of own shares ) } {14) [03)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares - basic earnings per share TT42 7649
Dilutsve effect of share oplins 17 07
Weighted average number of ordinary shares - diluted eamings per share 7759 7656
2012 20m
Perke Fence
Basic earnings pershare 675 1623
Diluted earningsper share T ] 674 1622
Adjisted earnings per share T o 385 355
Adjusted diluted earmings per share 385 358
EPRA adjusted earnings per share 374 334

Management has chosen to disclose adjusted earnings per share in order to provide an indicatton of the Group's underlying business performance Accordingly, it excludes the
effect of debt and other restructuning charges, non-recurning items and other items of a capital nature We believe our measure of adjusted diuted earnings per share s more
appropniate than the EPRA measuren the context of curbusiness
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2012 continued

13 Netassets pershare

Group

2012
Em

201
£m

Net assets attributable to the owners of the Parent
Fair value of interest-rate swaps— Group
—Joint ventures

7,1554
65
143

68115
20
207

EPRA adjusted net assats
Reverse bond exchange de-recognition adjustrent

79762
(4509)

68342
{467 5)

Adjusted net assets attributable to the owners of the Parent
Reinstate bond exchange de-recognition adjustment
Faw value of interest-rate swaps— Group
) ~Jointventures
Excess of fair value of debt over book value {pote 28)

67253
4509
(6.5)
(143)
{850.9)

63667

4675
(20}
(207}
(558.7)

EPRA triple net assets

6,294 5

62528

2012
milllon

20m
mullion

Number of ordinary shares n issue
Number of treasury shares
Number of own shares

7851
(59
@3)

7759
(59)
{03)

Number of ordinary shares - basic net assets per share

7769

7657

Dilutive effect of share options

26

09

MNurmber of ordinary shares — diluted net assets per share

7795

7706

2012

oen
Pence

Netassetspershare
Diluted net assets per share

921
918

885
884

Adjusted netassets per share
Adjusted diluted net assets per share

856
853

a7
826

EPI!_A:measure- adju;ted dllu{éd net assets pershare
—diluted tnple net assets per share

521
808

8a7
812

Adjusted net assets per share excludes fair value adjustments on finanoal nstruments used for hedging purposes and the bond exchange de-recognition adjustment as
management consider that thus better represents the expected future cash flaws of the Group EPRA rmeasures have been included to assist companson between European

property companies We believe our measure of adjusted net assets attnibutable to the owners of the Parent 1s more indicative of underlying performance
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14 Investment properties

boctfolio  Developmant
Croms wn:ml pmg‘mﬁ“ Tn;
Netbook value at 1 Apnl 2010 7,2551 7892 80443
Developments transferred from the development progr—amme into portfolia management - 2593 (2593) -
Praperties transferred from portfolio management into the development programme (210 Zi 2102 -
Property acquisiions . 3546 118 3765
Capital expenditure . i 815 1696 2511
Capitalised interest } ) - 159 159
Disposals ] R (2415} {555 4}
Deprecnailon . ) [05) - (d 5}
Transfer from trading propert-les B ~ _ —j (370) (370}
Valuation surplus ) ) ’ 5921 2020 7941
Net book value at 31 March 201 ) 8,028.0 8510 8,883 0
Property actimsutlons i 697 - 637
Issue of finance lease ) ) ~ ] (897 - 897
Capitalised expenditure B - ) 1402 1418 282.0
Capitalised interest ) o i ) i ) 18 nr 135
Disposals . ) - - : ) ) ) {863 5) “(3-2.3) {895 B)_
Depregatlon . _ R ) (01) - [GR)]
Transfer from trading properties ) 148 - 148
valvation surplus } o ) ) ) " 056 742 1698
Met book value at 31 March 2012 7,396 8 1,056.4 84532

The following table reconailes the net book value of the investment properties to the market value The components of the reconcibiation are inctuded withun ther relevant

balance sheet headings
Portfolin  Dawslopmant

ranagement programene. Total

£m £m £m

Net book value at 31 March 2011 80280 8610 88890
Plus tenant lease incentives [note 22} - 1839 “103 1942
Less head leases capitalised (note 30) ) _ ) (271} f‘l 3) (28.4)
Plus properties treated as finance leases ) 1309 52 1361
Market value at 31 March 2011 -Group _ 83157 8752 9,1909
- Jaint ventures (note 18) 1,160 2 2078 1,3680

- Group and share of josnt ventures 94759 1,0830 10,5589

Netbook value at 31March 2012 ) 73968 1,056 4 84532
Plus tenant lease incentives (note 22) 1811 236 2047
Less. head leases capitabsed {note 30) ] ) " (220 (13) (233}
Plus properties treated as finance leases 197 4 78 2052
Market value at 31 March 2012 - Group 77533 1,085.5 88398
- Joint ventures (note 18} B 13892 1016 14908

=Group and share of joint ventures 9,142.5 1,188.1 10,3306

The net book value of leasehold properties where head leases have been capitalised is £885 7m (2011 £342 4m}

The fair value of the Group's mvestment properties at 31 March 2012 has been armived at on the basis of a valuation carned out at that date by Kmight Frank LLP, external valuers
The valuation by Knight Frank LLP, which conforms to Appraisal and Valuation Standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and with IVA 1of the Intermational
Valuation Standards, was arnved at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for simlar properties Fixedasset properties include capitalised interest of £189 9m
(2011 £176 4m) The average rate of interest capitalisation far the year1s 5 0% (2011 5 2%) The historical cost of investment properties is £6,006 5m (2011 £6,767 6w}

The current value of investment properties, including joint ventures, n respect of proposed developments is £212 6m (2011 £370 5m) Developments are transferred out of
the development programme when physically complete and 95% let, or twa years after practical completion, whichever is earlser The only scheme transferred out of the

development programme during the year was St David's 2, Cardiff

The Group has outstanding capital commitments of £105 3m at 31 March 2012 (2011 £157 8m)
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15 Other property, plantand equipment

Group im
Net book value at ¥ Apnl 2010 _ . ) 128
Capital expenditure ) ) . i i 16
Drsposals i o i . . T e
Depreciation i 69
Net book value at the year ended 31 March 2013 ) "3
Capltél expenditure ) R B - 23
Disposals - - ) - ) ©2)
Deprécnatnon T ) ) ) i ) (4 6]
Netbock value atthe year ended 31 March 2012 8.8
]
16 Netinvestmeantinfinanceleases !
20z om
Group £m £m
Non-current - B
Finance l-eases—gross recervables o i ) - . T - - 4145 2759
Uneamedfinancencome LT s T T e e e T pes)  [1eg)
Unguaranteed residualvalue ) ) ) ;s 57
1850 1168
Current o o . o B R
Finance leases— gross recervables B S - o 115 72
Unearned finance Income ) T T T T T B i ) {110) (63}
a5 09
Tatal net investmentin finance leases 1855 ny7
Grossreceivables fromfinance leases: ~ __
Not later than ong year ~ ) T T ST T 115 72
La;;rﬁla:norle yearbut notmore l:_har:ﬁveyears_ o __ _; - o B ) ) :- B ) 465 291
More than five years ) 368.4 2468
B 426.4 2831
Uneamed future finance income ) - c T T T - T - {2745} ) (191—1}
Unguiranteed residual value -7 i T T T ) 336 257
Netinvestment in finance leases 1855 177
The Group has leased out a number of investment properties under finance leases, which range from 30 te 100 years induration from the inception of the lease Theseare
accounted for as finance lease receivables rather than investment properties
The fairvalue of the Group's finance lease receivables, using a discount rate of 5 0% (2011 4 9%),1s £190 5m (2011 £125 8m)
17 Loan mvestments
2002 2011
Rual ertate Real estate
sacured loan Losns to secured loan Loansto
notes  thirdparties Total notes third parties Total
Croup Em £m Em £m £m £m
At the beginming of the year o _ ) o w2 500 72.2 343 500 843
Amortisation of loan note discount at acquisition R o R - _ 12 41 - __ M4
Redemptions {22.6) - (22.6) {162) - {162)
At the end of the year 08 500 50.8 222 500 722

The credit quality of loan investments is assessed by reference to external credit ratings (If available) or to historical infermation about counterparty default rates None of the

loan investments are past due and are therefore not impaired

None of the loan investments that are fulty performing have beennegotiated in the last year
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17 Loan investments continued

2012 zon
Realestate Realestate
secured loan Loansto secured loan Loansto
notes  thirdparties Total notes thirdparties Totat
Group £m Em £m Em £m Em
Counterparties with extemnal credit ratings
AAA - - - 222 - 222
AA- ) i 08 - o8 - - -
08 - [} ] 222 - 222
Counterparttes without external creditratings ) _
Group T - - - - - -
Group2? ) - _ 500 500 - 500 500
Group 3° - - - - - =
- 500 500 - 500 500
0.8 500 508 222 500 722
1 Newcounterparty(jessthan six months)
2 Existing counterparty {more thansixmonths) with no defaultsn the past
3 Exisung counterparty {(more than six months) with some defaults mnthe past.
18 Investmentsinjoint ventures
The Group's joint ventures are described below
Namae of joint ventury Parcantage traened Bumness segmant Year enddate Jomt veriture partners
The Scottish Retarl Property Limated Partnership 50 0% Retail Portfolio 31March _ The Britsh Land Company PLC
Metro Shopping Fund Limited Partnesship _ 500% Retait Portfolie 31March Delancey Real Estate Partners Limited
Buchanan Pa-rtnershlp 500% Retail Portfolic 31 December The Henderson UK Shopping Centre Fund
St Dawid's Limited Partnesship 500% Retail Portfolic 31 December —Capltal Shopping Centres PLC
Bristol Alliance Limited Partnership - 500% Retail Portfalic 31 December Hammersen ple
The Harvest Limited Partnership i - 500% Retail Portfalic 31 March JSansbury plc
The Onanalimited Partnership i 500% London Portfolie 31 March Fmgmo}e Real Estate Partrers Limited Partnership
Westgate Oxford Allrance Lirmited Partne;ghlp‘ i 500% Retail Portfalio 31March The Crown Estate Commissioners
20 Fenchurch Street Limited Partnership' i 500% londonPortfola 31 March Canary Wharf Group plc
The Martineau Galleries Limited Partnershup' 33 3% Retall Portfola 31 December Hammarsen plc/Pearl Group Limited
The Ebbsfleet Limited Partnesshp' 50 0% London Portfolio 31 March Lafarge Cement UK PLC
Millshaw Property Co Limited’ 500% Retail Portfolio 31 March Evans Propesty Group Limited
The Martineau Limited Partnership’ 333% Retail Portfolio 31December Hammerson plc/Pear! Group Limited
Hungate {York) Regeneration Limited’ 333% Retail Portfolio 30june  Crosby Lend Lease PLC/Evans Property Group Limited
C_ountrysuje Land Securities (Spnnghead) Limited® 500% London Portfalio 30 September Countryside Properties PLC
Victona Circle bimited Partnership! 50 0% London Portfolio 31March Canada Pension Plan Investment Baard
The Empress State Limited Partnership! 500% London Portfalio 31 December Capital & Countres PLC
HN|V Limited' i S00% Landon Portfolic 31 March Places for Peopie Sroup Limited
FenFarm DevelopmenES Limuted!? 500% Retad Portfolic 31 March Economic Zones World
1 Included within Other in subsequent tables,
2 Disposedofinthe yearto 31March 2012
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18 tnvestments in joint ventures continued

Year ended 31 March 2012
The Scottish Metro
Retalt Shq)pﬁnl} Brigeol
Property St Davd's TheHarvest  Tha Orlama
Umited Umited Buchanan Urmted Lmitad umited Urated
Partnerthip Partnership Partnerthip Partnership Partmyshp Partrership Partnarshep Othar Toul
Income statemant £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Rental income 72 T2 . 82 16.1 187 42 37 15 778
Finance lease interest ) - - 01 - n2 - - 01 04
Gross rental mcome (before rents payable) : T2 72 8.3 161 189 42 37 16 78.2
Rents payable 01 - - [13) (o6} - - {0.3) (2.1)
Gross rental ncome (after rems payable) : 73 72 93 148 183 42 37 113 761
Service charge income o 7 ) o 12 12 11 22 21 0.2 0.1 06 87
Servicechargeexpense _ o (13) (2.0} (11) {29) (2.5} [(:R)] 0.2) {08) (109)
Net service charge expense L {o1) (o8) - {07 {04} 01 ©1) {02) {22)
Other property relatedmcome - ~ 03 oz - 03 03 - - 01 12
Direct property e‘x;;endlture - (12} o7y [} i4 1) {26) (04) (es) (o9 (‘I_1_5)
Netrental mcome 6.3 59 82 10.3 156 39 31 103 636
Indirect property expenditllr_e - ) - ) {05} [03) (0.1 ”(o Si {0.4) 02 {03) [06) (29)
Segment profit before interest ) R 58 56 81 98 152 .7 23 97 60.7
Netinterest expén;e‘ - - (33) (47) _ (47) 7 3) - {18) (45) (66) (3iﬂ
Capltallsea |;|terésmt ) T ) T - - - - = - - 03 " os
Segment profit/(loss) 25 09 40 25 152 19 (2.1) 39 284
Segment profitbefore Interest ) 58 56 81 88 152 37 8 97 607
Trading prf_spertxe_s;ale proceeds ) - . . - - - 71 - - - 3 314
Earrymg value of t;gdlngpropemes dlsposal—s - - - (6.2) - - - (22.2) {28.4)
Profiton d-lsposafoftradmg properties ) ) - - - 09 - - - 2,1 30
L_ong-terrrT develo;;ment contract |r;corne - - - - - - 19 - - 19
[mc;"lg—terrq development contract expendltﬂre o - - - - - (1%) - - (19)
Profiton long-r.efrr] development contracts ) L - - - - - -~ - - -
Investment property disposal proceeds - 3 - - - 06 - 26.2 - - 268
Carrying value of nvestment propertydlspo—sais 3 - [02) - {04) - {25 4} - 0z {25.8)
ZLoss)/proﬁr on dm}.)osal of mvestment properties ) - oy _ - 02 - o8 - 0z 10
Net (deﬁCI_t)}SUrp]IIS on revaluation oflnvest-mentpropertles {2.8) {0 6} 13 25 (86} 01 144 148 BE3E
Ralrment {charge)/release on trading properttesA - - - {16} - - - 15 1)
Operating profit ~ 3o 48 94 18 66 46 172 283 857
Netnterest expense T {33) “n {41) a5} - (38 (30) (43} {328)
{Loss)/profitbefore tax _ (©3) 01 53 22 65 o8 142 240 529
Incorne tax T - (0 3) = - - - - ) - io 3)
(83} @2y 53 22 56 08 142 240 526
Net habilities ac:ijus”tment2 i i - - - - - > - - {04) {0.4)
Share of post tax (Loss)/profit {03) [02) 53 2.2 66 08 142 236 522
1 Excludesfairvalue movementsonmterest rate swaps
2 Jointventureswithnet Hablities are carned at zeravalue in the balance sheet where there sno commitment to fund the defiat andany d are includedin the consolid Income statement for the year
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18 Investments in jomnt ventures continued

Year ended 31 March 2011

The Scotush Metro
tetail Shoppreq, Brastal
Property Fund St Dawwd s Alliance The Harvest The Onana
Lirmited Limited Bucharan Linized Levuted Limited Limited
FPartnership Partnership Partnership Partnership Partnership Partnership Partnership Cther Total
Income staternent £m im £m Em Em Em im £m £m
Rental income ! B 77 _ 98 88 _ 147 189 49 32 7 787
Finance lease mierest - — 0z = 03 - -~ = 05
Grossrentalincome (before rentspayable) 77 98 90 147 192 49 3z 107 792
Rents payable ) ©1 - - 7 (26) (05} - - (3) (35)
Gross rental Income (after rents payable) 76 9% 90 121 1a.7 49 32 104 757
Servicechargemcome - - 13 22 06 21 23 o1 0z 06 94
Service charge expense (13) (23) (06) (30 (25} e (02) 07 (107}
Net service charge expense ) - - on - s} 02) - - 01} (13)
Other property relatedincome ’ 03 o1 - 04 oz - 01 - 11
Direct property expenditure j ) {19) (14) {18) (37) (26) 02) ©2) {08} (12 4)
Netrentalincome 60 B4 72 79 161 47 a a7 631
Indirect property expenditure N B {03) {06) 01} {12) " o8y 02 - {06) (38)
Segment profit before interest . 57 78 7 _ 67 153 45 n 91 593
Netinterest expense’ (23) (75) (41) {42) 01 {29} (49) (s9) (327
Capitalised interest ) T - T - - - - - 03 03
Segment profit/{loss) 24 03 30 25 154 16 (18) 35 269
Segment profit before interest ) _; - - :_ 57 78 71 T 67 153 45 31 91 593
Trading properties sale proceeds B - - - 12 - - - 66 178
Carrying value of trading properties disposals . - - — (162) - — - (8.3) {18.5)
Profit/{loss) on disposal of trading properties . - - — 10 -~ - - (17) 07)
Long-term development contract income ) - - - - - - - - -
Long-term development contract expenditure ) - — - - — — - — -
Profit on long-term development coniracts - - - - - - - = -
Investment property disposal proceeds . - 1199 - 17 49 - - - 1265
Carrying value of investment property disposals - (1177) - {16) (28} - - - {1229)
Profit on disposal of investment properties - 22 - a1l 13 - - - E1
Net surplus on revaluation of investmentproperties 11 _ 69 131 T 149 127 99 325 236 1147
Impairment release on trading properties - = - - — - - 21 21
Operating profit N 68 16.9 02 2227 _ 293 144 356 331 1750
Netinterest expense {33) (120) (4%) (471) 01 (29) (2.8} (36) (327)
Proﬁ‘libeforetax } B 35 49 _ 161 186 294 1158 328 295§ 1463
Income tax - {07) - - - - - {01) 08)
35 42 161 186 294 115 28 294 1455
MNet Labalities adjﬁstment‘ T o - - - T T - - (16) {16}
Share of post tax profit 35 42 16.1 185 294 115 32.8 278 1439
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18 Investmentsn joint ventures continued

Tha Scettish Metro
Ratall Shoppng Bristol
Fund 5t Dawid’s Aliance  TheHasrvest  TheGriana
Limited Urmnted Buchanan Umited tmited Limited ueited
Partnershep Partratship  Partriship Partrwrihep Partrership Fartrarshup  Partnership Other Total
Nat nvestment £m £m £m £m £m £m £m Em £m
At 1Aprd 2010 30.2 310 1221 1736 2872 807 148 482 7878
Cashcontrbuted ] 0s 2z 13 - T - 20 - 753 813
Othercontributians R - - i - - - - - 64 04
Distributions . - (210} (36) o - - - {(10) (256)
Fairvalue movement on cash flow hedges takento
comprehensiveincome 22 52 = - - 09 - o1 124
Loan advances ’ i -~ - - 82 - - - 91 173
Leanrepayments - - T2 7 (%) (198) - - (19) 79
Share of post tax profit - - 35 42 6 186 294 115 28 278 1439
At_§_1 Harch?l]‘“ . - 364 256 1359 1!4‘2 296.8 951 478 158.0 _ 939 [
Cash contributed ) o3z B8 08 - - 03 B -
Prgp:ertyand othercontnbutions - _ —_ - - - 01 - - 142 852 995
Distributions i ) T T {13) (0s6) (33) - (17 0) - T (19} i (54_ 1)
Fairvalue movement on cash ﬂ&whe&gestai:en ta ’ T T T T
_comprehensive iIncome 17 10 - = - 21 - a1 49
Disposals T ) o ) - - Tl - - - - (19} “HB)
Loan advances ) i : - - . “190 19 30 - a3 665
Loan repa;ments i R ) ) - - TS (18.0} ) - - - - (’1’:&0)
Share of post tax (loss)profit T 7T (ea) fo2) 53 22 66 o8 142 238 522
Im palrment;)f tnwvestrment ) T - - - - - - _ {2.2) o 7?12)
At31March2012 397 426 138.7 1475 287 4 1013 760 304 4 11,1376
Balma”nce sheet at 31March 2012 }
Investment properties' B 97 1091 1328 2660 2754 735 1507 346.2 1,453 4
Current assets B 63 59 82 224 233 524 37 535 1758
o - T 1060 1150 1410 2884 2987 1259 1544 3038 16292
Current liabilities } - o (36) (34} (23 (450) 8.7 (39 27 (131) (823)
Non-current liabilities ) (627) (690) - (959} 26) (217) {rs 7} {823} {403 3)
- oo T T T (66.3) (724) 23 (1409 (113) (246) {78.4) (854)  (4918)
Netassets 57 426 138.7 1475 287 4 1013 T6.0 304 4 11376
Capital commitments 05 - - 09 01 Q5 02 18 140
Market value of Investment properties’ 1014 1100 138.0 278.1 2900 743 1511 3479 1,490 8
Net (debt)/cash (60 2) {652) 19 {92.3) 07 {19.4) {(72.6) {610) (368.1)
Balance sheet at 31March 2011
Investment propemgs‘ . 989 1093 1322 2555 2815 957 1298 2241 1,3280
Current assets 73 6.2 75 394 258 456 36 593 1947
T T T Twee 1155 1397 2949 3073 1423 1334 2834 15227
Current ligbilities T - {53) (44) (38) {573) 79 (08) {85) (20)] (1201)
Non-current liabilities } _ L (64 5) (855) - (934} 26) (46 4) (772) (93.8) (453 4)
L . _ . (69.8) (839) {38) (1507} (105) (47 2) (85.8) {1258} {5835}
Net liabilstres adjustment? - - - - - - - 04 04
Netassets 364 256 1359 1442 296.8 951 476 1580 9396
Capital commitments 32 04 Q1 44 2.1 - 19 10 131
Market value of Investment properties’ 1010 1100 138.0 268.1 2979 a77 1298 2255 1,368 0
Net [debt)/cash (62.5) {83 1) 2.1 (79 9) 15 {453) 137 (86.6) (427 5)
1 Thedifference brtweenthe bogk value and the markes value is the smount included In prepayments in respect of lease incentives head | pétalised and prop treatedas finance leases
2 Jaint ventures with net tiabdities are carmedat zeravalue in the balance sheet where there s na commitment 1o fund the defiat snd any areincluded in the lidated income fortheyear
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19 Investments in subsidiary undertakings

2012 20m
Company £m £m
At thebegmningof the year ) 61730 56845
Capital injection - 2500
Caprtal contnbutions relating to share-based payments [note 32) 48 38
Reversal of past impatrments - 2347
At the end of the year 61778 6,1730

In accordance with IFRIC 11'IFRS 2-Group and Treasury Transactions’ the equity settled share-based charge for the employees of the Company's subsidianies 1s treated as an

increase in the cost of mvestment 1n the subsidianies, with a corresponding increase in the Company's equrty

The directors consider that to give full particulars of all subsidiary undertakings would lead to a statement of excessive length The principal Group undertakings, all of which

are wholly owned, either directly by the Cornpany or through a fellow subsidiary undertaking are

Wholly owned subsidiary undertakings

Groupoperations
Land Secunties Properties Limited

Investment property business

Land Secunties Intermediate Limited
Land Secunities Property Holdings Limited
Ravenseft Properties Limited

LS Cardinal Limited

The City of London Real Property Company Limited
Ravenside Investments Limited
LS Victona Properties Limited

All principal subsidiary undertakings operate in Great Britain and are registered in England and Wales A full list of subsidiary undertakings at 31 March 2012 will be appended

to the Company’s next annual return

20 Otherinvestments

2012

201

Group £m &m
At the beginning of the year 18 18
Acquisitions - } 305 -
Atthe end of the year 323 1.8
Durning the year, the Group acquired 3 12% interest in the X-Leisure Unit Trust for £30 Sm
21 Tradingproperties and long-term development contracts
Group

o i

mirastructure Cther contracts Total
Trading properties £m £m £m £m
At1Apnl2010 B75 165 39 879
Capital expenditure j 37 04 - 41
Caprtabised interest N +1:] - - o8
Transfer frominvestment properties 370 - - 370
Disposals - T4 0 - (+4)
Impairment provision ) {14) T - - (14)
Contract costs deferred ) - - 23 23
At 31March 201 . 1076 155 6.2 1293
Transfer between categories (397} 397 - -
Capital expenditure ) - 22 206 - 228
Capitalised Interest o8 06 - 14
Transfer to investment properties - - {148} - (148)
Dispasals _ fos) a9y - (s8)
Impairment proviston (20} - - (2.0}
Contract costs deferred - - 22 2.2
At31March2012 £8.0 56.7 a4 1331
The realisable value of the Group's trading properties at 31 March 2012 has been based on a valuation carned out at that date by Knight Frank LLP, external valuers The
curnulative iImpairment provision at 31 March 2012 in respect of Development land and infrastructure was £110 5m {31 March 2011 £108 Sm, of which £4 2m s fully
impaired}, and in respect of Other was £0 3m (31March 2071 £0 3m)
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21 Trading properties and long-term development contracts continued

Group

2012 200
Long term development contracts £m [
Incomestatement _ -
Contract revenue recogmsedasrevenuemth_eyear B T4 394
Contract expenditure recognised as costs i the year ) ) N (38) - (340}
36 54
Balance sheet .
Contract costs incurred and recognised profits {less recognised losses) to date _ 498.0 4537
Advances recerved from customers ) . - {489 6) (4783)
_ 84 54
Plus gross amount due fram customers for contract work included n prepayments and deferred income} ) - - 08
Balanceat the end of the year 84 62
22 Trade and otherreceivables
Group Company
2012 o1 2012 201
Em £m Em £m
Trade recervables : _ 346 550 ~ -
Less allowance for doubtful accounts B ) B i T - (1E1f {139) - -
Net trade recervables B . _ 245 371 - -
Pmpert; sales recewables _ - - : -_ - ) : 482.1 233 - i ‘_—
Other recevables . _ B : R ) ) :_ . 41 57 o1 -
Tenant lease incentives ) _ 2047 1942 - I
P:eﬁayn;ent—s and accrued income - ) T . 159 T 296 - T o
Current taxassets i - o h - - - i i - - 102 45
Net investment In finance leases due within oné}ear(ﬂote 16) ) - 05 09 - -
Amounts due fu;om Joint ventu;_e_s : R ) _ : } : _ t . : ) 78 577 - -
Loans to Group undertakings - - 55 54
Total current trade and otherreceivables 7596 3525 158 00
Plus. non-current trade and other recervables {deferred consideration) - 770 - -
Total trade and other receivables 7596 4295 158 100
Upta& Uptoi2 Morethan
30days months months 12 months
past dus past dus pastdus past due Total
Group £m £m £rm £m
Accounts recefvable past due
Asat31March 2012 . o ) : ) B ) i - ) B o
Past due but not mparred i i o i - 230 13 02 - 245
Past due and impaired ) - 17 30 54 101
230 30 32 54 346
Asat31March 2011 - - T - o T
Past due but not impaied ST ~ i ) “ 280 49 1 T- 7 240
Past due and imparred i o ) i ) 07 26 26 11 70
28.7 75 37 111 510
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22 Tradeand otherreceivables continued

Inaccordance with IFRS 7, the amounts shown as past due represent the total credit exposure, not the ameunt actually past due Trade recewvables are all considered past

dueas they relate to rents recewvable from tenants all of which are payable in advance

2012

20m

Group Em £m
Movementin allowances for doubtful accounts o
At1April _ 129 202
Net charge/(release) to the income statement o Y (04}
Utilised i the year i o {47 ) {59)
At 31March 101 139

w12 2om
Group Em im
Movementintenant leaseincentives _
At Apnl B . _ 194 2 1719
Revenue recog;used _ 147 186
Capitalincentives granted ) o _ 2.6 79
Provision for doubtful recervables T (22) (18)
Disposal of properties B T ) 48 (24
At31March 2047 1942
23 Momes held in restricted accounts and deposits

2012 om
Growp £m £m
Cashat bankand in hand ) _ 130 19
Short-term deposits _ _ - 80
Liguidity funds 165 172

295 351
Monies held in restricted accounts and deposits represent cash held by the Group in accounts with conditions that restrict the use of these monies by the Groupand, as
such, does not meet the definition of cash and cash equivalents as defined in IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' Holding cash in restricted accounts does not prevent the
Group from optimusing returns by putting these monies on short-term deposit
Thecredit quality of monies held in restricted accounts and depaosits can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings of the counterparty where the account
ordeposit 1s placed

2m2 20m
Group £m £m
Counterparties with external credit ratings
ARA ) - 172
AA ) ) T - - -
At C i . ~ B - 15 19
A o Y 60
BBB+ ) i 2 -

295 351
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24 Cash and cashequivalents

Croup Comparry
202 20m 2012 zon
£m £m £m £m
Cashat bankand inhand ns 136 02 0z
Short-term deposits. ) ST 10 240 - -
Liquidity funds - 172 - - -
297 376 02 02
’
Liguidity funds

The bquidity funds are AAA rated cash-investment funds with constant net asset values, offering the Group same day access to the funds deposited These investments
yielded an average return of 0 6% in the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011 an average retum of 0 4%)

Short-term deposits
The effective nterest rate on shart-termdepasits was 0 4% at 31 March 2012 (2011 0 2%} and had anaverage matunty of 2 days (2011 1day)

The crediz quality of cash and cash equivalents can be assessed by reference to external eredit ratings of the counterparty where the account or deposit is placed

02 20m
Group £ &
Counterparties with external credit ratings L o _ . o o B
AAA o o o o o o I -
Mo — . o - 51 .
At 16 025w, -
T T o e S e
A T T i - T 22 - -
297 376
25 Trade and other payables
Group Company
20 20m anz won
im £m Em im
Trade payables o o _ o ) B 74 2z - -
Capital payables - _ ~ ) ) 481 746 - 7T
Otherpayables T - _ _ - T - 459 458 72 54
Acr{ualsané_deférred}rlct;m{ _ : _ ) _-_ ) _: I ) o '__“ o _: o A‘ 2141 228.1 j 36 45
Amounts owed to Jountventurés _ _ _ B 7 i . R R 448 585 - -
Loans from Group undertakings } - - 6813 3932
Total current trade and other payables _ . _ ~ 3513 4232 6915 4031
Non-currenttradeandotherpayab-les T 277 62 - -
Total trade and other payables 3890 4294 6915 4031

Capital payables represent amounts due under contracts to purchase properties, which were unconditionally exchanged at the year end, and for work completed on
investment properties but not paid for at the year end Deferred income principally relates to rents receved in advance
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26 Provisions

Ciroup £m
At14prl 2010 A 15
Charge toincome statement for the year a 69
Utlised in the year _ __._._(li}
Released to the income statement in the year . 03}
Reclassified from accruals 0S5
At 31 March 201 L B R 74
Charge toincome statement forthe year B o 32
Utilised in the year _ [24)
Released to the income statement wthe year _ ~ 02)
Redassified from accruals 06
At 31 March 2012 8.6
Included in the balance above, the following amounts are antiopated to be utilised within one year
At31 March 2011 ) i 74
At31March 2012 83
Provisions retate to costs ansing in the ardinary course of business in respect of a number of properties held by the Group
27 Denvative financialinstruments
2z 201
Azsats Liatulities Assets Labilities
Sroup £ fm im £m
Interest-rate swaps (non-designated} - (65) - (20
Total - {6 5) — (20)
Non-designated denvatives are classified as a non-current asset or Liability
Interest-rate swaps
The Group uses interest-rate swaps to manage 1ts exposure to interest-rate movemnents onits interest-beaning loans and investments The fair value of these contractsis
recorded in the balance sheet and 1s determined by discounting future cash flows at the prevailing market rates at the balance sheet date
The change in fair vatue of the contracts that are not designated as hedging nstruments s taken to the income statement For contracts that are designated as cash flow
hedges the change in the fair value of the contracts 1s recognised wn the statement of other comprehensive incomne There was no ineffectiveness ta be recogmsed from
the designated cash flow hedges in either the currentor prior year The deferred asset or Labibity assurned 1s released to the income statement on termination or expiry of
the hedge
At the balance sheet date, the notional amount of outstanding derwvative financial instruments was as follows
2012 2011
im £m
Interest-rate swaps 2200 2200
2200 2200
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2B Borrowings

2012

Nocenal/
Effactve notonal
Secured/ Fixed/  snterestrate value Fairvalue Bookvalus
Group unsacured floating % Em £m £m
Current borrowangs
Sterling : - T
5 253 per cent QAG Bond i ) Secured Fixed 53 105 122 105
Amounts payable under finance leases (note 30) Unsecired Fixed 7.8 03 03 03
Total current borrowings 108 125 108
Non-current borrowings 7 -, - B
Sterling ) . )
5 292 per cent MTN due 2015 ) i  Secured Fixed 53 [ 227 1278 1227
4875 pe-rc-em MTN due 2019 } Secured Fixed 50 4000 442.4 3974
5 425 per cent MTN due 2022 _ ~ : _ Secured Fixad 55 25513 290.9 2547
4 875 per cent MTN due 2025 . o ___ Secured Fixed 49 3000 3284 25975
% 391 per cent MTN due 2026 B - . ~ Secured Fixed 54 2107 2364 2099
5 391 per cent MTN due 2027 ) - Secured Fixed 54 | o088 6892 8064
5 376 per cent MTN due 2029 o T _ secoed  Fixed s4| 376 | 3569 | e
5396percent MTNdue2032 T " Secured  Fixed 54| 3227 3594 3209
5125 per cent MTN due 2036 ) - Secured Fred 51 5000 s370 | 4885
Bond exchange de-recognition adjustment - - (450 8)
- N o T o 7 30378 33684 25732
5253 pe—r cent QAG_ Bond : ) a N ) _Sggér:ea Fixed 53 3290 3805 3289
Syndicated bank debt Secured Floating  LIBOR+ 3000 3000 3000
margin
Bilateral faclities o "7 Secured  Floatng  LIBOR+ - - -
o _ R o mal'gll'l
Amounts payable under finance leases {note 30) Unsecured Fixed 78 230 354 230
Total non-current borrowings 36898 4,084.3 3,2251
Tatal borrawings 3,7005 4868 3,2359

Medium term notes (MTN)

The MTN are secured on the fixed and floating pool of assets of the Security Group Debt nvestors benefit from secunity over a pool of investrnent properties, development
properties and the Group's investment in the Bnistol Allance Limited Partnership and the Westgate Oxford Aliance Limited Partnership, valued at £8 8bn at 31March 2012
(2011 £8 7bn) The secured debt structure has a tiered operating covenant regime which gives the Group substantial flexibility when the loan tovalue and interest cover in the
Secunty Group are less than 65% and more than 1 45 times respectively If these limits are exceeded the operating envivonment becornes more restrictive with provisions

to encourage the reduction in geanng (see note 29} The interest rate is fixed until the expected matunty, being two years before the legal maturity date foreachMTN,
whereupon the interest rate for the last two yearsis LIBOR plus a step-up margin The effectiveinterest rate includes the amortisation of 1ssue costs The MTN are listed
onthe Irish Stock Exchange and their fair values are based on their respective market prices

The 4 625 per cent MTN due 2013 was classed as a current borrowing at 31 March 2011, as it was fully repaid on 3 May 201

Syndicated bank debt

At31March 2011 the Group had a £1 5bn authorised credit facility with a matunty of August 2013, which was £428 Omdrawn In December 2011, the borrowings under this
facility were repaid and the facility was cancelled in fufl At the same time a new £1.050bn facility was entered into, which matures in Decernber 2016 The new facility was
increased to £1085bn in February 2012 and was £300 Om drawn at 31 March 2012

Thisfacility 1s committed and is secured on the assets of the Secunty Group

Bilateral facilities
Committed bilateral facilities totalling £300 Om {2011 £700 Om) are available to the Group and are secured on the assets of the Secunity Group These facilitres mature
in Novemnber 2014 No drawings were made under these facilities at ether 31 March 2012 or 31 March 20Mi

Queen Anne’s Gate Bond

On 29 July 2009, the Group issued a £360 3m bond secured on the rental cash flows from the commercial lease with the UK Governiment over Queen Anne’s Gate, London,
SW1 The QAG Bond is a fully amortising bond wath a final maturity in February 2027 and a fixed interest rate of 5 253% perannum At 31March 2012 the bond had an
amortised book value of £339 4m (2071 £348 7m)
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28 Borrowings continued
Farrvalues

The fairvalues of any floating rate financial liabilities are assumed to be equal to thew norminal value

20m

Nocunal/
Effectrve notonal
Secured! Euxed( nterestrate valut favalue Bookvalut
Group unsecured floating % £m £m £m
Current borrowangs
Sterling )y
4625 per cent MTN due 2013 Secured  Floating LIBOR + 3% T T35 T a3
margin
5 253 percent QAG Bond ~ Secured Fixed 53 93 L 93
Amoaunts payable under finance leases (note 30) ) ) ) Unsecured Fexed 74 0z 02 02
Total current borrowings 330 336 330
Non-current borrowings i
Sterling ) ) i
S292percent MINduLe2015 i Secured Fired 53 1227 1789 1226
4 875 percent MTN due 2019 ) Secured Fixed 50 4000 4175 3970
5425 percent MTN due 2022 - Secured Fixed 54 2553 %70 2546
4 875 percent MTN due 2025 ) Secured Fixed 49 3000 2953 2974
5391 percentMTN due 2026 . - Secured  Fived 54 2107 2151 2098
_._5391percentMTN due 2027 - - ** 2.7z~ . . T Secured Fired 54 6089 6236 6063
SFW HTN?W_.' e " - Secured Fixed 54 3176 3229 3160
S.M 1) ﬁdm " . Secured Fixed 54 3228 3253 3209
5125 per ‘GEntMTN due 2036 N Secured Fixed 51 5000 4852 4986
Bond exchange de-recognition adjustment i B - - (467 5)
- i __ ] 30380 30818 25557
§ 253 percent QAG Bond ~ i Secured Frxed 53 3395 3585 3394 g
Syndicated bank debt Secured Floating UBOR + 4280 4280 4280 n
L i . margin E
Bilateral facilities Secured Floating LIBOR + - - - g
) magin g
Amounts payable under finance leases {note 30) Unsecured Fixed 74 282 401 28.2 zZ
Total nen-current borrowings 38337 39094 33513 &
Total borrowings 38667 35430 33843
Reconciliation of the movernent inborrowings
2002 201t
Group Em £m
At the beginneng of the year i A . 33843 35183
Repayment of loans ~ _ {4510) (5560)
Proceeds from new loans ) ) R 3000 4280
Amorusation of finance fees . : 1 {03)
Amortisation of bond exchange de-recognition adjustment _ ; 166 185
Net movernent in findnce lease obligations (51) (242)
Atthe end of the year 32359 33843

Bond exchange de-recognition

QOn 3 November 2004, a debt refinancing was completed resulting in the Group-exchangieg all of its autstanding bond and debenture debt far new MTN with tugher narmural
values The new MTN did not meet the IAS 39 requirernent to be substantially different from the debt that it replaced Cansequently the book value of the new debt is reduced
to the boak value of the original debt by the *bond exchange de-recogmition’ adjustment which 1s then amortised to zero over thelife of the new MTN The amortisation s

charged to net interest expenses in the income statement
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29 Financial sk management
Introduction

A review of the Group's objectives, policies and processes for managng and monitoning nsk 1s set out in the “Financial review” (p34—37} and “Our principal nsks and how we

manage them" (p41—43} This note provides further detail on financial nisk management and includes quantitative information on speaific financial risks

The Group is expesed to a vanety of financial nsks market risks (principaliy interest-rate risk), credit risk and iquidity nsk The Group's overall nisk management strategy seeks
tomimmuse the potential adverse effects of these on the Group's financial performance and includes the use of dervatve financial instruments to hedge certaim nsk exposures

Financial nsk management is carned out by Group Treasury under policies approved by the Board of Directors

Capital structure

The capital structure of the Group consists of shareholders’ equity and net borrowings, including cashheld on deposit The type and matunity of the Group's borrowings are
analysed further in note 28 and the Group's equity 1s analysed into its various components inthe Statement of changes in equity Capitalis managed so as to promote the

long-term success of the business and to mamntain sustamable returns for shareholders

The Group’s strategy 1sto maimntain an appropriate net debt to total equity ratio (gearing) and loan-to-value ratio (LTV) to ensure that asset level performance is translated
into enhanced returns for shareholders whilst maintaining an appropriate risk reward balance to accommeodate changing financial and operating market cycles Asthe Group
came out of the last property downturn, its objective was to see rising asset values reduce gearing and LTV ratios During the year, geanng and LTV levels reduced inlinewith
this objective The following table details a number of the Group’s key metrics in relation to managing its capital structure

2012

Jomnt Jone
Group ventures Combined Group ventures Combined

Group £m £m £m £m m [
Property partfolio } B I o .
Market value of investment praperties o B398 14908 103306 9,909 13880 10,5589
Trading prt;pemesand la-ng-term contracts - ) 1331 230 156.% 1293 462 1785

B,9729 15128 10,485.7 93202 1,4142 10,7344
Net debt ~ ~ B : . _ B }
Borrowings | 32359 3979 36338 33843 4426 38269
Cashand cash_equlvalengs o - T _- . __ “(297) (414) (711) (376) (332) . : f?O 8)
l':10r!1e_s heldnrestncted accounts and deposits -: ) - j N - R {295) (21 (322) (351} 26) ) (57‘_7}
Farr value of interest-rate swaps - 6.5 143 208 20 207 T 27
N_etdebt B . . - 33183.2 368.1 35513 33136 4275 73,741 1
Less Farvalue of interest-rate swaps ) . ) B (6.5) {143) (208) (20) (207) (227)
Reverse bond exchange de-recogmtno;(note 28) T ) - 4509 = 4509 4675 - 7 475
Adjusted net debt 36276 3538 3,581 4 37791 4068 41859
Adjusted total equity
Total equity ) -7 - T 71556 i 71556 68123 68123
Faw value of interest-rate swap; T i 65 143 208 20 207 227
Reverse bond exchange d-e-recognltlon [note 283 o -(;50 9) (450 9) {467 S) (467 5)
Adjusted total equity 67112 143 6,725 5 65,3468 207 63675
Gearing 44 5% 49 6% 4B6% 54 9%
Adjusted gearng - ) - T s41% T se% 59 5% TE57%
Loan tovalue - Group o T ‘_ :-_ __ ) i :?0 4% - : 38.0% 40 5% 39 0%
Laan to value—Security Group 376% 40 1%
Weighted average cost of debt - - - 50% T 50% 47% T ag%
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29 Financial nsk managementcontinued
The following table sumeanses the Group's financial assets and liabilties inta the categaries requiced by IFRS 7, 'Financial Instruments, Disclosure’

2012 201
Croup Em m
Available forsale financial assets 323 18
Loans and recesvables 8104 So17

Financial liabilities at amortrsed cast (3.624 S—l (38137)
Net fingncial Labilities at fair value through profit and loss {6.5) {20)

(2,788.7) (33122)

Financial nsk factors
(1) Creditnsk

The Group's principal financial assets are cash and cash equivalents, trade and other recervables, finance lease receivables, amounts due from joint ventures, loans tothird
parties and commercial property backed loan notes Further details concerming the credit sk of counterparties is provided in the note that specifically relates to each type
ofasset

~

Bank andfinancial institutions

One of the principal credit nsks of the Group anses from financial dervative instruments and deposits with banks and financial inststutions tn line with the policy approved by
the Board of Directors, where the Group manages the deposit only independently-rated banks and financial institutions wath a mimimum rating of A- are accepted Group
Treasury currently performs a weekly review of the credit ratings of all its financial institution counterparties Furthermore, Group Treasury ensures that funds deposited with
asingle financial nstitution remain within the Group'spolicy limits

Traderecewvables

Trade receivables are presented in the balance sheet net of allowances for doubtful recewvables Impairment i1s made whera there 1s objective evidence that the Group will not
be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal terms of the receivables concerned The balance 1s low relative to the scate of the balance sheet and, owing to the
long-term nature and diversity of the Group’s tenancy arrangements, the credit risk of trade receivables 1s considered to be low Furthermore, a credit report 1s obtained from
anindependent rating agency prior to the inception of a lease with a new counterparty This report 1s used to determine the size of the deposit that ts required from the tenant
atinception Ingeneral these deposits represent between three and sixmonths’ rent

Property sales
Property sales recevables relate to the sale of a small number of properties, for whichall payments to date have been recerved when due The ereditnsk on outstanding
amountsis considered to be low

Financelease recervables
This balance relates to amounts receivable from tenants in respect of tenant finance leases This is not considered a significant credit risk as the tenants are generally of good
financial standing

ioanstothrdparties
Aloan maturing in 2035 was made to Sempenan PPP (formerly Trllizm Investment Partners LP) as part of the disposal of the Trllium business This boan 1s not considered a
significant credit nisk as it s repayable from dividends from investments in government infrastructure projects

Commercial property backedioannotes
The Group acquired investrnents in commercial property backed loan notes which were independently rated with arating of AAA at acquisition The majonity of these notes
were redeemed in the year ended 31 March 2012 and the remainder has been repaid subsequent to the balance sheet date

{n) Liquidity nisk
The Group actively maintains a mixture of notes with final maturities between 2015 and 2036, and med:um-term commutted bank facilities that are designed to ensure that
the Group has sufficient available funds for its operations and its commutted capital expenditure programme

Management monitors the Group's avaitable funds as follows

March December September June March

2012 201 on zon 20m

Croup £m Im im Em Em
Cashand cash equivalents . 297 611 190 142 376
Undrawn commutted credit lines 1,0850 2300 1,7900 1,9450 17720
Avadable funds 11147 @911 18080 19592 18096
As aproportion of drawn debt 30.3% 26 1% 47 7% 540% 47 1%
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29 Financial nsk management conttnued
The Group’s core financing structure 1s 1n the Secunity Group, although the remaining Non-Restricted Group may also secure independent funding

Secunity Group

The Group's principal financing arrangements utibise the credit support of a nng-fenced group of assets {the Security Group) that compnses the majonity of the Group's
investment property portfolio These arrangements operate in ‘tiers’ determined by LTV and Interest coverratio (ICR} This structure 1s most flexible at lower tiers (witha
lower LTV and a higher ICR) and allows property acquisitions, disposals and developments to occur with relative freedom Inhigher tiers, the requirements becorme more
prescriptrve No financial covenant default is tnggered until the applicable LTV exceeds 100% orthe ICR s less than 1 Ox

Asat 31March 2012, the reported LTV for the Security Group was 37 6% (2011 40 1%}, mearing that the Group was opetating in Tier 1and benefited from maxumurm
operational flexibility

Management monitors the key covenants attached to the Secunty Group onamonthly basis, mcluding LTV, ICR, sector and regional concentration and disposals

Non-Restnicted Group
The Non-Restricted Group obtains funding when required from a combination of inter-company loans from the Security Group, equity and external bank debt Bespoke credit
facilities are established with banks when required for the Non-Restncted Group projects and jeint ventures, usually on a imited-recourse basis

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant matunty groupings based on the remaining peniod at the balance sheet date to the expected maturity
date Theamounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows

Less than Batween Batwasn Cver

Tyear  land2ysars  2andSyears Syeans

Litoup Em £m £m £m
Borrowings (excluding finance lease liabilities} 1532 3135 8523 46238
Finance lease Liabities ) ) ; _ ) _ i _ k _W ) R : 21 36 _ 358 2035
Dervative financial instruments . _ i _ _ - - __ &5 -
Trade payables i . . B . 74 - - -
Capital payables ) 481 - - -
250.8 371 8723 4,827 3

201

Lessthan Bebwern Between Crver

Tyear Tand2years 2and5years S years

Group fm im im im
Borrewings {excluding finance lease l:abilities) 2129 1901 11020 47899
Finance lease liabilities | ) i - i : _k i ) ’ T 22 21 59 _ 2432
Derivative financial instrurments - - ’ ) - - 20 -
Trade payab_les B ’ i T T . : B 122 - - -
Capital payables ) ) } T B 746 - - -

3019 1922 1,1099 50331

() Market risk
The Group is exposed to market nisk throughinterest rates and availability of credit

Interestrates

The Group uses derwative products to manage its interest-rate exposure, and has a hedging policy that generally requires at least 80% of our existing debt plus increases in
debt associated with net committed capital expenditure to be at fixed interest rates for the coming five years Due toa combination of factors, pnncipally the high level of
certainty required under IAS 39 'Financial instruments Recogrition and Measurement’, hedging instruments used in this context do not qualify for hedge accounting Specific
interest-rate hedges are also used within our joint ventures to fix the interest rate exposure on imited-recourse debt Where speaific hedges are used in geared joint ventures
1o fix the interest exposure on kmited-recourse debt, these may qualify for hedge accounting

At 31 March 2012, the Group (including jont ventures} had £0 6bn (2011 £0 7bn) of interest rate swaps in place, and its net debt was 94 8% fixed (2011 92 1%) Based onthe

Group's debt balancesat 31 March 2012, a 1% increase in interest rates would increase the net interest payable in the income statement by £3 Om (2071 £4 3m} The
sensitvity has been calculated by applying the interest rate change to the vaniable rate borrowings, net of interast-rate swaps and cash and eash equivalents
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29 Financial nsk management continued
Foreign exchange

Foreign exchange nisk anses when future commercial transactions or recognised assets or habilities are denominated n a currency that s not the Group's functional currency

The Group does net normally enter inte any foreign-currency transactions as it 15 UK based However, where significant committed expenditure in foreign currenciesis
identified, it is the Group's policy to hedge 100% of that exposure by entering into forward purchases of foreign currency to fixthe Sterling value Therefare the Group's

foreign exchange nisk ss low
The Group had no foreign currency exposure at 31 March 2032 orat 31 March 2011

Finanaal matunty analysis

The interest rate profile of the Group's undiscounted borrowings, after taking into account the effect of the interest-rate swaps, are set out below

2012

201

Fixed Floatng Fized Floating
rate rate Total rate rate Total
Croup £m im Em £m £m £m
Sterling 3,400 6 3000 3,700 6 3,438.7 4280 38657
The expected maturity profiles.of the Group's borrowings are as follows
2z zom
Flawd Floating Frced Floating

rate rate Total rate rate Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Oneyearorless, orondemand B _ A ) R LT - o 330 - 330
More than one year but net more than two years. ~ T _ a7 - _ 87 106 - 106
More than two years but not mare than five years 1657 3000 4657 1621 4280 5901
More than five years 32154 - 3,215 4 32330 - 32330
3,40056 3000 3,7006 3,438.7 4280 3.866.7

The expected maturity profiles of the Group's derivative instruments.are as follows
2012 2m
Group £m &m
Oneyearor less, orondemand B _ B - -
More than one year but not more than two years i - -
More than two years but not more than five years ) 2200 2200
More than five years - -
2200 2200

Valuation hierarchy

Interest-rate swaps and other investments are the only financial instrurents which are carmed at fair value  The table below shows the aggregate assets and liabilities carned

at fair value by valuation method

2012

2011

Lavell Lewl2 Level3 Total Level1 Lewel2 Level3 Total
Group Em £m £m Em Em im Em Em
Assets ~ B - _32.3 - 323 - 18 - 18
Liabiities - {6 5) - {6 5) - (20} - {20}
Mote
Level 1 vilued uting unadpzsted quoted pricesin actrve markets forident=al financlal inctruments.
Level 2 valoed using tech based onink hat can be aby df; market data
Level 3 vatued using technaques incorp g in other thanobservable market data

Ve
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30 Obligationsunderfinance leases

2012 2m
Group £m £m
The muinimumi lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows _ i i
Not later than one year ) i _ 21 22
Later than one year but not more than five years A ‘i 71 80
More than five years ) i T 2035 2432

o 2127 2534

Future finance charges on finance leases T (185 4) {2250)
Present value of finance lease Liabilities 233 28.4
The present value of finance lease Liabilities 1s as follows . _ i
Not later than one year | ) ’ o . Y 02
Later than one year but not more than five years ) ’ o __ ) '_ ) - [0_1]
Morethan five years B ) o i ) ) 230 283

233 28.4

The fair value of the Group's lease obligations, using a discount rate of 5 0% (2011 4 9%), 15 £35 7m {2011 £40 3m)

31 Net penston {deficit)/surplus

Defined contnbution scheme

A defined contribution scheme was intreduced on 1 January 1999 for all new adrministrative and sentor property based employees, subject to eligibility, togetherwitha
separatesimilar scheme, effective 1 Aprl 1998, for other property based employees

Pension costs for defined contribution schemes are as follows

2012 201
Group £m £m
Defined contributionschemes 2.0 20
Definedbenefit scheme

The Pension & Assurance Scheme of the Land Securities Group of Companies (the Scheme) is awholly-funded scheme, and the assets of the Scheme are held in a self-
administered trust fund which 1s separate from the Group's assets

Contrbutions to the Scheme are determined by a qualified independent actuary on the basis of tnennial valuatiens using the projected unit credit method Asthe Scheme s
closed to new members, the current service cost 1s expected to increase as a percentage of salary of the Scheme members, under the projected unit credit method, as
members approachretirement A full actuarial valuation of the Land Secunuies Scheme was undertaken on 30 June 2009 by the independent actuaries, Hymans Robertson
Consultants & Actuaries As aresult of this valuation, the Trustees and the Group have agreed that, in order to address the deficit at that time, employer contributions of 30%
of pensionable salary will be paid, together with additional emplayer contributions of £4m per annum, for a period of sixyears commencing on 1July 2011 This valuation was
updated to 31 March 2012 using, where required, assumptions prescribed by 1AS 19, ‘Employee Berefits' The next full actuanal valuation will be performed as at 30 June 2012

Alldeath-in-service and incapacity benefits ansing during employment are wholly insured No post-retirement benefits other than pensions are made available to employees
of the Group

The major assumptions used i the valuation, were (in normsnal terms)

2012 201
Group % %
Rate of increase in pensionable salaries 350 370
Rate of increase in penstons in payment 350 370
Discount rate ) 3 - ’ B | ’ i -0 0T Y 570
Inflation —Retarl Price Index o i - T i -7 T 1.50 370

_ __ - Eons_umer Price Index _ } _ . - ) . ; ) " 270 320
Expected returnon scheme assets 525 602
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31 Net pension {deficit}/surplus continued
The expected return on scheme assets is based on expectavions for bonds and equities At the year end, the expected return on bonds 1s based on market yields of long-dated
bondsat thatdate The estimated expected return on equities includes an additional equity-nsk premium

Inthe prioryear, the Group changed the basis on which inflation 1s estimated from the Retail Price Index (RPf) to the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for part of the scheme's
liability This was accounted for as a change in accounting estimate and was therefore applied prospectivety from1 April 2010 The effect of the change was to decrease the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at 31 March 2011 by £2 1m

The mortality assumptions used in this valuation were

2012 2011
Groap Years Years
Life expectancy at age 60 for current pensioners—Men 300 299
-Women - 317 315

Life expectancy at age 60 for future pensioners {curzent age 40) - Men ) i 331 329
-Women 349 347

The fair value of the assets in the scheme {including annuities purchased to provide certain pensions in payment) and the expected rate of return {net of investment
management expenses) were

2012 2omn 202 m
Group % % £m £m
Equities ) } : _ ) . _ 150 750 596 640
Bondsand insurance contracts . _ 398 493 1018 863
Other i _ i _ 050 050 10 03
Fair value of scheme assets i - i ) i _ . ’ i 1624 1506
Present value of scheme babilities (164 8) {1419)
Net pension (deflcit)/surplus (24} g7
The major categones of scheme assets as a percentage of total scheme assets are as follows
2002 2m
Group % %
Equities ) 37 43
Bonds and insurance contracts 53 57

The schemne assets do not include any directly owned financtal mstruments issued by the Company Indirectly owned financial instrurnents had a fair value of less than £0 1m
{2071 less than £01m)

2012 20m
Croup Em £m
Analysis of the amounts charged to the income statement

Analysis of the amount charged to operating profit ) ) .

Current service cost 10 13
Charge to operating profit 10 13
Analysis of amount credited tointerest expense . )

Expected return on scheme assets ) i } ) (ER)] (86}
Interest on scheme babilines 8.0 82
Nat credit ta interest expense {11} {0 4)

The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme Liabilities are set out below

Assumption Change inassumption Impact on schema Uabilities
Discount rate Increase/decrease by 01% Decrease/increase by 2% or £3 3m
Rate of mortality Increase by 1year Increase by 2 5% or £2 Om

As the above table demonstrates, changes in assumptions can have a significant impact on the scheme liabriies The assumptions agreed with the Trustees of the Scheme for
the tnennial valuation and subsequent intenm updates differ from those described by 1AS 19, "Employee Benefits' Using these assumptions would result in a balance sheet
deficit for the Scheme of £35 Om at 31 March 2012 as opposed to a deficit of £2 4m
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31 Net pension (deficit}/surplus continued

Group 02 201
Change in the present valiiz of the defirwd benefit obiipation £ Em
At the beginrung of the year . ) . . 1419 148.1
Current service cost o _ _ . ~ 10 13
Interest cost . i ) ) _ 8.0 a2
Actuanial losses/(gans) ) : o B i _ 184 (113)
Benefits paid _ j—- (47 {46)
Contnbutions by scheme partiapants 0.2 02
At the end of the year 1648 1419
Group 2012 201
Changes i the laiy value of scheme assets £m £m
At the beginrung of the year B ) . B o . 1506 1416
Expected returnon scheme assets ) - B _ A 91 86
Employer contnbutions ST _ _ . h 49 51
Actual return less e;cpe-cted teturn on scheme assets ) - A 23 {03)
Benefitspaid B i o T T -7 {47) (46)
Contabutions bysd:eme partuc;pants T } B - —— T ) 0.2 02
Atthe end of the year 162.4 1506
Actual return on scheme assets 114 8.3
Group 2012 zom
Analysls of th Inthe balance th ol £m Em
At the beginning of the year o L _ 87 (65)
Chargeto operatmép{oﬁi o j - _"_ - _ } - e {10) (+3}
Expected returnon scheme assets o R ) ) _ o B _ 91 86
Interest on scheme liabiities - R ) - ) {8.0) 82)
En_wplaye—r contrbutions ’ T T o T 49 51
Actuanal (losses)lg;m; T - ) ) ) ) (161} 110
At the end of the year (2.4} 87
G 2012 zom
Anabsisof th isadin ot preh i m
Analysis of gains and losses N _ o . . R

Actual return less e):cpe-cted retumn on scheme assets R . _ _ ) i ’ 23 (03)
Expenence (losses)/gains ansing on scherne lrabilies {18.4) 113
Actuanal (losses)/gams {16 1) 110
Cumulative actuanal losses recognised nother comprehensive income {44 5) {28 4)
Actuanial gains and losses are recognised mmediately through the Statement of comprehensive income

Group e 261 w0 008 2008
History of exp d1 £m £m &m &m £
Expenence adjustments ansingonscheme assets B _ _

Amount ) 23 {03) 252 (262) {121
Percent;ge of scheme assets ) - 14% “o2% 17.8% 24 5% 87%
Experience adjustments arising on schemeliabilities -

Amount ) T o ) T (184) 113 {40 4) 10 (320)
Percema-ge ofthe présent value of funded obligations } ] B 12% T 79% 273% 106% T 258%
Present value of scheme Labilities _ (164 B) {(1419) (1481} (1047) (1239)
Farvalueof schemeassets T - } 1624 1506 1416 1071 1390
Non-permissible surplus ) ” ) ) - - - - (41)
(Deficst)feurplus (2.4) B7 65) 30 110

The contributions expected to be paid in respect of the defined-benefit schemes dunig the financral year ending 31 March 2013 amount to £4 8m

The Company did not operate any defined-contribution schemes or defined-benefit schemes dunng the financial year ended 31 March 2012 or in the previous financial year
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32 Share-based payments

The Group's share-based payments are all equity settled and compnise the Savings Refated Share Option Schemne (Sharesave), vanous Executive Share Option Schemes
(ESOS), the Deferred Bonus Share Scheme related to the annual bonus scheme, the Long-Term Incentive Plan (including the Matching Performance Share Plan) and
Conditional shares granted on the appointment of Robert Noel on 1January 2010 Inaccordance with IFRS 2 'Share-based Payment’ the farr value of equity-settled share-
based payments to employees s determined at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period based on the Group's estimate of shares or
options that will eventually vest

The totat cost recognised in the income statement is shown below

2mz2 20m
Group £m Em
Savings Related Share Option Scheme . . 03 o1
Executive Share Option Schemnes o B o i 0s 06
Deferred Bonus Share Scheme B _ ) ) } o T -_ _ o 5
Long-Term Incentive Plan . - . B 2.7 21
Conditional shares granted 1january 2010 T ) ) 02 05

48 38

Savings Related Share Option Scheme

Under the 2003 Savings Related Share Option Scheme all staff who have been with the Group for a continuous period of nat less than six months are eligible to make regular
menthly contributions into a Sharesave scheme operated by Lloyds TSB Bank and administered by Equinits Ltd Cn completion of the three, five or seven year contract period,
ordinary shares in the Company may be purchased at a price based upon the current market price at date of invitation less a 20% discount Options are satisfied by the issue
of new shares Options are normally forfeited if the employee leaves the scheme befere the options vest, or lapse If aptions are not exercised within six months of the bonus
date Incertan arcumstances leavers may exercise their options early based upon current savings Alternatively, they may continue saving to receive the tax-free bonus for
an additional six months or withdraw their cash immediately Fair-value calcutations assume a lapse rate, based upon histonic values, of approximately 20% for employees
leaving the Group before vesting

2003 Savings Related Share Option Scheme

weightedaverage
Number of options eXercise price
2012 201 2012 20m
Nurnber Number Pance Pence
Atthebeginningoftheyear B . 633,040 692,070 427 M7
Granted o i ) o 102662 78848 &1 417
Exercised o ) ' o {31,410) (17407)  3s8 _436
Forfeted ) {32,999) (56,526) 472 441
Lapsed {51,984) (63,945) 636 686
Atthe end of the year 619,309 633,040 442 427
Exercisable at the end of the year 4,456 9,641 1,235 1,238
Years Years
Wesghted average remaining contractual life 179 257

The options outstanding under the scheme are exeraisable at prices between 388p and 1372p after three, five or seven years from the date of grant 1,200 of the options
ocutstanding are exercisable at 862p and 198 at 1032p, 4,876 at 1372p, 1,553 at 1315p, 466,559 at 388p, 55,884 at 477p and 89,039 at 627 5p durng 2072 and the periods
201210 2013, 2012 t0 2014, 2012 to 2016, 2013 to 2077 and 2013 to 2018, respectively

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise during the year was 67 7p (2011 693p) Duning the year options were granted on 17 June 2011 (2011 18 June 2010)
The estimated fair value of the options granted in the year was £0 1m (2011 £01m)

Land Secunties Annual Report 2012 143

SANIWILYLS IVIDNVYNI4



Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31March 2012 continued

32 Share-based payments continued
Executive Share Option Schemes
2000 Executive Share Option Scheme

Waighted rvarage

Number of options A xe(IEe prce

2012 20m Mz Fanil

Number Number Pance Pence

At the beginning of the year R L L oo 95,200 98,178 759 758
Exercised o - ~ ) o B - (59,083) - 775 -
Foffeted - (2.978) - 7®
Lapsed {5.601) - 733 -
Atthe end of the year 30,516 95,200 732 759
Exercisable at the end of the year 30,516 95,200 73z 759
Years Years

‘Weighted average remaiming contractual kife 030 076

No new grants have been made under this scheme since 19 July 2002 These optrons have fully vested as the growth in the Group’s normalised adjusted diluted earnings per

share exceeded the growth in the Retail Prices Index by 2 5% per annum over the vesting penod

Options are satisfied by the 1ssue of new shares Options are forfeited, Inmost arcumstances, when an employee leaves the Group before vesting or lapse if they are not
exercised within 10 years of the date of grant The options outstanding under the scheme are exercisable at 732p n 2072 The weighted average share price at the date of
exercise for share options exercised duning the year was 838p No options were exercised dunng the prioryear

2002 Executive Share Option Scheme

Weighted average

MNurmnber of options EXEICITR PR

2012 201 2012 20m

Number Number Pence Pence

At the beginning of the year L ) 666,710 694,326 930 929
Exercsed o h B -7 T (23533) (10924} 708 710
Forfeited _ . ) o ) B - (16,692} - 1044
Lapsed T (224.727) - 945 -
Atthe end of the year 418,450 666,710 934 930
Exercisable at the end of the year 418,450 665,710 934 930
Years Years

\Wetghted average remaining contractual life 194 292

No new grants have been made under this scheme since 12 July 2004

These options have fully vested as the growth in the Group’s normalised adjusted diluted earnings per share exceeded the growth in the Retail Prices Index by 2 5% perannum
aover the vesting period Options are satisfied by the issue of new shares Options are normally forfeited if the employee leaves the scheme before the options vest or lapse if
optrons are not exercised within 10 years of the date of grant 137,716 and 280,734 of the options cutstanding under the scheme are exercisable at 710pand 1044p
respectively up to 2014 The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was 740p {2011 710p)
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32 Share-based paymentscontinued
2005 Executive Share Option Scheme

Waightedsverage

Numbar of options exercise price

2012 20m 2012 201

MNumber Number Pence Pence

At the beginnuing of the year - 3,244,458 2,553,576 817 904
Granted ) ) i 654309 974,252 828 584
Exercised " (24822) (21,748) 524 493
Forfeited (892,073) {161,622) 1,158 830
Atthe end of the year 3,081872 3,344,458 723 817
Exerclsable at the end of the year 576,751 533,869 1,269 1,517
Years Yedrs

Weighted average remaining contractual lfe 761 791

The 2005 Executive Share Option Scheme is open to executives and management stafi not eligible to participate in the Land Securities 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan for
semior executives Options are granted over ordinary shares in the Company at the muddle market price on the three dealing daysimmediately preceding the date of grant
The three year vesting period is not subject to performance conditions Options are satisfied by the transfer of shares from the Employee Share Option Trust QOptions are
normally forferted if the employee leaves the scheme before the options vest, or lapse if options are not exercised within 10 years of the date of grant Farr value calculations

assume a lapse rate, based upon histonc values, of 2% per annum for employees leaving the Group before vesting

The options outstanding under the scheme are exercisable at 469p, 584p, 723p, 827 5p, 1095p, 1280p, 1560p and 1565p during the penods 2012 to 2019, 2013 to 2020,

2012 to 2019, 2014 t0 2021, 2012 to 2019, 2012 to 2015, 2012 to 2017 and 2012 to 2016, respectively

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was 749p (2011 718p) Dunng the year options were granted on 29 june

2071(2011 29 June 2070) Theestimated fair value of the options granted on those dates was £0 5m (2017 £0 6m}

Deferred Bonus Shares Scheme

Numbar of thares

2012 201

At the beginming of the year 243,523 142,756
Granted 46,644 111,822
Capitalisation of ddends 9,046 11072
Exerased (168,550) {22,127)
At the end of the year 130,653 243,523
Exercisable at the end of the year - -
Years Yeary

Weighted averape remaining contractual life 153 160

The Executive Directors’ Annual Bonus Scheme s structured in two distinct parts. Under the Annual Bonus participants are ebigible for awards of up 10 100% of salary, 25%

deferred into shares The underlying performance cntena are specific to each Executive Director and include Total returns, Group Profit, Investment and Business Unit

performance Under the Additonal Benus Opportunity partsopants are eligible for additional awards of up to 200% of salary, 50% deferred into shares Awards underthe

planare savisfied by transfers of existing shares held by the Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT)

The shares are deferred for two or three years and normally forfeited if the Executive Director leaves employment during the period Fair value has been adjusted for

participants who have left the Group, but no adjustment has been made for future anticipated tapses The deferred shares outstanding under the scheme are to be 1ssued at
nil consideration subject to vesting conditions being met The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for shares exercised during the year was 676p (2011 576p)
Duning the year deferred shares were granted on 29 June 2011 (2011 29 June 2010) The estimated fair value of the rights over shares granted in 2012 was £0 4m

(207 £0 6m)
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32 Share-based payments continued
2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan

Nurnber of shares

2012 on
At the beginning of the year o - o L 2,358,103 1,791,301
Granted i o T T T T T Tae9%0 1086600
Vested and exercised ) o R B ~ T ) ) {289,787) (202,989)
Forfeited o - - i} (619,817)  (315809)
Attheend of the year 2,178,445 2,358,103
Exerasable at the end of the year - —

Years Years
Weghted average remaining contractual bife 123 165

The Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for Executive Directors and senior executives authonses the Remuneration Committee to make grants of LTIP Performance Shares with
aface value of up to 100% of salary to participants In addition, an award of Matching Performance Shares can be made, linked to a co-investment in shares by participants
The partiaipant’s mvestment car: be made through shares acquired under the Deferred Bonus Plan and/or through optional pledging of shares purchased in the market

The maximum level of matching s shares to the value of 50% of salary for Executive Directors and 25% of salary for senior executives Ona twao for one basis the maximum
Matching Performance Shares award 15 over shares with a value of 100% of salary for Executive Eurectors and 50% of salary for senior executives Awards of LTI Performance
Shares and Matching Performance Shares are subject to the same performance measures over three years For awards up to and including those made on 31 March 2009 half
of any award will vest based on achieving increases in Normalised Adjusted Drluted Earmings Per Share (NADEPS) The other half will vest dependent on the Group's Total
Property Return (TPR) equalling, or exceeding, IPD weighted indices which reflect the sectormix of Land Securities’ investment portfolio For awards commenging with the
grant of LTIP Performance Shares on 29 June 2008, NADEPS has beenreplaced by arelative Total Shareholder Return {TSR) measure Specifically, Land Securities’ three-year
TSR performance (share price increase plus reinvested dividends) will be compared against the TSR performance of a comparator group of certain FTSE 350 Real Estate
Companies Vesting s on a siding scale between 0% for performance below the index and 100% for performance which beats the index by 4% per annum or more Awards
may be satisfied by the 1ssue of new shares and/or transfer of treasury shares and/or transfer of shares other than treasury shares

For awards made with the TPR performance condition, fair value calculations assume that LTIP and matching shares will be awarded at 50% of the maximum possible under
the scheme and have been adjusted for participants who have left the scheme, but no adjustment has been made for future antioipated lapses For themarket based TSR
awards, the effect of the performance conditions is incorporated into the grant date fair value of the award No subsequent adjustment to the charge can be made toreflect
the outcome of the performance test Adjustments can, howeved &enade for participants whp leave the scheme before vesting

The shares outstanding under the scherne are to be ssued at nit consideration provided performance conditions are met The weighted average share price at the date of
exercise for shares exercised duning the year was722p (2011 600p) Rights to receive 423,390 Matching Performance Shares were granted on 29 June 2011 (2011 613,703
and 26,173 Matching Performance Shares were granted on 30 June 2010 and 21 December 2010 respectively) Rights to receive 306,560 Matching Performance Shares were
granted on 29 July 2011 (2011 429,738 and 13,086 Matching Performance Shares were granted on 30 July 2010 and 21 December 2010 respectively) The estimated fair value
of the rights over the shares granted on those dates was €3 2m (2011 £2 4m)

Conditional shares granted 1 January 2010

Nurnber of shares

2m2 Zom

At the beginming of the year o 126,000 160,000
Vestedandexercised o T ) ] T T } (46.006} ) 7(34,000)
Atthe end of the year 80,000 126,000
Exercisable at the end of the year - -
Years Years

Weighted average remaining contractual life 025 089

160,000 shares were granted to Robert Noel on hus appointment on i January 2010 46,000 shares vested on 30 June 2011 (2011 34,000 shares vested on 30 June 2010}
A further 80,000 shares vest on 30 June 2012, provided that Robert Noelisemployedat the vesting date There are no other performance conditions The weighted average
share price at the date of exerase for shares exerased duning the year was 837p (2011 567p) The estimated fair value of the shares an the date of grant was £1 0m
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32 Share-based payments continued

Fair-value nputs for awards with non-market performance conditions

Fairvalues are calculated using the Black-Scholes aption pricing model for awards with non-market performance conditions Inputs into this model for each scheme are
asfollows

2005 Long Term
Incenbve Plan (awards

2003SangsRelated  2002ExecutveShare 2005 Executive Share wsued before Conditionalshares

Share Option Scheme Option Scheme OptonScheme Deferred Boous Shares 3iMarch 2009) granted1januzry 2010
Range of share prices at grant date 485p to 1903p 756pto 1159p 46%p 10 1737p 584pto 1095p 485p1t0 1219p 661p
Range of exercise prices 388pto 1523p 755p 10 1155p 465p t0 1737p nilp nilp nlp
Expected volatility 19% to 22% 15% 19%t022%  20%1022% 19% (0 22% T oaw
Expected Ufe 3tu-7years 3105 years 2310 5years 3years 23to3years 15ta25years
Risk-free rate ) 156%t0553%  360%10510%  143%(0567%  143%t0204%  127%to4B0% 132%
Expected dvidend yield 302%10598%  411%10434%  302%10653%  348%t0653%  297%0653% 2 438%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historic volatility of the Group'sshare price over the previous 10 years The expecied ife used in the model has been
determined based upon management’s best estimate for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restnctions and behavioural considerations Risk-free rate is the yield
at the date of the grant of an option on a gilt-edged stock with aredemption date equal to the anticipated exercise of that option

Far-value inputs for awards with market performance conditions

Farrvalues are calculated using the Monte-Carlo simulation option pricing medel for awards with market performance conditions Awards made under the 2005 Long-Term
Incentive Plan which were granted after 31 March 2009 include a Total Shareholder Return (TSR} condition, which isamarket based condition The inputs irto this model for
the scheme are as follows

Expected volatlity

Range of share Range of -indexof Correlation

pricesatdateof exere Expected volatiity comparator ~Group v

grant prces = Group COMpanies ndex

2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan (awards 1ssued after 31 March 2005} 485p —B27 5p nilp 20%-22% 20%—25% 85%

33 Called up share capital

Allsttadand Fully paid

2012 201
GroupandCompany £m £m
Qrdinary shares of 10p each 7B.5 776
785 776

Following a change to the Company's Articles of Association, the 1ssued share capital of the Company now consists of ardinary shares of 10p norminal value each References
tothe Non-equity B shares and the Redeemable preference shares, previously 1ssued by the Company but no longer in 1ssue, have been remaved

Numnbar of shares

2012 201

Atthe beginning of the year ) 775872954 764,549,482
Issued on the exercise of options R 114,026 28,331
IssuedinLieu of cashdmidends ) - 9,15:l,1Ts 11,195,141
Atthe end of the year 785,141,158 775,872,954

The number of options aver erdinary shares that were outstanding at 31 March 2012 was 4,150,147 (2011 4,739,408) If all the options were exercised at that date then
1,068,275 new ordinary shares (2011 1,394,950 new ordinary shares) would ba 1ssued and 3,081,872 shares would be required (2011 3,344,458 shares transferred) from
the Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT)

Sharehalders at the Annual General Meeting have previously authorised the acquisition of shares by the Company representing up to 0% of its share capital, to be held as
treasury shares At 31March 2012 the Group held 5,896,000 ordinary shares (2611 5,896,000 ordinary shares) with amarket value of £42 6m {2011 £43 2m) in treasury
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34 Ownshares

o2 20m
Group £m Em
Cost at the beginning of the year : B _ } _ B . 36 69
Acquisition of ordinary shares ) 185 02
Transfer of shares to employees on exercise of share options {43) (35)
Cost atthe end of the year 178 36

Own shares consist of shares in Land Securities Group PLC held by the Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) in respect of the Group's commitment to a number of its

employee share option schemes (rote 32)

The number of shares held by the ESOT at 31 March 2012 was 2,355,235 (2011 287,988) The market value of these shares at 31 March 2012 was £17 0m (2011 £2 1m)

35 Contingencies

The Group has contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims, guarantees, and warranties anstng in the ordinary course of business It 15 not anticipated that any matenial

babilitses will anse fromthe contingent babilities

The Group has a contingent asset inrespect of Bankside 4, a property previously owned by the Group The Bankside 4 sale agreement included a profit share in relation to
future sales of residential uruts on the site Asat 31 March 20712, 1t was not virtually certain that an economic benefit would flow to the Group, nor could the value of the

possible asset be reliably measured Therefore no asset was recognised at this date

36 Cashflow fromoperating activities

Crowp Company
201z 2m 202 20M
Reconcillavion of operating profit to net cash inflew from operatng scthvithes: £m £m £m £m
Cash generated from operations . _ R N B . o __
Operating profit/{loss) 6451 1,2995 (119) 2229
Adjx]stments'for T ) ) B - - )
E_)eprenanon ) ) ) _ o 46 65 - -
Eroﬁt on disposal of mvestment properties ) o B ) o ) (454) 7=n - -
_ Netvaluationsurplus on investment properties o L B ) ) (1698) {794 1) - -
tmpairment of trading properties ) B . } ~ . 20 14 - -
Share-based payment char-ge B 48 38 - -
Reversal of pre_vnou5|mpa|rment ) B ) L - - - (2347)
Defined benefit pension scheme charge ) ) - B 10 13 - -
_ 4423 4427 {119) {11.8)
Changes inworking capital : i .
" {(increase)/decreasentrading properties and long-term development contracts T (18) T 12 - -
Becrease;’(mcrease) inrecervables ) ) _ ) 56 {419) - -
[Decrease)/increase in payables and provisions ) i {44 3) 180 119 118
Net cash generated from operations 4018 4200 - -
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37 Related party transactions
Subsidiaries
Duning the year, the Company entered into transactions, in the normal course of business, with other related parties as foltows

2on2 201
Company fm £m
Transactions with subsidiary undertakings. o B
Recharge of costs ) o (1613) (1471}
Interest pad B ) (27 4) _ (39
Investrent insubsiiary - {2500}

At31March 2012, £675 8m {201 £387 Bm) was due to subsidiary undertakings

Jointventures
Asdisclosed innote 18, the Group has investments ina number of joint ventures Details of transactions and balances between the Group and its joint ventures are disclosed
asfollows

Year endedandas st 31 March 2012 Year endedand a3 a131 March 2011
Net Amounts Amounty Net Amounts Amounts

invastments owedby owadto nvestments owed by oveed 1O

ints jownt Joxnt Jjeint antojoint Jont Joint

Revanues ventures wentures ventures wentures

Group £m £m £m £m &m im m im
The Scottish Retasl Property Limited Partnership 04 19 04 - __ 05 os 34 (31
Metro Shopping Fund Limited Partnership 24 162 LI - 03 mmﬁB 8) 15 Z
Buchanan Partnership _ ] 43 z5)  os - a2 (23) 0s -
St Dawd's Limited Partnership B B 16 11 04 - 17 __{480) 175 -
The Martineau Galleries Limited Partnership A 02 [0 &) 02 - B 0 2' } - - -
Bristol Aliance Limited Partnership _ ~ 10 (16.0) 0.2 - 12 {19.8) 60 -
Westgate Oxford Alliance Lirmited Partnershap . o7 {12) 04 - “0s 281 06 -
20 Fenchurch Street Limited Partnersbup 7 87 15 - " o4 553 01 -
Countryside tand Secusties (Springhead) Limited i o1 03 11 - - (19) 10 -
The Ebbsfleet Limised Partnership _ - - 0.2 - R - 02 -
The Harvest Lisnited Partnership ) 15 33 08 {42.9) 05 20 08 (436)
The Griana Limited Partnership R ) o1 142 o8 o1 01 - 69 -
Millshaw Property Co Limited - - - (104) - - - {11.8)
FenFarm Developments Limited 01 - - - ot - 166 -
The Empress State Limited Partnership : } - 54 - - - - 01 -
HNJV Limited - - - - - - i 25 -
Victonia Circle Limited Partnership 07 1020 07 {(18) - - - -
158 1428 7.8 (552) 97 (49) s77 (585)

Further detail of the above transactions and balances can be seeninnote 18

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors, who are the key management personnet of the Group, 1s set out below in aggregate for eachof the applicable categories specified in
IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disdosures’ Further information about the remuneration of individual Directors is provided in the audited part of the Directors’ remuneration
report on p82—99

2012 2011
£m £m
Short-term employee benefits ) 69 51
Post-employment benefits _ ) 01 03
Share based payments 19 20
29 74
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38 Operating lease arrangements

The Group earns rental income by leasing its investrnent and operating propertees to tenants under non-cancellable operating leases

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants to recerve the following future mimnimum lease payments.

2012 on

Em im

Mot later than one year 4945 4521
Later than ane year but not more than five years 13284 17722
More than five years B 3,1407 33683
49637 56026

The total of contingent rents recogrised as income during the year was £40 Sm (2011 £371m)
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Investor resaurce

Business analysis

Some of the information in the Business analysis

section is presented in a format to assist comparison
with other property companies and IPD data,
although it is not always consistent with the Group’s
reported operating segments.

% PORTFOLIO BY VALUE AND NUMBER OF PROPERTY

CONTRACTED RENTAL INCOME BREAKDOWN

HOLDINGS AT 31 MARCH 2012 TABLE7S BY TENANT BUSINESS SECTOR CHART79
Value Numbaer of
Em *
0-999 21 54
10-2499 T T 32 )
25-4399 T _ 83 £3
50-9993 ) i i 170 3
100-14999 B 158 13
150-199 99 ] - ns 7
200+ 435 2z
Total 1000 150
Includes share of pount venturs properties
YIELD CHANGES — LIKE-FOR-LIKE PORTFOLIO TABLE 80
31 Marchzo11 31March2012
Toppad vp
Netinitial £quivalent Netinitial et Equivalent
yield yleld yield invial ylald' yield
% % % 1S [
Shopping centresand shops 58 62 61 63 6.4
Retail warehouses and food stores - - : - 50 T Y 54 " 56
Central London shops - i i i ) a1 57 40 T4 7 5%
London afiice T j i - 56 57 52 sy 56
Total portfolio 55 59 54 58 59
1 Ketntalyeldadustediorefect the lised cash rent that wall apply at the expury of current lease incentives
COMBINED PORTFOLIO VALUE BY LOCATION AT 31 MARCH 2012 TABLE 81
Shopping Hotel Leisure
contres and Retal Residential
thop warehouses Offices and other Total
% % » % [
Central, mner and outer London 135 05 429 43 612
South-East and Eastern ’ -7 i ) i 33 T ey 01 " 16 T a7
Mudlands - . ) o 03 13 - " 04 20
Walesand South-West ’ i ) S 68 7 - 03 78
North, North West, Yorkshire and Humberside . _ - T4 ER| 114 06 13
Scotland and Northern Ireland ) j 61 16 - 63 BO
Total 374 119 432 75 1000

% figures calcutated by reference 1o the combined portfolio value of £10 3bn
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TCP 12 OCCUPIERS TABLE 82
W of rent!
Central Government (inctuding Queen Anne s Gate, SW1R 60
Accor ) 47
Royal Bank of Scotland 29
Delortte ~ 2-6_-
Arcadia Group R 25
Sainsbury s 19
Bank of New York Metlon 15
DmonsRetal 15
Next 14
Boots - 14
Primark _ ) 14
Taylor Wessing 14
292
1 Includesshare of pount veritures
2 Rentfrom Central Government excludingQueen Anne s Gate S5W111 1%
VOIDS AND UNITS IN ADMINISTRATION
LIKE-FOR-LIKE PORTFOLIO CHART 84

Land Secunities Annual Report 2012

PROPERTY INCOME DISTRIBUTION (PID}

Who can claim exemption from deduction of withholding tax on Property
Income Distributions??

- UKcompanies

- Chanties

- Local Authorities

~ UKPension Schemes

- Managersof PEPs, 1SAs and Child Trust Funds

Who is unlikely to be able to clam exemption from deduction
of withholding tax on Property Income Distnibutions?

~ Overseasshareholders?

- Indwidual private shareholders

1 Seel 1l P163—170for how eligible sh, scanclam ption
2 Maybeabl 1 all of the withholding 1ax under relevant double taxation treaty

hald

ANALYSIS OF PERFORMANCERELATIVETO IPD CHART 8

DEVELOPMENT ESTIMATED FUTURE SPEND (Em) CHARTE

CHART 83

5

6
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SCOTLAND

Retail warehouses 16%
Shopping centres and shops 61%
Offices . ) -
Other 03%
Total 8.0%
MNORTH, NORTH-WEST, YORKSHIRE

AND HUMBERSIDE

Retail warehouses 31%
Shopping centres and shops 74%
Offices A 02%
Other 06%
Total 113%
MIDLANDS

Retail warehouses _13%
Shopping centres and shops _03%
Offices . .-
Other 0 4%
Total 2.0%
WALES AND SOUTH-WEST

Retail warehouses 07%_
Shopptng centres and shops _68%
Offices -
Other 03%
Total T8%
SOUTH AND SOUTH-EAST

Retail warehouses _ 47%
Shepping centres and shops 33%
Offices ) 01%
Other 16%
Total a7%
GREATER LONDON

Ret_all warehouses _05%
Shopping centres and shops 13 5%
Offices B . . 42.9%
Other 43%
Total 612%
TOTALBY USE

Retail warehouses 119%
Shopping centres and shops 37 4%
Offices 43 2%
Other 75%
Total 100 0%
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EPRA performance measures TABLE 88
3T March2012 31 March 201
Land
Sacurities EPRA Land Securites EPRA
Definitton for EPRA measure Notes Muature Measure Measure Measure
Adjusted earmings Recurring earmings from core operational activity 12 £2883m £290 Sm’ £2714m £255 4m
Adjusted earnings per share Adjusted diluted eamings per weighted number of ordinary shares w 385 37 4p° 355 _ 334
Adjusted net assets Net asset value adjusted to exclude fairvalue movements on interest-rate swaps 1 £6,7253m  £7,1762m* £63667m  £68342m
AdjuSt;d net assets per share Adjusted diluted net assets per share LE] B&3p 921p? a26p 887p
Tnple net assets Ad)justed net assets amended to include the fair value of financial instruments - -
_ anddett B E62%45m  £62045m  £62528m  £62528m
Tnple net assets per share Diluted tnple net assets pershare 1 ao8p 208p “ar 2p 812p
Net Intial Yietd (N1Y) Annualised rental income less non-recoverable costs as a % of market value plus
assurmied purchasers’ costs? 48% 52% 50% 54%
Topped-upNIY _ NIYadgusted for rent free penods? i s2% 56%  54% 57%
Vouds/VacancyRate ERV of vacant space as a % of ERV of combined portfolio ex:ludlné the
development programme* 31% 32% 41% 5 4%

Refer to notes 12 and 13 and table 94 for further analysis

1

EPRAadpsted earnings and EPRA adjusted earnings per share include the effect of bond exchange de-recognitian charges of £16 &m (2811 £12 5m), proft onlong tzrm developmentcontracts of £3 6m (2011 £5 4m) noh rrvehue tax adjustments
of £8 0m (2011 £16 8m)and non-rmnucproﬁ:dzbtrutmunngd\arg!sdiz 8m {2011 £22 Bmjandin En‘mhrelhnnlnm—r-cumngrgvenu.umml £23m

2 EPRAd, assets assets persh dethe bond exchange de of £450 9m
3 OwNI¥and Topped up NIY relatetothec and externalvaluers EPRANwandmnnpped upNn'mcuuuamm but exclide the development progs
4 Ourmeasorereflects voids inour ike for hkeporlrnlin only The EFRA measure reflects volds in the comb ding onty the devel programme
Reconoliation of net book value of the investment properties to the market value TABLE 89
Asat 31 March2012 As 8131 March 201
Group Group
{excl Joint Jount {exd Joint joint
wenturet) wentures Total veaturesy wentures Tatal
£m £m Em im im Em
Net book value B 84532 14534 99066 88890 13280 102170
Plus tenant leaseincentives 2047 _ 338 2385 194 2 ELa _ 2303
Less head leases capitalised } 3 (233) (45) {278) {28 4) (46) (330)
Plus properties treated as finance leases 2052 8.1 2133 1361 85 1446
Market value 8,839 8 14508 10,3306 9,1909 1,3680 10,558 8
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Top 1¢propertyholdmgs TABLE9Q

Totalvalue£4 Oba Weghted

{39% of combined portfolic) dvirage

Floor Antvabsed unexpired

Name Prnncepal occuprers "::’ netr:r:: m‘ﬁ

Cardinal Place, SW1 Microsoft Retail 7,700 372 . 61
Wellington ) Office 52,300 L
ME&S

New Street Square, EC4 Deloitte Retail 2100 N2 n7
Tarylor Wessing Qffice 62600 -

One New Change, EC4 K&l Gates Retail 20,600 169 107
wME Office 31,700 o
HaM_ _
MES
Topshop

Queen Anne's Gate, SWi Government Office 32,800 280 146

White Rose Centre, Leeds Sansburys R Retail 65,000 215 8
cbertams o
M&S ) i ]
Primark - ]

Gunwharf Quays, Portsmouth Vue Cinema Retail 31,300 205 60

] mas Office 2800 ___

Nike . Other 24,300 o
Gap

Bankside 2&3, SE1 Royal Bank of Scotland Retail 3,500 163 152

) ’ i} office 35,200
Cabot Circus, Bnstol House of Fraser Retall 114,200 195 93
_ o Harvey Nichols Other 880 )

H&M i T

Piccadilly Circus, W1 Hyundal Retai 5,200 135 29
Boots cT Office 1,500 T
Barcla_ys ] ] Other 440 i o

St Dawd's, Cardiff John Lews Retail 130,100 152 41
Newlock T
HEM T

i BHS
) Debenhams T
1 CGroupshare
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Average rents at 31 March 2012 TABLE 51
Average rent Averdge ERV
E.'m' f..'m'
Retail
Shopping centres and shops nia nia
Retal warehouses and food stores _ 214 213
Offices ) i )
London office portfolio " 408 412

Average rent and estimated rental value have not been provided where it 1s considered that the figures would be potentially misleading (1 @ where there isacombination of
analysis on rents on an overall and Zone A basis In the retail sector or where there 1s a cambination of uses, or small sample sizes) This s not alike-for-like analysis with the
previous year Excludes properties inthe development programeme and voids

Like-for-like reversionary potentsal TABLE 92
ITMarch 31March

2012 201

% afrent % of rent

Gross reversions as B8O
Over-rented (6.0) 62)
Net reversionary potential 28 18

The reversion s calculated with reference to the gross secure rent roll after the expiry of rent-free periods on those propertieswhich fall under the like-for-like definition as set
outinthe notes to the combined portfolio analysis Reversionary potential excludes addnional income from the letting of veids and the expiry of ret-free pencds Of the
over-rented ncome, £15 9m s subject toa lease expiry or break clause in the next five years

One year perfermance relative to IPD

Ungeared total returns —year to 31 March 2012 TABLES3
Land
Secunties IPD
% %
Retail - Shopping centres 41 24
-Retail warehouses 67 604
Central London retail A 69 1254
Central London offices 96 119
Total portfolio? 77 63
1 Including supermarkets
2 Including Inner London offices
3 Including Accor hatel partfobo and other
4 1PDSector weighted benchmark
5 WDQuarnteryUnwerse
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Combined portfolio analysis

Like-for-like segmental analysis TABLE 54
Ancualised
rental
Market value' Valuation surplus® Rentalincorne* incoma* Annustised net rant® Netastimated renial vatus®
31 March 31 March Surplus/ Surplus/ 31 March 31 March 31 March 31March I1March 31 Morch 3 March
2012 2om {deficit) {deficiz) 2012 2om 2012 2012 2om 2002 201
£m im £m % £m im £m £m Em £m Em
Shopping centres and shops o B B )
Shopping centres and shops 20180 20607 (647) 32) 1584 1554 1514 1436 1413 1480 1501
Central London shaps 7751 7283 04 41 334 305 377 31 323 430 459
27931 27890 (343) (12) 1918 1859 1891 1777 1736 1970 19650
Retail warehouses - B
Retailwarehouses and food stores 11171 10762 120 11 511 605 629 616 619 673 651
Totalretarl 39102 38652 {22.3) ) 252.9 246.4 252.0 2393 2355 2643 2611
Lendon offices
West End i T 14m7 13992 708 52 85 878 850 854 852 791 786
Gty o 3659 3469 54 44 219 224 21 200 219 246 238
Mid-town 8753 8284 26 40 “a7 493 421 433 431 516 505
" Inner London ) 7690 7254 165 26 528 435 471 456 4838 456 453
Tot_al_l.ondon offices 3,4?_3_9_ 3,2999 _131 3 43 . 202.9 a Z(EO 1973 1943 1980 2019 1982
Restof UK T 79 400 (15) 38) Iz 32 35 as "37 40 43
Totaloffices j 35218 33399 1258 42 _ 261 2122 2008 1978 2027 058 2025
Other (378 6480 330 51 453 440 455 46 4 461 49.9 462
Like-for-like portfolio® 81195 78541 1405 18 5043 5026 4933 4835 4843 5191 509.8
Proposed developments® 226 2184 (312) (128 __ 109 150 22 23 126 tes 191
Completed developments® 4274 4053 130 33 200 ]6.5. Zt4 213 149 258 _ 267
Acquisitions™ 3830 3449 {19 0} (48) _ 248 129 242 233 221 249 230
Sales and restructured \nterests's - 8236 - - 381 660 - - 502 - 574
Development programme’ 1,188.1 2126 876 8.2 268 164 28.3 238 115 1119 850
Combined portfolio 103306 10,5589 1309 20 6219 6292 5754 5542 5956 6925 7210
Properties treated as finance leases 87 66)
Combined portfolio 6132 6226
Total portfalio analysis
Shopping centres and shops o R _ . :
Shopping centresand shc-:ps 28107 28516 {43 1} (1sy _ 2067 198.2 1288 1803 108 2151 239
Central London shops 10564 10180 240 23 456 446 480 448 422 651 628
38671 39596 {19 1} 05 2533 2428 2368 2251 2331 2802 2947
Ratail warehouses
Retallwarehouses and food storB‘ 12251 1,2996 155 13 635 744 691 677 731 736 78.2
Total retail 50922 51692 (36} o1 3228 3172 1059 2928 3062 3538 3729
London offices } o L
WoestEnd 17957 18721 818 49 _ 106 1 1152 874 §71 1068 129 121_0
City ) 9867 10175 394 43 420 o5 387 315 316 701 650
Mid-town i 8753 9095 36 40 434 511 421 433 451 516 572
lnne:Lcndon 7630 7262 165 26 528 501 471 456 488 466 454
Total London offices 4A26T 45253 1663 42 M3 2569 2153 w75 2324 w2 a5
Rest of UK . 384 422 (23) (57) 3z 33 as 3s EY: 41 44
Tota l_off'sces 4,465 1_ 45675 1640 41 . 2475 2602 _213.8 2110 2362 2853 2930
Other T 7733 8222 305 41 516 518 507 504 532 534 551
Combned portfolio 10,3306 10,5589 1209 20 §219 6292 575 4 5542 5956 £§92.5 7210
Properties treated as finance leases (8.7) (66)
Combined portfolio 6132 6226
Represented by
Investment portfofio 88398 91909 1698 20 s4a37 5500 4903 4727 5197 5832 6370
Share of joint ventures 14808 1,3680 211 15 78.2 792 851 815 759 1093 840
Combined portfolio 103306 10,558.9 71909 20 6219 6292 5754 554 2 5956 692.5 7210
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Combined portfolio analysis continued

Like-for-Lke segmental analysis

Cross
astimated
rentalvaluy’ Netinitial yiald® Equivalent yreld” Vouds by ERV)®
31March 31March 1 March 31 March 3 March 3tMarch 31 March 3March
2012 200 2012 20m 2012 201 012 2om
£m £m % % % % % %
Shopping centres and shops o .
Shopping centresand shops 1577 1599 6.1 58 54 .5.72 47 55
Central London shops 493 452 40 4% 55 57 14 50
2070 2061 55 54 61 6.1 39 54
Retallwarehouses
Retall warehouses.and food stores 678 656 50 50 56 56 24 34
Total retail 2748 Faki 54 53 6.0 60 is 49
London offices }
West End 791 786 54 58 56 59 28 41
City 253 247 47 52 58 60 40 69
Mid-town o 523 521 48 43 53 53 41 19
Inner London 47 4 481 56 63 58 58 06 17
Total Londen offices 2051 2015 52 56 56 57 28 33
Rest of UK i o 41 44 76 81 a0 89 12.2 68
Total offices ) _ . 2092 2059 53 56 56 58 30 34
Other 488 462 65 56 66 66 10 22
Like-for-like portfolic™ . 5328 5238 54 55 59 39, 31 41
Proposed developments™ _ . 108 181 0.8 49 nfa nfa nfa nfa
Completed developments® i 257 276 41 28 55 55 nfa nfa
Acquisitions® . 258 238 49 52 56 nfa n/a nfa
Sales and restructured interests’ - 575 - 57 nfa nfa nfa nfa
Development programme'® 1122 856 16 10 54 55 nfa n/a
Cambined portfolio 7083 7374 48 50 58 n/a nfa nfa
Total portfolio analysis
Shopping centres and shops
Shopping centresand shops 226.4 2434 54 55
Central Landon shops 655 637 38 38
2919 3071 495 S1
Retail warehouses
Retailwarehousesand food stores 741 788 50 50
Total retail 3660 3859 49 51
London offlces
West End 112.9 1210 46 5%
City 709 658 28 26
Mid-town 533 588 48 45
Inner London 47 4 462 56 63
Total London offices 2845 2918 44 418
Rest of UK 42 45 78 80
Total offices 2887 2963 44 48
Other i 536 552 62 61
Combuned portfolio 708.3 7374 48 50
Represented by
Investment portfolio 5971 6516 48 51
Share of joint ventures 12 858 46 47
Combined portfolio 708.3 7374 48 50
Notes 6  Netesumated rentalvalue s grossesumatedrental value, as definedinthe N Thelke for Lke portfolioncludes all propertwswhich have been inthe portiolie
1 Themarkﬂwmeﬁg\mmduﬂzme&mp:;hlr!u!pmvemnundvz glossary after deducting expected groundrents. since 1Aprl 2010 but #xcluding those whach were acquired, sold oninduded in
bythe Group naccordance withthe RICS 7 Grsestimatedrentalvabee [ERV}—refertoglossary The figure for proposed the development programme at amy ime duning the year Capdal exprnditune
Valuatson Standards. exsing i -memesdmnﬁmpmd. captal i
2 Thevahatonswphs s sated atieradpstingor theefiect i SIC 1S nderFAS. B Netwubatyekdsa i that been, dtathe Bk for L portfoliowm prepanng thes Labke
3 Remat Atement, manacmnlsbmu\d Mhmm-mmmhuwnmmlm ” Pmpmgddnt!opmns Me(tuwy
ad;nudh—hmdngdku theter & das, fasap errtage of the acqusition cost, bewng the masket 3 - prop p chuded i the
withSICTS gross pros Lo the ded  ground, assurmed usual purchasers costsat the reporting date Thes calcul ! o whichhave b ferred rom the develop
tion for tgo parkand withEFRA gudance prugrzmmum(ﬂnlpri?.m&

commerelabsstion actmties
Annualisedrentalincomeisannual rentalinceme (as definedin3 sbove)at the
bala»ceshul date, except that car park and cnmmmvahsamnmm;re

Estimated net rental mcome is the passing cash rent less ground rentat the
balancesheet date, #stimated non recoverable cutgoings and void casts
includingservice chacges | muanr.ecmlsandvmdrltﬂ Thiscalculation

indudes :II b

4

16

Intludes 2ll properues acquired inthe year since 14pnl 2010
Inchjdesa.leropemenold intheyear !l‘::! 'IAprlZUW
ts ted

dw:lopmemxpm,ecumd:rcnnmummmddndopmemsmhave
L

Eqmllzmydd I‘!‘!fhojnsury pased develop are

bl lettings.
desednetrtm:samlwhrem.muu\emmp: ma
duu beudated with th fised

4 ofpr before SIC 15 ady
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Combined portfolio reconciliation

Income statement -rental income reconciliation TABLE 95
31 March 31 March
Retad London Other 2012 Retal tondon Other 201
Em [ Em £m Em im m &m
Combined portfolio analysis 3228 2443 548 219 3172 2569 551 6292
Central London shops (excluding Metro Shopping Fund LP) (46.6) 466 - - (430) 430 - -
Inner London offices (including Metro Shopping Fund LP) - - - - 133 (05} - -
Rest of UK offices 22 - (32) - 33 - (33 -
Other 451 6.5 (516) - 444 74 (518} -
3245 297 4 - 6219 3224 3068 - 6292
Less finance lease adjustment (25) {6.2) - 8.7 {29) (37 - (6.6)
Total rental income 3220 2012 - 6132 3195 3031 - 6226
Market value reconcibiation TABLE 96
A1 March I March
Retail London Cther 2012 Retail London Other 20mn
£m £m £Em £m Em £m Em Em
Combined portfolio analyus 5.092.2 44257 an7 10,3306 51692 45253 B64 4 10,5589
Central London shops (excluding Metro Shopping Fund 1P) [1,056.4) 1,056 4 - - {1,0180) 1,0180 - -
Rest of UK offices 384 - 3a4) - 422 - {(422) -
Other ) B 6770 963 (7733) - 6305 1917 {8222) -
Par business umt 47512 55794 - 10,3306 48239 57350 - 10,5589
Gross estimated rental value reconaliation TABLE 97
31 March 31March
Retsll London Other 2 Resadl London Qther zom
£m £m £m £m £m £m m £
Combined portfolio analysis 365.0 2645 578 Fo8.3 3859 2918 557 7374
Central London shops (excluding Metro Shopping Fund LP) .(65 5) s55 - - (63 7} 637 -7 -
Rest of UX offices - 42 - 42) - 45 - {45) -
Other 491 45 (s28) - 456 96 (552) -
Per business unit 3538 3545 - 7083 3723 3651 - 7374
Tables 85 and 96 provide reconcibiations for both rental income and market values between the information presented in the Business Analysis and the reported
operating segments
Lease lengths
TABLE 98

Unexpwedlease termat 31 March 2012

Likn for Likwpoctfolio
tad

Like for-tike portiolio md.q..muaz
Madias' Maan® Madian' Muan*
years yoar years yeurs
Shopping centres and shops )
Shopping centres and shops B 62 8.0 65 85
CentralLondonshops m i i 43 93 43 93
59 30 6.2 92
Retail warehouses 3 o
Retad warehouses and food stores a9 a8 92 93
Total retail 67 85 68 88
London offices
WestEnd ’ o T o 66 93 62 82
ay T T -7 BEETTY 76 65 69
Mid-town ] ] B ’ 135 17 1Bs 17
Inner London ) 106 115 106 115
Total London offices asg 10.2 69 00
Rest of UK - ] 20 27 20 27
Total offices 86 101 80 99
Other . e &5 79 66 80
Total T0 91 71 92
1 Median s the number of years until half the ncome s subject tolrase expuryfbreak clauses Meanrsthe rent weigh g bject tolease expury/break clauses
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Development pipeline financial summary

TABLE 99
G he devel programn ta 31 Manth 2012 Totalscherne details’
Valuation
surplus /
Market Capetal Valuation oi Market Estimated Extimated [deficit) for
valuest  expenditurs Capitalized surplus / SIC15rent valusat Estimated total total Nat yearended
startof Incurred intarest {deficit)ta andother A1March total capital captalived dwnlq:mﬂn incoma/ 31 March
scheme todate todats date  sdjustments 212w interest ERV 2012t
£m Em Em £m £m £m Em £m .Em £m £m
Developments let and transferred
or sold
Shopping centres and shaps 78 3298 6.1 (125.7) LR} 2219 3361 161 3500 148 66
Retailwarehouses and food stores® 248 01 - 06 (255) - - - - - 06
Lendon Portfolio 267 15 - 199 (481) - - - - - 148
593 3314 161 (106.2} (78.7) 2219 336.1 161 500 148 220
Developments after practical
completion, approved or
in progress ; B
Shopping centres and shops 975 1256 nz 649 26 3023 3027 257 4259 338 256
Retail warehouses and food stores - - - - - - i - - - - -
London Portiolio 3376 4602 575 6.1 244 8858 6985 701 11062 798 620
4351 5858 652 710 270 1,188.% 10012 958 15321 1136 876
proposad y for the year to 31 March 2012
Proposed developments
Shopping centres and shops - - - - - - - ~ - - -
Retail warehouses and food stores 318 01 - 24 - 343 236 o} 58.7 36 24
London Portfolio 1866 245 09 (336) ©1) 1783 4146 216 6145 373 (336)
2184 246 09 (312) ©1) 2126 4382 224 6732 409 (312)

Notes

*

1 Totalscheme detals exclude properties soldinthe year

2 Indudespmﬂt realised on the disposal of property

3 d devek perties Lhe, d totat capeeal the cutstanding costs.required to complete the scheme ssat 31 March2012

4 Indnde;the prap:nyn ts market value atthe slart of the ﬁmnaalynrin which the propertywas sddedtothe development prograrmine Tegetherwith estimated capitalized interest For prupeseddmlopmmlampemzs the market value of the
propectyat 31 March 2072 s ncluded ia the 2stimated total cast Ext:mated total develop ncludes the cost of reuds | propertesfor shopping centres and shops of £11 Tmn d cests for p
schemes could stillbe subject tomaterial change priorta final approval

@
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Nethaadiine annual rent on let umits plus net ERY at 31 March 2012 onunlet umits
Includesthe sale of Garratt Lane Wandsworth aproposed development
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Five year summary

012 201 2010 2009 2008’
£m £m Em £m £m
Income statement
Group revenue } B 6715 7019 B334 8212 8180
Costs ) {239 6) {2708) (392.5) (326 4) {317 4)
— ] ] a19 4N 4409 4948 5006
Profit/(loss) on dispasal of investment properties . B 454 757 (325) (1308) 573%
Netsurplusf[deﬁclt) on revaluation of investrent properties 1698 7941 7450 (41134} (1,1584)
Imparment of trading properties ) {2.0) (14) {106} (923} -
Operating profit/{loss) B 6451 1,2995 11438 (3.8417) {600 5)
Net interest expense (1794) (2161 (2121} (3325}  (2864)
4657 10834 9317 {41742) (88659}
Share of post tax profit/(loss) from joint ventures N T ’ 522 1439 1376 (S980) (10171
Impairment of tnvestment injoint ventures . ) B (22) - - - -
Profit/{loss) beforetax ] j ] 5157 12273 10693 (47732 {088.0)
Income tax 80 168 231 fosy 151
Profit/(loss) for the financlal year fram continuing activities 5237 1,244 1 10024 (47737) (9729)
Discontmued operations - - - {4209) 1421
Prafit/{loss) for the financial year 5237 1,2441 1,002 4 {5,194 6) (830 8)
Revaluation surplus/(deficit) for the year -
Group ] . 1698 7941 7460 (41134) (1,1584)
Jonmtventures o T T ’ 211 1147 178 (6303) (1342
Total 1909 9088 8538  (47437) (1,2926)
Revenue profit 299 4 2747 2518 3149 2848
1 Theresultsforthe year ended 31 March 2008 have beensestated, in compliance with IFRS 5 1o rectassily the resudts of Trillum from. g actiities todi d opr
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Five year summary

2012 zon 2000 2000 2008'

Ern £m Em Em £m

Balance sheet )
Investment properties B4532 88890 80443 78294 122967
Qperating properties - - - - 5448
Qther property, plant and equipment 88 113 128 143 736
Net nvestment in finance leases 1850 1168 1154 1163 3337
Loan investments s08 722 8413 500 -
Goodwill - - - - 1486
Investment in joint ventures ) . 1,1376 9396 7878 9308 14106
Investment in associate undertakings } - - - - 429
Investrnent in Public Private Partnerships - - - - 254
Otherinvestments 323 18 - - -
Pension surplus . - 87 - 30 110
Deferred tax assets - - - 19 09
Trade and cther recevables - 770 - - -
Total non-current assets 98677 1016 4 9,0446 30457 14888 2
Trading properties and long-term development contracts 1331 1293 879 949 1730
Denvative finanoal instruments - - 10 - 43
Trade and other recewvables 7596 3525 3344 3921 8380
Monees held in restncted accounts and deposits 25 351 956 _ 239 -
Cashand cash equivalents 297 376 1594 16091 484
Non-current assets classified as held for sale e - - - 6641
Total current assets 9519 5545 6783 27260 17278
Borrowings (10.8) {330} (3088) [LR)] (7940)
Dervative financialinstruments i R - - {11) (1129) (107)
Trade and other payables (361 3) {4232) {395 5) (625.8) (9272)
Provisions (86) (74) (15) - (409)
Current tax babilities i ’ {21 6) (355)  (1110) (1615  (1610)
Liabilities directly associated with non-current assets classified as held for sale - - - - (4277)
Tota! current llabilities (4023)  (4991)  (8177)  (2004) (236159)
Borrowings (3.2251) (33513} (32097) (54495} (46325)
Dervative fi nancial ms]:rumgnts (65) (20) - - -
Pension deficit (24) - (6.5) - -
Provisions - - - - (38.7)
Deferred tax Liabilities - - - (16) (24)
Trade and cther payables (277) (62} - — -
Total non-current Labilities (32617) (33595} (3,2162) (54511) (46716)
Net assats 71556 68123 56890 48202 9,582 9
Netdebt (31832) (33136} (3,2634) (39238) [53845)
Results per share fram continuing activitles
Total diwidend payable in respect of the financial year {actual) 290p 282p 280p 56 5p 640p
Total dvidend payable inrespect of the financial year {restated)? n/a nfa nfa 517p S77p
Basic earnings/(loss) per share’ §75p  623p  1440p  (01BOlp {188 4)p
Diluted earnings/{loss) per share' 67 4p 1622p 1440p  (9180)p  (1884)p
Adjusted earnings per share'? I8 5p 155p EERT 603p 600p
Adjusted diluted earnings per share'? 38 5p 355p 331p 60 3p 599p
Net assets per share' 921p a85p 750p 639 1852p
Diluted net assets per share’ 918p 884p 7500 63%p 1859
Adjusted net assets per share' a66p 827 691p 593p 1765p
Adjusted diluted net assets per share’ 863p 826p 691p 593p 1763p
1 Theearnings/{loss) per share and the net asset pershlr: forth'eyel‘rended 31 March 2008 have been adjusted for the bonus element inherent in the Rights Issue that was approvedon 9 March 2009 and the reclassification of the Trillium
: - {m,m, eessars he heorecal Smden e chart thatwoué have beenpardad he b bt i the Reghts lssue b eatth
3 Inthe current year adjusted eamnings and adpusted s perthane have beenrestated 1 p $ proparties and long-lerm lop The compar b d d dingly
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Retail asset disclosures

At31March 2012
Asset Type/Location Ownership  Freehold/Leasehold  Office Floorspace(m?) Retail Floorspace (m?)
>£200m
Hotels - (bis & Accor Other 100% Freehold/Leasehold - -
Cabot Circus, Bnsto! Shopping Centre 50% Leasehold 114,200
Gunwharf Quays, Portsmouth Shopping Centre 100% Freehold 2,800 31,300
St Dawd's, Cardiff Shopping Centre 50% Leasehold - 130,00
Trinity Leeds Shopping Centre 100% Freehold .- 75,900
White Rose, Leeds Shopping Centre 100% Leasehold - 65,000
£100m-£200m
Bon Accord & St Nicholas Centre, Aberdeen Shopping Centre 50% Leasehold - 39,900
Buchanan Gallenes, gilisg;w Shoi::pln_g Centre -50%: o Leasehold 7 o : _—__ — i i : 55.80‘9 N
Lewisham Shopping Centre, London Shoppng Centre 00% Frechold _ - 21,800 _
Overgate, Dundee Shapping Centre 100% Leasehold - 39,000
Princesshay, Exeter Shopping Centre 50% Leasehold o= ) 33700
The Bndges, Sunderiand Shopping Centre 100% Leasehold - 51,100
The Centre, LIVI—I-'IEStD—nu i Sho]::pmg Centre 100% freehold - i T 53400 )
The 02 Centre, Flncl;[e;, London Shopping Centre 100% leasehod = 23500
£50-£100m
185-221Buchanan Street, Glasgow Shopping Centre 100% Freehold - 10,700
Southside Centre, Wandsworth, London Shopping Centre 50% Freehald 100 45,400 B
The Galleria, Hatfiatd Shopping Centre 100% Freehald - 25,400
West 12 Shopping Centre, Shepherds Bush, London  Shopping Centre i00% Freehold 1900 17,700
£25-£50m '
Cathedral Plaza, Worcester Shoppang Centre 100% Freehold - _ 20400 }
Designer Outlet Mall, Livingston Shopping Centre 50% Freehold - _ 29,800
StopShop, Clapham, London Shepping Centre 50% Freeheld B 1,600 3,800 )
Westgate Shopping Centre, Oxford Shopping Centre 50% Leasehold - 29,300
Asset Type/Location Retalt:;ar k  Ownership Freehold/Leasehold OfficeFloorspace(m?)  Retail Floorspace (m?)
open
planning
£100m-£200m consent?
Lakeside Retail Park, West Thurrock Retail Park Yes 100% Freehold - 35,300
Retail World Team Valley, Gateshead Retail Park Yes i00% Leasehold - 35,300 .
Westwood Cross, Thanet Retail Park Yes 100% Freehold - 50,600
£50-£100m
Bexhill Retail Park, Bexhill-on-Sea Re}qll Park Partial 100% Freehold = 24,10(_3_ A
Greyhound Retail Park, Chester Retail Park Yes 100% Freehold - 18,900
Kingsway West Retail Park, Dundee Retail Park No 100% Frechold - 27,300
Poole Retail Park, Poole Retail Park Partial 700%  Freehold o ; ) ) TB,E!O_(T o
The Peel Centre, Bracknell Retail Park Yes 100% Leasehold - 15,700
£25-£50m
Almondvale South Retail Park, Livingston Retarl Park Yes 100% Freeheld - 15,100
Blackpool Retal Park, Blackpool Rezail Park No 100% Freeheld = 12800
Derwent & Derwent Howe Retail Park, Workington  Retail Park Yes _ 100% Freehold - _ 13900
Lmdis Retait Park, Lincoln Retai Park Parual 50% Freepold - 14300
Meteor Centre, Derby Retail Park Partial 100% Freehold _ - 17,300
Nene Valley Retal Park, Northampton Retail Park Yes 0% Freehold - 13,600
Ravenside Retail Park, Chesterfield Retadl Park Partial 100% Freehold - 9,600

Notes

Alldataas at 31 March 2012 Floorareas represent the full property areas whereas the annualissd net rent and asset vales represent Lang Secunties chare Floor areas zre rounded to the nearest 100 m? for ereas over SBOm? and rounded to
nearest 10m’ for sreas under 500m? Annualised net rent s annuad cashrent. after the deduction ofground rents s at the balance sheet date {#) extended

164 Land Securities Annual Report 2012




Investor resource

OtherFloorspace(m?)  Principaloccuprers Annualisednetrent (Em)  Yearof construction Year of last refurbishment
229,600 Accor 291 Various -
8,800 Howse of Fraser, Harvey Nichols, H&M 198 2008 -
24,300 Vue Cinema, M&S, Nike, Gap 205 200 -
- John Lewis, New Look, H&M, BHS, Debenhams 162 SD1-1982 SD2-2009 §D1-— 1991 & 2009
- MR&S, H&M, Arcadha, Next, Pnmark - at Current development -
- Sansbury s, Debenharns, Pimark, M&S, H&M 215 1597 -
- Next, Boots, New Laok, River Island, H&M Topshop 79 St Nicholas Centre—1985 5t Nicholas Centre ~ 2003
R . Bon Accord - 1930 BonAccord-2012
- John tews, Hollister, H&M, Boats, Next 93 1999 -
- i M&.S, TK Maxx, Boots, BHS, H&M 68 1975 19918 2007
- Cebenhams, Next Arcadia, Gap, Pnimark 12 ) 2000 -
~ Debenhams, Arcadia, New Look, Next, River Istand 82 2007 -
- Deberhams, Tesco Next, H&M, New Look ) 126 Phase 1-1969 Onsite 2012 (e)
Phase 2--2000
Market $q-2001
- BHS, Debenhams, M&S, H& M, Next, Boots, Pnmark 163 Phase1-1976 Phase 1~ 1996, 2008 &
Phase 2-19%6 2011(e)
B . Phase 3 -2008 Phase2- 2008
3,900 Sansbury’s, Vue Cinema, Homebase, Virgin Active 74 1998 -
4,200 o Forever21, Gap, Paperchase 00 Current development -
5,700 Waitrose, Virgin Active, Primark, Caneworld 55 1971 2012 (e)
3,800 M&S, TK Maxx, HMV, Gap, Sports Direct 64 1990 -
4,400 Morrisons, Poundland, JJB, Boots, Argos 42 1570 2001
2,300 Monsoon, H&M, Mext, white Stuff, Arcadia 23 1568 2002
- M&S, Gap, Ted Baker, Pizza Express, Mamas 8 Papas 24 i 2001 -
- Sansbury's, Monsoon, Moss Bros, Superdrug, M85 15 1985 -
= Sansbury s, Pimark, Sparts Direct, Poundland 19 o 1972 1986
Other Floorspace{m?  Prinaipal occuprers Annualisednetrent{(fm)  Year of constructien Year of last refurbishment
- Currys, Next, Toys R Us, Argos, Mothercare 81 1987 2012 (g)
- TX Maxx, Next, Boots, Mothercare, Arcadia, Asdaliving 04 1986 2003 ’
- M&S, Debenhams, H&M, Next, Pimark 39 2005 2012 (e)
- Tesco, Mext, B&(, Boots 50 1989 2004
- R DFS, Dunelm, Pets at Home, John Lewisat Home 3B 1850 -
- Next Home, Currys, Dunelm, Homebase, ToysR Us,Boots 49 Phase 1-1987 -
Phase 2- 2004 L
- John Lewis at Horme, Boots, Next Home, Mothercare 39 i 1987 2006 ;
- Morrisons,Tesco Home Plus, Next, Sports Dizect, 40 1988 Ralling - latest 20{2
D Sports, New Look
- Sainsbury’s, ToysR Us 25 2002 2010
- Currys, Pets at Horme, Staples, Harveys, Halfords 21 1993 1996 (e}
- Marrisons, Currys, Halfords, Petsat Home, B&Q 20 1988 -
- Sainsbury's, Matalan 13 1993 2010
- _ DFS, Staples, Lidl, Pets at Home, Carpetnght 23 1987 On site 2012 (¢}
- Currys, PC World, Carpetright, Staples 28 1988 2003
- Currys, Next, Pets at Home, Debenhams 13 1985 2012
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London asset disclosures

At 31 March 2012

Asset Type/Location Ownership Freehold/Leasehold Office Floorspace {m?) Retail Floorspace {r)
>£200m

Bankside 2 & 3, Southwark Street, SE1 !nnerl.ondon 100% Leasehald 35,200 3500
Cardinal Place, Victona Street, sw1 West End 100% Freehold o 52300 7700

New Street Square, New Fetter Lane, EC4 ™M [q-town 100% Leaseho_ld B 62,600 R 2100 R
One New Change, Cheapside, EC4 City 100% Leasehold N0 20,600

Piccadilly Circus, W1 West End 100% Freehold 1500 5,200

Queen Anne's Gate, Petty France, SW1 West £nd 100% Freeholtj 32,800 -

Times Square, Queen Victona Street, EC4 Cty 95% Freehold 34300 3,400
£100m-£200m

123 Vlctgna Street, SW1 West End 100_9§ - f[egholq ) 16,50_0 B 3,000

20 Fenchurch Street, EC3 Gity 50% Freehold 100 400

32-50 Strand, WC2 Mid-town 100% Freehold 8,600 3300

62 Bu-ck_ﬁgl;am Gate, SW1 L Westbnd 10_9:‘35 Freehold o - N ) B ) - j i: .
Dashwoeod House, Old Broad Street, EC2 City 100% Leasehold 13,900 100

Empresg_s_ti‘te Building, Lille Road, SW6 InEl:er_London_ 509_6: B Freehold :11,9_90 __ _—_— __ - t o )
Harbour Exchange, E14 Inner London 100% Leasehold 41,800 -

Oriana, _6xford Street, W1 — o W:_st'End 509_;_ Free_holdlLeé_sErTglr._i : 8300 j o h 11,4Bq ; . _
Portland House, Bressenden Place, SW1 West End 100% Freehold 28,300 -

£50-£100m

1&2NewlLudgate B City 10(1%;_ Freehold - - -

10,208 30 tastbourne Terrace, W2 WestEnd 100% Freehold 1800 -
HaymaF_ket:House, Haymarket, sSwi West f_nd 10_O¥ _ Freehold i 5',500 ) B B 3,460

Hill House, Little New Street, EC4 Mid-town 100% R Freehold 15,800 - ~
Hotborn Gate, High Holborn, WC1 Mid-town 100% Freehold 12800 o 1,000 B B
Kingsgate House, Victona Street, SW1 West End 100% Freehotd iBo00 2800 A
Moorgate Hall, Moorgate, EC2 Gty 100%s.5- Leasehold 6400 1,600

Oxford House, Oxford Stree}. w1 W_e_st End 100_9§ B Freehold o _5,7'00 . 1,700

Red Lion Court, Park Street, SE1 Inner Landon 100% Freehold 12000 -

Thomas More Square, Thomas More Street, E1 Inner London 50% Freehold B 50,100 B 1,200 B

Victona Ciecle, SWA “WestEnd 50% Freehold 18,700 2600

Wesirmnster C:i':y Hall, Victona Street, SW1 WestEnd 100% Freehola - 16,600 440 B
£25-£50m

130 Wood Street, EC2 City 100% Freehold _ so00 700 B

140 Aldersgate, EC1 o City 100% leasehold 8000 ) 600 )
38/48 Southwark Bndge Road, SE1 Inner London 100% Freehold 9,000 - _ _
47 Mark Lane,EC3 City 100% Freehold 7800 1,600 )
7 Sohe Square, W1 o West End 100% Freehold 4100 1,500

City Gate, 14/22 8 24 Southwark Bndge Road, 5E1  Inner London 100% Freehold/Leasehold 7800 -

IPC Tower, 76 Shoe Lane, EC4 Mid-town 100% Leasehold 0,600 700

Notes

Atdataas a1 3V Marth 2072 Floor srersrepresent the full pinpeny sreas wivereas the annuatised net rent and 235t value represem Land Secunues share Floorareas are rourdedioihe nearest 100 m? forareas over 500 m? and roundedto «
nearest 10m” for areas under 5300 m! Anngalised net rent s annual cash rent. after the deduction of ground rents asat the balance sheet date (e} extended
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OtherFloorspace(m?)  Prinaipaloccupiers Annualisednetrent (£m)  Year of construction Year of last refurbishment
- The Royal Bank of Scotland 163 2007 -
280 Microsoft, Experian, EDF, Wetlington Management, M&S 372 2006 -
20 Deloitte, Taylor Wessing, Speechly Bircham 32 2008 -
- K&L Gates, Friends Life, CME, H&M, M&5, Topshop, Next 169 2010 -
440 Hyundal, Coca-Cola, Samsung, Barclays, Boots, Gap 135 Various 2001 o
- Central Government 280 1977 2007
190 World Fuel Services, Development Securities, Akzo Nobel, 135 2003 -
Regus, Bank of Mew York Mellon
450 Boots, Pret a Manger, The Royal Bank of Scotland, Santander 25 1977 Current refurtushment
170 - [17] Currentdevelopment -
540 i Bain & Company, Superdrug, Natwest Bank, 15 1957 2002 i
Ltoyds, McDonald's N ) B
- - 0o Current development -
- Edwards, Angell Palmer & Dodge, 44 1976 2008
Cadwalader Wickersham & Taft, Mitsubishi Pharma ..
1,500 Metropolitan Police Authority 69 1961 2003
- Telecity UK Ltd , HSBC, Nomura International, 90 1988/1989 -
R Brtish Amencan Tobacco B .
- Primark, Boots, Sainsbury's 33 Various Rolling - latest 2072
1200 Tradedoubler, Bilt & Melmda Gates Foundation, Regus ’ 124 1962 Rolling ~ latest 2010 )
- - 0o Demolished - o
70 Marks and Spencer PLC, Chapman Taylor, Davy 39 1955/57 Rolling - latest 2009
Process Technology
700 incisive Media, Curtis Brown Group, Whitbread Group, A3D2 a6 1955 Rolling - latest 2012
- Deloitte ) 53 1973 002 -
470 i Good Relations, FT1, Regus $1 1974 Ralling - latest 2010 ’
- - 00 Indemolition - B
50 ’ Mace Ltd 28 1990 Rollng-latest2012
- Duxans, Independent Talent Group 40 1964 2006
- Lloyds Banking Group 43 1990 -
1,400 News International, Virgin Media, Easynet 74 1990 2008/2009
14,200 Sainsbury s, Thistle Hotel, NHS Confederaton, i
Hyder Consulting, lIR Limited EX:} Various -
- i Westminster City Council ] 25 1963 -
- RWE Supply & Trading, Buzzacott n 1981 2006
70 Kaye Scholer LLP, City & Guilds of London Institute 20 2004 -
- ) Schroder Investment Services 27 1972 - i
80 AXA Insurance, PBS Management Services 25 1964 Rolling - latest 2010
10 Barton Wilmore, Tripadwvisor, Tesco 19 1949 2003
1,300 Motability Finance, Net Communications, 04 1986 24 Southwark Bridge
} Sedex Information Exchange Road - 2010
100 ltochu Europe, Voluntary Sector Centres 3z 1972 1996
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Our investors Analysis of our shareholder community, including
breakdown by geography and size of holdings. We show
how our investors compare to those of other
organisations within our industry, the FTSE100 and
FTSE350 Real Estate sector.

GEOQGRAPHICAL SPLIT OF THE COMPANY'S EUROPEAN BREAKDOWN (%)} CHARTI1OT
MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS {%) CHART100

EUROPEAN BREAKDOWN (%) CHART 103
GEOGRAPHICAL SPLIT OF THE £FTSE100°S
MAJOR SHAREHOQLDERS (%) CHART 102

EUROPEAN BREAKDOWN (%) CHART 105

GEOGRAPHICAL SPLIT OF THE FTSE 350 REALESTATE
SECTOR MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS (%) CHART104

ANALYSIS OF EQUITY SHAREHOLDINGS BY SIZE OF HOLDING TABLE 106

Number of Balanceasat
Range holdings % 31March2012 *
1-500 9018 4188 2,271,152 029
501-1,000 5053 2347 3716375 o048
1,001-5,000 5716 2655 11576378 147
5,001-10,000 617 287 ) 4,411,131 056
10,001-50,000 567 263 12,579,234 16
50,001 100,000 138 064 10000672 127
100,001- 500,000 247 115 59604343 759
500,001-1,000,000 7 033 51347924 654
1,000,001 - Highest T 06 048 629634148 8020
Totals 21,533 100% 785,141,158 100%
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Investor information

FINANCIAL CALENDAR TABLE 107
Ex-dmidend date—2011/12 final dendend 20 June 2012
Record date~2011/12 final dmdend i 22 June 2012
First Quarter Interom Management Statement announcement 18 July 2012
AGM -London - 19 july 2012
Payment date - 2071/12 final dividend 26]u|y2-01 2
Ex-dwidend date—Ist intenm dividend® 12 September2012
Payment date - Tstintersm dividend™ 120ctober2012
2012113 Half-yearly results announcement Novernber 2012
Ex~-dindend date - 2ndinterim dsidend* 5 December 2012
Payment date - 2nd ntenmdmidend* 10 January 2013
Third Quarter Intenm Management Statement announcement B Jarwary 2013
Ex-dividend date - 3rdintenim dividend* 13March 2013
Payment date - 3rd intenmidmidend* i ) - i 17 Apal 2013
2012/13 Annual results anneuncement ) May 2013
*Frontonal dates

REIT BALANCE OF BUSINESS TESTS TABLE 108

1Zmonths anded 31 March 2012 12months ended 31March 2011

Tax-exempt Residual Adjusted Tax exempt Resadual Adpssred

business business results business business reslls

Profit before tax (Em) 2619 183 2802 2188 224 2412
Balance of business —75% profits test 93 5% 65% 90 7% 93%

Adjusted total assets {£m) 103022 1,0089 11,3111 10,2951 9589 « 11,2540
Balance of business—75% assets test 91 1% 89% 915% 8.5%

Scripdividends

Following the approval by shareholders of the Scrip Dividend scheme at the Annual
General Meeting on 21 July 2011, the Company offers shareholders the option to
receive a Scrip dividend —anissue of shares avalable to shareholders at no dealing
or stamp duty reserve tax costs Shareholders have the option to forgo their cash
dividend for the share alternative Details of the scheme, including the rules, and the
required mandate forms for particpation are available at www landsecurities com/
mvestorsfshareholder-investor-information/scrip-dividend or, altermatively, please
contact

The Share Dividend Team,

Equinit),

Aspect House, Spencer Road,

Lancing, West Sussex BN99 6DA

Telephone 0871384 2268*

International dialling +44 (0)121 4157045

REIT dividend payments
Asa UK REIT, the Company 1s exempted from corporation tax onrental income
and gains on its property rental business but s required to pay Property Income
Distributions (PIDs} UK shareholders will generally be taxed on PIDs received at their
full marginal tax rates However, should a sharehalder opt to receive ther dvidend
asshares (under the Scrip Dividend seheme) instead of cash then this form of
dividend would be treated as a non-PID (unless notified by the Company that it was
paid as a PID) and would be subject to tax on the cash equivalent of the Scrip as
though it were an ordinary UK dividend

For most sharehaolders, PIDs will be paid after deducting withholding tax at the
basicrate However, certain categories of shareholder are entitled to receive PIDs
without withholding tax, principally UK resident comparies, UK public bodies, UK
pension funds and managers of ISAs, PEPs and Chitd Trust Funds A detailed noteon

Land Securities Annual Report 2012

the tax consequences for shareholders and forms to enable certain classes of
shareholder to claim exemption from withholding tax are available at www
landsecurities com/investors/shareholder-investor-information/

Balance of business tests

REIT legislation specaifies conditions in relation to the type of business a REIT may
conduct, which the Group 1s required to meet in order to retain its REFT status In
summary, at least 75% of the Group's profits must be derved from REIT qualfying
activities (the 75% profits test) and 75% of the Group’s assets must be employed in
REIT qualifying actmties (the 75% assets test) Qualifying activities means a
property rental business For the result of these tests for the Group for the financial
year, and at the balance sheet date, see Table 108 above

Our website

Our corporate website gives you access to share price and dividend information as
well as sections onmanaging your shares electronicatly and corporate governance,
and other debt and equity investor nformation on the Group To access thewebsite
please go to www landsecurities com/investors

Registrar

All general enquines concerning holdings of ordinary shares in Land Securities
Croup PLC, should be addressed to

Equinity,

Aspect House, Spencer Road,

Lancing, West Sussex BN99 6DA

Telephone 0871384 2128*

Textphone 0871384 2255*

International dialling +44 (0)121 4157049

Website www shareview co uk
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An onbine share management service ts available, enabling shareholders to access
details of their Land Secunities shareholdings electronically Shareholders wishing to
view thisinformation, together with addtional information such asindicative share
pnices and information on recent dodends, should visit www landsecunities com/
investors/shareholder-investor-information/dividend-information or

www shareview co uk/myportfolio

e-communication

We encourage shareholders to consider receiving their communications
electronically Choosing to receive shareholder communications electronically
means you receive information quickly and securely and allows Land Secunties to
communicate ina more environmentally fnendly and cost-effective way Toregister
for this service, shareholders should visit www landsecurities com/investors/
shareholders-investor-infermation/manage-your-shares or www shareview co uk/
myportfolio

Payment of dividends

Shareholders whose dividends are not currently paid to mandated accounts may
wish to consider having their dividends paid directly into their bank or buitding
society account Thishas a number of advantages, including the crediting of cleared
funds into the norminated account on the dividend payment date If shareholders
would Like their future dividends te be paid inthis way, they should contact the
registrars or complete 2 mandate instruction available from www landsecurities
com/investors/shareholder-investor-infarmation/dividend-information and return
it tothe registrars Under this arrangement tax vouchers are sent tothe
shareholder’s registered address .

Bwvidends for shareholders resident outside the UK

Instead of waiting for a sterling cheque to arrve by mail, you can ask us to send your
dvidends direct to your bankaccount Thisisa service ourregistrar can arrange in
over 30 different countnies worldwide and it normally costs less than paying in a
sterling cheque For more infarmation contact the Company’s registrar, Equiniti,

on +44{0)121 415 7047 or download an apphication forrm anline at www shareview
co uk/myportfolic or by writing to our registrars at the address given

Low-cost share dealing facilities
Equuniti provides both existing and prospective UK sharehatders with simple ways of
buying and selling Land Securities Group PLC ordinary sharesby telephone, internet
of post

For telephone dealing, call 0845 603 7037 between 8 Q0am and 4 30pm
Monday to Friday Fer internet dealing, log on to www shareview co uk/dealing.
For postal dealing, call 0871384 2248* for full details and a form

Existing shareholders will need to provide the account/shareholder reference
number, shown on the share certificate

Other brokers and banks or building socteties also offer share dealing facilities

ShareGift

Shareholders with a small number of shares, the value of which makes it uneconomic
to sell them, may wash to consider donating them to the chanty ShareGift
{registered charity 1052686), which specialises in using such holdings for charitable
benefit A ShareGift Donation farm can be obtained from the registrar and further
information about ShareGift 1s available at www sharegift org

orbywritingto

ShareGift,

17 Carlton House Terrace,

London SW1Y 5AH

Telephone 020 79303737
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Corporate Indrvidual Savings Accounts (I1SAs)

The Company has arranged for a Corporate ISA to be managed by Equinit: Financal
Services Limited, who can be contacted at

Aspect House,

Spencer Road,

Lancing, West Sussex BN99 6UY

Telephone 0871384 2244*

Capital gains tax :

Forthe purpose of capital gains tax, the price of the Company's ordinary shares at 31
March 1982, adjusted for the caprtalisation issue in November 1983 and the Scheme
of Arrangement in September 2002, was 203p On the assumptionthatthe 5 for 8
Rights Issue in March 2009 was taken up infull, the adjusted price would be 229p

Unclaimed Assets Register

The Company participates in the Unclaimed Assets Register, which provides a search
facllity for financial assets which may have been forgotten For further information,
contact

The Unclaimed Assets Register,

PO Box 95017, Nottingham NG80 TWD

Telephone 08702411713

Fax 0115976 8785

Website www uarco uk

Share price information
The latest information on Land Secursties Group PLC share price 1s available on our
website www landsecunities com

Unsolicited mail and shareholder fraud

Shareholders are advised to be wary of unsolicited matl or tetephone calls offering
free advice, to buyshares at a discount or offering free company reports To find
more detailed information on how shareholders can be protected from mvestment
scams visit www fsa gov uk/consumernnformation/scamsandswindles/investment _
scams/boiler_room

Registered office

5 Strand, London WC2N 5AF
Registered in England and Wales
No 4369054

Offices

5 Strand, London WC2N SAF

andat

City Exchange, 11 Albion Street, Leeds £S15ES
120 Bath Street, Glasgow G2 2EN

Catls 1o 0B7 1 telephone numbers are charged st Bp per munute from a BT Lingline
Other telephine providers costs may very Lines opend 30amto5 30pa,
Monday to Frday exctuding bank holdays




Glossary .

Adjusted #amings per thare (EPS)
Earrungs per shave based on revenue profit atter relatedtax

Adjusted nat a53at value (NAV) par share
NAV pershare adjusted to remove the effeciof the de recogmiton of the 2004

bendexchange and latrve far value moves rate swaps and
similarinstruments
Adjustad nat datit
Net debt excluding I} fair val rate swaps and

the adartment pnsng from the de recognition of the bond exchange and
amounts payable urder finance leases

Averige urxpiied laxsa term

The weighted dverage of the unexpined term of all leases ntherthan short term.
lettings such as car parks d dings temporary lettings of less
than one year reud I
Bookvalus

The amount at which asse1s and labilmes an reportedinthe financhal statements
BREEAM

Bualding Research Establish sE LA Methad

Combined porticlio

The combined partfolic 15 curwholly owned investment property portfalio

combined with our share of the properties held in joint ventures Unlessstated

otherwise references are 1o the comiuped portfobo whenthe investment
property business is drscussed.

Compl.!tod developmaents

Lleasesand .,;_

Jointventurs required to distribute at Least 30% of thase profis o shareholders Comporation
An entty wuwhach the Group holds an interest azly bythe zax ispayabl quatfying actrwvites in the normal way
Cmuplndnmrrmplmmxundﬂimmrmudlrungmm Decrsiont on & valuscharge

financial andoperating pollcies essential to the operation performance and
financlal position of the venture require sach partoer s consent.

Laasaincentlves

Anyincentive offeredto occupers to enter into alease Typcally the incentive wall
besninitalrent free panod aracashcontributiantafit-gut ersimilarcosts Far
»counting purposes the value of the incentve s spread over the non cancellable
Lfe of the lease

UBOR
The Landon tnterbank Offered Rate theinterest rate charged by onebank to
another for lendingmoney oftenusedasa reference rateinbank faclities

Like for Ukxeportfole

The like for Lke portfolo nctudes all properues which have beenin the pertiolic

unce 1 Apri 2010 but excluding these which are scquied sold ooncludedin the
pipekne at arry time dunng the pefod

ke lw like managed properties
Properuesinthe ke for Like portfolo other thanthase (nour pasnt ventures which
we do not manage operationally

Loan to value(LTV)
Group LTV istha ratio of adpusted net debt including joint ventures, to the sum
of the market value of nvestmenmt propert:es and the book value of tradmg

tncrease or decrease nthecurrent rentalvalue asdetermuned by the Groups
externalvaluers overthe reporting period on alke for Lke basis

Rentalincoms

Rental income o a3 reported inthe income statement, en an accruals basis, and
adjusted for the spreading of lease incent ves over the term umm ohheluu m
accodancewath SKC15 1 Bross, pror to the ded

andwithaut deduction for cperational eutgoings on carpark and
commuercalisation activies

Retail Portfolio

This business segmentincludes ourshopping centres shops retailwarehouse
properties the Accor portfolioand assets held in retail joint ventures but not
central Londenshops.

huilwud’nnnpafi
{ three or more retalt howse units gating over 5 000m’ with
shared parking.

Return on average capstal employed

Group profit beforeinterest plus joint venture profit ba‘ore interest, dnaded by
the average capital emplayed (defined a3 thareholders funds plusadjustad net
debt)

properties of both the Group and poini ventures, exp dasap ge For
!heSe:unlycruua.lTVulhemlonlneldebtlemluUuSccuntyCrmpdmded

prvents consst of es previously meludedinthe
dmbpm!nl programme which have been trlnsf!rr!d roen the development
programme snce 1.4pnl 2010

Dmlopmentplpohm
Thedevelop programme together with groposed develop
Dmlnpm-n!prnp'-m
prent proge consats of commit loperents (Boerd
hthe budng, ctiet) aut loprents

(Board ipprwed) projects under construction and developments which have
reached practical completion withinthe last two years but are not yet 95% let

Diluted figures
portedres s ‘.. ': the effectsof potental dilutive shares
Earrungs per share (EPS)

Profit aftertaxation stinbutable 1o owneno! the Pmni draded by sheweighted
average number of Y

EFRA

European Fublc Real £state Assocation
EPRAnetinitlal yield

EPRA netindtial yoeld ts defined withén EPR A 5 Best Practice Recommendations as
the annualrsed rental income based onthe cash rents patung at the balance sheet
date less non recoverable property operating experses drvld!dbytheglm

Bythe value of

LondonPortfolic

This business segment includesall London offices centralLondon shaps and
assets held in Landon joint ventures
Market value

Market vatue s d d by the Group texternal valuers inacrordance with
the KICS valuzton Shndards.iun opiwonol the estimated amoont for which
# property shoukd exchange on the date of valuation betwerena wilting buyer and
awlbngsellerinan arm s lengthtramsaction after prepermarkeung.

Mark to marketadjustmant
An accounting adjustment to change ihe hock value of anasset or liablity teits
marketvalve

Net asset value [NAY) parshare
Equity attnbutable to owrvers of the Parent divided by the rumber of ordaary
shares imssue at the penod end

Net Initiakyseld
Net initial yield s a calculation by the Group sexternal valuers of the yreldthat
woulg be recerved by apurchaser based onthe Estimated Net Rental Income
expressed as apercentage of the acquisiion cost, beng the market value plus
assumed wsual purchasers costsatthe neporuing date The calevdationis mline
with [PRA guidance

tsumaued Net zental Income 5th athrent |, d rent at

"
Y
qu
Group profn hior.e 1a¥ plus pant venture tax draded by the average equity
sharehclders funds

Revenue profit

Profit before tax excluding profits on the saleof non current assetsandtrading
properties, profits onlong term development contracts valuation surpluses fair
value movements on interest rate swaps &nd siilar nstruments used fo hedging
purposes theadjustment tointerest payable resulting fromthe amontaation of
1he bondexchange de recogmivon debt restructinng chargesand arytemsof an
unirsual naturs

Rervirsionary of under rented
Space where the passing rent 15 bekow the ERY
Reversionary yisld

Theanucrpated yreld towhich the imtial yreld wall rise {or fall} once t he rent
reaches the ERY

Scrip dividend
Land Securitws offer hareholders the Sividernds w the
formof sharesinstead of cash Thisis knownasaScnpdmdend

Security Group

Secunity Groupisthe pnncipal funding vehicle fae Land Secunties and properties.
heldin the Security Group are mortgaged far the benefitof lenders. lthasthe
flembility ta ralse a variety of ditferent forms of finance

Tempecary Wttngs

market value of the property It)s consistent withthe it yreld caled
by the Groug s external valuers

Equivalant yield

Caleutated by the Group s external valuers, equivalent yield s the internal rate of

retum fmm anuvestment property batedenthe pross cutlaysfor the purchase of
duding purchase costs), market rent,

and such iems a5 vowks and non bl g future changes.

mcapital value The caltulation aisumes rent mzcewtd a:\nuauymamnm

Grossestimated rantal value (ERV)

Theestimated market rental value of lettable space asdetermined buannyally
by the Group s external valuers

Faw valua movement
An accounting adustmi nt 1 changs the book value of an asset or babilty toits
market valve

Finance leass
Alease that transfers substantually all the risk s and rewards of ownership from the
lessor to the lesyes

Geaning

the bat date %
including servce charges insurance mstsandvodum

Outline planamg consnt
Thus gves consentinpnnciple foe o development and covers matters such asuse

and building mass Full details of the devel scheme must be provided|

anapplication for reserved malr.ersappruv;l‘ mdudlnldeuhd Iaycm. scale
& CEss £ before aprop

pllnm Wi thesab of rrurvzdmanm have ot

beenmade within !hmynrs.nr ihthasnot been implemented within three years
orwithin twoyears of the finalapproval of reservedmatters unlessotherwise
expressly stated within conditions attached to the permissicn itself or forany
permissions granted onor before 1 October 2009 asuccessful apphcationhas

Total borrowings n<luding bank overdrafts lessshort di

bocds and cash, 31 book value plirs comulative farvalue movemenuon financal
denvatives asa percentage of total eguty For adusted geanng, see note 290 the
financial statements

Gross markat valus

Market value plus assumed usual purchaser’s costs at the reporting date
Headleass

Alease underwhich the Group holds an investment property

Interest Cover Ratia (ICR)
Acainiabondcmpany sability to meet s interest pay !

igs for a penod of one year of Less These sre included within voids.
Topped up et intialyreld
Tupged upnmmmlymldu a calcutation by the Group sexternal valuers Itis
calculated by tonetimbial yreld pectof theannuaksed
cash rent foregone through unexpired rent free penods and other lease incentves
Thecaiculation isconsistent with EPRA guvdance

Total businessretum

Drndend paid pershare pls the change inadjusted dikted net asset value per
share divided by the adpusted diluted net asset value per share at the beginnmg
of the year

Tatal devalopmant cost {TDC)
Total development costrefers to the bock value of the land atthe :nmmencement

been made to extend the Lime within which reservedmatters applhcationcan of the project, the est.mated capital expend. developthe scheme

be subrutted or the overall bmit for commencement of development from the startof the hnmmlynrm which the pmpzrtymddedtaour

Ovar rented P gr togetherwith

Space where the passing rent i above the ERY Total propertyreturn

Passing rant :"a!lnllonsuplu": p(z!l“:sf(loss]oﬂpmperryuluandne(re;:ullmmlm:spen

The estimated annual rent receivable asat the reporting date which includes. prope o ope g ey
\uge!hznmlhlhnIlmnwmghlndvlluefnr pi the

estumates of turnaver rent and estimates of rent to be agreed in respect of current year pnth bned property portfol s

g rent review or lease renewal negotiations Passing cashrent may be et yearonthecompinedproperty portioin

mare orless than lhe ERV (sﬂmr rented reversionary and [RY) Passing cash Total Shareholder Raturn (TSR}

fent excludes h n to the Thegruwumval.ueMashmholdmgmrupeuﬁedper\od assutrag that

extent that rents are expected o berectnved Viosd unuls and hatarena top L ofthestock -

rent Iree perod at the reporting date are deemed o haveno passing cashrent Trading, s

Althcugh temporarytets ofless than 12 months are treated as voud incomefrom
temporary lets sincluded in passing cash rents

Pra lat

ATmase sipned with anoecuger prios to completion of s development

Property ncome distribution (PID)
APIDE by 2 REIT torts sharehokders paid out of qualifying profits.

debt Itis cateulated using revence profit b \ntemt.dmdcdbymlh\tcresl
{excluding the mark ta Market movement on nterest rate swaps bend exchange
de recogmton <aptalised mterest andnterest on the pension schemeassets and
Labulities] Thecalculationexcludes joint ventures

interest rateswap

A REITis required to distribute at least 50% of 115 quatilying profits asa PIC o its
shareholders.

Proposed developments
Proposed developments are properties which have not yetrecerved final Board
approval orare soll subject tomain planning cendrians being saustied butwhich

Aﬁmndalmmumzmmmmpm-eugm' interest rate
b for ol tene Yheﬂam;enﬂillywbythz
Grcu;:lur.nmlﬂ floating-rate debt or Imvestments to fxed rates

Irvastmant portfolio
Thenvestment poctfol compnsies the Greup s wholly d

ly to proceed than not

Qud-limxuvmu:‘wh!ylr‘m
{actnty) of property |,
lnd qunlnﬂ-esl’mm exempt lm:mem(lnm and caprtal gaws] under UK REIT

properues together wath the properties held for development

Land Secunities Annual Report 2012

Resl Estate Investment Trust {(REIT)

ARLIT mustbe a publicly quoted company with at least three quarters ofits
profits and assets denved from a qualifving propertyrental business Income and
<apital gawns from the property rental business are exempt from tax but the RET 15

Properties held for trading purposes and shown ascurrent assetsin the balznce
sheet

Tutmover rent
Rental income which 15 ralated 1o an occupier’s turnover

Vouds

Vndsm uprsud [1T] pertemageol EWandreprm: allunbet space including
work 15 being car tof

pre development properties wnpomyImmgsforapemdo'muyurarkss

arealsotreated as voids

Weightedaverage costof capital {(WACC)

‘Werghted awerage cost of debt and notwoadl cost of equity used m abenchmark

toassess mvestment returms.

Yieldshift

Amovement (egative of posithee} inthe equrvalent yeld of a propertyasset

Zone A

A meansof analysing and companng the rental value of retail space by dwding it

intozones paralielwith the main frontage Themest valuable zone Zone s sat

thefrontof the umit £ach soccessive rone 1S valued at half the rate of the zonein

frontofn.
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Forward-looking statements

These Annual Results, our Annual Report and the Land Securities’ website may
contain certain *forward-looking statements” withrespect to Land Secunties Group
PLC and the Group's financial condition, results of operations and business, and
certain of Land Secunies Group PLC and the Group's plans, objectives, goals and
expectations with respect to these items

Forward-looking statements are sometimes, but not always, identified by
their use of adate in the future or such words as “anticipates”, “aims”, “due”, “could”,
“may”, "should”, "expects”, “believes”, "intends”, “plans”, "targets”, "goal” or
“estimates” By their very nature forward-looking statements are inherently
unpredictable, speculatrve and nvolve nsk and uncertainty because they relate to
events and depend on circumstances that will occur in the future Many of these
assumptions, nsks and uncerta:nties relate to factors that are beyond the Group’s
abulity to control or estimate precisely There are anumber of such factors that
could cause actual results and developments to differ matenally from those
expressed or implied by these forward-locking statements These factors include,
but are not Lirmited to, changes in the economies and markets m which the Group
operates, changes in the legal, regulatory and competition frameworks in which the
Group operates, changes in the markets from which the Group raises finance, the
impact of legal or cther proceedings against or which affect the Group, changes in
accounting practices and interpretation of accounting standards under IFRS, and
changes ininterest and exchange rates

Any written or verbal forward-looking statements, made in these Annual
Results, our Anaual Report, or the Land Secunties’ website or made subsequently,
which are attributable to Land Securities Group PLC or any ather member of the
Group or persons acting on their behalf are expressly qualified in ther entirety by
the factors referred to above Each forward-looking statement speaks only as of the
date of these Annual Results, our Annual Report, or on the date the forward-
lookeng statement is made Land Secunities Group PLC does notintend to update
any forward-looking statements
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